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Vision & Mission

VISION

To emerge as a dominant B2B player in the area of trading
with particular emphasis on Steel Industry.

MISSION

MSTC will endeavour to organize and expand a market
for various commodities handled by it making transactions
as transparent as possible through extensive use of e-
commerce.

OBJECTIVES

a) To emerge as a diversified trading house with
particular emphasis on bulk raw materials for steel
industry sourced both indigenously and
internationally and towards this end gradually build
up tie-ups with international trading houses, develop
warehousing system and logistics.

b) To plan and organise disposal of scrap and
secondary arisings, unserviceable stores, etc. of
organisations, both in the public sector and private
sector and to popularise e-auction.

c) To promote e-commerce / e-transactions in above
areas and also in transactional sale of prime
products.

d) To undertake these activities so as to ensure an
optimum return on capital employed and to attain a
return of 15% on the net worth.

e) To ensure customers’ satisfaction by providing
prompt and efficient dealing with customers,
principals and other business associates.

f)  To develop and maintain a competent, dedicated
and motivated workforce.

g) To achieve the aforesaid objectives, promote joint
ventures with selected domain experts in the area
of mining, logistics, warehousing, value addition to
the merchandise etc.
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MSTC Today

MSTC has successfully completed 51 years of its existence
on 9" September 2015 and is moving on its way to 52™year
of a long journey of growth. From being a small canalized
agency, it has transformed itself into e-commerce giant in
B2B sector and has the distinction of being only such
company in public sector.

MSTC today is rendering its services to steel and
petrochemical sectors for raw material support and
seamless e-commerce services with innovative approach
to various PSUs, Central Government/State Government
and private sector companies. Successful e-auction of coal
blocks is yet another feather in MSTC’s cap and MSTC
today stands taller than yesterday. It is the most preferred
service provider and various Central PSUs, State
Governments are engaging MSTC on nomination basis
based on its strong credentials.

MSTC today is category-l Mini Ratna Public Sector
schedule ‘B’ company under the administrative control at
Ministry of Steel, Govt. of India.

Incorporated in 1964 as a small trading company with a
meagre capital of Rs. 6 lakhs, in last 51 years it has grown
into a large multi-product diversified company. MSTC has
issued bonus shares thrice and the shareholders’ value
has substantially being enhanced. It has paid substantial
dividends to the Government exchequer apart from direct
and indirect tax.

MSTC facilitates in recycling of scrap for industrial use in
terms of raw materials and thereby reduces input cost,
conserve energy & natural resources and ultimately
protects the environment. Thus it contributes significantly
to “Swachh Bharat” Mission of the Government.

MSTC is committed to protection of environment, natural
resources, uplift of the poor and under privileged class
under its CSR and Sustainability Development initiatives.

Taking a leap forward, MSTC is in the process of setting
up a shredding plant througha JV company with Mahindra
Group. This will be one of its own kind in India and go a
long way in recycling special grade steels besides
substituting imports for such materials.

MSTC today on its 52" year of glorious existence
expresses its gratitude to the people of the country, the
Government, the stakeholders for reposing faith in the
company. We reiterate our commitment to ethical business
principles, desirable governance, management
capabilities, social cause, transparency and fairness in all
its business activities.

MSTC has envisioned to become a numero uno in e-
commerce &trade. It is poised for becoming a company
promoting digital India drive, transparency and cleaner
environment.
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Dear Shareholders,

| welcome you all to this 51st Annual General Meeting of the
Company. | am before you in this meeting for the 7th time
and had the pleasure of interacting with you, as Director
(Commercial), this is my first meeting as CMD of the company,
a role and responsibility bestowed upon me by the
Government who is the major shareholder. | assure all of you
and the other stakeholders who are not present here, that no
effort, big or small, shall be missed, which aims to make MSTC
a bigger, stronger and an efficient organisation, keeping best
governing practices in place.

The Board's Report, Auditors' Report and Financial
Statements have been sent to you and | take them as read.
The financial results for the year have not been very
encouraging due to various extraneous reasons. We have
ended the year with a Profit after Tax (PAT) of Rs. 5,988 Lakh
compared to Rs. 9,099 Lakh for the previous year. In volume,
we are up by 3 %, but with the commodity prices falling (leading
to fall in service charge which is linked to the value) and
pressure from our clients to reduce service charge in e-
commerce segment have compelled us to compromise at a
lower profit. We intend to make good such decline in profit by
doing more business in volume and thereby reaching a decent
financial bottom-line for the year 2016-17. Your company is
one of the premiere companies in e-commerce. Central
Government, PSUs and State Governments have given job
to MSTC on nomination basis.

An individual company, whatever efficient it may be, cannot
be isolated from the macro level trends of the country. | am
referring to depression in the steel industry which constitute
our main business vertical i.e. import of raw material for the
mini steel plants. The materials imported by our customers
are lying unused due to huge and unprecedented slump in
demand and customers are not able to pay us, resulting to a
substantial outstanding from the parties. Most of the
customers, who are fairly big companies are cooperating with
us to bring down the outstanding, but it would require time.
Your directors are concerned about it and close monitoring is
done to solve this issue.
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Coming to the shareholder's issue, the issue of bonus
sharesat the rate of 1:1, approved in the last AGM, have been
approved by the Government and the shares have been
allotted and dispatched.l am happy to announce that we have
a proposal for further bonus issue at the ratio of 1:1 in this
meeting. Once this is approved, the share capital of the
company shall stand at Rs. 35.2 Crore.

Your request of dematerialisation has been accepted by the
Board. In this meeting we have a proposal to alter the Articles
of Association of the Company to facilitate dematerialisation.
Though our trading volume is very less, electronic trading
would be beneficial to the shareholders.

| would like to inform that few internal restructuring of the
organisation and HR Policies are being made, all with an
intention to deliver better service to our clients and thereby
be in business on sustained basis. Your Company has not
lost a single manday during the last year and industrial
relations have been cordial.

My predecessor had referred about a new project of shredding
plant. | am happy to inform you that such plant, first of this
kind in India, shall soon be installed by forming a 50:50 joint
venture with the Mahindra group. Keeping the logistical
benefits in mind, Gujarat or Maharashtra seems to be the ideal
location with collection centers at 3 locations around the
country, to start with. This will not only help the country to get
value from the rejected vehicles and white goods, but would
also save the environment, natural resources and precious
foreign exchange.

You might be aware that MSTC is a socially aware company
and have taken up various social upliftment projects
throughout the country. Your company follows the best and
fair trade practices. Ethical and social values do find a place
in taking corporate decisions. This is apart from complying
with CG Guidelines under the Regulations and DPE
Guidelines.

Lastly | acknowledge humbly the trust and faith reposed on
me and my team by Government, who holds majority stake
and is administrative controller of the Company, the non-
Government shareholders, the bankers, various State
Governments and lastly the employees of the Company.

Best wishes for Durga Puja and Deepavali.

Thanking you,

Jai Hind! ﬂ']/
B. B. Singh

Chairman cum Managing Director

Kolkata
28, September 2016
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BOARD'S REPORT

To
The Shareholders
MSTC Limited

Directors are pleased to present the 51 Annual Report on
the business and operation of the Company together with
audited accounts and auditors report for the year ended 31st
March 2016.

A) AGENCY BUSINESS

This year the total volume of Agency Business stands at
% 20,67,730 Lakh against¥ 19,95,312 Lakh in 2014-15. Break-
up for the year 2015-16 vis-a-vis 2014-15 is as follows :
Business Segment Volume of Business (¥ in Lakh)
2015-16 2014-15
Sale of Scrap & Manganese Ore etc. 7,86,637 7,28,350
Sale of Coal 8,18,444 6,13,644
Iron ore 4,62,649 6,53,318

Total (A) : 20,67,730 19,95,312

B) e- PROCUREMENT

Business Segment Volume of Business (¥ in Lakh)
2015-16 2014-15
5,75,975 3,02,422

e-Procurement (B)

Total (A+B) 26,43,705 22,97,734

et wE vay e ot . . e, fews (f9) s v, &, a1 @ o ST e 9IRd SifaT & SR
Shri B. B. Singh, CMD, Shri A. K. Basu, Director(Finance) and other employees during Swachh Bharat Abhiyan
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C) TRADING

The performance of Trading Division shows a total volume
of business of ¥ 4,38,223 Lakh, against
% 6,94,521 Lakh in 2014-15. Break-up for the year 2015-
16 vis-a-vis 2014-15 is as follows :

Business Segment Volume of Business (¥ in Lakh)

2015-16 2014-15
Procurement of:
1,35,027 1,60,334
3,03,196 5,34,187

Imported materials
Indigenous materials

Total: (C)

4,38,223 6,94,521

Grand Total (A+B+C) 30,81,928 29,92,255
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY

Profit after tax stands at ¥ 5,988 Lakh as against a profit of
% 9,099 Lakh last year.

Financial results of the company for the year 2015-16 and
2014-15 are given below : -

(% in Lakh)
2015-16 2014-15
Volume of Business 30,81,928 29,92,255
Profit (Loss) before tax 9,134 13,147
Tax 3,146 4,408
Profit after tax 5,988 9,099
Paid up capital (Equity) 880 880
Reserves 72,368 68,543
Dividend (%) 102.5 207
Earning per share (%) 68 103
(Face value ¥ 10/-)
PBT Per Employee 28.19 42.86
DIVIDEND

The Directors have recommended a dividend of @ 102.5%
for the year ended 31t March, 2016. Dividend shall be paid to
the shareholders whose names will appear in the register of
the members on as on the date of AGM.

RESERVES

General Reserves of the Company stood at ¥ 68,543 Lakh as
on 31t March, 2015. During the year ¥ 3,825 Lakh have been
transferred to General Reserve from Profit & Loss Account.
After considering Dividend and Dividend Distribution tax for
2015-16 the General Reserves stand at ¥ 72,368 Lakh as on
31st March 2016.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In compliance of section 134(3)(a), and Rule 12(1) of the
Company’s (Management and Administrative) Rules 2014,
extract of Annual Report is format MGT-9 for the financial year
2015-16 has been enclosed with this report as Annexure V in
the prescribed format.

SYSTEMS

MSTC’s IT infrastructure is by far the most sophisticated in
the country to take up ecommerce services in a secure and
transparent manner.

MSTC’s IT Department is equipped with the latest powerful
IBM Power Series 740 Servers having robust processing
power and can serve thousands of concurrent users. The
servers are highly energy efficient leading to saving of power.

Mumbai Disaster Recovery site is also having a similar set up
as in Kolkata Data Center.

MSTC is concerned with information security issues and has
left no stone unturned to achieve maximum security by
installing Firewall, Intrusion Prevention System (IPS),
Managed Distributed Denial of Service (MDDOS), etc.

SSL ENCRYPTION :

SSL (Secure Sockets Layer) is the standard security
technology for establishing an encrypted link between a web
server and a browser. This link ensures that all data passed
between the web server and browsers remain private and
integral. We have implemented 256-bit SSL in our web server.

All network equipment like routers, switches are from CISCO
and are totally ready for IPV6 migration. Security Appliances
like Firewalls, IPS are in place to prevent unauthorized
intrusion with latest signatures.
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Periodical Application Security Testing is conducted by STQC,
a Govt. of India Department. MSTC ensures security through
periodical penetration and vulnerability & performance testing
by STQC.

MSTC conducts its business through a dedicated 100 Mbps
ILL and has also a standby ILL connectivity taken from a
different provider. MSTC has connected its regions and
branches through VPN which enabled the centralized internal
applications to be used by all in a more secured manner.
Moreover an UTM has been installed for protecting the users
systems from outside spams and viruses.

MSTC has developed an in-house complete e-Procurement
solution. General Financial Rules, CVC guidelines, IT Act 2000
and its Amendment of 2008 have been adhered to in this
e-Procurement Application and the said service has been
certified by STQC.

MSTC e-Commerce has been appraised upto CMMI Level-3
Dev. For achieving CMMI Level 5 from existing CMMI Level
3, training and holding of CMMI DEV High Maturity Process,
Concept and theirimplementation to officers started from 11th
December, 2015 and completed on 27th January, 2016.

MSTC server in Kolkata is manned round-the-clock throughout
the year. The Systems dept. is well equipped with qualified
professionals whose skills are continuously upgraded with
training on latest technology.

MSTC’s System Department is ISO 27001:2013 certified from
STQC.

MSTC e-commerce division is also ISO 9001:2008 Quality
certified.

MSTC System department have developed in-house &
implemented the following major modules in 2015-16:

a) Two-stage e-Auction System (Technical Bid with IPO-Initial
Price Offer first, then Forward e-Auction) for Mining Lease &
Composite License on behalf of Ministry of Mines(MOM)

b) Two-stage e-Auction System (Technical Bid with IPO first,
then Price & quantity Reverse e-Auction) for Short Terms
Power Purchase Agreement on behalf of Ministry of Power
(MOP)

c) Two-stage e-Bidding System(Technical Bid with IPO first,
then Price & Quantity Reverse e-Auction) for Deen-Dayal-
Upadhyaya Gram JyotiYojana on behalf of Ministry of
Power(MOPd). Negative bidding were allowed to bidders in
RLNG reverse auction resulting revenue collection of INR
18 Crore to Government of India instead of disbursing INR
1400 Crore subsidy as Power System Development
Fund(PSDF).

d) Sale of Fly Ash through Book Building Method of Bidding
for NTPC & DVC.

e) During the year, MSTC's system Department have developed
Mobile Bidding System through Android and other Mobile phone
users for prime item like Manganese Ore where price and
quantity bidding is necessary. The same system has been
implemented in the Live Server on 9th February 2016.
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HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT (HRD)

MSTC Limited has always considered its human resource as
the most important resource. With the increase in volume of
business and employees retiring from the Company,
recruitment has been undertaken at the entry level of both
executive cadre and Junior Computer Assistant posts. Total
of 44 employees have joined our company through direct
recruitment during the year.

Since we are a people oriented company, development of
employees through training has been an important area of
HR activities. Emphasis was laid on competency building of
employees for higher roles in the Company. The company
has trained 63 executives in various topics for capability
enhancement and skill development. Out of 63, 13 persons
were trained in Senior Management Development Program
and 23 persons were trained in Skill Development relating IT/
e-commerce. The MOU targets for HR for the year 2015-16
were successfully achieved.

WELFARE OF WEAKER SECTIONS :

The Presidential Directives issued from time to time in regard
to reservation, relaxation, concession, etc. for the SC/ST/OBC/
PWD candidates pertaining to the policies and procedures of
the Government were duly observed. The directives in matters
concerning recruitment and promotion regarding the weaker
sections have been duly complied with. All Departmental
Promotion Committees and Selection Committees (in case of
recruitment) constituted during the year had representatives
of SC/ST community. Out of 44 no of persons recruited during
the year, 10 OBC, 2 SC and 3 ST persons were taken, of
which 1 belong to PWD (HH). During the year, 3 SC, 3 ST and
16 OBC employees of the Company, were sponsored for
training programmes, both In-house and Institutional training
programmes, out of which 1 employee was PWD (VH) and
2 employees were from minority. In addition, all possible
cooperation and assistance was provided to the MSTC SC/
ST Employees' Council, which function primarily to safeguard
the interest of the reserved section of employees of the
Company.

ONLINE PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL SYSTEM :

The Company has launched its Online Performance Appraisal
System for executives up to DGM level for bringing
transparency and promptness to the systems of Performance
Evaluation and Management.

EMPOWERMENT OF WOMEN :

MSTC is a Corporate Life Member of Forum of Women in
Public Sector (WIPS). During the year, several women
employees were nominated in the programmes organized by
WIPS. Besides, one of our executives is actively involved as
the President, ER of WIPS. Internal Complaints Committees
constituted in all the offices of MSTC have been functioning
successfully. Periodical meetings and Complaint redressal,
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awareness programs, etc. are also duly conducted by the
Committees.

Disclosure under section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

MSTC has in place a mechanism for prevention and redressal
of sexual harassment of women employees at the workplace
in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Complaints Committees (ICCs) have been set up in

(1.3 9 faum)
(HRM DEPARTMENT)
fasiies 31.083.2016 o fRUfT & IR TATwSRA o S=eIfh
MANPOWER STATISTICS OF MSTC AS ON 31-03-2016
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G2k

HO |[ERO [NRO/| WRO | SRO [BLR/| VIZ | BHPL| VADO | HYD | BHUB | LKNO | TOTAL | TOTAL

JAIP TRVN DARA AS ON

1.4.14
HRIUTAH/EX | 78 | 12 24 18 9 15 10 3 10 5 1 2 187 170
IR-wrTe®/ | 45 | 13 18 15 11 9 12 3 8 2 0 1 137 137

NEX
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SC/ST/OBC/PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED/EX-SERVICEMEN STATUS AS ON 31-03-2016

q P T (%) et (%) NIRA (%) TNIR® fawai (%)
GROUP TOTAL SC (%) ST (%) OBC (%) PHYSICALLY
HANDICAPPED
(%)
3/A 187 26(13.90) 13(6.95) 43(22.99) 4(2.13)
a/B 31 8(25.80) 1(3.22) Z=/NIL 2(6.45)
w/C 96 18(18.75) 4(4.16) 19(19.79) 3(3.12)
2/D 10 4(40.00) 1(10.00) T=/NIL Z=/NIL
1/ TOTAL 324 56(17.28) 19(5.86) 62(19.13) 9(2.77)
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all the offices of the Company for rendering necessary
assistance to and dealing with complaints, if any, of all the
women employees of the Company. All employees
(permanent, outsourced, trainees etc.) are covered under this
policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints
received and disposed off during each calendar year.

*  No of complaints received : 1 (received on 31.03.2016)
*  No of complaints disposed off : Nil
GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL MECHANISM

MSTC has Public Grievance Redressal cell in its each office.
Each cell consists of three executives. There are total eight
(08) cells in Head office, regions and branches of the
organisation. MSTC has also implemented Centralized Public
Grievance Redress and Monitoring System(CPGRAMS) for
online receipt and disposal of public grievances, so that

AR FETET h IgETed W UAUESHT & deAe Ud ey freus o . . fie ok frus (fa) 4t w & =g
CMD MSTC, Shri B. B. Singh and Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) at the inauguration of Raipur Office
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grievance can be sorted out immediately and to take action
to solve the cases. Action is taken to address and redress
grievances received from outside and from staff of the
organisation. Periodical meeting is held for review of the status
of grievances. Monthly and quarterly reports for Public
Grievance Redressal are sent to the Administrative Ministry.

Existing mechanism is working satisfactorily. Grievances from
the employees are also taken care by the HOD's and Region/
Branch Managers. Moreover, the HR Dept. attends to various
formal/informal grievances received from the employees in
day to day running of the office in consultation with the HOD's
& Staff Unions, wherever necessary. The organisation makes
proactive disclosure of services it provides to the clients and
common man and contact details of public grievance authority
of the organisation.

During 2015-16, 15(fifteen) grievances are registered and all
have been redressed.

Statement of Public Grievances for the period of 01.04.15
to 31.03.16

Grievances Grievances Grievances Grievances
outstanding registered in redressed in outstanding as
ason 01.04.15 2015-16 2015-16 on 01.04.16

5 15 15 Nil

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2005

MSTC has nominated an Appellate Authority, a CPIO and a
Nodal officer in Head office. Every region/branch has a PIO
and an APIO as well for effectively processing the RTI
applications received at various locations of the Company.
Provisions of Right to Information Act 2005 have been duly
complied for processing the applications/requests received
under RTI Act 2005. All the quarterly reports have been
submitted on-line. During 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016,
total 86 applications and 3 first appeals have been received
and all have been disposed of. Online RTI application
registration facility has been developed. RTI application can
be received and disposed of through RTI web portal namely
https://rtionline.gov.in RTI Applications and Appeals received
Offline and Online are processed expeditiously.

OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Rajbhasha Trimas was inaugurated on 16 September 2015.
During this period, Hindi competitions and Hindi workshops
were organized in Head office and in regional and branch
offices. Total 17 officers/employees were awarded prizes for
winning in Hindi competitions and for passing Hindi
examinations. Total 14 employees were nominated for the
Hindi examinations conducted by Hindi Teaching Scheme,
Official Language Dept., Government of India, during the year.
Quarterly reports and Annual Report were sent to the Ministry.
Hindi reports are being submitted on-line also. TOLIC meetings
were attended regularly.

OLIC meeting of Ministry of Steel held during the year was
attended. OLIC meetings were arranged in the office. As per
the Official Language Act, inspection was done in Head Office
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and regional and branch offices. All materials for inspection
were made available at the time of inspection done by the
Ministry. Incentive was provided to 24 officers and employees.

MSTC, Head Office inspected branch office (Vadodara), NRO
(New Delhi).Parliamentary Committee on Official Language
inspected Vadodara branch on 08.10.2015. Monitoring for
implementation of Official Language was done. Circular for
implementation of section 3(3) of Official Language Act 1963
was issued from time to time. Departments of Head Office
and Eastern Regional Office were inspected.

Re-certification of ISO 9001:2008 of Official Language
Department was done.

Unicode was installed in the computers of Head Office and
Regional / Branch Offices.

Documents coming under section 3(3) of Official Language
Act were translated in Hindi. Translations from English to
Hindi and vice versa have been provided as and when
required. Hindi version of Annual report and MoU were also
submitted. Official Language Act has been complied with.
Ministry of Steel and its Hindi Salahkar Samity continuously
provided their guidance about implementation of Official
Language Act.

VIGILANCE

The aim of MSTC Vigilance Department is to ensure fairness,
integrity and efficiency so that the transparency and
accountability in the functioning of all activities of the
Company. lts set-up is operative to identify the corrupt
practices and to institutionalize them for diminishing the
human intervention in the business transactions. MSTC
Vigilance Department complies with the ISO 9001-2008
Quality Management System wherein the emphasis has been
put to establish the effective preventive measures through
the use of leveraging technology.

The functioning of MSTC is run by its own IT Infrastructure
like e-Commerce i.e. e-auction, e-sale, e-reverse auction,
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Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) distributing prizes to winner of Rajbhasha Purashkar
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Ministry of Steel Officials reviewing performance of MSTC

e-tender cum e-auction and e-Procurement operation. These
processes are carried out in compliance with STQC certified
Web Portal as per CVC Guidelines. lts software has several
in-built provisions which prevent cartel formation and ensure
transparency and fairness. The system of e-auction, e-sale,
e-procurement is designed in such a way that during the run
of e-auction, no one can view the details of the bidders in
competitions, despite having their login id and password.

During the year, MSTC Vigilance Department has taken
various initiatives to improve the functioning of activities in
the organization. The actions, against twenty numbers of
complaints received, have been taken and necessary advice
for both system and systemic improvements have been given
for necessary compliance. On the basis of the directives
issued by CVC/MOS, the initiatives undertaken by Vigilance
Division include implementation of Bill Tracking System
which can be utilized for the display of pending bills of
contractors on the portal, professing purchases above X
50,000.00, in all departments & branches through MSTC's
own e-Procurement Portal, review of recruitment rules,
implementation of full disclosure of APAR, online writing of
APAR, opportunity to make representation in response to the
adverse report in APARs, devising risk profile of an
organization, framing the constituents of transparency index
etc. Further, during the year 2015-16, six routine inspections
and two surprise inspections were carried out. The major
focus of such inspections has been on identifying vulnerable
areas of corruption, streamlining of system/procedure and
awareness on vigilance/anti-corruption issues amongst the
employees through interactions. As far as Annual Property
Returns (APR) are concerned, Vigilance department has
maintained a continuous follow up with the employees. Out
of 324 employees, 308 have submitted APRs; scrutiny of the
same is in progress.
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service delivery system more transparent.

practiced by MSTC.

finalized to speak on the topic "Corruption

cash prizes.
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Director (Commercial), Shri B. B. Singh, Director (Finance), Shri A. K. Basu, CVO, Shri S. Ambastha during opening of Vigilance Awareness Week
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V GILANCE AWARENESS WEEX - 2015
From 26-10-2015 to 31-10-2015
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MSTC provides a link to CPGRMS (Centralized Public
Grievance Redressal and Monitoring System) to make the
Integrity Pact has
been implemented to prevent corruption in public
procurement. The Whistle Blower Policy of MSTC provides
opportunity to all employees for access in good faith. Citizens
in Administration (Sevottam) and also a Vigilance page for
lodging complaints directly to CVO. Corporate Governance
Guidelines by DPE (Department of Public Enterprise) has
been complied with and Code of Conduct for all Board
members and designated service management has been
laid down. MSTC Risk Profile of the organization is being
prepared keeping in mind the present activities of MSTC and
analysis of the business transactions. Transparency Index is
being revised for accessing the degree of transparency

The CVOs of MSTC Limited, Andrew Yule & Company Limited
and Bridge & Roof Co.(l) Ltd. coordinated among themselves
to organize an elocution competition at St. James School,
Entally, Kolkata on 17-11-2015. Altogether, 13 students were
is a Social Evil" in
presence of 100 audiences. Cash Prizes and Certificates were
awarded to the best three speakers and consolation prizes
were also awarded to other 10 participants.
competition was also organized amongst the audience, who
were not enlisted as speaker in the elocution competition. The
topic selected was "Steps to Eradicate Corruption”. A total of
22 entries were received and best 5 entries were awarded

A creative writing
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MSTC Vigilance Department organized "Vigilance
Awareness Week" in various offices of MSTC from 26.10.2015
to 31.10.2015 as per the directives received from the Central
Vigilance Commission, New Delhi. To mark the occasion,
MSTC Vigilance conducted Essay Competition and Slogan
Writing was organized amongst the employees on all-India
basis on the theme "Preventive Vigilance as a tool of Good
Governance". Prizes were distributed to the employees for
the best entries to motivate them for their active participation.
In addition, a workshop was organized at HO, Kolkata in
consonance with the theme for Vigilance Awareness Week-
2015, which was attended by CMD, functional Directors, HODs
& employees/officers of the company. Shri A.K.Sinha, External
Independent Monitor was the Chief Guest & on his key note
address emphasized on the role of cultivating ethical principles
and moral values to be an essential ingredient of good
Governance. He also acknowledged the contribution of MSTC
e-Commerce platform in promoting fair and transparent
government transactions. Suitable banners were displayed
at conspicuous public places in the premises of the
Headquarters as well as Regional/Branch offices to sensitize
one and all on the vigilance and anti-corruption measures. A
brochure was unveiled to commemorate the occasion of
Vigilance Awareness Week, highlighting the role played by
MSTC in developing end-to-end e-commerce solutions that
can provide the accountability at every level of hierarchies in
administration as well as address the challenge of corruption.
Copies of brochure have been widely circulated within and
outside the Company.

COMMENTS BY COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA (C&AG)

Comments of C&AG on the Annual accounts of company in
terms of section 143(3)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013, shall
be deemed as part of Directors’ Report.
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Shri S. Ambastha, CVO, speaking during a Vigilance interaction meeting. Also seen is Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance)
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Directors Responsibility Statement

As required under the provisions of Section 134(5) of the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2013, Board of Directors state
that:

In the preparation of annual accounts the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures.

Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company as at 31.03.2016 and of
the profit of the company for the financial year 2015-16.

Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year
ended 31st March, 2016 on a going concern basis.

Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, has appointed M/s.
Ray & Co, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the year 2015-16. The report of the Auditors
is attached to the annual accounts of the Company.
Management replies on the comments/observations of the
Auditors are placed at Annexure VIII to Directors' Report.

DIRECTORS

Board of Directors of MSTC Ltd. presently consists of Shri
B.B. Singh, Chairman-cum-Managing Director, Shri A.K. Basu,
Director (Finance), who are whole time directors. Shri S.K.
Tripathi was CMD upto 31.05.2016. On his superannuation
Shri B.B. Singh has taken over as CMD. He is also holding
additional charge of Director (Commercial). Shri Sunil
Barthwal, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Steel and Shri Suraj
Bhan, Economic Adviser, Ministry of Steel are Government
nominee directors. Shri A. K. Goyal, former Member, Railway
Board, is the only Independent Director. The term of Shri N.C.
Jha, ex-CMD, Coal India Ltd., as independent director in the
Board, expired on 09.10.2015.

The Board of Director placed on record their deep
appreciation of the valuable guidance and contribution made
by Shri S.K.Tripathi as CMD of the company.




it e wen
BT AR, 2013 &I gRT 204 & FFAR AR Al Hied,

JIWITART HUt Aferd o1 a9 2015-16 & forg Hu=it &1 Afdia
oI o¥iere b WY 4 ek fham R & | |ferdi o ulier @t
fratRa R 59 ufides & sgae VIl & w9 § e 2 |
Heferd arct aFe

BT (o) SRR, 2014 1 gRT 8(2) & JITAR TUH T3i-dl-
2 ¥ g1 188(1) ¥ SfcaiRad Hefaq uifcal & wer |fagmsit &1
fa=or 59 ufrdes & e |1l & wY § e 2 |

Jrevel g vay feere, frews (faea) wa ot afya gy 2(51)
&A1Y gRT 2(76) & S aflid |t ot & wu H =
YEIHTT BIRTH (HTAU) € | 1ee g uey e vd fFoers
(foremr) 1 PRI R IRBR gRT (0 2l & o1efi srqaeay
YOS & Siate famam w1 & | TR shy T fatfies (Twuegaen)
S TRt due # fere(fae) Tifha feeres 21
UHUATATS & [9hg Toie & w9 § THUES AT B dxell 7, S
THUHERTT & oY Um0 =i Bl € T o1 Gt
F U TR AR TR AR AT &% W agertt § | et
Me™ & Jeue & Y ThUauad @l WRefd Hal gedb Dbl
R BR Gl & Sl THUATTIUS b 70 AT i B
2| 37d: THUACHT Td THUHTATS & s19 oo dvalg 9Ie] oFed &
=9 # fa=m 72 foram o 21

AR AT SR

e e & foag doil 99k wu 4§ dideg 21 ol
JfaEE, 2013 & o R A1 SIS & feenfeEe & R
HUN B U HUFIAR HHST &, O PR d feRmaei q2n
BT B FTHSTR AT P TAR BRI R & | B D1 ATHAR
diferdl 91 gRT AT foham 1T § Td 98 Sl Bl dedIse W)
YA & |

Su (Frrfira smfsie <1 fT) e, 2014 & M 8 &
ST TRy MU | a1 1R aTfie Jfikides srgers
VI & 9§ e B

e siftremes

e sTremae vd wee & fraR-fmst @1 &R SR @
e || H R fopar 71 & 3R a8 39 a1 Hferde &
fer & | i s1fremae fides # Srgelt=ies & wy 3 SUTer
orr wleror Rure e g |

21

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In compliance with section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Saumayo Jyoti Seal, practicing company secretary has been
appointed as the Secretarial Auditor for the year 2015-16.
Report of the Secretarial Auditor as prescribed is enclosed as
Annexure VI to this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
the particulars of contracts with related parties referred in
section 188(1) in Form AOC- 2 are enclosed as Annexure I
to this report.

CMD, Director (Finance) and Company Secretary are Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) under section 2(51) as well as
related party as defined under 2(76). CMD and Director
(Finance) are employed under contractual employment under
terms decided by Government of India. Director (Finance) is
also a nominated director in subsidiary company i.e. Ferro
Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL).

MSTC functions as selling agent to FSNL which is a normal
course of business for MSTC and charges service charges at
a rate which is normally charged to other companies. MSTC
has paid custodian service charges for warehouse
management to FSNL which is a normal course of business
for FSNL. Therefore transaction between MSTC and FSNL is
not considered as related party transaction.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Company is seriously committed to social uplift. In line with
the Companies Act, 2013 and also DPE guidelines, Company
has a CSR Committee which functions as per Govt. guidelines
and Company CSR policy. CSR Policy of the Company has
been approved by the Board and is hosted on the website of
the Company.

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as required
under Rule 8 Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 is placed as Annexure VI.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Separate details on Corporate Governance and Management
Discussion and Analysis are attached herewith as Annexure-
Il and form part of this Directors Report. Compliance Audit
Report is placed as Annexure to Corporate Governance
Report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Board met 5 times during the FY 2015-16. Details are available
under Annexure Il of this report.

STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS

All independent directors in the Board have submitted
Statement of Independence in compliance of section 149(7)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

MSTC has constituted four committees of the Board viz., Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Share Transfer
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to section 178 of the Company's Act, 2013, read
with Rule 6 of the Company's (Meeting of Board and its
powers) Rules, 2014, Company is supposed to have a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Being a Govt. India
Company, the nomination/appointment of director is made
by Govt. of India. However, Remuneration Committee is in
place which is also in compliance of Corporate Governance
(CG) guidelines by DPE which apply to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
COMMITTEE

In compliance of section 135(1) read with Rule 5 of the
Company's (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, Company has
constituted CSR Committee of the Board.

Details of the above Committees are mentioned under
Annexure |l of this report.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Constitution of Stakeholder's Relationship Committee as
provided under section 178(5) of the Act do not apply to the

Company as number of shareholders are below one thousand.
However, share transfer committee is in place.

Subsidiary Company - Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited is the 100% Subsidiary of the
Company. The Operational result of two years is given below:

(¥ in Lakh)

2015-16 2014-15

Total Revenue 34,707 27,671
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 3,252 2,358

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 2,111 1,710
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The detailed information relating to the subsidiary company
is placed as annexure IV in form AOC-1 in compliance of
section 129 of the Companies Act, read with Rule 5 of
Companies (Account) Rules.

Consolidated Financial Statement has been attached to with
the Financial Statement of the holding company, MSTC Ltd.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors wish to place on record their gratitude
to the Hon'ble Union Minister for Steel, Secretary (Steel),
Additional Secretary and FA (Steel), and other officials of the
Ministry of Steel, Defence Ministry, Coal Ministry and various
other Central Government Ministries, all State Governments,
various Central and State public sector undertakings, private
companies, the bankers, our principals and others for their
valuable assistance and guidance extended to the Company
during the year. The Directors express their gratitude to all
stake holders, customers and suppliers for the trust and
confidence reposed by them on your Company year after year.

Your Directors also place on record the appreciation of the
sincere efforts made by employees which has resulted in

excellent performance of the Company.
W

(B. B. Singh)
Chairman-cum-Managing Director

For & on behalf of Board of Directors
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Annexure: |

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS REPORT

Particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption,
foreign exchange earnings and outgo as per section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, as read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION

Company has upgraded its Server to the latest IPV6 which
consumes much less electrical power and conserves energy.
Being IT oriented company, technological upgradation is a
continuous process in MSTC and has been fully achieved by
your Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The total foreign exchange outgo during the year 2015-16 for
import of goods and others was ¥ 1,35,953 Lakh as against
%1,60,348 Lakh in the year 2014-15. The company has earned
% 5 Lakh in foreign exchange during the year 2015-16. In the
previous year i.e. 2014-15, the foreign exchange earning was
3 13 Lakh.

Annexure: Il
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
MSTC'’s Policy on Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance practices to provide for an
environment in achieving the objectives of the company have
been the basic management philosophy of your company.

All out efforts are made for transparency and integrity at all
levels of management in order to retain confidence reposed
in its management by the stakeholders.

MSTC aspires to follow high ethical standards, commitment
to values while doing business, maintain transparency,
conduct due diligence in commercial contracts and follows
best governing practices. The guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises as issued
on May 2010, have been complied with in the year 2015-16
and shall be complied with in future also.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

Board of Directors of MSTC Ltd. presently consists of Shri
B.B. Singh, Chairman-cum-Managing Director, Shri A.K. Basu,
Director (Finance), who are whole time directors. Shri S.K.
Tripathi was CMD upto 31.05.2016, on his Superannuation
Shri B.B. Singh has taken over as CMD, he is also holding
additional charge of Director (Commercial). Shri Sunil
Barthwal, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Steel, and Shri Suraj
Bhan, Economic Adviser, Ministry of Steel are Government
nominee directors. Shri A. K. Goyal, former Member, Railway
Board, is the only Independent Director. The term Shri N.C.
Jha, ex-CMD, Coal India Ltd., as independent director in the
Board expired on 09.10.2015.
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Shri S. K. Tripathi, CMD, handing over best Region trophy to RM, SRO in presence of Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Shri B. B. Singh Director (Commercial)
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Brief information of the newly appointed directors

Ms. Molly Tiwari
Ms. Molly Tiwari, Dy. Secy, Ministry of Steel was appointed
Director on 15.8.2015 and continued upto 31.12.2015.

Shri Sunil Barthwal

During the year Shri Sunil Barthwal, IAS, Joint Secretary in
the Ministry of Steel has been appointed as Govt. Nominee
Director.

REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS

Independent Directors are not entitled to any remuneration
other than sitting fees for attending Board and Board
Committee Meeting. Sitting fees are not given to Government
Directors. CMD, and other two functional directors, being in
whole time employment, are entitled to remuneration as per
the terms of the appointment issued by Govt. The
Remuneration Committee determines the Performance
Related Pay payable to whole time directors in line with Govt.
guideline.

Remuneration received by CMD and two functional directors
as salary and allowances is Rs 150 Lakh, Company's
contribution to PF is ¥ 7 Lakh and reimbursement of medical
expenses is ¥ 2 Lakh for the year 2015-16. CMD, D(F) and
D(C) are also provided car by the Company. They are also
entitled to Performance Related Pay (PRP) as per DPE
Guidelines and as recommended by Remuneration Committee
of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD

Record of Attendance of the Directors during the Board
Meetings of MSTC Ltd held in the F.Y. 2015-16 is placed
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below. CMD was present in all the Board Meetings during
the year.

Board Board Shri Shri Shri Shri Sunil
Meeting Meeting N.C.Jha AK. Suraj  Barthwal
No. Date Goyal Bhan

265 24.04.2015 a p p a

266 09.07.2015 a o o P

267 17.10.2015 x p p X

268 14.01.2016 x p p X

269 18.02.2016 x p p p
Board Board Shri Shri Shri Smt.
Meeting  Meeting S.K. AK. B.B. Molly
No. Date Tripathi  Basu  Singh  Tiwari
265 24.04.2015 p p p X
266 09.07.2015 p p p X
267 17.10.2015 p p p X
268 14.01.2016 p p p X
269 18.02.2016 p p p X

p — present, a — absent and x — not in office

CMD, Director (Finance) and Director (Commercial) attended
the last AGM held on 14th September 2015.

Directorship Held By The Directors

Shri A.K Basu, Director (Finance) is also MSTC nominee
director in Ferro Scrap Nigam Ltd. Shri Suraj Bhan,
Government Nominee Director, MSTC, and Shri A. K. Goyal,
Independent Director of MSTC are not holding directorship in
any other company. Shri Sunil Barthwal, Joint Secretary, MOS,
is a Govt. nominee director who is also a Govt. nominee
director in Steel Authority of India Limited (SAIL) and Hindustan
Steelworks Construction Limited (HSCL).

Committees of the Board

MSTC has constituted four committees of the Board viz, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Share Transfer
Committee and CSR Committee.

Pursuant to section 178 of the Company's Act, 2013, read
with Rule 6 of the Company's (Meeting of Board and its
powers) Rules, 2014, Company is supposed to have a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Being a Govt. India
Company, the nomination/appointment of director is made by
Govt. of India. However, Remuneration Committee is in place
which is also in compliance of CG guidelines by DPE which
applies to the Company.

In compliance of section 135(1) read with Rule 5 of the
Company's (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, Company has
constituted CSR Committee of the Board. The Committee
comprises of Shri A.K. Goyal, Independent Director, as
Chairman and Shri B.B.Singh, CMD and presently holding
additional charge of Director (Commercial) and D(F).

Constitution of Stakeholder's Relationship Committee as
provided under section 135(5) of the Act do not apply to the
Company as number of shareholders is below one thousand.
However, share transfer committee is in place.
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i) Audit Committee

Audit Committee comprised of Shri N.C. Jha, independent
director, as chairman with Shri A. K Goyal, independent
director and Shri Suraj Bhan, Government nominee director
as members. On the expiry of term of Shri N.C. Jha on
09.10.2015, Shri A.K Goyal was appointed Chairman. As there
is no other Independent director, the committee consists of
two members only.

The Audit Committee complies with the guidelines issued by
DPE on Corporate Governance relating to Audit Committee.

ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS IN THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF MSTC LTD HELD IN THE F.Y.
2015-16

Meeting  Meeting ShriN.C. Shri Suraj Shri AK.

No. Date Jha Bhan Goyal
36 27.05.2016 p p p
37 03.07.2015 p p p
38 28.10.2015  x p p
39 16.12.2015  «x p p
40 05.02.2016  x p P

p — present, a — absent and x — not in office

ii) Remuneration Committee

The committee was constituted with Shri N.C.Jha, independent
director as chairman, Shri A.K.Goyal, independent director,
as member and Shri Suraj Bhan, Government nominee
director, as member. On the expiry of term of Shri N.C. Jha on
09.10.2015, Shri A.K Goyal has been appointed Chairman.
As there is no other Independent director, the committee
consists of two members only. The committee functions as
per DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance issued in May
2010 and recommends PRP to whole time employees
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Toilet Block financed by MSTC under its Corporate Social Responsibility, under Swachh Bharat Abhiyan initiative
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including directors. This complies with section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

Being a Government of India Company nomination/
appointment is made by Government of India. Remuneration
of the employees is as per DPE, Government of India
guidelines.

iii) Share Transfer Committee

In order to render better services to the shareholders Board
has constituted a share transfer committee comprising of Shri
A.K. Basu Director (Finance) and Shri B.B. Singh Director
(Commerecial), though Shri Singh has take over as CMD, he
continues to be the member of the committee. This committee
also decides on issue of duplicate and split share certificates.
iv) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
CSR Committee is constituted by Board with an independent
director, Shri A.K. Goyal as Chairman and Director(Finance)
and Director(Commercial) as members. Committee monitors
the CSR activities of the Company. With Director (Commercial)
taking over as CMD the committee needs to be reconstituted.
Code of Conduct

A Code of Conduct for all Board members and designated
senior Management of MSTC Ltd. has been laid down in
accordance with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance by
DPE. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the
company www.mstcindia.co.in All Board members and
designated senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration signed
by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to this effect is enclosed
at the end of this report.

Risk Management Policy

Company has a Risk Management Policy approved by the

Board of Directors which is reviewed from time to time by the
Board.
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Fraud Prevention Policy

Company has a Fraud Prevention Policy approved by the
Board of Directors which is reviewed from time to time by the
Board. The policy is available at the company website.

Vigil Mechanism
Whistle Blower Policy

Company has a Whistle Blower Policy approved by the Board
of Directors which is reviewed from time to time by the Board.
The policy is available at the company website.

Information Placed Before The Board Of Directors

® Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates
e (Capital budgets and any updates

* Financial results for the company and its operating
divisions or business segments

® Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other
committees of the board

® The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior
officers just below the board level, including appointment
or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary

e Show cause; demand prosecution notices and penalty
notices which are materially important

® Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any
material effluent or pollution problems

* Any material default in financial obligations to and by the
company or substantial non-payment for goods sold by
the company

®* Any issue, which involves possible public or product
liability claims of substantial nature, including any

Shri B. B. Singh, CMD, at a workshop on Metal Mandi, the e-shopping mall of MSTC
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judgment or order which, may have passed strictures on
the conduct of the company or taken an adverse view
regarding other enterprises that can have negative
implications on the company

e Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement

e Transactions that involve substantial payment towards
goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property

e Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions.
Any significant development in Human Resources/
Industrial Relations Front like signing of wage agreement,
implementation of Voluntary Retirement Scheme etc

e Sale of material nature, of investments, subsidiaries,
assets, which is not in normal course of business

e Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the
steps taken by management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement, if material

* Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory requirements
and shareholders service such as non-payment of
dividend, delay in share transfer etc

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. Company’s Business

MSTC has two core business segments namely e-commerce
& trading. MSTC plays a very important role as a service
provider in e-commerce and is a market leader in this sector.
It has the distinction of serving majority of Central/PSUs/State
Govt. Department and a few Private Institutions for providing
transparent, fair & seamless e-Commerce services to its
clients.

E-Commerce Business

e-Commerce business consists of forward e-Auction and
e-Reverse auction. Forward e-Auction is considered as Selling
Agency Business for scraps, condemned items, old plant &
machinery, surplus stores, land parcels, NPAs etc. and e-sales
for minerals like coal, lignite, barytes, chrome ore, iron ore
and also commodities like raw pet coke, human hair to name
a few.

In e-procurement, MSTC provides e-Tender and e-Reverse
auction services backed by mandatory STQC certificate for
quality requirements. Although, MSTC made a modest
beginning in FY 2013-14 but it has made a significant growth
in the FY 2015-16 and is poised for exponential growth in
future.

e-Commerce business constitutes about 86% (77% in 2014-
15) of the total volume of business of the company during FY
2015-16 and has the potential to grow exponentially. It
contributed 76% (79% in 2014-15) of the total operational
income.

TRADING BUSINESS

In trading business, which constituted 14% ( 23% on 2014-
15) of the total volume of business during FY 2015-16, MSTC
acts as a facilitator for procurement of raw material for
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secondary steel producers and petrochemical industry on
behalf of buyers and charge mark-up on percentage basis.

This business contributed 24% (21% in 2014-15) of the total
operational income of the company.

2. E-Commerce Business

In this segment of business, MSTC acts as service provider
for selling agency business, e-sales and e-procurement.

Selling Agency Business

In this portfolio, MSTC acts as selling agent for disposal of
scrap, old Plant & Machinery, e-waste, surplus store,
hazardous items, obsolete items, etc and offers seamless
services from preparation of the auction catalogue to the
issuance of delivery order.

E-Sales

Under this portfolio of business, the prime products such as
coal, lignite, iron ore, chrome ore, manganese ore, barytes,
rock phosphate, tea, raw pet coke etc. and also human hair
are sold by way of e-auction through specialized application
software developed in-house.

During FY 2015-16, MSTC added e-sales of Red sanders
wood (a forest produce) for the first time which may pave way
for much needed e-auction of forest products such as timber,
confiscated Red Sander, Sal Seeds, logs, spices, etc., MSTC
created history by successfully auctioning coal mining blocks
to Steel, Cement and Power sector and state owned entities
in a transparent and fair manner. The Company also
introduced e-auction for sale of Forest timber and sandal
wood in the state of Kerala for the first time in the country.

MSTC conducted e-auction of Fly-ash emanating from Thermal
Power Plant for the first time in the country through Book
Building method on behalf of NTPC Ltd, DVC, NLC, etc.,
Ministry of Power engaged MSTC Ltd. to conduct e-reverse
auction for revival of underutilized Standard Gas Based
Power plants in the country utilizing Power system
Development Fund of ¥ 3,500 Crore.

Some of the emerging opportunities in this segment are
e-auction of NPAs, land parcels, leasing of Port Land, agri
forest produce, major & minor mineral blocks, coal linkages.

E-Procurement

MSTC offers end-to-end solution for e-procurement starting
from raising of indents to issuance of Letter of Intent/Purchase
Order for both e-tender and e-reverse auction. MSTC is fully
geared up to tap the immense business potential in
e-procurement and trying to rope in potential customers in
Central Govt. /PSUs, state PSUs & private Companies.

It is relevant to mention here that the mandatory requirements
of STQC Certificate as per CVC guidelines and IT Act 2000 &
its amendment are fully met by MSTC and the system is in
conformity with GFR norms.
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The package has been developed in-house and will provide
ease of operation as well as customization as and when
needed by the clients.

MSTC has commenced e-reverse auction for imported
thermal coal and geared up for coking coal, rock phosphate
and other minerals which will open up window of opportunity
in e-procurement business.

The enabling factors for providing seamless services to all
MSTC's clients in e-Commerce segment are:-

i) MSTC is standalone service provider and does not
outsource any of the e-commerce activities to outside
agency

ii) The development of application software portals,
customization is done in-house by team of highly motivated
programmers and engineers having domain knowledge in
respective areas

E-Commerce Infrastructure :

MSTC e-commerce division is equipped with latest P series
(I/PV-6) server of IBM make capable of taking 10,000
concurrent hits with a mirror image server acting as a disaster
recovery server located at Mumbai. The division is accredited
with ISO 9001:2008 and the system has the ISO 27001:2013
certification.
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MSTC e-commerce system complies with latest CVC
guidelines and Information Technology Act 2000 & its

subsequent amendments to ensure services to customers in
a most transparent and fair manner.

MSTC has implemented VPN network for quick
communication across its Regional/Branch offices.

As per the CVC guidelines, the system is periodically audited
by STQC, and independent third party agency under Ministry
of Communication and Information Technology, Government
of India. All the aforesaid features make the system an unique,
state-of-the-art and par excellence.

MSTC developed e-Commerce Modules (MSTC e-commerce
application Software) for providing e-commerce services to
its principals and customers. This Application Software
designed in house is being customized from time to time to
suit the requirement of various principals. A patent to the
effect has been earned by MSTC and registered by the Deputy
Registrar of Copyrights, Government of India.

MSTC is the first company to have obtained STQC certification
for quality requirement of e-procurement as per the mandate
of CVC circular no: 1-1-2012 dated 12-01-2012.

MSTC has also obtained unique STQC Certificate for Mining
Lease Cum Composite License (MLCL) for all minerals and
is in the advanced stage of obtaining the same for e-auction
of Coal.

MSTC has been appraised at CMMI Level 3 from CMMI
Institute, Carnegie Mellon, USA for its e-commerce Software
Development expertise. CMMI Level 3 states as follows:-

"An appraisal at maturity level 3 indicates the organization is
performing at a "defined" level. At this level, processes are
well characterized and understood and are described in
standards, procedures, tools and methods. The organization's
set of standard process which is the basis for maturity level 3,
is established and improved over time."

Total e-commerce business is given as under :
Agency Business :
Scrap Disposal

During the year 2015-16, the total volume of business
achieved is ¥ 2,59,412 Lakh against previous year’s
achievement of ¥ 3,26,703 Lakh.

e-Sales

The total e-sales business during 2015-16 was ¥ 18,08,318
Lakh as against the corresponding figure of ¥ 16,68,610 Lakh;
an increase of 8.37% over previous year. The volume of sales
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frst, J9 &9, g goarfe @ & & aEn e Q) T © of coal, lignite, raw pet coke, barytes, other minerals, human
(%. e ﬁ) hair, tea, etc., are given as under :
(X in Lakh)
Idlg 2015-16 2014-15
Item 2015-16 2014-15
Pl 8,18,444 6,13,644
AT e Coal 8,18,444 6,13,644
: ’ ’ Lignite 12,486 23,855
IR 3R 4,62,649 6,53,318
) Iron Ore 4,62,649 6,53,318
HTfIoT MR 9,389 13,011
Manganese Ore 9,389 13,011
AT H 12,881 17,711
Human Hair 12,881 17,711
Bl - 6,059
Tea - 6,059
P IR 19,555 58,108
Chrome Ore 19,555 58,108
7 UC PIh 48,518 55,284
N Raw Pet Coke 48,518 55,284
[ HIEhT 28 10,780
Rock Phosphate 28 10,780
7S AR 22,925 ) Baryte O 22,925
. aryte Ore . -
ISR 17,926 87,931 t
. Red Sanders 17,926 87,931
o R Coal Block 2,050 86,200
oal Bloc 5 :
forga wfeaet foawor 2,71,248 -
Power Subsidy Distribution 2,71,248 -
PN, T IS 19,916 5,613
. Agri, Forest Produce & Others 19,916 5,613
g 3
S _ 15.420 Naphtha - 15,420
ferR vd dex 21,327 ) Timber & Sander 21,327 =
| e urfe/ERy 61,335 20,476 Land Parcel/Property 61,335 20,476
‘ TS U 7,641 1,200 Fly ash 7,641 1,200
Pl 18,08,318 16,68,610 Total 18,08,318 16,68,610
ERICDING e-Procurement

F-URIRAC § HU HTH Sl BT o ms 7, fad af 2015-16 # Taking a big leap forward in e-procurement, the volume of
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business in FY 2015-16 was ¥ 5,75,975 Lakh as against
corresponding figure of ¥ 3,02,422 Lakh during last year.
After obtaining the mandatory STQC certificate for e-
procurement as per CVC guidelines, MSTC went full steam
for capitalizing the opportunity of growing tendency of Govt.
companies in switching over to electronic mode for the
purchases.

The service charge earned was ¥ 634 Lakh as against
corresponding figure of ¥ 206 Lakh in the previous year. The
percentage service income is usually less compared to other
e-commerce business due to less content of services involved.
This figure is stated to raise manifold as we secure more
volume of business from clients.

In nutshell, against the MoU target (very good) of ¥ 20,500
Crore for total volume of e-Commerce business, MSTC
achieved a figure of ¥ 26,43,706 Lakh, which is an increase
of 28.96% over MOU target and an increase of 15.06% as
compared to the corresponding figure of last year.

It is pertinent to mention here the decrease in e-Commerce
service charge income from ¥ 13,139 Lakh in 2014-15 to
% 12,228 Lakh during FY 2015-16 are not commensurate
with the increase in volume of business.

Since MSTC's service charge is based on % age basis, the
service charge income declined sharply due to reduction in
prices of scrap and minerals despite handling more through
put.

However, e-commerce business remains to be mainstay of
MSTC in the long run due to its immense potential in future
and comparatively less risk involved in the business.

Trading Business

Trading contributes significantly to both top line and bottom
line. MSTC provides finance for the procurement of raw
materials on behalf of the secondary steel producers and
petrochemical industry. Trading has been the mainstay of
MSTC's business. MSTC acts in a facilitator mode or
purchase-sale mode and finances the procurement of raw
materials on behalf of primarily the secondary steel producers
and its allied industries.

For imports, MSTC opens L/C on overseas supplier on behalf
of buyers who are selected after their due diligence and as
per Risk Management Policy (RMP) norms for supply of raw
materials as per the buyers' specification and consent for
price and delivery terms. The material is sold to buyers on
'High-Sea' sale basis wherein the material is pledged to MSTC
and the ownership rests with the buyers. The materials thus
sourced through import or from domestic sources are kept in
the custody of MSTC at the premise of buyers through a
custodian appointed for this purpose after signing a tripartite
agreement between MSTC, the custodian and the buyers.
The buyers are allowed to lift the material against their
requirement on payment under 'Cash & Carry' basis.

Service charge earned from this segment was ¥ 3,906 Lakh
during the year.
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Import of Thermal Coal

In order to meet the demand of imported thermal coal by the
various power utilities in India, MSTC has been supplying
thermal coal to such buyers on door delivery basis. MSTC
participates in the tenders floated by the buyers for supply of
thermal coal through its business associates (empanelled
annually through an open tender by MSTC) on back-to-back
basis. MSTC had supplied successfully 5.62 million MT of
imported thermal coal valued at ¥ 2,51,811 Lakh which is
less than 3.04 million MT supplied in the previous year.

Taking an innovative solution for import of thermal coal to
meet demand supply gap MSTC has developed a reverse e-
auction model for imported thermal coal on behalf of the
buyers in India. In this solution, MSTC conduct e-reverse
auction as per the coal specification provided by Indian
buyers. The suppliers who will be registered with MSTC will
participate in the reverse e-auction and bid to become L-1 on
Door Delivery basis or on FOB basis. MSTC will charge its
mark-up on per ton of coal delivered. MSTC has conducted
successfully reverse e-auctions for one of the customers in
India which has resulted in drastic reduction in import price.

Due to prolonged slowdown in the Global economy,
particularly in the steel sector, the trading business was
subdued due to slump in demand for steel.

With regard to the business for Imported thermal coal, the
demand had shrunk due to glut situation of thermal coal in
the domestic market which has resulted in less quantity of
Coal imported during the year 2015-16. In addition, MSTCs
mark up is based on % age basis of the price of imported
coal, there was huge reduction in the service income due to
steep fall in the global prices of thermal coal.

The total performance of Trading Division during FY 2015-16
stands at¥ 4,38,223 Lakh as against MOU Target (very good)
of ¥ 5,95,000 Lakh which is 73.65% of Target.

Diversification for growth and future developments :

1. MSTC is consistently pursuing the ambitious project of
setting up of the first Auto Shredding Plant in India for
which input raw materials like condemned automobiles,
white goods etc are required. MSTC with the help of the
Ministry is making efforts to implement this project.

2. MSTC is already in talks with the Ministry of Road
Transport and Highways, Ministry of Heavy Industries,
Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM) and
other such bodies for enactment of a Law for incentivizing
compulsory scrapping of End of Life Vehicles as existing
in other developed and developing countries. Govt. of
India is shortly coming up with a policy in this regard.

3. MSTC has also diversified its e-Commerce activities in
various domains like Coal and Non-Coal Mining Block
Auctions, red sander wood auctions, sandal wood
auctions and human hair, various minerals, agri and
forests produce, NPAs etc. In addition MSTC is further
looking forward to expand its e-Commerce presence into
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various other arenas like e- Retail business along with
India Post and its logistic services support. Discussion
for the same is going on.

4. Plans are afoot to float a portal for e-shopping mall in
B2B and B2C mode for metal goods particularly steel
products to start with. The portal has already been
developed and registrations are going on. This will be
formally launched within next 4-5 months.

5. MSTC has launched e-procurement services providing
end-to-end solution to the clients for their purchases. In
addition, it has developed and implemented e-reverse
auction portal for imported Thermal Coal which has made
import of coal easy, hassle free and economical.

Future Outlook :

MSTC has become a major standalone e-commerce service
provider in the country. MSTC is attempting new & diverse
lines of business such as tea, sago, gorgon nut (makhana) in
agri-products, tendu leaves, timber, sal seed in forest
products, human hair, fly ash etc. Apart from this, MSTC has
also undertaken the e-auction of land, apartment, banks'
NPAs and also assets under DRT etc.
Setting up of an e-Waste recycling Plant is under PPP model
also being explored. The Board has recommended exploring
the possibility of inclusion of e-Waste recycling plant with the
proposed Auto Shredding Plant which can also extract &
recover precious metals present in the e-Waste.
MSTC is increasing the e-commerce Business exponentially
to exploit the available potential with a focus on e-auction of
mining blocks (both coal & non-coal), minerals, agri.& forest
produce and e-procurement.
MSTC has plans to launch 'e-Shopping Mall' for metal as well
as for handicrafts, apparels, painting, etc in various states to
promote Cottage Industries. However, it is going slow in the
Trading business due to volatility in commodity prices and
slump in international and domestic market.
Some of the major opportunities MSTC is pursuing are :
1. Ministry of Power engaged MSTC to conduct e-Reverse
Auction for revival of under-utilized and Stranded Gas
Based power plants in the country utilizing Power System
Development Fund(PSDF) of ¥ 3500 Crore. The 1st
tranche of e-Reverse auction has already been completed
successfully and subsidies worth ¥ 900 Crore have been
auctioned. During 2015-16, gas subsidy worth ¥ 2712.48
Crore to be disbursed, have been auctioned.

2. Introduction of e-auction for sale of Forest Produce in
different states on the lines of Keralacan immensely
benefit the local artisans, craftsmen and people involved
into business in unorganized sector.

3. MSTC conducted e-auction of Fly-ash emanating from
Thermal Power plant for the first time in the country on
behalf of two units of NTPC Ltd. This has given
considerable benefit in terms of revenue to NTPC.
Commercial utilization of Fly-ash which is a waste product
will improve the environment and provide business
opportunity for the local people in building cement bricks




T 2 wiga fafeen e <2 o wurig |imi ¥q HRIER 1 36
Y& AT 2| 3T Teregd TR waATE U o $- 3R 2 THuEdE
e <hl IuCTsYdl B T L R B

. TATHT TR 7 3P T FHR 6 a1 W 3 96 I Ay 7g

uftqul $-<hmE HA13T 2q THUESET i wr § wfe fRa R
LT 3TeY o A wHugdE Tsa | |uft T it S-ehme
[T Y= Ul

. TSI, TSTEIH, HERTg, Hed Wedl, BeienTg, dRes, JAfsem, 31y

eI 6l THRI 1 Heiferd T # fufrer saie & §-3faeH 2q
THUHSH] & 1Y ShURATHT T gEaTer foma 2|

wquEdE 3 fafie TS g 3R 3R, TEH I U Mo J5d
2 HHAATEh §-3ATFH FTerd foha B

. TEUHSE Uge ol B HEdIfied el H 58 el AT ScdTesh T §

H U9 Hiowdl Bq $-3MHH AT R H H Ik WS TH
ufiere % T SAffaftes &g SUEH TR o A1 TR UREiemT
% T T FHTET T T 2

. THUEEE $-9% & fargshion # gaq fteh fwt @ R wd et

e 3 Wi & s <) s B g e 2 s o
Bl $-oe THTgeRio SohTE shi TATIT <hl HWTEHT qaiTsl & 2

. 3-TIRITHE e 3- e AT 37 Hecaqu & @ o THuadiHt

ST & ST sl HHTEAT qaTs & 2l

. 3T ST #, THUESH 36 SR % 9 § SR §eH 2q S5

Seated 21 2 frd ifaw stfres 1 31a: wugd wiowa s
1@ vd forra weE arefl $© =ufid Wi o a1y SR @
| THUEAE 3104 SRR 3R UG Uch BAheH 3T 3 A1 Fifors=
Td FEIT FATER o ST GTEs & $fST S % dehfeush ggfd
1 3T SGH 1 TITE H @ 2

. THUEEE 1€ 3 A% dfehed (3TAHT) U 31 &R [SH hi

AT T AT ThY S Hehetl 09T TF 1 Hgcaqul et armft
2 1 aiEd o Ugel IR TerEford e were i T 1 SEHIE
A 8| $H TgHd g 3= U o 3EUT, A N 310 5
YR STIER & SEqd o 47 Sfasrd 0 Sell 8 Scdied
fepam <11 Trha @ wd feresft g1 fafvme s 2 A 5 e
Y § UH TAE B HHH Afg 3t g8 . (ufdgn ardad o v
AT o |1 28 3TIA, 2016 =T 39k T Aol o 7L Ugedt At
TS e Shl TATHT 2 TR R 81 SATSe SRR TWEiar ¥y
& gEaaid 8 2|

. THE TR S 3 €-fafen g g ée F o sifm

& e & o e st (feepadl 3T sfhfue saifageidt
Tsd) & &9 § fopam T B| 9da 1 8 fegl o @ 2016 H

38

11.

out of it including cement industry who are using 30-40%
of Fly-ash for cement making. Other power utilities are
being approached for availing MSTC portal for e-Auction
of fly ash.

Government of Telangana has engaged MSTC for
complete e-commerce services in line with that of
Government of Andhra Pradesh for a period of 3 years.
Under the Government order, MSTC will render e-
Commerce services to all the departments in the state.

Governments of Gujarat, Rajasthan, Maharashtra,
Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Odisha,
Andhra Pradesh have signed agreements with MSTC
for e-Auction of mineral blocks in the respective states.

MSTC has successfully conducted so far e-Auction for
Iron Ore, Lime stone and Gold mines offered by various
states.

MSTC is exploring possibility of taking software projects
in alliance with a suitable partner for e-auction for fruit &
vegetable either at big Mandi in metropolitan city or at
the growers site in the first phase and thereatfter, logistics
for its storage & transportation in second phase.

MSTC plays a major role in recycling of e-waste and
helps create wealth from the waste for its customers.
MSTC is exploring the possibility to set up e-waste
recycling unit at the earliest.

E-procurement and E-reverse auction is another potential
area in which MSTC is making a rapid stride to grab the
business.

In trading business, MSTC is not very upbeat to increase
business as this business is fraught with risks. Hence,
MSTC will have business with few selected parties having
good credibility and past performance. MSTC will renew
its effort to pursue alternate mode of trading business for
iron ore and rock phosphate etc. besides food grains
through Ministry of Commerce & Industries.

. MSTC Board has approved to set up first Auto Shredding

Plant for recycling End of Life Vehicles (ELVs) and other
white goods by converting these into shredded scrap
which is vital raw material of secondary steel plant. By
this method the good quality steel could be produced with
about 47% less energy than the primary route using lron
Ore etc. and also save foreign exchange which will be an
item as 'Make in India'. A MoU has been signed with M/s
Mahindra Intertrade Ltd. (a part of Mahindra Partners) on
April 28, 2016 for setting up the first Auto Shredding Plant
under JV with them. Joint Venture Agreement is to be
signed shortly.

MSTC also finalized the national portal for e-bidding for
power procurement which has been named as DEEP
(Discovery of Efficient Electricity Price). The portal was
formally inaugurated by the Hon'ble Minister for Coal
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and Power in April 2016 in New Delhi. The portal is aimed
at bringing uniformity in the procurement process being
followed by various DISCOMs in the country and to
reduce their electricity procurement bills.

12. Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas has appointed
MSTC as the e-Commerce service provider to develop
and make available a portal for e-Allocation of Discovered
Small Oil and Gas fields.

13. MSTC developed a virtual market place for small and
medium sector enterprise. The portal ‘"MSTC Metal
Mandi'(M3) will initially focus on sale of steel products of
small & medium sector producers and traders. The portal
has a potential to bring growth, transparency, fairness
and promptness in sale & purchase decisions. The portal
will provide strength to the campaigns of Government of
India like Digital India, Make in India, Ease of Doing
Business etc. The portal will be launched within next 4-5
months.

14. Ministry of Coal decided to award Fuel Supply
Agreements to Non-Power Sector Consumer viz. Sponge
Iron, Cement, CPP, Steel and Others through e-Auction
portal of MSTC. MSTC is providing the e-Auction service
to Coal India for Coal Linkages. First Phase of e-Auction
for Sponge Iron and Cement sectors is concluded.

15. Govt. of India has engaged MSTC for implementation of
its various flagship of Innovative schemes through its e-
Commerce portal some are already implemented and
some are upcoming.

Cautionary Statement :

Statements under "Management Discussion and Analysis"
are on company's estimates, projections and estimates.
Actual results may materially differ from such projections and
depend on economic condition and industry demand in the
relevant domestic and international market. Government
regulations including fiscal regulations and other incidental
factors may also affect the projections and estimates.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PARAMETERS WITH
RESPECT TO OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE
PERFORMANCE

A) AGENCY BUSINESS

This year the total volume of Agency Business stands at

% 20,67,731 Lakh against ¥ 19,95,312 Lakh in 2014-15.
Break-up for the year 2015-16 vis-a-vis 2014-15 is as follows:

Business Segment  Volume of Business (% in Lakh)

2015-16 2014-15
Sale of Scrap & Manganese Ore etc.7,86,637 7,28,350
Sale of Coal 8,18,444 6,13,644
Iron ore 4,62,649 6,53,318
Total (A) : 20,67,730 19,95,312
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B) e-PROCUREMENT

Business Segment  Volume of Business (Y in Lakh)

2015-16 2014-15

e-Procurement (B) 5,75,975 3,02,422
Total (A+B) 26,43,705 22,97,734
C) TRADING

The performance of Marketing Division shows a total volume
of business of ¥ 4,38,223 Lakh against ¥ 6,94,521 Lakh in
2014-15. Break-up for the year 2015-16 vis-a-vis 2014-15 is
as follows :

Business Segment  Volume of Business (% in Lakh)

2015-16 2014-15

Procurement of :

Imported materials 1,35,027 1,60,334
Indigenous materials 3,03,196 5,34,183
Total: (C) 4,38,223 6,94,521
Grand Total (A+B+C) 30,81,928 29,92,255

R (fAfRRaT) T R g W 1 @ ATy (Ut § gHugerdr Rispasm Foe & agerm|

Members of MSTC Employees Recreation Club at Bolpur (Shantiniketan) Station on pleasure trip cum annual picnic
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SWOT ANALYSIS
Strengths & Weaknesses

MSTC’s strength lies in substantial experience in dealing
with scrap, surplus items, e-sale of prime products and
sourcing of raw-materials. The experienced people, equipped
with latest infrastructure, transparency, prudentially laid down
policies together make MSTC an efficient service provider.

The e-commerce service is handled by well competent
persons and backed by state of the art infrastructure. The
system has the latest features as mandated by CVC
guidelines & IT Act 2000 and its subsequent amendments
and is being audited periodically by third party agency namely
STQC, a Dept. Under Ministry of Communications and IT,
Govt. of India. Shortly, MSTC is the only company in the
country to have achieved the compliance certificate from
STQC for its guidelines which is one of the essential criteria
as per the Ministry of Finance notification for serving as e-
procurement service provider.

MSTC has largest client base of 50000 plus for e-commerce
services which depicts its customer orientation & seamless
services being made available to them. MSTC's presence at
almost all major cities in India provides comforts in terms of
efficient, less time consuming hassle free services available
to its customers.

In the import segment, many big industries have relied upon
MSTC for sourcing of raw-materials due to excellent business
relationship with overseas suppliers, bankers, other stake
holders and buyers.

There can be no business model without weaknesses which
can be attributed to low product knowledge (since MSTC deals
with various types of products), volatility in price of materials
and less revenue dependent business of the customer
companies. Weaknesses may also be attributed to
dependence of others for trading business. Also MSTC has
nil status of canalizing agent for Exim business unlike our
peer companies such as MMTC, STC, etc. have in trading
business. MSTC has a small work force of 324 employees
spread across the country and therefore is not equipped to
indulge in direct export/ import or domestic trade.

Opportunities & Threats

Opportunity seems to be quite substantial for e-commerce
business of various commodities particularly in minerals,
agricultural and forest products. Strategic forward integration
in processing of scrap, iron & steel, joint venture in shredding
plant, e-waste recycling are some of the emerging
opportunities for the company. There also exist ample
opportunities for MSTC in e-Procurement and e-Marketing of
agri-products. The likely ban in illegal mining of various
minerals in the states by the Government and the consensus
emerging for sale of mines produce through e-auction augers
well for MSTC’s business.

Any business, now a days is not without threat. For MSTC,
threat is Government policy on import and export, customers
shifting to other trading companies or choosing to make direct
imports, small players coming in and offering lesser service
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charges. However, MSTC is aware of such threats and always
makes strategies to come out of these threats.

Technological development has reduced secondary arising
of scrap leading to lower trading volume in agency business
segment.

Small players in e-commerce space having scanty
infrastructure and less security features in their system are
mushrooming and eating away business on their strength of
unreasonably lower service charges rates.

Existing customers are forcing MSTC to reduce service charge
which may hit bottom-line unless there is commensurate
increase in overall volume of business. Besides this, customers
are also resorting to tenders in which case, MSTC's chance
to win the tender gets diminished mainly due to skewed and
non levels playing field conditions.

RISKS AND CONCERNS
Agency Business

Selling agency business has inherent risk since principal
can any time decide to do the selling job themselves. Of late,

THUEEH] TAATES Fad GRT AEIT & o IR & = g9 axd g FH=mm

Employees donating blood in blood donation camp organised by MSTC Employees’ Recreation Club
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principals are resorting to tendering and small players are
quoting very less rate of service charge owing to their less
investment in infrastructure and nil obligations towards CVC
guidelines and IT Act, 2000. However, because of quality
and transparency, MSTC has retained most of the business
in this segment.

Being a PSU, MSTC has to follow all the guidelines issued by
CVC, regulation of IT Act 2000 and other audit requirements
of STQC for which, MSTC has to invest huge amount towards
Systems infrastructure, whereas, the private players are not
under any such obligation. Therefore, unless Government
Departments and PSUs insist upon fulfillment of criteria in
line with CVC guidelines by the service providers in the tender
documents, it would be increasingly difficult for MSTC to get
orders, since private players, having scanty infrastructure,
can afford to quote very low service charge.

Trading Business (import & export)

This segment mainly functions as sourcing of raw materials
for industries either through import or domestically. The
materials remain pledged to MSTC and delivery is given to
the customer on payment basis. There is an inherent risk of
not lifting material as per schedule by the customers mainly
due to change in their production schedule and volatility in
the market.

RISKS, INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

Risk Management Policy in MSTC was introduced in the year
2008-09. The policy has been revised since 24th April, 2015.
MSTC makes it certain that the internal control system functions
within the risk appetite of the company and is being fine tuned
to include more safeguards for being more effective.

Risk Management Policy for another segment of business
i.e. e-commerce is also introduced this year to have necessary
safeguards in this business too.

M/s. M.C. Bhandari & Co., Chartered Accountants, was
assigned with the internal audit function of the company for
the year and their reports are put up to the management at
regular intervals and summarized statement of important
issues are placed before the Audit Committee. The committee
analyses the functions of the internal control system and
recommendations of the committee are put up to the Board
and those are implemented as per the considerations of the
Board. Audit Committee also considers various financial
statements for risk analysis and control.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND RESOURCES

MSTC works primarily in the field of procurement of scrap
materials, especially ferrous scraps from different consumers
and trading of those scraps for recycling. Thus, MSTC works
for the conservation of the natural resources, reduction in
pollutants, conservation of energy by recycling ferrous scraps
into a re-useable form. MSTC is in a way recycling company
that consolidates facilities and auctions scrap of various types
for reuse after processing by its buyers.
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Information on development of HR, Industrial Relations and
Corporate Social Responsibility is mentioned in the Directors'
Report.

Auto Shredding Plant being planned by MSTC will be first of
its kind in India, will promote Secondary Steel making in India
using IF and EAF routes. These processes consume less
energy and pollute less than primary process of utilizing BFs
and Convertors etc.

The productivity under this route is also much higher than the
conventional methods.

FURTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES

1. There is no materially significant related party transaction
that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
company.

2. No non-compliance by the company has been observed
/reported. No statutory authority has issued any strictures
or levied penalty or any matted related to any guidelines
issued by the Government during last three years.

3. Company has formulated a whistle blower policy in line
with Government guidelines duly approved by Board.
No person has been denied personal access to Audit
Committee and company has protected whistle blower
from adverse personal action.

4. Corporate Governance guidelines have been complied
with and a separate report on Corporate Governance is
placed as Annexure to Annual Report.

5. All Presidential guidelines have been complied with by
the Company for the year and also during last 3 years.

6. No items of expenditure have been debited in books of
accounts, which are not for the purpose of business.

7. No expenses are incurred which are personal in nature
for the Board of Directors and Top Management.

8. Administrative expenses are 2% of total expenses.

9. The financial results are available in the website of the
company i.e. www.mstcindia.co.in. From time to time they
are also published in corporate advertisements.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

W

(B. B. Singh)
Chairman-cum- Managing Director
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CMD'S CERTIFICATION

| declare that the Model Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board
Members and Senior Management issued by the Government of India, Ministry
of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises was adopted by the Board of
Directors of the company in its 229th meeting held on 27-06-08 and all the
Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct for the current year.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

(B. B. Singh)

Chairman-cum-Managing Director

\
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Phone : 9038065836

49A Nirmal Chandra Street, Kolkata

Rege.off :

CS SAUMAYO JYOTI SEAL l}s City off :

8100909418

Hooghly-712101, W.B.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER : U27320WB1964G 01026211
Authorized Capita : Rs. 50,00,00,000/-

To

The Members of

MSTC Ltd.

225/C, A J C Bose Road
Kolkata - 700 020

| have examined all the relevant records of MSTC Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2016 for the
purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guideline 2010 on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises. | have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination
was limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance.

On the basis of my examination of the records produced and the explanations and information furnished,
| certify that the Company has maintained proper records and complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in DPE Guidelines 2010 on Corporate Governance for Central
Public Sector Enterprises for the financial year ending 31st March, 2016, except with marginal delay
in filing Quarterly Report on Corporate Governance in two occasions.

SAUMAYO JYOTI SEAL
Place : Kolkata Practicing Company Secretary
Date : 12/7//2016 C.P.No.:11169

e-mail : seal.saumayo @ gmail.com
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Annexure-lll

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134
of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/
arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not
at arm’s length basis (This part is not applicable to the
company)

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board
(9) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or
transactions as arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL), a 100% subsidiary
company.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions :
Custodial Service :

(i) Subsidiary company, Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
(FSNL) renders custodian services for warehouse/
stockyard management at normal service charge to
the holding company.

Selling Agency :

(i) MSTC Limited (holding company) functions as selling
agency for disposal of scrap and surplus materials
generated by the subsidiary company, Ferro Scrap
Nigam Limited (FSNL)

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions:
Custodial Service :

There are approx, 20 contracts with FSNL and third
parties in nature of tripartite agreement.

Duration of the contracts is 1 year.
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Selling Agency :

MSTC has Selling Agency agreement with FSNL on
continuous basis.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any :

(j) Custodial Services :

FSNL raises an invoice in the name of MSTC for
custodial services for storing raw materials pledged
to MSTC by customers.

(ii) Selling Agency :

MSTC conducts e-auction for disposal of scrap and
surplus materials of FSNL.

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any :
Not Applicable

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any :

No advances have been paid.
FOR MSTC LIMITED

B. B. Singh

Chairman cum Managing Director




FTATH-IV
YOS €. Il
1. 4. 1
2. |EHEE HUHI & A TR Ty T ferfires
3. WG weEs Sl o R smafy,
afe e At 1 Raifer
Faf & e 2 T TE
4. facsli gems St & qWa ¥ fa
oy &t sifem ar @ fedfén ga
wd fafrm ® T et
5. IR O Z 2,00,00,000
6. ARG T Ay : Z 1,70,65,15,000
7. Tt qReEERET T 3,68,37,00,000
8. T TIfIa : % 3,68,37,00,000
9. fraw: g
10. 3R T 3,47,06,87,000
11, w-eio g a9 - T 32,52,54,000
12. & & YELUH : T 11,41,65,000
13. w=-frafo Swra oW T 21,10,89,000
14, vEqTEd ST T At
15. JTRERHT &1 % 100%
fewuy:
foramor % sia # freAforfaa g < €.
1. OEES SUA1 & AW Tae aRETem A TReT BT R
2. HEEe SUAl W1 99 & 4R foezee € g € W fashi @

T R

50

FORM NO. AOC -1

1. Sl No.

2.  Name of the Subsidiary :

3. Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if different
from the holding company’s
reporting period :

4. Reporting currency and Exchange
rate as on the last date of the
Financial Year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries :

5. Share Capital :

6. Reserves & Surplus :

7. Total Assets:

8. Total Liabilities :

9. Investments :

10. Turnover

11. Profit before taxation :

12. Provision for taxation :

13. Profit after taxation :

14. Proposed Dividend :

15. % of shareholding :

Notes :

Annexure-IV

1

Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited

N.A.

N.A.

% 2,00,00,000

% 1,70,65,15,000
% 3,68,37,00,000
% 3,68,37,00,000
NIL

% 3,47,06,87,000
% 32,52,54,000
% 11,41,65,000
% 21,10,89,000
N.A.

100%

The following information shall be furnished at the end of the
statement.

1.

Name of subsidiaries which are yet to commence

operations.

Name of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold

during the year.
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Annexure-V

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on 31t March, 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS :

i) CIN:

i) Registration Date

iii) Name of the Company

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company

v) Address of the registered office and contact details

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar
and Transfer Agent, if any
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U27320WB1964GO0I1026211

09/09/1964

MSTC Limited

Company limited by shares/Government Company

225/C, Acharya Jagadish Bose Road
Kolkata, West Bengal, India — 700 020

No

C B Management Services (P)Limited
CIN : U74140WB1994PTC062959
P-22, Bondel Road

Kolkata — 700019

Telephone No: 401167002280
Fax:40116739

e-mail : ta@cbmsl.com
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1. W wha fam fefiee U27102CT1989G0I00548 RIEED 100 2(87)
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i) FofleR SR eifeen
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Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated :

SI. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products / services Product / service of the company

1 Agency Business NA 442

2 Marketing NA 95.58

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. No. | Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary/ shares Section
Associate held
1. FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED U27102CT1989G0I100548 SUBSIDIARY | 100 2(87)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % Change
Shareholder of the year of the year during
the year
Demat Physical Total %of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
shares
3 “ A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
b) Central Govt. 0 7906400 7906400 89.8455 0 7906400 7906400 89.8455 0.0000
c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
e) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
f) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
Sub-total (A) (1):- 0 7906400 7906400 89.8455 0 7906400 7906400 89.8455 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
(2) Foreign 0.0000 0.0000
a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
b) Other — Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
e) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
Total shareholding of 0 7906400 7906400 89.8455 0 7906400 7906400 89.8455 0.0000
Promoter (A)=
(A)(1)+(A)2)
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0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
279950 279950 3.1813
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
382300 382300 4.3443
229350 229350 2.6063
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
0 0 0.0000
2000 2000 0.0227
0.0000
893600 893600 10.1545
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893600 893600 10.1545
0 0 0.0000
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10.1545
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%
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T %

0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

0.0000
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0.0000
0.0000
-0.1307

0.1307

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000
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Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % Change

during
Shareholders of the year of the year the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
0.0000 0.0000
B. Public Shareholding 0.0000 0.0000
1. Institutions 0.0000 0.0000
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
g) Flls 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
h) Foreign Venture Capital 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
Sub-total (B)(1) : 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
2. Non-Institutions 0.0000 0.0000
" a) Bodies Corp. 0.0000 0.0000
i) Indian 0 279950 279950 3.1813 0 279950 279950 3.1813 0.0000
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000
i) Individual shareholders 0 382300 382300 4.3443 0 370800 370800 42136  -0.1307

holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders 0 229350 229350 2.6063 0 240850 240850 2.7369 0.1307
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

i) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

ii) Trust & Foundations 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

iii) Non-Resident Individuals 0 2000 2000 0.0227 0 2000 2000 0.0227 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000

Sub-total (B)(2) : 0 893600 893600  10.1545 0 893600 893600 10.1545 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000

Total Public Shareholding 0 893600 893600  10.1545 0 893600 893600 10.1545 0.0000

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 8800000 8800000 100.0000 0 8800000 8800000 100.0000 0.0000
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ii) MR =1 Aur gfesw

%.6. ATETTEHT HT 9 F FER # 9Fe gifesw % & dq # AW gifesw
arw
AW H FFGA H  FA AAW FT AW HT FHIOA F FA AW FT AW H FAqA
wear @ waa wiafwa /00 @emn @ wtafwa / atfya dad
HT swrfea Qgd wT  wrfva ® gfvafda
wfaua ATA HT wfaua ATA HT wfaua
wfaua wfaua
l. AR & TgAfa 7906300 89.84 7906300 89.84
2. ot o <t fre % 20 0 20 0
3. ol U F A 20 0 20 0
4. o gd FAR A 3k 20 0 20 0
5. ol G A ¢ 20 0 20 0
6. ot wa.e. B s« 20 0 20 0
T 7906400 7906400
% WRA o TPALT & AMHAT 6 T H
(i) TR 2% SR Eifeen & uftad= (e ffée o, afe =i uftad= @i ) : sfafda
Y & YREH YW BifeaT ¥ & IRM AT
PR eifeen
%. WfE € AW fewaforat NRIGIE Nt B 7 B 2 B 2o e
[iTeA & e FRT qE JRT
IR PIREIGE PIREIGE
& 1. 9000003 WA gl a & wren | 01/04/2015 7906300  89.84 7906300  89.84
‘ a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 7906300
2. 1000010 i< f&e af & URET | 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 20 0.00
3. #000002 UHFg 9 &% TR | 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 20 0.00
4. FR000003 T Goid FHR T4 9 &% TR | 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 20 0.00
5. TE000040 XS HIA af & URET 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 20 0.00
6. 1000016 it T@ & st af & URET | 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 20 0.00
(iv) e 3 2@ raR erreent =T SR Bifee ten (frearer, wHied T SIS quT TSI 3 &Meent o srerra) : srafafda
Y & qRE H YW BifeaT Y & SR Al
PR eifeen
%. WfE € AW fewaforat NRIGIES Nt B 7 B 2 B 2o e
[iTeA & e FRT qE JRT
IR PIREIGE PIREIGE
1. TE000036 EEIeT HATIRST a1k Efean aY & TR 01/04/2015 80000 0.91 80000 0.91
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 80000 0.91
2. 1000008 e fafireg af & URET | 01/04/2015 60000 0.68 60000 0.68
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 60000 0.68
3. 000001 o % ged fafies av & JEH § 01/04/2015 48000 0.55 48000 0.55
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 48000 0.55

56




ii) Shareholding of Promoters

SINo. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end
Name of the year of the year
No. of % of total %of Shares No. of % of total %of Shares % change in
Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares Shares Pledged/ share holding
of the encumbered of the encumbered during the
company to total company to total year
shares shares
1. President of India 7906300 89.84 7906300 89.84
2. Shri B B Singh * 20 0 20 0
3. Shri AK Basu * 20 0 20 0
4, Shri Subrata 20 0 20 0
Kumar Ray *
. Shri Suraj Bhan * 20 0 20 0
6. Shri S.K. Tripathi * 20 0 20 0
Total 7906400 7906400

* As nominee of President of India

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) : NO CHANGE

Shareholding at the begining Cumulative Share-
of the year holding during the year
Sl. Folio No. Name Remarks Shareholding  No. of % of Total No. of % of Total
[Transaction Shares Shares of Shares  Shares of
Date the Company the Company
" ‘ 1. P000003  President of India At the begining of the year 01/04/2015 7906300 89.84 7906300  89.84
At the end of the year 31/03/2016 7906300
2. B000010 B B Singh At the begining of the year 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2016 20 0.00
3. C000002 A K Basu At the begining of the year 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2016 20 0.00
4. 'R000003  Shri Subrata Kumar Ray At the begining of the year 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2016 20 0.00
5. S000040  Suraj Bhan At the begining of the year 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2016 20 0.00
6. T000016  Shri S K Tripathi At the begining of the year 01/04/2015 20 0.00 20 0.00
At the end of the year 31/03/2016 20 0.00

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) : No Change

Shareholding at the begining Cumulative Share-

Sl

Folio No.

S000036

T000008

J000001

Name

Steel Authority of India Ltd.

Texmaco Limited

J K Traders Limited

Remarks

At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

of the year
Shareholding  No. of
[Transaction Shares
Date
01/04/2015 80000
31/03/2016
01/04/2015 60000
31/03/2016
01/04/2015 48000
31/03/2016

% of Total
Shares of
the Company

0.91

0.68

0.55

holding during the year

No. of % of Total
Shares Shares of
the Company
80000 0.91
80000 0.91
60000 0.68
60000 0.68
48000 0.55
48000 0.55
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Y & YREH H YW eifeaT g & RM F=Al
PR eifeen
%. Wiferdr . 9w fewafurat QR e SR H FT A IR H T F g
[iTeA & e FRT e JRT
IR FIREIGE PIREIGE
4. 9000001 AT SET a9 & yREd # 01/04/2015 22800 0.26 22800 0.26
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 22800 0.26
5. ¥1000001  heRT shrderrersit for. a9 & URET | 01/04/2015 20000 0.23 20000 0.23
af & 3 | 31/03/2016 20000 0.23
6. 1000005 <reT Hicd fafies af & URET 01/04/2015 20000 0.23 20000 0.23
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 20000 0.23
7. WA000003 Al WECT Seheltl AT A & WKW H 01/04/2015 18400 0.21 18400 0.21
af & 3 | 31/03/2016 18400 0.21
8. 000015 St FAREH 9 &% TR | 01/04/2015 16850 0.19 15850 0.19
e 16/5/2015 1000 0.01 15850 0.18
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 15850 0.18
9. 000006 T WG AT 9 &% TR | 01/04/2015 16000 0.18 16000 0.18
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 16000 0.18
10. THO00036 il sheqAT YT af & URET | 01/04/2015 12900 0.15 12900 0.15
a9 & 3 | 31/03/2016 12900 0.15
(v) et =1 fuegifeen & o weada wriis
L d Tl & Wew | Tf ¥ =
. Sae wfes et e EfesT
v feysl @ Soad qudt N 4. WAt & §W Aot W HEr  wE & g
] A wr e A = wfaea
a9 & TRE | 100 0 100 0
Y & IR gTRa QT H KK KNG K] TR TE
arig ar 9fg /g .
gfg /5@ eq wRt @1 ffde =
(TAT : 3T / TEITAR /A
I 3&—& 31'”% :
a¥ & I H 100 0 100 0
V. SRR
TR/ AT ST AfEd FHE Rt TRUTWR TR AT & ST e 8 (5. @@ /)
et swu sreRfera S A
SHT ! DI e RUIAR
foria ot 6 T # SRR
i) W@ 84227 24362 0 108589
ii) ST SAT WReq R el fRAT T 90 1 0 101
iii) srfSfa =t weq ST A 0 7889 0 7889
AT (i+ii+iii) 84317 32262 0 116579
Tt a3 row wo R | afads
DR:RIER] 0 10000 0 10000
i) whcrdt 55691 11 0 55702
g i -55691 9989 0 -45702
foria o o6 3 | /R
i) W s 28446 34362 0 62808
ii) ST ST WReq R AAEl fRAT T 0 0 0 0
iii) arfSfa =t weq ST A | 0 7889 0 7889
AT i+ii+iii) 28446 42251 0 70697
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SI. Folio No.

4. U000001

Name

Anasuya Udani

Remarks

At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

5. C000001  Canara Workshops Ltd. At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

6. TO00005 Tata Motors Ltd. At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

7. NO00003  Mrs. Saida Ikbal Nathani At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

8. K000015  G. Kumaresan At the begining of the year
Decrease
At the end of the year

9. K000006  Shri Mukund Khaitan At the begining of the year
At the end of the year

10. S000036  Shri Kalpana Sharma At the begining of the year

At the end of the year

Shareholding at the begining
of the year

Shareholding
[Transaction
Date
01/04/2015
31/03/2016
01/04/2015
31/03/2016
01/04/2015
31/03/2016
01/04/2015
31/03/2016
01/04/2015
16/5/2015
31/03/2016
01/04/2015
31/03/2016
01/04/2015
31/03/2016

No. of
Shares

22800

20000

20000

18400

16850
1000

16000

12900

% of Total
Shares of
the Company

0.26

0.23

0.23

0.21

0.19
0.01

0.18

0.15

Cumulative Share-
holding during the year

No. of % of Total
Shares Shares of
the Company
22800 0.26
22800 0.26
20000 0.23
20000 0.23
20000 0.23
20000 0.23
18400 0.21
18400 0.21
16850 0.19
15850 0.18
15850 0.18
16000 0.18
18400 0.18
12900 0.15
12900 0.15

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NO CHANGE

Sl. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
For Each of the Directors No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
and KMP of the company of the company
At the beginning of the year 100 0 100 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in NA NA NA NA
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc) :
At the End of the year 100 0 100 0
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (X in lakhs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 84227 24362 0 108589
ii) Interest due but not paid 90 11 0 101
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 7889 0 7889
Total (i+ii+iii) 84317 32262 0 116579
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Addition 0 10000 0 10000
Reduction 55691 11 0 55702
Net Change -55691 9989 0 -45702
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 28446 34362 0 62808
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 7889 0 7889
Total (i+ii+iii) 28446 42251 0 70697
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VI. fRurst wa wH@ vt wifHEw wr atefas
u. yay faeusw, guf wifas frRawl stv/a1 gdus -

( T <ma #H)

*.9.

urfesfas =t
Eiky]

el

() e srferfaw, 1961 6
gRT 17(1) | arfiel yreem %
FIER 9T

(@) Frmex srferfaw, 1961 6
aRT 17(2) & A FTAH H A
(1) e fafEm, 1961 6 aw
17(3) & A 99 & W W o9

ferereq T
we sfRdl

HATA

- @ % wfaed & FER
- o=, fafus

a7, g fafde &
HHUF & HFIAT A qedm
Taferean =z &1 wfefd

TF (T)
sfafrem & sER e

ysa fRusw /quiwtfas R /uda® & @

1. A wa.s. BuE (e ae veue o)
2. o v, o frewe (fomr)
3. ot shaf. fae faewre (anfurfSae)

Fa ufw

150

I
I

NGl

159

s, svm fagermt =t unfesfas -

®.9.

mifvsfas w1 =t

3. @A ey

S /Rl wiedt &
i g & fau go
wfE

=, g fafde &
Fa (1)

4, I wHraTereR fereareRmor
e /e # i e
& for e

wfE

a7, T ffde &

34 (2)

A () =(1+2)

Sl Feerhia wTferfien
afifemm & R el difem

frear=l =1 A
it wA. ., w #ft w3k, AR

1,58,000 39,000

1,58,000 39,000

1,58,000 39,000

Fa win

1,97,000

1,97,000

S

1,97,000
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager :

(% in lakhs)

SI. No. Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
Remuneration
1. Shri S.K.Tripathi (Chairman cum Managing Director)
2. Shri A.K.Basu Director (Finance)
3. Shri B.B.Singh Director (Commercial)
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option
Sweat Equity

Commission - as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify
Company’s Contribution to CPF
Reimbursement of Medical expenses
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Total Amount

150

NIL
NIL
NIL

159

B. Remuneration to other directors :

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors

Shri N.C.Jha Shri A.K.Goyal

3. Independent Directors

Fee for attending board / 1,58,000 39,000
committee meetings

Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1) 1,58,000 39,000

4. Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

Commission
Others, please specify

Total (2)
Total (B) = (1+2) 1,58,000 39,000
Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Total Amount

1,97,000

1,97,000

NIL

1,97,000
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

( ¥ in lakhs)

Sl. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option
Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

CEO

Key Managerial Personnel

Company Secretary CFO Total
38 38
38 38

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : NIL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager :

(% in lakhs)

Penalty

Penalty

Type Section of
the Companies
Act

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Punishment

Compounding

C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Punishment

Compounding

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority Appeal

[RD/NCLT made,

/ COURT] if any
(give
Details)
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Hifa =1 wem fen mieta, @ vg wssan, i w1 3 faeemn | @ wieanfed anfe o) SteRade Td gfd AnTiRent @l
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Annexure-VI

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy :

(A) Company has formulated a CSR and Sustainable Development Policy in line with the Companies Act 2013 which
has been recommended by duly constituted CSR Committee of the Board and approved by the Board. The policy is
available at Company’s website www.mstcindia.co.in

(B)  The vision of the Policy is to inculcate culture of care of the underprivileged and distressed citizen by promoting
education, healthcare & hygiene, encouragement of differently abled persons, etc.

(C) Board shall constitute a CSR Committee with an independent director as Chairman. Nodal officers shall implement
the decisions taken by the Committee. Company Secretary shall be secretary to the Committee.

(D)  The Committee shall recommend budget, the projects to be taken up, and the method of implementation. The
Committee and the Board shall ensure that at least 2% of the average net profit of preceding 3 years is the budget
for the current year.

(E) Activities shall include all activities covered under Annexure to the CSR Policy of the Company which includes inter
alia, items as provided under schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE guidelines. Additionally any Govt.
guideline instructions shall be considered by the Committee/Board.

(F) MSTC shall also encourage collaborative projects with other PSUs, Govt. agencies, NGOs, if required, on the basis
of merit of the project.

Composition of the CSR Committee :

Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) guidelines (which apply
to all Central PSUs), a Board level CSR committee has been constituted with Shri A. K. Goyal, independent director, as
chairman, Shri A. K. Basu, Director (Finance) and Shri B. B. Singh, Director (Commercial) as members. This committee
oversees the CSR activities of the Company as per Company’s CSR policy. Designated officers of the Company implement
the decisions taken by the Committee.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years (2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15) : Average net profit is
% 50.56 crore.

Prescribed CSR expenditure budget for 2015-16 (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) : ¥ 1.45 crore.

65




foxta o 2015-16 & SRA @R o1 foraxw

(%) focim ad & o< g 3 ¥ : %, 1.50 I (S5 & 103.45 W)
(@) == afy, afe FE R
(M) foxia o % SRE e it o aden f v # foeroiia @
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
HUEAR qoide T foe FIBED A<ed aafea TSFe a1 WIE FF AN -
pIi L pIi I (Fse) wm kaifdn w owm iy e AT e
fafga amfier @ Mipi VISE st e T TE St & SRy
wifaferferan |, el TRAT AT I AT (1) e =1

2. s A1 fSelr W 9R TR W g

fifde R et (2) HAeRes

TS AT T

& § anfeer feran

™ 2
@ o W U6 Wl UivEd S %. 104 o3 %. 104 org 1. 99 Tt afEem
AMEE F a7 %. 104 o WM A usEr
foemert # 21 2. RS-y e RgEm
MIEIEE) e 1., 9Ra
AR HT T TWHR HT ITHA

% WNT

dAtarEar el e HIHIT, TRTT T 3 T %. 3 org 1. 9- T T (TSI
T S & FR R %. 3 &g
7 fmior 2. eRES-IA
WIATHR /Fhe wed TR % 609 @ 5. 609 @@ ®E-6.09 wE TR wR
foeiy femmerm & ofgeH St ERTS-IA Eeths 4 IehaTe
RIS T fooer (Tsira)
orteeh fereper
el B SR
Tl Teife
Aifear Afess T
T HT A
ventass fo=mera ferem T, 3feqor 24 53959 %.395Ww 99w 395 W@ SR foewEs
o & iR/ T () ERTS-I RN IRt
T AR, A, ofgeH Ser (TSt
faeterat =t
AT
el fommerm fven we @esdr siethmen %, 5 onE % 5o g 5 org R foe
o % feRe qfg=® ST FERES-I HTESIH
Mo B AT, (T 3R wEtHw
ST UE e Teraor ufRaterd)
RIERIE]
R Tell B @RI TR, FRES %, 6.587mE 5 658 a@ WE-%. 6.58 W@ URT 9asH 9™
e TS o FERES-I (TSt
ﬁtwm
TaT 3 & for
Hiemger Taferear
a7 & #T

anfores Teraar

66




Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2015-16

(a) Total amount spent for the financial year: ¥ 1.50 crore (103.45% of budget)
(b) Amount unspent, if any : Nil
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below :
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S..  CSRprojector Sector in which Projects Or Amountoutlay Cumulative Amount spent Amount spent
No. activityidentified the projectiscovered  programs (budget) project  expenditure on the projects Direct or through
1.Local areaorother ~ orprogramwise  uptothe or programs implementing
2. Specify the state reporting period ~ Sub heads : agency
&district where 1. Direct expenditure
projects or programs on projects or
were undertaken programs
2. Overheads
1. Constructionof ~ Healthand WestBengal <104 lakh <104 lakh 1. Direct - All projects
21 Nos. toilet Sanitation 3104 lakh through
blocks in schools Implementing
under Swachh Agency M/s.
Vidyalaya Abhiyan 2.Overheads-NIL Hindustan Prefab
Ltd., a Gowt. of
India undertaking
2. Constructionof ~ Health Kolkata < 3lakh < 3lakh 1. Direct - Chhatra
doctor's room WestBengal T 3lakh Sangha (NGO)
at Thalassemia 2.Overhead-NIL
OPD Clinic
3. Purchase of Health Kolkata 36.09 lakh 36.09 lakh Direct - 6.09 lakh Institute for the
Brainstorm WestBengal Overheads - Nil Handicapped &
Evocation Backward People
Responsive (NGO)
Audio Metric test
Machine for
physically and
mentally retarded
children ofthe
primary / secondary
special school
4. Plastering Inside/  Education Amira, South 3 3.95Lakh 3 3.95Lakh Direct-¥3.95Lakh  Amira
outside walls, 24 Parganas Overheads - Nil Vivekananda
flooring, doors & (District) Anushilan Samity
windows of the WestBengal (NGO)
primary school
building
5. Schoolbuilding  Education & Kolkata 3 5Lakh 3 5Lakh Direct - ¥ 5 Lakh Our Children
repair, water & Sanitation WestBengal Overheads - Nil Foundation
sanitation facilities (Primary School
of a secondary run by trust)
school
6. Financial Health Ghatsila, Jharkhand ¥ 6.58 Lakh 36.58 Lakh Direct-% 6.58 Lakh  Bharat Sevasram
assistance for Overheads - Nil Sangha (NGO)
purchase of

Mobile Medical Van
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl.  CSRprojector Sector in which Projects Or Amount outlay Cumulative Amount spent Amount spent

No. activityidentified the projectiscovered  programs (budget) project  expenditure on the projects Director through

1.Localareaorother ~ orprogramwise  uptothe or programs implementing
2. Specify the state reportingperiod  Subheads : agency
& district where 1. Direct expenditure
projects or programs on projects or
were undertaken programs
2. Overheads
to render free
medical service to
poor patientsin
remote villages

7. Tubewell (3Nos) Drinking Water Joynagar, %5.14 Lakh %5.14 Lakh Direct-¥5.14 lakh  Aikatan Sangha
inremote village South 24 Parganas Overheads - Nil (NGO)
in Sunderban area WestBengal

8. Purchase of PC  Education Sonarpur 3 1.75Lakh 3 1.75Lakh Direct-¥ 1.75lakh  Kamrabad Girl's
and printer for South 24 Parganas Overheads - Nil High School (HS)
computer WestBengal
laboratory

9. Building Education, Kolkata %5 Lakh %5 Lakh Direct - X 5 lakh
maintenance, Health & Sanitation WestBengal
water &
sanitation
facilities

10.  Upgradationofa  Education Burdwan Z2.77 lakh Z2.77 lakh Direct-¥2.77 lakh ~ SwamiDebananda
computer centre WestBengal Overheads - Nil Ashram Debsanga

Charitable Trust
(NGO)

11.  Table, chair & Education & Kolkata 36.23 lakh 36.23 lakh Direct-¥6.23lakh  Navadiganta High
tubewell for Drinking Water WestBengal Overhead - Nil School (Model)
school for poor H.S. (NGO)
children

12.  Table, chair, etc. Health Kolkata % 0.75 lakh % 0.75 lakh Direct-%0.75 lakh  Association of
for training of WestBengal Overhead - Nil Voluntary Blood
volunteers &in Donors of West
the blood Bengal (NGO)
donation camp

6. It is stated herewith that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR Objective and

Policy of the Company.

W "

B. B. Singh A. K. Goyal

(Chairman cum Managing Director) (Chairman CSR Committee)
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Annexure-VII

~ City off :
CS SAUMAYO JYOTI SEAL 49A Nirmal Chandra Street, Kolkata
Phone : 9038065836 Rege.off :
8100909418 324, Bunokalitala, Chmsurha,

Hooghly-712101, W.B.

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the companies act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014)

To
The Members,
MSTC Ltd.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provision and the
adherence to good corporate practices by MSTC Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provides me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the MSTC Limited’s books, paper, minute books, forms, and return filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its
officers, agents and authorized representative during the conduct of secretarial audit and as per the
explanations given to me and the representation made by the management, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March,
2016 generally compiled with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that company has
proper Board process and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter :

| have examined books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available
to me and maintained by the MSTC Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according
to the applicable provision of :

i. ~ The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under, as applicable :
ii. The Securities contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under
iii. The Depository Act, 1996 and the regulation and Bye-laws framed there under :

NOT APPLICABLE

e-mail : seal.saumayo @gmail.com
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial borrowing :

NOT APPLICABLE

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (SEBI Act)) :

a. The securities and exchanges Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 :

NOT APPLICABLE

b. The Securities and exchanges Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 1992 :

NOT APPLICABLE

c. The Securities and exchanges Board of India (issue

of Capital and disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2009; and
NOT APPLICABLE

vi. Other laws applicable to the company as per the
representations made by the Management.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of the following :

i. Secretarial Standards of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India with respect Board and general
meetings.

ii. The Listing agreements entered into by company with
BSE limited and National Stock Exchange of India limited.

NOT APPLICABLE

During the period under review and as per the explanations
and clarifications given to me and the representation made
by management, the company has generally complied with
the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc.
mentioned above. However, some forms were filed after the
due dates. Dispatch of share certificates in some cases has
been delayed.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent directors. The Changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provision of the Act. Adequate notices were given to all
directors of at least sevent days in advance in case of all
Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sentin advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Decisions at the board meeting, as represented by the
management, were taken unanimously.
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| further report as per the explanation given to me and the
representation made by the Managment and relied upon by
me, there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to the monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, no such specific
events/actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above, have taken place.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure-A

To
The Members
MSTC Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and process as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the
process and practices, | followed provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness
of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the management
representative about the compliance of laws, rules, and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provision of corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

CS SAUMAYOJYOTI SEAL
ACS : 30311
C.P.No.: 11169

Place : Kolkata

Date : 30/6/2016
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Annexure-VIII/A to Directors’ Report
31974, 2016 BT W ORI a9 & for THTHERt ferfiics & vwar faxhia faaror w wifafde o et ot fewfor/
JqAIHI IR JGEH BT FR
Management Replies to Comments/Observations of the Statutory Auditors on the Standalone Financial
Statement of MSTC Ltd. for the financial year ending 31st March, 2016

A etd
o R
T 9.
Auditors’
Report
Para No.

fewafor/ s
I A

Comments / observations
QUALIFIED OPINION

dye & SN

Management’s Replies

i W foell g &% SAR-"e™ W od/A o )
e T Fe T, 15 (7) W "I i e s g, S
wwg-11 & SFER wEEE T8 fwar @ g A -1l
HT SIS HUAT FIEA AT GFT AT IY F SR B,
5163 =g sgam @1 ® (WA 5. 31236 oa feAiR
31.03.2016 T)| THF URVIFEET MR T %
31236 oI A IATET T & | IR & IFER, I o
wefua foRelt qg1 1 @rv/E 3@ IHA T Gelw
MgfRiel W et f&ar T &, 5 % 39 ¥1 36 WhR
=R 37 &t . 30768 @M &0 Sarr T § SR
IH N & Pg TS F HROT 99 F [0 HUAT B
TE AT T 77 AN HA K@ W oE (FE 5. 468
g f&qer 31.03.2016 qF) |

Reference is invited to Note No. 15 (a) of Notes
on Account, Gain / Loss on Foreign Exchange
Fluctuation on exports are not accounted for as
per AS-11. Had the Company complied with
AS-11, exchange gain would have been
increased by ¥ 5163 lacs for the year (cumulative
% 31236 lacs upto 31.03.2016). Consequently
Trade Receivables are understated by ¥ 31236
lacs. As per agreement, exchange gain / loss
relating to above is passed on to associate
suppliers upto the amount payable to them.
Thus Trade Payables are understated by
% 30768 lacs and net effect of the above gain
leads to understatement of profit of the Company
by X 77 lacs for the year (cumulative ¥ 468 lacs
upto 31.03.2016).

MR | I Ao TR/ [ F e e
TAYH A qe e W 3 8 TR el UiRomE
TUEISH, ST IS AT % {3 & 9T § 6
fowa & Hew § fewolt 9. 28 & foru ool e T
= ¥

Reference is invited to Note no. 28 of Notes on
Account relating to pending confirmation / rec-
onciliation of balances of Trade Receivables

QR TR YU A A A9 B AT Tb S Bl & (A ol
amqEvit & frafa &g are il ) a1 R @ @) 7 Sar-gs
F BRI A F AR | IS agelt ¥ ffTaaar & wron, S
AR Y 8, v (ow) @ @ § 2 fRmrr T € ud 9
orar T @ 9= 1.13 & AR ot T

The impact in the books arises only to the extent of mark up
(profit margin on the amount of exchange fluctuation on
export receivables against export of plain gold jewellery.
Due to uncertainty in their realization, which is also
subjudice, the impact (gain) has not been taken in books as
a consistent practice and the same is also in line with para
1.13 of the Accounting Policy.

H1g fewofl 781

No Comment.
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Auditors’
Report
Para No.

fewafor/ s
I HA

Comments/ observations
QUALIFIED OPINION

dee & SN

Management's Replies

and Trade Payables and its consequential ad-
justment that may arise on reconciliation.

ST fp o R Rewelt @t fewoh | 15 (dY) A
AT AT ¥, AUR yrm H# a¥ 2008-09 H 46
it & I W@l seieR & fafa & forg 5. 59863
g Wi, el agelt fafts <Rl ) S
faare & a1 & | WAidiers vd g9t famiw 26.10.2010
A AW B Ofig B TS T SR F e S
45075 TG BT &Ta1 YA (A1 T & U St
ERT S0 B 9oR & T due 9 Ao &
Raes 377 gRT S1ga harail & faeg garn
& foTg IR SUHHT faTs FarReT SR (TTRAreiemm=e)
P T AT SRR fhaT | T o f&=i 16.04 2014
P T ey # PEr % 39 A W T <9 Bl
IRIGR &5 SIHI 81 &1 HUl 7 39 AW Bl
T ¥R W A TS dUT "EAERY galed SR b
THET 39 A $ Raerd wfafrd e R fean|
Al IRITed & qHeT g oY oifad &1

FU T Pus, MR den gad A faeeh sl &
ReeT® 46 P wel SRR fhar g1 | 46 Aret
F1 ol vHTEERN & ue A fear e wd a
e 81 wg 6 d8d o qP Blg bH
g el gs ¢l

T FEIRIHT 4 ST o] G YBfomT vauiey
() fa. 3 3. 12400 &Rg P @1 Y HURT
(TRHRY ISl Jeaida<i g1RT a4 2014 H Hedid)
IR = 21 9 AR R ) Fufy &) [Qepl/siaror
¥ forg 48 S=a =mred § e Re i R
forar T B | AT @ S o) IE Hideng vd s 7
$. 24040 @R & duRrat qen aRdukmt (s
512400?’1@3%@@‘\5.39792!%%@%
ot 8) Sisd @ ¥ 1 TAUESRA 7 %, 900 oRg o
IHA F R & oy Wdleng =mrery @ SR
fopar o, g Ifyr 9§ 2013-14 & SR w81 T |
ANeE/ES gRT e WURT & BU H ST & T8 9.
3079 9@ @ Y IGH & AUl & fAQ e
Raer forar 71

BT, fUoel aut & SRM Py 7T %. 900 9’y &
Tge & IR fomm 9 & <R ereen ud wfey
FOT B BT H . 22678 G B IHH P AU Th
WIge fhar ATl §H SUWRIh @UR W XGH Bl
Gt & ufer dag 7, S 7 aut & f e wwa &
BT ¥ TAT §4R faaR A 5. 35385 &g &) }fd
g UF IR Wy fFar S =Ryl 39 9eiw 9
o 3Tfere feamr T qen uaue § WY %, 35385
g HH Er T B

9§ 2008-09 # vl fAPBR & frad & @ 7 $. 59863 g
BT ol U B | heldi/=m FafEt ¥ yhed age el 8 @t
fRIft § SRIh gHrT & dEd FHENH $ Y SUAST F o
THEIRRCE ¥ T, 2990 A ® Fol IR G TS | Adlarg/sel 7
3 fawal & TAIRETE 9 . 3979 &g @Md & de |uRwi
g B ¥, P faRer & forg vt ¥ Hidieng =marer &
SRATST WEWeRT & J1 §9&% d8d Ugd & %. 900 org @t fy
T g8 ¥ VP W $HY ey & e T, 16916 Trg @ HiE
DI A oS A 96 (THEE) & 9 et B & g g gen
e v ol & 9 THTE R & Uiy @S 98 grar \e 2
$Hd ITATEl, HEH SE Ao U8 YBomT veaed w. o1, ve
TR, 7 el ARl & YaE # 9@ B W) B & forg
12400 &g 2| I |uRy &1 el 3 <1 Aot € U9 S9d U
IHH B AR TF $TIRY qEr A W IR agell & AEel J
TETANTG fham S Aot B

SRh IR TR 3R S & SWRIT, Fol I BT SFTesled
IPH T. 23578 oG ¥ | THUASET J IHE SUHRA faare fawo
AN (TARITSISIEE) feoelt & Twer shamsit gRT shifia st 6t =t
T SISt < fokg 36 A gER fh )| g A W ®, 23578 W@
¥ et aftrer B AT 16.04.2014 F T ARY GRI ALHA YR
forare frramor s (TEEiSeReET) 3 A @ fafae e ar s fered
ot agfad wRa § wefia fovar| weEdn 7 0 ey & foeg wated
AT | U U qIiael | TG Gai=a =ared 5 gl 9el
gfefes & o @ fRy fean| IeeR o AW wATe AR A
afefes (Tadve A R sfeeym R dewy) w1 wefa fora wm)
Afses & Wi § 8| TATEERT &F SHioiel | =g W1 g
e B9 o SHE B

IRRE & TEAoR, ©. 23578 oG b Ugal ¥ fby 7T yraem &
JTOITT 36 &R W W § 3G P UGe &) Aaegehdr e & |
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As stated in Note no.15(b) of Notes on Account,
Trade Receivables includes ¥ 59863 lacs for
export trade receivable of gold jewellery done
in the year 2008-09 involving 46 parties and
recovery of which are under litigation at various
levels. CBI and ED have been investigating the
matter since 26.10.2010. Claims have been
lodged with ECGC for ¥ 45075 lacs but the
claims have been repudiated by the ECGC. The
Company has initiated the cases against ECGC
for the dues against buyers insured by them with
National Consumer Disputes Redressal Com-
mission (NCDRC) who has ordered the Com-
pany vide order on 16.04.2014 that it has no
jurisdiction to judge the matter. The Company
has taken up the matter at Ministry level and
has filed statutory appeal to Hon’ble Supreme
Court against this order. The matter is still pend-
ing before the Court.

The company has filed 46 legal cases against
the foreign buyers in UAE, Singapore and
Kuwait. All the 46 judgments have been
awarded in favour of MSTC and all the same
are under execution. Till now no money has
been recovered against these awards.

One of the Associates, namely, M/s Ushma
Jewellery & Packaging Exports (P) Ltd has
mortgaged landed property worth ¥ 12400 lacs
(valuation in 2014 by Govt. Registered valuer).
A writ petition for sale/transfer of the said
mortgaged property has been filed at the
Mumbai High Court. CBI and ED investigating
the matter have seized assets and properties
worth ¥ 24040 lacs (including land valued
% 12400 lacs & liquid assets worth ¥ 3979 lacs).
MSTC have approached CBI court requesting
for permission to transfer of an amount of ¥ 900
lacs which had been received during the year
2013-14. Applications are being made for
transfer of remaining amount seized by CBI/ED
in the form of liquid assets worth ¥ 3079 lacs.

However, a provision has been made for an
amount of ¥ 22678 lacs as bad and doubtful
debts during the previous year in addition to
% 900 lacs provisions made during earlier years.
We are doubtful about the recovery of the above
Trade Receivables which are due for more than
7 years and in our opinion, a further provision
should be made for ¥ 35385 lacs. This has re-
sulted in overstatement of profit and also under-
statement of provision by ¥ 35385 lacs.

There is total receivable of ¥ 59863 lacs on account of
export of gold jewellery in the year 2008-09. A total amount
of ¥ 2990 lacs has been retained from Associates including
EMD which is available for adjustment against above dues
in case of ultimate non-realization from buyers/insurance
company. CBI/ED inter alia recovered liquid assets worth
% 3979 lacs from the Associates for transfer of which MSTC
has approached CBI court and against this an amount of
% 900 lacs has already been received. Receivables worth
% 16916 lacs have already been sold to Standard Chartered
Bank (SCB) under a Receivable Purchase Agreement and
for which SCB do not have any valid claim on MSTC. Fur-
ther, M/s. Ushma Jewellery and Packaging Exports Pvt. Ltd.,
one of the associates have mortgaged landed properties to
MSTC to cover the default against the foreign buyers, the
value of which is around ¥ 12400 lacs. The said properties
can be sold and proceeds there from can be adjusted against
aforesaid dues in case of non-realisation from buyers and
also from insurance claims.

After considering above, the net amount of dues remaining
uncovered is ¥ 23578 lacs. MSTC had initiated 36 cases
against ECGC for the dues against buyers insured by them
with National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission
(NCDRC), Delhi, the claim amount is much more than the
above amount of ¥ 23578 lacs. National Consumer Disputes
Redressal Commission (NCDRC) by an order dated
16.04.2014 referred the matter to Civil Court or in other
appropriate forum. MSTC filed an appeal to Hon'ble
Supreme Court against this order. The Hon'ble Supreme
Court directed both the parties to go for arbitration.
Accordingly the matter has been referred to Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration (Government Machinery for
arbitration for PSU's) Arbitration is in progress. MSTC is
hopeful to realise the full insurance claim from ECGC.

In view of above, no further provision is required to be made
in the books at this stage further to the provision of ¥ 23578
lacs already made.
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¥ AR T BABRE Wit U uTaR fot. (feadive)
H %. 14307 dRI BT SR A & | S T @l
q Hfawa ufigpe faRmaei @en 95, 2014 4 4d
ggg aReTT # f1 Sy M wur, IR we @
I I IRPpd e SR, URipd & STAnT
3MfE BT ITeET B gY Y, 14 H TAUTH BId &
igor 89 5000 ARG 1 deel AT BI AFART I BT
ferof foram 21

FA W 7 2014 3 A1 2016 T D 37af o SR AH 6. 95
TIRG T BT 9T | ST ST & o H o) T osadieet o <
(PR ¥ T RETS R 22 1 91 7 Fwef) gRT TS
SR 1881 @t aRT 138 o ad Ueh Al QIR faa 17 2

TN o Ao § SAfaeh T o HIROT, THUESHET BT feTd
T ¥ ifew fosft & v ¥ g gdeeHs gy
E firen @ swR 1 ageh f sel GeEEe R
%. 8132 @Rg # R Wi & aGeiard aroiR
I U4 %. 10 o @l S IR & R & &
SR g9R R & 99 2015-16 & SR 5. 6165
BT YT BT AR | SHP TROTAEDHY A1 31ferd
Iof fosar a1 vd o 2015-16 2 W@e™ %. 6165
TG HH gol fhar T ¥

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 14307 lacs due
from M/S Concast Steel & Power Ltd (CSPL) as
at 31.03.2016 for supply of materials. The Com-
pany decided to allow an adhoc limit of
% 5000 lacs for procuring LAM Coke, in May'14
ignoring the several adverse features in the ac-
count like huge quantity of unlifted stock pro-
cured prior to May 2014, adverse credit infor-
mation received from State Bank of India, ad-
verse capacity utilization Etc.

The Company had received only ¥ 95 lacs dur-
ing the period June 2014 to March 2016. Fur-
ther the cheques (PDC) of CSPL given as secu-
rity were also dishonored by bank and a suit
has been filed by the Company under Section
138 of NI Act 1881.

Due to substantial decrease in price of the ma-
terial, MSTC's attempt of risk sale in recent past
didn't yield any fruitful results and the chances
of recovery of the amount is doubtful. After con-
sidering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock of ¥ 8132 lacs and security de-
posit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should
be made for ¥ 6165 lacs during the year 2015-
16.This has resulted in overstatement of profit
and understatement of provision for the year
2015-16 by ¥ 6165 lacs.

FAPRE YU oG TP ATSRIR TbST Bl HoX 9 I & A1 & T
2 5 o gr1 et fere & SWI @t St A
el Sed IATd §RT 26.112015 &7 faerm @ w5 &
IRUIFRAGSY HIBRE U B A AT BT BAPRE I T
ureR fof. & A1 Ul g e 81 2 | ey, S 9% | Yy
&1 fGaRoT a1t wfiferd € | ol gRT 98 aret far R & 6 ve AR
Y & faaRe & g™ BF R o Fafia wu 9 e ge
fopar Soe | qenfy, ¥ <ifed, 9ga oIt fawdi § Pl B9 e
# e aRerem & SIRY Ff & o fsht gfe |y x|
ot feapal &1 W W aR I8 T g fe 2/3 9wt | ufogd
S IR e & SR 3 T Ud & 99 § SRER H ©
g 9EA §Q AP SHIG B SN Wl © & R TRBR gRT 9=t
T fafay Nt & aRumREwT Sw aoR § guR B8R, R
ot freer 9 agen 8 95|

SRRE B e F Ig b1 AuRvgaar s fF agel o1 I

B

afifsa wmfrl @1 ayelarg qea 31.032016 & AR %,
14307 @ & T WK & 999 $. 9944 ARg ¥ | gfs amf
T & G A IS ST F wY H gHUES &
o gfifsd € vd el & qeu § sl R & =ed
SP qGINT o § T Bl IS §, T $. 4363 A &
3R IR W SRR F0T & w9 H qwiar W g

There has been a regular follow up with the party to clear
the dues.

A CDR package had been sanctioned for Concast Group
with the condition that disbursement by banks would take
place only after merger. Consequent upon sanction of
merger by the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 26.11.2015,
seven Companies of the Concast group have already been
merged with Concast Steel & Power Ltd. However, disburse-
ment of fund from their banks is still awaited. It had been
committed by the party time and again that they would re-
sume payment on a regular basis in bulk once the disburse-
ment of funds start. However, pending this, they are making
payment in very small instalments from their own genera-
tion of funds through plant operation at a very low capacity.
The party is also facing difficulties like all others in the same
line of business due to adverse steel market prevailing since
last 2/3 years. It is very much expected that with the im-
provement in the steel market as a result of various policies
being adopted by the Govt. of India, there will be faster real-
ization from the party.

In view of above, it is premature to say that the chances of
recovery are remote.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 9944
lacs as on 31.03.2106 as against book debts of ¥ 14307
lacs. Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only
as a collateral security against the receivables and there is
a substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected deep fall in commodity prices, differen-
tial amount of ¥ 4363 lacs has been shown as unsecured
debtors in the books.
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Vi

¥ 2008-09 & IRM WWRRT @ ARy g T
geveHe for. (™M) & 31.03.2016 # %. 6056 @t
IR g AR F wEg @l @) feweh @t
feweft 15() # s & e @ & e qed
U AR BRI §RT AR @ € ® U W WX
| HF T HEE hodddl 9o raeld | gfed
MRt 5 (emgend) & fvg . 3656 og o
IR F U welt & @ A e S w9 ¥ 3y
TP AT SRR a1 21 dexame § gt |eqof |
%. 102 arg # gt @t 78 o S <raTery & e
F AR IR & U St 7, 39 9 H S
Perell ifSd & 1 e 3 a¥ 2015-16 & SR U8l
J 53 7 3000 o”g & wrEe™ & ol g4 ad
%. 1000Rg @1 SRT Jraer b & | 39 ave 2015-
16 & 3fd a® ol b T Hag . 4000 A 2 |
B IR AR U & a9gelt # Hag € Ud §AR
faR & a1 v, 2056 & sERTE AR @ HraH
BT AT 39h TRUTATRY oY 3ifdr Td Iy
2015-16 &g 2056 &g UE9e HH ol (a1 721
gl

As stated in Note No 15 (c) of Notes on Account
relating to Trade Receivables amounting to
% 6056 lacsas at 31.03.2016 from SESA Inter-
national Ltd (SESA) for supply of materials dur-
ing the FY 2008-09 against which arbitration
proceedings have been initiated by the Com-
pany and are in progress . The Company has
also filed a suit in Hon'ble Calcutta High Court
against Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) for their
wrong debit in the account of the Company for
an amount of ¥ 3656 lacs. Stock of entire mate-
rial lying at port was sold at ¥ 102 lacs which are
kept with the receiver as per Court order pend-
ing the final judgment on this score. The Com-
pany has made a further provision of ¥ 1000l
acs this year in addition to the provision of
% 3000 lacs already made during the FY 2014-
15. Thus total provision made upto the end of
2015-16 is ¥ 4000 lacs. We are doubtful about
the recovery of the above trade receivables and
in our opinion further provision should be made
for the balance amount of ¥ 2056 lacs. This has
resulted overstatement of profit and understate-
ment of provision for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2056
lacs.

NUR T H e %, 3556 g 31.03.2016 @&l
AFH HIPRT T TSIt fol. | AR &t emyf

THUASR 3 Bola<dl ST AR 8 sl & favg 5. 3656
ARg g AR B it qed vd I @y Ted w4
radR & 5 @ § e o w2 e forg gerd
AT DTS eigd =TATerd §RT SR Ul TR UR=] ST
T A Afdwal S B SH qIF e PR IR T | BRI &
freror & SR Seldl B1E W WIHRIANT RIS IR PR H
3T VBT f 9 TATHERT & SRy & ST FHHISIT 919w A%
J | ATTel B JAATS Y B YR g3 © | TIVHERY Bl IHIE B fb
e Sk UeT H BT | G, HIHT TERd SR W Hf $ .
4000 <R sreiied ud <difever S & wu # @ § yar fbar
g1 g WHS O e § P 39 WR W I fRA e @
SqTIDHAT TEl B

MSTC has filed a suit in Calcutta High Court against 10B
claiming ¥ 3656 lacs representing the value of the materials
and legal expenses wrongly debited to MSTC bank account
for which LC negotiating documents were found to be dis-
crepant by the London Court but IOB had defaulted in re-
turning the same to the suppliers' bank on time. During in-
spection of documents I0B has failed to produce any ac-
ceptable document proving that they were holding back the
documents under MSTC's instruction. Hearing against the
suit is to commence shortly. MSTC is hopeful the judgement
will come in its favour. However, as a measure of abundant
precaution, a total amount of ¥ 4000 lacs have been pro-
vided in the accounts as bad and doubtful advance. It is felt
no further provision is necessary at this stage.

qfEAt & g & Fraer 2q Frafa wer o fFar @ |
FAPRE YU oG TP ATSRIR TbST Bl HoX $9 I & A1 & T3
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2g 1 99 44 A 11 © e aad Hod) @l w6 &
IR M dqTel AHT BIS YU TE g ¥
A PIPRE el soxc ol fo1. %, 1611 S 2014
{ A 2016 $ Ay b IR gabar fobar o o=
¥ %. 30 g a¥ 2015-16 & ST el fomam T |
BT AR B IS B FHET GRT ¥ O T B
26.05.2016 & It faeicd &1 $-sifarr fHe s
BT MBI IR F B & 2

%. 2645 @G & YR Rib & aeiarg ariR
I & R & 1d 10 o9 & SHFT S W)
faR # & IR TAR AR 4 af & SRE

2 5 o grr et e & SW @t St A
Tl Sed IraTd §RT 26.112015 &7 faer @ A &
IRUIFRAGSY HIHRE U B A1 AT BT BAPRE I T
ureR o1, & A Ul g e 81 a2 1 ey, S 9% | Yy
&1 fGaRoT 3t wfiifer € | ol gRT 98 aret fhan R & 6 ve AR
Y & faaRe & g™ BF W o Fafa wu 9 e ge
fopar Sge | qenfy, ¥ <ifed, 9ga oIt fawdi § Pl B9 e
q wiic gReEres & SRy [y & s ol gfe 3§ gram x|
ot feapal &1 ) W aR I8 T g fvw 2/3 9wt 9 ufogd
S TR e & SR 3 T TP & 99 F SRER H ©
g 9EA §Q AP IHIG B SN Wbl © & R TRBR gRT 9=t
T fafay et & aRuREwy Sw aoR § guR 'R, R
et | e 9 agell 8 aH

3. 901 R BT IGE BT AT | §9 TRUTHERGRY
o 31fdre ot fpam 4T & ud 9§ 2015-16 & SR
901 IR T UguT= HH o fhar 1T 2|

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3556 lacs as at
31.03.2016 due from M/S Concast Bengal In-
dustries Ltd for supply of materials two years
back against which no repayment is forthcom-
ing in conformity with the terms of sanction . M/s
Concast Bengal Industries Ltd. had paid only
%1611 lacs during the period June 2014 to March
2016 out of which only ¥ 30 lacs has been paid
during 2015-16. Prospect of recovery of out-
standing dues is remote as bid for e-auction of
steel billets on 26.05.2016 has failed to attract
any buyer.

After considering the realizable market value of
the pledged stock of ¥ 2645 lacs and security
deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 901 lacs during the year.
This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2015-
16 by ¥ 901 lacs.

SR @ g § I8 we suRudgaar g & agelt @ S|
RO

gfafsd wmBRl @1 aefarg qea 31.03.2016 & IMYAR .
3556 @g & T @I & 99 ©. 3117 @@ ¥ 1 dfe wmiai
AT & G A ARG ST F wY H gHUESR &
o gfifsd € vd el & qeu § sl firee & =ed
SP IYAANT oI § gaTa HHI og 7, fOd v, 439 dg &
3R IR W SRR F0T & w9 H qwiar W g

There has been a regular follow up with the party to clear
the due.

A CDR package had been sanctioned for Concast Group
with the condition that disbursement by banks would take
place only after merger. Consequent upon sanction of
merger by the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 26.11.2015,
seven Companies of the Concast group have already been
merged with Concast Steel & Power Ltd. However, disburse-
ment of fund from their banks is still awaited. It had been
committed by the party time and again that they would re-
sume payment on a regular basis in bulk once the disburse-
ment of funds start. However, pending this, they are making
payment in very small instalments from their own genera-
tion of funds through plant operation at a very low capacity.
The party is also facing difficulties like all others in the same
line of business due to adverse steel market prevailing since
last 2/3 years. It is very much expected that with the im-
provement in the steel market as a result of various policies
being adopted by the Govt. of India, there will be faster real-
ization from the party.

In view of above, it is premature to say that the chances of
recovery is remote and the amount needs to be provided in
the books.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 3117
lacs as on 31.03.2016 as against book debts of ¥ 3556 lacs.
Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only as a
collateral security against the receivables and there is a
substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected dip in commodity prices, differential
amount of ¥ 439 lacs has been shown as unsecured debt-
ors.
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B YT 7Y ©. 3328 W@ Wt ¥ | TAIQUH Bld
A9 23500 #. € U4 HId 4 3634 4. e &
$-offaR 2 a1 gd 09.08.2015 &1 FHIRRME favan
T o7 o foeft ff wenfad o @1 e wEl
fpar| A9 sMg A S 2014 | #2016 &
R A1F T, 250 T ol fBAr oarl SEg &
|y A, 2014 § P AUR T o vd iy @)
gl wrEe dfey g1 v, 1603 @’ & wfiafsa
ih & AT IOR o ® TR =T &
I TR AR # 99 & SRME $. 1725 &g Bl
TTEE ST ARy | IRMERT o 31 g fpa
T € UG a9 2015-16 =g . 1725 &RI &1 Hraem
HH gl forar T T

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3328 lacs due
from M/S Dankuni Steel Ltd for supply of mate-
rials. Notice for e-auction of LAM Coke measur-
ing 23500.00MT and Coke fines to the tune of
3634.00MT was published on 09.08.2015 which
didn't attract any prospective buyer. M/s. Dankuni
had paid only ¥ 250 lacsduring June 2014 to
March 2016. There was no business with
Dankuni since June 2014 and chances of re-
covery of the amount is doubtful. After consider-
ing the realizable market value of the pledged
stock of ¥ 1603 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 1725 lacs during the year.
This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2015-
16 by ¥ 1725 lacs.

FAPRE YU oG TP ATSRIR TbST Bl HoX 9 I & A1 & T
2 5 o grr et e & SW @t St A
el STd IATd §RT 26.112015 &7 faerm @ w5 &
IRUIFRGSY HIBRE U B A1 AT BT BAPRE I T
ureR o1, & A1 Ul g e 81 man 2 | ey, S 9% | Yy
&1 fGaRoT a1t wfiifer € | ol gRT 98 aret far R & 6 ve AR
Y & faaRe & g™ BF W o Fafia wu 9 e ge
fopar Sge | qenfy, ¥ <ifed, 9ga oIt fawdi § Pl B9 e
# e aRerem & 9IRY [ & o foht gfe |y e
ot feapal &1 ) W 9 I8 T g fve 2/3 9wt 9 ufogd
S TR e & SR 3 T TP & 99 § SRER H ©
g 954 &S AP SHIG B SN Wbl © & R TRBR gRT 9=t
T fafay Nt & aRuREwT SR aoR § guR B8R, R
ot freer 9 age 8 95|

SRRE B e § Ig He1 AuRYgaar s fF agel o1 S
RO

afifsa wmfRl @1 aygelarg e 31.032016 & AR %,
3328 &g & WU W & IEd B, 2004 @ ¥ | dfE wmiEi
TUESR & U A U & 9Ed SEiie S & W
gfafsrd & vd 9l & goa 7 omenRa frae & ged 396
IR g ¥ TAE FHI o8 €, fOd v, 1324 dRg F 3R
AR W # SRR Wor % w9 H g9iar T ¥

There has been a regular follow up with the party to clear
the dues.

A CDR package had been sanctioned for Concast Group
with the condition that disbursement by banks would take
place only after merger. Consequent upon sanction of
merger by the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 26.11.2015,
seven Companies of the Concast group have already been
merged with Concast Steel & Power Ltd. However, disburse-
ment of fund from their banks is still awaited. It had been
committed by the party time and again that they would re-
sume payment on a regular basis in bulk once the disburse-
ment of funds start. However, pending this, they are making
payment in very small instalments from their own genera-
tion of funds through plant operation at a very low capacity.
The party is also facing difficulties like all others in the same
line of business due to adverse steel market prevailing since
last 2/3 years. It is very much expected that with the im-
provement in the steel market as a result of various policies
being adopted by the Govt. of India, there will be faster real-
ization from the party.

In view of above, it is premature to say that the chances of
recovery is remote and the amount needs to be provided in
the books.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 2004
lacs as on 31.03.2016 rates as against book debts of ¥ 3328
lacs. Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only
as collateral security against the receivables and there is a
substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
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viii.

R T R . 3959 @ A9d wive Wid U
e o fo1. & wmiRi @t ey 2g 78, 2013 &
Bg WA 21 39 dRe Srfed AMiEl # o@fy 3
sl § e R & e Ffgd w9 @ w5 6
RY | 9SG uraet § JHa gan gnm | oret
UHIC P AT BT AT A SR g1 & | T AR A
{ A 600 W@ A, 16 T% gobal ST o,
A= 390 WG A, 2016 TF gt 9T | 3 Ud 7g,
16 & IR Fahal & ST drelt 150 o & 4 B
A gopar T P 1| SravISd e A
04.042016 @1 TR faam =1 & vd it & ga
frfa fosar a1 21 ggeh grars @ weifad Rl
15.06.2016 €| 3 TRE ol SqmE@rc F#Ry & T
2 vd IR & agelt o Swfie RRU 21 3. 1750 @
F Tfifea i & YRR IR 9ed v 2. 10
RT & ST S R fIaR %9 F SN §9R
faR & ad 2015-16 & aRM . 2199 &g @
TIET FRAT A1 | IRUIRERY @19 31ee &< fram
T ¥ UG a9 2015-16 =g . 2199 ARI BT Hra€™
FH & b T B

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3959 lacs due
from M/S Crest Steel & Power Ltd for supply of
materials prior to May, 2013. Thus age of pro-
cured materials are old over 3 years which ob-
viously lost its quality with the passing of time.
Party has failed to honor the award of Arbitra-
tion. Out of a total sum of ¥ 600 lacs to be paid
upto March'16, they have paid only ¥ 390 lacs
upto May 2016. Out of ¥ 150 lacs to be paid
during April and May'16, nothing has been paid.
Necessary execution petition has been filed on
04.04.2016 and notice has been issued to the
Party. Tentative Date of first hearing is
15.06.2016. Thus, the Debtors has become
Stressed Assets and the chances of recovery of
the amount is remote. After considering the re-
alizable market value of the pledged stock of
% 1750 lacs,and security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in
our opinion provision should be made for¥ 2199
lacs during the year 2015-16. This has resulted
in overstatement of profit and understatement
of provision for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2199
lacs.

IOR T Nd $. 3039 799 Taldd dld . 9
ot @1 ARl @ @i ud eyl B faawR, 14

due to unexpected deep fall in commodity prices, differen-
tial amount of ¥ 1324 lacs has been shown as unsecured
debtors.

THUEERT | Uet & faog dare # smear fdar o e daga
Jt g IR N g B B Y T e THsiia sxEIRad
fpar T or S fage ddTe & wwe SRR R eml e urdt
fOe oee & SIAR godl T81 B) I8! & vd 31.03.2016 TH
%. 372 T @1 BIET IR &7 YA & & 9 51 31.03.2016
F SR e Jarg, 2016 TF T. 63 G B Fol AR H
I IR a1 51 g8 SHiie @l ol © 6 s deiR | gurR
¥ | 9 ARmae o @®1 o @t Ry F o S|

ufcrfsrar | @1 31.3.2016 &1 $. 3959 @ IHT & d6d B.
2344 &1 IYARATT I g1 dfS ARl vIeadRy & e 9
W & qIEd NG ST & wU # ufifsa & v amhai &
o ¥ mlRa ARae & o S9S aqeiand Jod § wi
FH oS B, R ©. 1615 g & iR AT @y 3 sRyRfara o
% w9 T 2

MSTC had invoked Arbitration against the party pursuant to
which a settlement agreement was signed to clear all the
outstanding dues which was filed before the learned Arbi-
trator. Since the party is not making payment as per settle-
ment order and has paid a meager amount of ¥ 372 lacs till
31.03.2016, an execution petition has been filed to put pres-
sure. After 31.03.2016 they have paid a total amount of ¥ 63
lacs till July, 2016. It is expected with the improvement in
the steel market they will be in a position to make up the
shortfall.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 2344
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 3959 lacs as on 31.3.2016.
Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only as
collateral security against the receivables and there is a
substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected deep fall in commodity prices, differen-
tial amount of ¥ 1615 lacs has been shown as unsecured
debtors.

uet A FBIY Bl g $ (Y geaydsd Bl o9 fHA S @ €1
&M T 994 © 5 Siiiee fxfig 9 2014-15 9@ fafia amar
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TH T 2 | gGAAIT FERRT B TwHH el D
1279 o9 21 39 dig SiRfiva 7 diemEumamR &1
Td dlemSuwaR O & S wmiEl & foes 3y
HefTT fa &, FR 7 dIeMSUheR A JrgafT feram
T S S ufthar FE ¥ ST HH BH A HH
HY B agell v AW B [ T8 I wedht §
T4 B Bl GRMSUGAR & IRUM & M d6
OOR ARAT BN SFT: B, 1279 @ & wfafsd
TIH & IR Jed T4 10 dRF &l ST ST W)
AR & & SW G & JHA BT AT
$. 1750 o & w9 ¥ fhar w1 e e 96
oG @Tdl H 3avad Wae A g1 S9d IR
TG & YRUMFREGwY oy fdd ot fhar T &

Tg 9. 1750 IRg &1 UG &9 o fbar Tr 2|

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3039 lacs due
from M/S Global Coke Ltd for procuring and sup-
ply of materials to the party upto Decemeber'14.
The present value of realizable materials are
% 1279 lacs. In the meantime, GCL has been
referred to BIFR, and for disposing of material
belongs to a BIFR Company, the Company has
to take permission from BIFR which is not an
easy process. Therefore, the Company can't sell
the material to recover at least a part of its dues
and had to wait till the outcome of BIFR is known
to the Company. Hence, considering the realiz-
able market value of pledged stock of ¥ 1279
lacs and security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, the loss of
the Company is assessed as ¥ 1750 lacs for
which necessary provision is to be make in their
books of account. Non-provision of the same
has resulted in overstatement of profit and un-
derstatement of provision for ¥ 1750 lacs.

YR U § 99g ol W) feult & feweft &,
15() % @ T IR 31032016 ¥ %. 24083
o A9d vadied & Afer fied o, 9§ sregeR,
2012 q uret 31 AMRRIT B WRig B vd AR
TG T 16 A a¥ gd BT ¥ | 39 TWE 99T &b
TORA & TOERT H PH ATS T TG difvd oI W
WRIAT T8 fBaT ST FebaT B | Th FHRRAT § THUAE N
A3 2016 & M 9 WY ¥ yaferd IeIR &) H
JEfrl @ FEiRa Td g e &g deaa gs o,
AElEl ¥ 3 IR IBW O A | 2 IR gadivd &l
FOR Jou & WY 20 whe (vHew feie), 25

W A B & wd 9 aa Rl av 2014-15 § %, 2397
W 5 €1 Wy facfia 9§ 2015-16 & U F 91 B &
AT W W, SHGT gRATe YHIfad 8 I8, Bid IR # AfRrd
ipe B b PRU YA B SR B 4 g1 SiRiee T
TS THAR Bl Feflid fham o | THUESRY & T 39 bRy BI
Gl &g UdTe # AEd™ BRI b IAAEl 3 Bl [Jbeq T8 B
g & e SRR @) A 2| Siige 7 fge dae &
|AeT FTes &) \EAfd @ W oY BRI | I, TE FHEAT i A8l
BT o5 axgell 1 A9TET R 2

3y, wfafsra |t @1 axgeag g 31.03.2016 &1 %. 3039
ARG H IH S d19d B, 2568 G T Ffh AmiAr THTEERdt
& U AT W % dI9d WG S % vy # s & vd
JHERRT & eu # AR fRae & geld S96 aqalang o
# yafd o orE ¥, AN v, 471 o & iR R @
SRR T & WY # ST T g

There has been a vigorous follow up with the party for clear-
ing the dues. It may be noted that GCL has paid on regular
basis till FY 2014-15 and they have paid ¥ 2397 lacs in FY
2014-15 alone. But from the beginning of FY 2015-16 there
has been very slow rate of payment due to very adverse
coke market on account of cheaper import of coke affecting
their operations. GCL had since been referred to BIFR. MSTC
had no other alternative but to invoke arbitration for recov-
ery of its outstanding dues. Statement of claim has been
filed. GCL has submitted before the Hon'ble Arbitrator that
they would like to submit a consentterms of settlement shortly.
Hence it is too early to say that the chances of recovery is
remote.

Further, the pledged materials have a realizable value of
% 2568 lacs as on 31.03.2016 against the outstanding of
% 3039 lacs. Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC
only as collateral security and the realizable value of the
same has reduced substantially as a result of general slump
in commodity prices, the differential amount of ¥ 471 lacs
has been shown as unsecured debtors.

T TS T FHRIT T IR Hed & 79 3R B U SATeherd
F 1Y a1 & S IOIR oI aanE W) H G oafy § fRR 3=,
W] IRT WHR §RT <R% 7d IR-eR% At ga Al ofek &
3T & 1Y IR Hed & S[HE ST oK & GIR & AT
FW B AR T 39 T 9 B, 3141 @ F 3R H Agagol FHH
MGt | oiEm wRied HuaT S § P aRen die & SrgHET |
3T & I TATESRN &I A F & forg urdh &1 7
iR HR P Y o 11 Ud 9 Heu | Aok [ AR &
BT PR b WM R TId A IS T

I, THUICN & A1 e & wrEl § Wie g1 | qd vaee
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Xi.

yforerd (o1 eravd) ud 30 R (|iE erawn/
dleies) AT & AR W Ud U IR JHTe SCATAR
(08.052016) sifrd Hea & oMaR W SR fam
TAT| $9 SHIRAMT & AR TATHCN ©. 24083
T F AIH IHRT F aEd ST . 20942 ARG
AT BT | TGOS Uret & |er o7t @t IR
TP B. 3141 oG &I Safdne AR agell g fhdt
SPYRAMT A WA T8l 85 €| SIRIRKD SPRRAMT b
IR STEl dd §d § BIs ol T @ 72 | s
39 SHIRAMT § | Mt 81 %. 3131 a9 g,
. 10 &g 1 Y& II9 S o, St facfi ad
2015-16 &g S & alfte @rdl H g 81 fpar
T E | 3P IRURGHY oY If¥d ot far T ®
T %. 3131 G &7 WIGEM $H o fhar T

As stated in Note No 15 (e) of Notes on Account
relating to Trade Receivables amounting to
% 24083 lacs as at 31.03.2016 from M/S SPS
Steel Rolling Mills Ltd for procuring and supply
of materials to the party upto October, 2012, al-
most three and half years ago. Thus with the
passage of time, quality has been deteriorated
and it can't fetch the desirable price. In an agree-
ment MSTC agreed to fix and release material
at the prevailing market rate in three tranches
from May 2016 onwards, out of 3 time lifting, 2
time lifting of material will be issued to the SPS
at market price plus 20 percent (MS Billet), 25
percent (Sponge Iron) and 30 percent (Iron Ore/
Pellets) thereon as loading and one time on the
basis of book value as per Award of Arbitration
(08.05.2016). As per this arrangement, MSTC
will be able to recover ¥ 20942 lacs as against
their outstanding advance of ¥ 24083 lacs. No
agreement was entered into by MSTC with the
party to recover the balance amount of
% 3141 lacs till date. No lifting has been made
so far in accordance with the said agreement.
Hence the anticipated loss out of this agree-
ment is ¥ 3131 lacs, net of existing Security De-
posit of Rs 10 lacs, which has not been pro-
vided in the annual accounts of the Company
for the FY 2015-16. This has resulted in over-
statement of profit and understatement of provi-
sion for ¥ 3131 lacs.

IOR T g e A Fatmen ©a 1. 9
ol w1 ARl @) @de vd gl &g erRER,
2012 d% %. 1917 &g g&RIT 81 HF a1t &t
ST g8 foxiia Ra & oreedl are anfew ot R

J fared aatel § e R o e on R sfeafad &
& ofy amfri #9 ard W® IsW # ARy & o &
THUEERT B feaes # oafRie I @1 agel $1 ARMSR a1

SRR B T H 39 WR H DS U@L IR B BIg ATaLIBAT
TE 2

Tnfy, $. 3131 &g & 3R WIRT Wi # SRR I F w9 A
EiiE

Audit has calculated difference between outstanding and
market price with the assumption that market price will re-
main static at current level throughout the tenure. But with
the adoption of different tariff and non-tariff measures and
policies by the Govt. of India, market price is showing up-
ward trend with improvement of steel market. In that event,
the difference of ¥ 3141 lacs will reduce significantly. Audit
may please note that the arrangement has been made with
approval of the Board after due deliberation only to encour-
age the party to pay to MSTC and lift from the stock instead
of buying the material from the market at a lower price.

Further, before entering into the terms of settlement with
SPS, MSTC has obtained legal opinion from a reputed Ad-
vocate in which it is inter alia mentioned that ".....even if the
materials are allowed to lift at lesser cost, MSTC would re-

tain rights to recover the balance claims in execution....".

In view of above, there is no need for making any provision
at this stage.

However, the differential amount of ¥ 3131 lacs has been
shown as unsecured debtors in the books.

o

yfafsra Al &1 agell a7 You $. 873 o § S/fd e
. 1918 &g g1 %. 1045 <Ig & 3R AR & g . 1424 79
G H ugel | WU AT AT 81 S 39 9F W M
1°) 151 o I R E IS | ﬁ %|
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Xii.

o urdl O | A facia Aeran o srgAfT <1 S|
f6 qd w=age f1 9 Ioi g T oft|
JleETheR Heffd HF W B @ agel @t
Iefie Ry efid BT © | aelt & ue R faeR a
TR BT BT 3 %, 483 oRG UG HRAT a1y,
T B. 1424 ARG & WIGU & SIfARxD aicl ot
Frgot geBTaT, $. 10 TR BT Y ST STT 7T
B AP | 39 IR WG $ BolRawy oy e go
foar T & Ud 5. 483 @R WU & gof fhar
T B

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1917 lacs due
from M/S Marmagoa Steel Ltd for procuring and
supply of materials to the party upto October,
2012. The Company was well aware of the dwin-
dling financial condition of the party yet it al-
lowed financial exposure to the party even at a
time when the commodities of earlier consign-
ments were not lifted. Therefore the chance of
recovery of dues from BIFR referred Company
seem remote. Considering the aspect of recov-
ery the Company should have made a further
provision ¥ 483 lacs, in addition to existing pro-
vision of ¥ 1424 lacs, covering the entire dues of
the party, net of Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs.
This non-provisioning has resulted in overstate-
ment of profit and understatement of provision
for¥ 483 lacs.

OR w5, 2637 oG g a9 [ifRd
IRIeH for. | sIgR gfe & fog W 2016 @@
gl @ il @ e vd Mgy g el &1
3P a1 gIg AR U4 gfeqar 9 €1 A4 16 &
SR PIs T3 3MMber thaes] & FelloR & BRI
TET T ST AT & | SUYTH SHPeT0T HIed B STTARATT
q &9 uiifed ©ie & ageiany ok e 3l
gHfead ez 7 oraaed €1 g9 ger AR BT agell
# deg &1 69 Rg B ST S R fIaR &4 &
SUR &R faaR # a9 2015-16 & SR %. 2568
TR BT WAL HRAT ARY | IR UG & HoRdwy
o 31 g fhar T § vd av 2015-16 89 9.
2568 oG 6T Wae= &H goi fbar 7T & |

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 2637 lacs due
from M/S Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd for procuring and
supply of materials to the party upto March 2016
for Jajpur unit. Both its Bishnupur and Haldia
units are closed. No volumetric assessment
could have been undertaken during March '16
owing to closure of the factory.In absence of
appropriate audit evidence we are unable to

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 873 lacs
against the outstanding of ¥ 1918 lacs. Against the differen-
tial amount of ¥ 1045 lacs, provision has already been made
in books for ¥ 1424 lacs. Hence no further provision is con-
sidered necessary at this stage.

afifsa wmBRl &1 axgeiTT qou ©. 2263 g ¥ Siafe garn
%. 2637 TG g U] il UIEl H 59 WR & Tl a1 M| A
W TE ¢t fF o aden d Sqaw o Wied @t Ut i
Y A & oY A wer T 7

31032016 &I AHRRN &1 Joa A9 1388 &g RAwR wic #
TS oft Td erald¥re wE @ HHd B, 1249 ORg §oxE H UL
off | sfcear v SR a8 # H1% @l Ut g8 7 ot gefy
Frfrr 2 9uf | e & 9 Ut g8 ¥ IHRm @7 SR A
31.03.2016 @I IR e & FWR v. 374 ARI AGRIEM THrT
% w0 4 IR Sud fedl urgu™ & <3 W ¥ U8 eur e
a1fey 5 arct 9 ga fban € wa foxfig af 2016-17 § apRa,
2016 & . 1025 &R & AL ® SorT B

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 2263
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 2637 lacs but the same has
been ignored by Audit. It is not clear how the Audit has
asked for provisioning in the absence of appropriate au-
dit evidence.

As on 31.03.2016 materials valuing only ¥ 1388 lacs were
lying at Bishnupur Plant and balance materials valuing ¥
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Xiii.

Xiv.

ascertain the realizable market value of the
pledged stock. We are doubtful of the recovery
of the outstanding amount. After considering
security deposit of ¥ 69 lacs, in our opinion pro-
vision should be made for ¥ 2568 lacs during
the year 2015-16, which has not provided by
the company in its books of accounts for the
year 2015-16..This non-provisioning has re-
sulted in overstatement of profitand understate-
ment of provision for the year 2015-16 by
% 2568 lacs.

R g R w9 Sfoge arstd e oped for. @
S-3ifaer @ et wfrar TS & SR TR
JARME IHIT W &S & AT AR B TG
FR T AYRT ¥ IHTT WA | Sfugef urgew gd
e o, @ vt Al s g1 S-effere %
SIRT fAye™ &) f&ar 1 § vd arag § B8 eiw
T8l 21 39 I8 Uit &1 aE @rdm § g . 10
RGP ST ST b FHETEIH $ S . 579
TG T S goiaar SRRfe g Ud 9y 2015-16 &
IR S9% T B wrae= =€ e g1 59 IR
IaeT™ & HeRaod oY Afdd g5t fhar T & wd
T 2015-16 =g %. 579 WRI T& WA & &of
fopar B

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 589 lacs due from
M/S Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd for procuring
and supply of materials after adjusting the sale
proceeds of e-auction but including interest on
outstanding balance. The Entire material of
Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd. has been disposed
off through e-auction by the Company and virtu-
ally there is no stock. Thus the present book
dues of the party amounting ¥ 579 lacs, after
adjustment of Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacsis
fully unsecured and no provision has been
made for the same during the year 2015-16.
This non-provisioning has resulted in overstate-
ment of profit and understatement of provision
for 2015-16 by ¥ 579 lacs.

R I o 799 <fuge Wied gd uras for. |
HRad, 2014 q6 AR @ @de ud Smgfi 79 .
10876 &g el WA &1 31.03.2016 @1 f5d
T AFNG MMHe & TR W AR @ A H
FH o e fom uiet 7 3 - @1 FaT o1 o
39 TP @1 IRl fHaAT T 2l T, 4255 A &
g3 i & ageiard R Jed d . 10 o
F S ST W AR oA IW g9R R 3
g8 & IR 6611 g & WEe & ARy |

1249 lacs were lying at ports. No material was lying at Haldia
and Jajpur units. Although the materials are less than 2
years old, the differential amount of the outstanding over
market value as on 31.03.2016 amounting to ¥ 374 lacs has
been shown as unsecured debtors without making any pro-
vision for the same. It may be noted that the party has paid
and lifted materials materials worth ¥ 1025 lacs in FY 2016-
17 till August, 2016.

uel J TR, 2016 TF . 122 g & R gl & YT T
fen & vd 99 Iog e & 9He Sast, 2017 9@ Rl
BT BT el IR B YA ST aRaet fpar & Ry smawr
f&.14.07.16 & dga =Te §R1 WIHR a1 721 5| I8 S#g
o St § % g 2016-17 & SR Aot gHrn @ 81 S
79 59 WR A R g R AR e’ 3 snawaedr T8l gl
T . 579 ARG (ST ST BT 3G THB1T) SRR I &
w9 H FeIr T

Party has already paid an amount of ¥ 122 lacs till August,
2016 and submitted a payment schedule before Bombay
High Court to clear the entire outstanding by Jan 2017 which
has been accepted by the Court vide order dated 14.07.16
It is expected the entire dues will be cleared during 2016-17
and hence no provision is considered necessary at this
stage. However ¥ 579 lacs (outstanding net of security de-
posit) has been shown as unsecured debtors.

UTet S TAUIERAT §RT RIR TSRS o AT & g gwg Se
ST F WM e fiFie 29.03.2016 & TR 3T @Y
IRRg T g far g | v \if¥e sfeed & SR R T
T. 416 A & Pl Bl H W T, 267 TG B AR 9ISt | o
YA & 9d ggel & FERifo $x f&ar w2 gl

afifsa amelt &1 ageiere qou 5173 g € s 9arn .
10876 @ § | 9] AWMU U< YA b aed q1 sifed e
# oY @ o ¥E € ud 31032016 & IR WMRET &
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XV.

3P HoRgwd oY 3Rd oot fhar T ¥ ud 9y
2015-16 =g %. 6611 &g T& HH H@EM &of
forar T 21

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 10876 lacs due
from M/S Topworth Steels & Powers Ltd for pro-
curing and supply of materials upto February
2014. There was a shortage in quantum of pro-
cured materials as per volumetric assessment
carried out w.r.t position as at 31.03.2016 for
which the party was asked to make good the
same which has not been carried out as yet.
After considering the realizable market value of
the pledged stock of ¥ 4255 lacs, and security
deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 6611 lacs during the year.
This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for 2015-16 by
¥ 6611 lacs.

IOR 9 R a9 51 dreloi s fo. @
g 2013 T& wmiEl @ wde vd amyfi 3g .
12193 &g RN 1S 21 39 aRE ARl wih
P! 39 3 94 ¥ 37 R § gd o Ffvad v
{ IAE JHRT B MBI IR =g aifesa R d
FH O § Boawd BRI B agell B FrE
Y 2| av ff g9 U g9 $ 9ed 3.
6273 WRa & VAU BRI qerre & off o
HHT GRT SdTer a1 fBar a1 vd S H1 ol
AR & w9 H AR §RT AR far i 81 g9 a
ff . 362 o uiet gRT g e T ¥
AT ¥ 1eT PR & daele YA § IR-aR T8l
B & PR aGell B wE A g1 v, 3922
g B AT Wid & aGeiand aoR 4o AR
FRA b S g9R AR § 94 & <RE %, 8271
TG H1 Y@E BRAT A1y | $9¢ IRUREGHY |
31 & foar T vd a9 2015-16 =g 2. 8271
ARG PH UEEE &1 BT T §

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 12193 lacs due
from M/S Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. for procuring
and supply of materials upto July 2013. Thus

TG Hed H HHI o (BT UTaer & B B SAaeaDAl T
gl

Jofy, dfe wmfRi ger—n & gEd w9 q.d SHEG & w9 H
afifsd @ ¥ ¥ vd 9mEl qou # @ fRme & thorawy
31032016 & ITIER SHMT & I e d wgaqol &
Sl ¥ 3R IR 5703 g IR ITGR & w9 H ST T
gl

The party has been paying till date as per the revised order
dated 29.03.2016 of the Mumbai High Court against the
winding up petition filed by MSTC. Out of the total shortage
of ¥ 416 lacs detected during last volumetric assessment,
an amount of ¥ 267 lacs has already been adjusted against
the payments received from the party.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 5173
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 10876 lacs. But the materi-
als are being issued at the book price only against the pay-
ments received and hence there is no need to make any
provision for the shortfall in realizable value of the materials
as on 31.03.2016.

However, since the materials have been pledged only as
collateral security against the outstanding and there is a
significant reduction in realizable value of the security as on
31.03.2016 as a result of huge dip in commodity prices, the
differential amount of ¥ 5703 lacs has been shown as unse-
cured debtors.

gfifsd Al &1 e Jod ©. 5229 WG § <19 IhR .
12193 Rg 2 | Wil THURERT @1 96 & aad dael ST
F w9 ¥ gfafea g1 9 I goa 4 F1) fREe & Hovaey
SHMT & Iy Hed H Hsw@qul I TS &, SR IR v
6964 W ¥ SRR SIGR & w9 A i T | fREe wmd
TE & T4 IOIR BT TIE SR B AR Tl o R F fog
TG FRAT AaeAD e © |

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 5229
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 12193 lacs. The materials
have been pledged to MSTC has collateral security against
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the age of entire stock is old over 3 years and
quality has been certainly degraded to fetch the
desired amount to cover the present outstand-
ing resulting remote possibility of recovery of
dues. Previous year also we suggested for mak-
ing a provision of ¥ 6273 lacsagainst such loss
which was not adhered to by the Company and
same was considered by us as audit qualifica-
tion. This year too only ¥ 362 lacs has been
repaid by the party. Due to such recurring de-
faults in payment despite commitment in court,
the chances of recovery is doubtful. After con-
sidering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock amounting to ¥ 3922 lacs,in our
opinion provision should be made for ¥ 8271
lacs during the year.This has resulted in over-
statement of profit and understatement of provi-
sion for 2015-16 ¥ 8271 lacs.

R g e g Rl s 3. @ wRad
2014 I% WERRT @1 w¥e vd My &g %. 1870
ARG BT WM 8| $9 A8 TY0l Ll ol a¥ A
e qRET & Td AR ARl & deR qed d
Tequl fRTae & SR gHm@r IR T, 685 AN
qH SRR 8, ©. 40 g Yg ST S S ay
2015-16 &g a1 & AU WAl § HFT §RT e
&1 fpar 1 21 39 IR g™ & aRior 9y 2015-
16 g oY 31 i fbam 1 2 Ud %. 685 &g
TH B e o fhar T 2

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1870 lacs due
from M/S Siddhartha Tubes Ltd. for procuring
and supply of materials upto February 2014.
Thus the entire stock is old over two years and
due to substantial fall in market price of the pro-
cured item,outstanding amount are unsecured
to the tune of ¥ 685 lacs, net of security deposit
amounting ¥ 40 lacs which has not been pro-
vided by the Company in its books of accounts
for the year 2015-16. This non-provisioning has
resulted in overstatement of profit and under-
statement of provision for 2015-16 by ¥ 685
lacs.

= e smférar (vaman)
Other Regulatory Requirement(CARO)

the outstanding. Since there is a significant fall in the realiz-
able value of the security as a result of huge dip in commod-
ity prices, the differential amount has been amount of
% 6964 lacs has been shown as unsecured debtors in the
books. The shortfall is not permanent and there is already
an upward trend in market price. Therefore, no provisioning
is necessary for the shortfall.

el R B BH IR F A GR-ER P BRI Tl o9
2015-16 & SR 4 S=i ©. 464 TG YA b 2|

wfafsa amelt @ agearg 7o %, 1313 9§ Safe g .
1870 &g &1 df Al vATECril 31 e ST & B A
mfiferd = 721 & vd ATt Hed | rayd fRTae & &, aRommeae
HEaqel ST oTE 7, ©. 557 WG I fR IR SRR IR F
w9 § SR M 2| deke, JRd, 2016 # 3R IR % 557
g { A B & 428 RI §AT €| 1, 39 @ H A yraer
P AERIHAT e 2 |

The party has been paying to reduce the outstanding gradu-
ally. During the year 2015-16 also they have paid ¥ 464
lacs.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 1313
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 1870 lacs. Since the mate-
rials have been pledged to MSTC as collateral security and
the realizable price of the same has reduced significantly as
a result of unprecedented dip in commodity prices, the dif-
ferential amount of ¥ 557 lacs has been shown as unse-
cured debtors. However, the differential amount in August,
2016 has come down from ¥ 557 lacs to ¥ 428 lacs. Hence
no provisioning is necessary on this account.
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c. frferRad ATl BT BIe®HR HHIT & A1 | /e B g TR R FeiRR egied v ® 5 ofdn & el |
TR & esfed e 7 W § @ AT | 95T IE R UG & HRY TG BT TSl
BT A ST &l B |
®. 9ERl &1 a0 GEELER _
q. (z < o ) T Ih BN GTITT BT BT Ul H ¥
1. QIR DIABI H 2 FelcH 11.53
2. [ el SR, HWIS W 4 Teicd 14.32
3. AT, §WEs H 4 wicH 6.96
4.  RTES ¥ex, gWs H 2 welcd 61.66
5. g1, g8 § 1 Tl 482
The title deeds of immovable properties are held The company holds clear title over all the assets it hold in
in the name O_f the Company except for the fol- the books of accounts. Due to very old in nature the relevant
lowing cases : papers are not readily available.
SI Property Description ~ Balance Sheet The company is in the process to retrieve the same.
No Value (X in lacs)
1. 2 Flats at Dhakuria 11.53
Kolkata
2. 4 Flats at Finley Tower 14.32
Mumbai
3. 4 Flats at Malad 6.96
Mumbai
4. 2 Flats at Raheja Centre 61.66
Mumbai
5. 1 Flat at Bandra 4.82
Mumbai
VI FAR faR § vd SHaiRar qen &9 G 7 et S ATTel =1R% § Td ol W fewell & fewoh |, 5 # gafw

P AR HH 999 & THRI F GAI H fShlee
T2 & Ryara e afa=dlst 96 9 %. 138 ag &
F0T U4 Wes TS §6 9 $. 14362 org o fs
o R fewolt & fewoh @, 5 (v) vd 5 (@) #
SfeatRad & | ¥ & ure fopsay faiiar dvers
ITROR A DI H0T AT bl 8] & R AT & DS
fedaR oY frar g |

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks ex-
cept for the loan from Indian Overseas Bank
% 138 lacs and Standard Chartered Bank ¥ 14362
lacs as mentioned in Note No. 5(a) and 5(b) of
the Notes on Account. The Company did not have
any loans or borrowings from financial institu-
tions or government and has not issued any de-
bentures.

w9 ¥ o far T

Both the matters are subjudice and have been adequately

disclosed in Note No.5 of the Notes on Accounts.
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3 frame srafémar 91t 1 (srer=® 1)

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 1
(Annexure A)

AT TR BT TR axddS BT & A1 §
& Ryara g Rar # erafRd 2 wered, fhel v |
4 FolcH, AT H 4 Telcd, Jeoll Hex # 2 wied
T qigT, grg 4 1 wie |

Pt1.

The title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the company except for 2 flats
situated at Dhakuria,4 flats at Finley Tower,4 flats
at Malad,2 flats at Raheja Centre and 1 flat at
Bandra, Mumbai.

3= e smaféar i 3

B o UTH A8 WP, shiSc Jedid Ud et
YUTTell &1 o7 W1 whaet 7 sife &9 1 3tua smasan
ol Ty ferT IR TroTEd o T T o GwTfad aikom
21 JAfIBIR A H FFA aifEal & 0T g &
At # w7l T8l T |

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 3

The Company did not have an appropriate inter-
nal control system for customer acceptance,
credit evaluation and establishing credit limits
for sales, which could potentially result in the
Company recognizing revenue without establish-
ing reasonable certainty of ultimate collection. In
most of the cases, the Company is not able to
evaluate the credit worthiness of the parties.

Pl b U IS B R P! gRT AT
HEE AMRRT P UIEd & e § ged 8y
SUYH iR FRIFT Fomell €1 & | A13¥d e
gfeadn Ugidihed 1. gd Rifed ®RI <o faf. 8q
Hnferd Tl fevar T o |

Pt 3g(b).

HET G R R FoliaR esfed v & 39 okdl & @l §
IGT AT | 984 AP YR PRI b DR TG BIISIA qEo
w9 § Iy TE B

FHHA Ih BN GTITT BT Bl ufpaAr H ¥

he company holds clear title over all the assets it hold in the
books of accounts. Due to very old in nature the relevant
papers are not readily available.

The company is in the process to retrieve the same.

&b & o, hisc Jedidd vd Al 3 e A ot dvem
anfe & &3 # siaRe FEaw 3 Ygs v & forg Siiaer ude
AT SRl TR 21 wE wHI-EHT W TdG BT ¥ 1 2008 #
IRUAGT & YART F SR S SERT ST fFan w1, &b
R 04.11.2013 &1 vd Y 24.04.2015 & =7 i & A &
Edhl & II & AFes, ARG B R, SiRed FEr @1 iR
e W gt e 72 2 | F ot gRT fand i awt & SR @i 4w
UTesw =FAF el fhr T it @Wifad ATes |IHa SRUAT %
AGE T e fhdT AT & | $9b 3feltal S 7 fva o auf &g
Ifige IR Fee vd @R A ffed Siew 2W & 9 ¢fsT
FRIGR GR-IR FF oA BT o ol foram 2|

There is a Risk Management policy in place for strengthen-
ing internal control in the area of customer selection, credit
evaluation and establishing credit limits for sales etc. It is
also reviewed from time to time. After introduction of RMP in
2008, the same has been revised twice, once on 04.11.2013
and again on 24.04.2015 thereby inter alia improving upon
the norms of selection of customers, judging of creditworthi-
ness, fixation of exposure limit etc. More over, no new cus-
tomer has been selected by the Company during last three
years as the prospective customers did not fulfill the revised
RMP criteria. More over, Company has taken a conscious
decision to gradually reduce exposure in trading business
on account of adverse market prevailing for last few years
and also inherent risk in the business.

JAfed BT <H . A AfF® e Haedt § SR sifie
RIS & HROT 2! fordm ST AHhT | qenfy By why e
ffice & deelsad Rule Tidh HI Iuaedl $I ge ¥
Frafid o & € | w8 wa faweRT gan Arel © et e i
P 91E% B & BRUT HIND 3MMbold A8l fhar off Ab1 oy
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The Company did not have an appropriate inter-
nal control system for inventory with regard to
pledged of raw materials imported by the Com-
pany on behalf of the party. Volumetric assess-
ment was not conducted for Haldia Petrochemi-
cals Ltd and Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd.

TuTTell famerar & wu & 81 Bal1 S g Bl

sfegar UeIbfed & Mol § 31.03.2106 &1 21305209 #
1 Wi o7 i1 22.03.2016 Y 29547 533 H.eq & H-ASTHE
BT TH IR AT | Ih AR TIdh YUy gRT1 04 .04 2016
& AR i 39 Seeg TG WA Yokl & A1 W |

I MTher g AFGad TRIE H B! U8l IoTdT -7 o7 |

FUAT AT I8 W & < {5 wfifsra ai &1 /i sndhed
frafia emeR R forar 917 8T § vd RUIE o ulen wiAet o
STRaet o SIran § | 913 e ad 2015-16 & SR 81
Dl & forg WY fpar |

SIRIh & AR I8 Hel Ael el ¢ b uiifsrd wie &1
qI3 e & T 4 T fifore R yomeft 781

=l

Volumetric assessment could not be carried out at Rohit
Ferro Tech Ltd. due to labour agitation continuing at the
factory. However the custodian report of Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited is coming regularly confirming availability of stock. It
is only a stray case where volumetric assessment could not
be done for reasons beyond control which cannot be termed
as a system failure.

In case of Haldia Petrochemicals, there was a stock of
21305.209 MT as on 31.03.2106 which was a part of the
consignment of 29547.533 MT received on 22.03.2016.
The said balance stock was lifted by HPL within 04.04.2016
i.e. much earlier than the date scheduled for volumetric as-
sessment in consultation with the agency engaged for this
purpose.

It may please further be noted that Volumetric assessment
of pledged materials is being done on a regular basis and
the reports are submitted to the Audit Committee. Volumet-
ric assessment has also been done during 2015-16 for
other customers.

From above it may not be correct to infer that there is no
proper internal control system in regard to volumetric as-
sessment of pledged stock.

R Heet & fou qer Sl AR |
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FIARN

M v. F. 99, Fws (o)
A. K. Basu, Director (Finance)
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A F e . 15(7) R &\ IiNa feran siran € fa,
wuE-11 & ser fafd w el 151 & Sar-=g™ ®
W /e aErEg g e T @) Ak w11
U Ul Sl al HET o a9 & SRE 5. 5163
T s T € (F=e 5. 31236 o feies 31.03.2016
TF) | THF IROTHEET AR W 5. 31236 @M@ w9
AT TAT &1 TR F IFER, I0E G et faet
TFT T TN/ A TF Tag Uashiet W I
& T &1 39 YR SR 37 & %, 30768 WG FH
FAT AT § AR I oY F Yg T9T F PR O
% fofq ot 1 g o9 B, 77 g w9 @ @ g
(Fet 5. 468 @@ feis 31.03.2016 o) |

Reference is invited to Note No. 15 (a) of Notes
on Account, Gain / Loss on Foreign Exchange
Fluctuation on exports are not accounted for as
per AS-11. Had the Company complied with
AS-11, exchange gain would have been
increased by ¥5163 lacs for the year (cumulative
% 31236 lacs upto 31.03.2016). Consequently
Trade Receivables are understated by ¥ 31236
lacs. As per agreement, exchange gain / loss
relating to above is passed on to associate
suppliers upto the amount payable to them.
Thus Trade Payables are understated by
% 30768 lacs and net effect of the above gain
leads to understatement of profit of the Company
by X 77 lacs for the year (cumulative ¥ 468 lacs
upto 31.03.2016).

MR W& Td AR QAT &I e T/
T & o= qar 99 ART & HeT= & S & Wehal
T % uRomH gEEeT, fovg % gey § feoot €. 28 &
foTu ¥ W e ey femar T ®)

Reference is invited to Note no. 28 of Notes on
Account relating to pending confirmation / rec-
onciliation of balances of Trade Receivables
and Trade Payables and its consequential ad-
justment that may arise on reconciliation.

QR TR YU A A A9 B A T S Bl & (A ol
amEvit & frafa &g are il ) a1 R @t @) 7 Sar-geT
F BRI AT F AR | STH agelt ¥ fifTaaar & wrRon, S
AR 9 8, wurg (ow) & @ § 2 fRmrr T € ud 9
orar T @ 9= 1.13 & IR o T

The impact in the books arises only to the extent of mark up
(profit margin on the amount of exchange fluctuation on
export receivables against export of plain gold jewellery.
Due to uncertainty in their realization, which is also
subjudice, the impact (gain) has not been taken in books as
a consistent practice and the same is also in line with para
1.13 of the Accounting Policy.

H1g fewofl 781

No Comment.
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ST fp o R Rewelt @t fewoh | 15 (dY) A
g AT ¥, @UR W # ad 2008-09 H 46
it & I W@l seieR & fFafa & forg $. 59863
g Wi, e agel fafts <Rl ) S
faare & e 8 | WAidiers vd g9t famiw 26.10.2010
A AW B Ofig B TS T SR F e S,
45075 &RI BT &TaT IR BT TRIT & R SASTRAT
gRT S0 B 9oR & T du 9 Ao &
Raes 37 gRT STga harail & faeg Far
& foTg IR SHHT faTe FHarReT SR (TTRAreiemm=e)
P T AT SRR fhaT | 3T = f&=i 16.04 2014
P AU ey # Pl 5 39 AWl W g 9T @I
IRNEGR &5 SIHI 81 &1 HUl 7 39 AW Bl
A WR R o T8 AT -1 Hdred ~grareld &
THET 3 3N & Rgarn WA srdiel SRR fan|
A IR & qHet g W oifad &1

FHU 7 gue, MR qen gaq A fageh wanei &
ReeT® 46 BILN Al SRR fhar &1 F41 46 A
P71 Fofg THUEd R & ouer # R T oug
e 81 wg $d d8d o9 qP Pl A
g el g8 o

e FEIRET s ST Saert U8 URonT vaddies
() fa. 3 T, 12400 @RI P @1 ¥ HURT
(TRHRY ISl Jedida<i 1)1 a4 2014 H Hedid)
IR = 21 35 AR ) Fufiy &) [Qepl/siaror
¥ forg 48 S=a =mred d§ e Re afuer R
foram T/ B | A B ST B E R U9 §S1 7
$. 24040 @R & dufrat qen aRukmt (s
%. 12400 9@ &1 94 Td 3. 3979 &g B T
|ufy enfier ) Sfed @ ¥ 1 gAYESN 7 %, 900
ARG B XHH P AR F foIU Heng <RI Bl
IRy e o, Ig WY a9 2013-14 & SR T
B T2 | At/ gRT Ter FuRT & w9 # Sieq @
T %. 3079 g B AY IPH & IfARUT & fow
amde STRaet fvam S <eT 7

BToAifp, fUoel aut & SRM Py 7T %. 900 d”g &
Ige & iR fomma 9 & <R ereen ud wfey
FOT H ®Y H T. 22678 G B IBH P AU Th
Wge fhar ATl gH SUWRIh @UR W XGH Bl
agell & 9T dag 7, S 6 auf 4 o e T |
IHTT & T BUR fIaR ¥ %. 35385 o #I fdr
g UF IR Wy fFar S =Ryl 39 9w 9
o e fomar T qen g # ot B, 35385
g HH rEr T B

¥ 2008-09 # w@ul sier & fFrafd & @ # . 59863 o
BT ol U B | hel3i/=m st ¥ yhed age el 8 @t
RIY & SRIh gom™ & ded IR & foy Suaet & e
THEIRRICE ¥ ©. 2990 A ® Pl IR G TS | Adlerg/sel 7
g wE GARREE ¥ . 3979 o did @ e duRwi
g B ¥, rd fRer & forg v ¥ Hidieng =marer &
SRS WSHSRT § T2M §9& dgd Ugal 8 ©. 900 oIrg @l ¥
T g8 ¥ VP W HY ey &b e T, 16916 Trg o HiEa
DI AT oS A 96 (THEE) & 9 et B & g g ger
e fog ot & g v & ufey P dg grar T8 g
$Hd ITATl, HEH SE Ao U8 YHomT veaed w. fo, ve
wAIRReE, 7 e sharell & WIaE § g% B R B & oy
12400 oI”g 2| I FuRT &) faest @ S Fadt 8 vd 399w
IHA B HaRl F IR agelt & AW § FARRT frar s wedr
gl

SRh IR &R 3R S & SWRId, Fol 2 BT SFTeslad
IPH T. 23578 oG ¥ | THUASET J IHE SuHRA faare fawo
AT (TARITSISIRE) feoelt & Twer shamsit gRT shifia srermat 6t =gt
T SISt < fokg 36 AW gER fh )| g A W ®, 23578 W@
¥ et aftrer B AT 16.04.2014 F T ARA GRI ALHA TR
feramg frameor smam (TAEEeRET) A W = fafae wid o s e
ot T wRe # wefHa T | waowdE 3 @ ey & foeg gate
AT | Uk AU qTiael | TG Gai=a aTed 3 gl 9el i
gfefes & 9 @ Ry fean| IegeR o AW wATe AR A
afefes (Tadve A R sfeTeym R dewg) w1 wefHa fora w)
Afsfes & Wi § 8| TATESRT & SHioil | = W1 g
o 8 B SHIE B

IRRE & TEAoR, ©. 23578 oG & Ugal ¥ fby 7T yraem &
TIN50 &R W W § g P Y@L &) Aaedehdr e & |
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As stated in Note no.15(b) of Notes on Account,
Trade Receivables includes ¥ 59863 lacs for
export trade receivable of gold jewellery done
in the year 2008-09 involving 46 parties and
recovery of which are under litigation at various
levels. CBI and ED have been investigating the
matter since 26.10.2010. Claims have been
lodged with ECGC for ¥ 45075 lacs but the
claims have been repudiated by the ECGC. The
Company has initiated the cases against ECGC
for the dues against buyers insured by them with
National Consumer Disputes Redressal Com-
mission (NCDRC) who has ordered the Com-
pany vide order on 16.04.2014 that it has no
jurisdiction to judge the matter. The Company
has taken up the matter at Ministry level and
has filed statutory appeal to Hon’ble Supreme
Court against this order. The matter is still pend-
ing before the Court.

The company has filed 46 legal cases against
the foreign buyers in UAE, Singapore and
Kuwait. All the 46 judgments have been
awarded in favour of MSTC and all the same
are under execution. Till now no money has
been recovered against these awards.

One of the Associates, namely, M/s Ushma
Jewellery & Packaging Exports (P) Ltd has
mortgaged landed property worth ¥ 12400 lacs
(valuation in 2014 by Govt. Registered valuer).
A writ petition for sale/transfer of the said
mortgaged property has been filed at the
Mumbai High Court. CBI and ED investigating
the matter have seized assets and properties
worth ¥ 24040 lacs (including land valued
% 12400 lacs & liquid assets worth ¥ 3979 lacs).
MSTC have approached CBI court requesting
for permission to transfer of an amount of ¥ 900
lacs which had been received during the year
2013-14. Applications are being made for
transfer of remaining amount seized by CBI/ED
in the form of liquid assets worth ¥ 3079 lacs.

However, a provision has been made for an
amount of ¥ 22678 lacs as bad and doubtful
debts during the previous year in addition to
% 900 lacs provisions made during earlier years.
We are doubtful about the recovery of the above
Trade Receivables which are due for more than
7 years and in our opinion, a further provision
should be made for ¥ 35385 lacs. This has
resulted in overstatement of profit and also
understatement of provision by ¥ 35385 lacs.

There is total receivable of ¥ 59863 lacs on account of
export of gold jewellery in the year 2008-09. A total amount
of ¥ 2990 lacs has been retained from Associates including
EMD which is available for adjustment against above dues
in case of ultimate non-realization from buyers/insurance
company. CBI/ED inter alia recovered liquid assets worth
% 3979 lacs from the Associates for transfer of which MSTC
has approached CBI court and against this an amount of
% 900 lacs has already been received. Receivables worth
% 16916 lacs have already been sold to Standard Chartered
Bank (SCB) under a Receivable Purchase Agreement and
for which SCB do not have any valid claim on MSTC. Further,
M/s. Ushma Jewellery and Packaging Exports Pvt. Ltd., one
ofthe associates have mortgaged landed properties to MSTC
to cover the default against the foreign buyers, the value of
which is around ¥ 12400 lacs. The said properties can be
sold and proceeds there from can be adjusted against
aforesaid dues in case of non-realisation from buyers and
also from insurance claims.

After considering above, the net amount of dues remaining
uncovered is ¥ 23578 lacs. MSTC had initiated 36 cases
against ECGC for the dues against buyers insured by them
with National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission
(NCDRC), Delhi, the claim amount is much more than the
above amount of ¥ 23578 lacs. National Consumer Disputes
Redressal Commission (NCDRC) by an order dated
16.04.2014 referred the matter to Civil Court or in other
appropriate forum. MSTC filed an appeal to Hon'ble
Supreme Court against this order. The Hon'ble Supreme
Court directed both the parties to go for arbitration.
Accordingly the matter has been referred to Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration (Government Machinery for
arbitration for PSU's) Arbitration is in progress. MSTC is
hopeful to realise the full insurance claim from ECGC.

In view of above, no further provision is required to be made
in the books at this stage further to the provision of ¥ 23578
lacs already made.

93




ol TRiEH femafort/sracie
Pt R ARG 7 TE b TR
A7 4.
Auditors’ Comments/ observations Management’s Replies
Report QUALIFIED OPINION
Para No.
iv. 2R T R il o mgfd gg 31.03.2016 qIfEAt & gl & fFraer &g Frafa wrer o fear @ gl

¥ AR T BABRE Wit U e for. (efieadive)
H %. 14307 dRI BT ISR A & | S 7 @l
q Hfawd ufigpe fARmaei @en 95, 2014 4 gd
ggg g # f31 S8 TR WG T ARG )
J& ¥ o Iige Bfe STERY, uRkiger awn
IYANT M BT 3@ FJ §Y 78, 14 7 TeaaugH

FAPRE YU oG TP ATSRIR TbST Bl HoX 9 I & A1 & T
T 5 e & S 9 gRT Gfaa=or o SIrgelt | /- St
Jog IS §RT 26.11.2015 &1 faera o) ws$) & gRomreasy
FAGRE Y4 B A M HT FIPRe Kl Ud TR o, &
A1 e & faerm 8 M 1 qenfd, SHe d6 9 ey @ faewor
anft fcféra 21 ot grr @g arar fran a § 5 Ue aR PR %

Bl & TR oY 5000 oRg B q& W1 B AR
o 31 fofg fomm 2

A T S 2014 | A 2016 T@ @ f@afy &
SR 979 %. 95 oG T fham o7 | 3 S &
w0 ¥ 3 W Aivadive & g (PSRN % gRT
TS B & TR 9 vd BRI gRT GRS SR
1881 @ &IRT 138 & T8 U AWl S1IR fohar T
21 Ol F Ao § 3wl g A aTe § uweEdE
T BT & H STk gRT STewyu sk & foret ot wmefen
giom €t faelt wa afdr & aeel @ gwenn wiey 2
. 8132 o &1 ufifsid wid & IR
e U4 %. 10 o @l S IR & R & &
IR 89R foar & a§ 2015-16 & SR %. 6165
NG T UG8 BT 1T | 5% TRUMAREGRY oy
31ty gt fosam T vd 9§ 2015-16 3 Wae™ <.
6165 oG ®F ol fhar 1T Bl

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 14307 lacs due
from M/S Concast Steel & Power Ltd (CSPL) as
at 31.03.2016 for supply of materials. The Com-
pany decided to allow an adhoc limit of
% 5000 lacs for procuring LAM Coke, in May'14
ignoring the several adverse features in the ac-
count like huge quantity of unlifted stock pro-
cured prior to May 2014, adverse credit infor-
mation received from State Bank of India, ad-
verse capacity utilization Etc.

The Company had received only ¥ 95 lacs dur-
ing the period June 2014 to March 2016. Fur-
ther the cheques (PDC) of CSPL given as secu-
rity were also dishonored by bank and a suit
has been filed by the Company under Section
138 of NI Act1881.

Due to substantial decrease in price of the ma-
terial, MSTC's attempt of risk sale in recent past
didn't yield any fruitful results and the chances
of recovery of the amount is doubtful. After con-
sidering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock of ¥ 8132 lacs and security de-
posit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should
be made for ¥ 6165 lacs during the year 2015-
16.This has resulted in overstatement of profit
and understatement of provision for the year
2015-16 by ¥ 6165 lacs.

fRor & gR™ BF WR oe H FRfia w9 9 yaE ge e
ST | qenfy, ¥E <fed, 9gd eict fwal § ol HH e H wic
R & SIRY Y & oo foroft gfe & i ferar s <er €1
frra 2/3 ot & 9kigpe W IR & HRU U6 & wI B
FRIGR 7 37 G4t i 7 uet Y feapdl o1 a7 I8 T T’
IEA BS OP IHIE DI ST Wbl ¢ fF IR TRSR gRT TR 18
fafae -fiftat & aRvREwY $¥TT aoR 7 R B8, R aret
J oydT & el 8 Ao |

SRRE B e F Ig b1 AuRvgaar s fF agel o1 I

B
afifea amiEl &1 agear e 31.03.2016 & AR

. 14307 <@ & ®U @M & foeg . 9944 <@ 21 g
A el & favg 7 v SHMT & w9 § TATESRT
F U gfafed & v amBRi & g A s fikae & Fe
IGqP AT oI | gaTa 1 o7 7, O . 4363 d’g &
3R IR W # SRR HOT & wU H qwiar TAr ¥

There has been a regular follow up with the party to clear
the dues.

A CDR package had been sanctioned for Concast Group
with the condition that disbursement by banks would take
place only after merger. Consequent upon sanction of
merger by the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 26.11.2015,
seven Companies of the Concast group have already been
merged with Concast Steel & Power Ltd. However, disburse-
ment of fund from their banks is still awaited. It had been
committed by the party time and again that they would re-
sume payment on a regular basis in bulk once the disburse-
ment of funds start. However, pending this, they are making
payment in very small instalments from their own genera-
tion of funds through plant operation at a very low capacity.
The party is also facing difficulties like all others in the same
line of business due to adverse steel market prevailing since
last 2/3 years. It is very much expected that with the im-
provement in the steel market as a result of various policies
being adopted by the Govt. of India, there will be faster real-
ization from the party.

In view of above, it is premature to say that the chances of
recovery are remote.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 9944
lacs as on 31.08.2106 as against book debts of ¥ 14307
lacs. Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only
as a collateral security against the receivables and there is
a substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected deep fall in commodity prices, differen-
tial amount of ¥ 4363 lacs has been shown as unsecured
debtors in the books.
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Vi

¥ 2008-09 & IRM WWART @ AYRT g T
geweHe for. (<) | 31032016 # %. 6056
T B AR qGeang IR | wEg @ B
fewo @ fewoh 15(:) & S wx fear w7
RTId q1ed dare gfhar HFE §RT URAT $) TS 8
TG W R & | B = AT hADT Sed 1T
H 5T Rl Ja (engendl) & favg <. 3656
ARG B AR F AT FEA F @ HOTea sfie
P b T TP Al SRR a1 51 dexwe § v
ol wre %, 102 @ H @t @ o W
ST & IS & AR AR & 997 7S 8, 39
AT ifeH e dfed ®1 &R 3 9 2014-15
¥ IR U ¥ 5 T 3000 g & WEETE %
faR<s 39 af ©. 1000 @Rg &1 3T yraer= favam
21 39 %8 2015-16 & 3fd I& Pl fbd T Hrae=
%. 4000 WG 2| &H SWRRH AR WIS & agell §
WE T U 'R AR ¥ oM . 2056 @@ &
3rafdrse <R &7 WIaee SHRAT AR | 39S UROTRGwY
oy 31fde ud 9§ 2015-16 %‘g[ 2056 oIRg Yrgem=
% gof fHar T ¥

As stated in Note No 15 (c) of Notes on Account
relating to Trade Receivables amounting to
% 6056 lacsas at 31.03.2016 from SESA Inter-
national Ltd (SESA) for supply of materials dur-
ing the FY 2008-09 against which arbitration
proceedings have been initiated by the Com-
pany and are in progress . The Company has
also filed a suit in Hon'ble Calcutta High Court
against Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) for their
wrong debit in the account of the Company for
an amount of ¥ 3656 lacs. Stock of entire mate-
rial lying at port was sold at ¥ 102 lacs which are
kept with the receiver as per Court order pend-
ing the final judgment on this score. The Com-
pany has made a further provision of ¥ 1000l
acs this year in addition to the provision of
¥ 3000 lacs already made during the FY 2014-
15. Thus total provision made upto the end of
2015-16 is ¥ 4000 lacs. We are doubtful about
the recovery of the above trade receivables and
in our opinion further provision should be made
for the balance amount of ¥ 2056 lacs. This has
resulted overstatement of profit and understate-
ment of provision for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2056
lacs.

31.03.2016 1 SATIR W # A T, 3556 1@ ARET
& AT B FEE FAREE S TeEAS o, § &7 a9

THUASR 3 Bola<dl ST AR 8 sl & favg 5. 3656
RY AT IR AAA Gt FRAT 2| ZEHT FRO AR B Hed U
BT TT Ted ©Y H TSR & 96 @ # ffde fmar o
oaep forT Tl AHEian SRS o =araTeld §RT SR aTaT
T IR M T H R stmafceRdt 9 B S 99w TR R
IR B | BRI & e & SR emsendt ds ot wWierary
BICI IR B H 3B 8] 6 9 TRl & ey &
ST BITSII [h A | ATl B GrdTs e & IR Fa™ & o |
AT &1 SR © T hegelm Sad uet # Bh | qenfy, et
B avae & forg gt %, 4000 &g arened U wifawe orfie
& Y W @M H YeH far T 21 g |/Hs o W7 § e wR
TR M fH wraer & raeadar T8l g

MSTC has filed a suit in Calcutta High Court against 10B
claiming ¥ 3656 lacs representing the value of the materials
and legal expenses wrongly debited to MSTC bank account
for which LC negotiating documents were found to be dis-
crepant by the London Court but IOB had defaulted in re-
turning the same to the suppliers' bank on time. During in-
spection of documents I0B has failed to produce any ac-
ceptable document proving that they were holding back the
documents under MSTC's instruction. Hearing against the
suit is to commence shortly. MSTC is hopeful the judgement
will come in its favour. However, as a measure of abundant
precaution, a total amount of ¥ 4000 lacs have been pro-
vided in the accounts as bad and doubtful advance. It is felt
no further provision is necessary at this stage.

qfEAt & gt & Fraer gq Frafa wer o fFar @ |
FAPRE YU oG TP ATSRIR TbST Bl HoX 9 I & A1 & T3
g fo5 o gry wfaazor faerae & SwRr @ Set | weER ot
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94 A IR © e qea Jol @1 el & g
3T Aol HY Pl AT el o7l & | 39 PAdpRe
e geIel for. v, 1611 org S 2014 & #1d
2016 @I 3@y & SR gHar fear o o 4
%. 30 @@ a¥ 2015-16 & SR gaal fpar |
R IR B IS BT TG GRT ¥ O T B
26.05.2016 & It feicd &1 $-sifarr fHe s
BT MBI IR F B & 2

%. 2645 @G $ YR Rib & aYeiarg aiR
e Td 10 g & SAFG oM ) fER & &
S gAR AR & 9§ & RME . 901 =g &l
WIGET HRAT AR | a9 2015-16 F SR 901 A
TTGET A g TehaT 7T € Ud o 31fdres ot ferarm @
2l

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3556 lacs as at
31.03.2016 due from M/S Concast Bengal In-
dustries Ltd for supply of materials two years
back against which no repayment is forthcom-
ing in conformity with the terms of sanction . M/s
Concast Bengal Industries Ltd. had paid only
%1611 lacs during the period June 2014 to March
2016 out of which only ¥ 30 lacs has been paid
during 2015-16. Prospect of recovery of out-
standing dues is remote as bid for e-auction of
steel billets on 26.05.2016 has failed to attract
any buyer.

After considering the realizable market value of
the pledged stock of ¥ 2645 lacs and security
deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 901 lacs during the year.
This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2015-
16 by ¥ 901 lacs.

Jog IS §RT 26.11.2015 &1 faera o) we) & gRomreasy
FAGRE Y B A M HT FIPRe Kl Ud TR T, &
e g & faery 81 e ) 9y, S §e 9 [y a1 faarer
ot wfarfera €1 ol gR1 I8 aret fean T § 6 ue AR FifY @
foRu & gR™ M W o d FrRfa wu 9 gaE g% fean
ST | qenfY, ¥E <ifSd, 9gd eict fhwal § ol HH e H wic
aRarer & SRY g ol gfe & At & e &) @ €1 fvm
2/3 a6 & WidR TEITT AR o HRU Th & B9 & HRER F 37
Y T T el fFnal ol @A 9 @ §| I8 954 88 9@ SHIG
P ST Al & [P IRA TRBR §IRT AR <1 @ fafder ifei &
IRUTHERY $¥d doR § gER Brm, R ot 9 wiear |
agell 81 [ |

SRRE $I e F I§ He1 AuRYFaar s fF agel o1 S+
T B

afifsa wmfRl @1 agelarg e 31.032016 & AR %,
3556 WG & U1 @ & fovg ©. 3117 o=@ | 9f% wmfia
wrE % fokg A1 SWifE SMMG & w9 § Huade & U
sfafsrd & vd WMl & goa 7 smenRa frae & ged 39S
IR eI | T B 378 §, O T, 439 A & 3R
AR W # SRR Wor % w9 H g9iar T ¥

There has been a regular follow up with the party to clear
the due.

A CDR package had been sanctioned for Concast Group
with the condition that disbursement by banks would take
place only after merger. Consequent upon sanction of
merger by the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 26.11.2015,
seven Companies of the Concast group have already been
merged with Concast Steel & Power Ltd. However, disburse-
ment of fund from their banks is still awaited. It had been
committed by the party time and again that they would re-
sume payment on a regular basis in bulk once the disburse-
ment of funds start. However, pending this, they are making
payment in very small instalments from their own genera-
tion of funds through plant operation at a very low capacity.
The party is also facing difficulties like all others in the same
line of business due to adverse steel market prevailing since
last 2/3 years. It is very much expected that with the im-
provement in the steel market as a result of various policies
being adopted by the Govt. of India, there will be faster real-
ization from the party.

In view of above, it is premature to say that the chances of
recovery is remote and the amount needs to be provided in
the books.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 3117
lacs as on 31.03.2016 as against book debts of ¥ 3556 lacs.
Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only as a
collateral security against the receivables and there is a
substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected dip in commodity prices, differential
amount of ¥ 439 lacs has been shown as unsecured debt-
ors.
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a1 fo1. 9 5. 3328 g o A & | YoATyH
PIe A9 23500 H e T4 Hid 1 3634 4 e &
s-offge g gaa1 09.08.2015 &1 &R fear
T o7 o feeft ff wenfad e @ emafia =l
fpar| A9 SMg A S 2014 | #2016 &
R A3 T, 250 O gl fBAr o1l SEg &
|y A, 2014 9 P @UR T o vd iy @
gl T FTET Wty 21 %, 1603 @ & wfafsa
id & AT IOR o ® TR =T &
I &9R R & af & SRM %, 1725 o9 &
UIGEIT BT ey | iomseass a9 2015-16 &9
R, 1725 ATE T VTGETE 69 Td o9 AT oot ferarm am)

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3328lacsdue from
M/S Dankuni Steel Ltd for supply of materials.
Notice for e-auction of LAM Coke measuring
23500.00MT and Coke fines to the tune of
3634.00MT was published on 09.08.2015 which
didn't attract any prospective buyer. M/s. Dankuni
had paid only ¥ 250 lacsduring June 2014 to
March 2016. There was no business with
Dankuni since June 2014 and chances of re-
covery of the amount is doubtful. After consider-
ing the realizable market value of the pledged
stock of ¥ 1603 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 1725 lacs during the year.
This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2015-
16 by ¥ 1725 lacs.

FAPRE YU oG TP ATSRIR TbST Bl #oXI 9 I & A1 & T3
g T o gry wfaaor faerae & Swr @ Set | weER et
Jog IS §RT 26.11.2015 &1 faera o) we) & gRomreasy
FAGRE Y4 B A M HT FIPRe Wil Ud TR T, &
1 ugel B faera B mar ¥ ey, SF o | Y @ faRor
st wfarferd €1 ol gR1 I8 aret fban T § 6 ue AR MY @
faRu & gR™ M W o d FRfa wu 9 gaE g% fea
ST | qenfY, ¥E <ifS, 9gd eict fwal § ol HH e H wic
R & SIRY 3o ot gfe & FfY & e 1| 78 aga
B I SHIE DI S Tl § b WRA TRBR GRT ARI 31 &
fafaer Nferal & aRvIAREwY gwa IR # GuR 8, foras ot
J oedT & el 8 Ao |

SRRE B e § Ig b1 AuRYgaar s fF agel o1 S+
T

gfafsd wmBRl @1 agefaTg qea 31.03.2016 & IMYER .
3328 @M@ ¥ ®UT W & fawg v, 2004 @ ¥ | dfF AmiE
TIUESR & U A U $ d9d Suiie S & wd |
sfafsrd & vd wmiEl & go 7 smenRa fRae & ged I9s
IR g ¥ TAE FH o718 €, fOd v, 1324 dRg F 3R
AR W H SRR Wor % w9 H g9ar T ¥

There has been a regular follow up with the party to clear
the dues.

A CDR package had been sanctioned for Concast Group
with the condition that disbursement by banks would take
place only after merger. Consequent upon sanction of
merger by the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court on 26.11.2015,
seven Companies of the Concast group have already been
merged with Concast Steel & Power Ltd. However, disburse-
ment of fund from their banks is still awaited. It had been
committed by the party time and again that they would re-
sume payment on a regular basis in bulk once the disburse-
ment of funds start. However, pending this, they are making
payment in very small instalments from their own genera-
tion of funds through plant operation at a very low capacity.
The party is also facing difficulties like all others in the same
line of business due to adverse steel market prevailing since
last 2/3 years. It is very much expected that with the im-
provement in the steel market as a result of various policies
being adopted by the Govt. of India, there will be faster real-
ization from the party.

In view of above, it is premature to say that the chances of
recovery is remote and the amount needs to be provided in
the books.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 2004
lacs as on 31.03.2016 rates as against book debts of ¥ 3328
lacs. Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only
as collateral security against the receivables and there is a
substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected deep fall in commodity prices, differen-
tial amount of ¥ 1324 lacs has been shown as unsecured
debtors.
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viii.

IR 9T foraH #E 2013 % Ted AHEBET % ST &
g Tiee & Ug i TeR fo, ¥ %, 3959 1@ s
e 2| 9 A)E TRial T AR @ ey 3 aut
31 qRT & ot fifRad w9 & 999 & PoRT 9
S ol § JHAM g1 | Ut 7 dEe & a7aw
P AT H B gAT 21 T 600 A oA A
AT, 16 T FadT BT o, 9 91 & 390 og A,
2016 & g&T fFA| e vd 7, 16 & <RI
FohdT B S arelt % 150 o § F $B o gaan
=& fpa | smavad frsares Tt 04.04.2016
B <R fHar w7 & vd urdt @ gae S fea R
UEell GAaTS @ wEIfad AR 15.06.2016 ¥ g9
g ol qamarelt wwafRy 8 W € vl & awgent
o 3T W B 1 %, 1750 g & affsa w<fe &
TIAINT INIR G T %. 10 &g & S o
W IR H F IR 8AR AR F 9§ 2015-16
% SR %. 2199 &TRI BT UGH HRAT @fRY|
RUIRERY a¥ 2015-16 =g ©. 2199 &I $T HTa€™
%9 Ud o MfdE <ot T a7

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3959 lacs due
from M/S Crest Steel & Power Ltd for supply of
materials prior to May, 2013. Thus age of pro-
cured materials are old over 3 years which ob-
viously lost its quality with the passing of time.
Party has failed to honor the award of Arbitra-
tion. Out of a total sum of ¥ 600 lacs to be paid
upto March'16, they have paid only ¥ 390 lacs
upto May 2016. Out of ¥ 150 lacs to be paid
during April and May'16, nothing has been paid.
Necessary execution petition has been filed on
04.04.2016 and notice has been issued to the
Party. Tentative Date of first hearing is
15.06.2016. Thus, the Debtors has become
Stressed Assets and the chances of recovery of
the amount is remote. After considering the re-
alizable market value of the pledged stock of
% 1750 lacs,and security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in
our opinion provision should be made for¥ 2199
lacs during the year 2015-16. This has resulted
in overstatement of profit and understatement
of provision for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2199
lacs.

=R v e foger 14 aw awiE & w®ie @
ATYf & TRl ST @i o, @ T 3039 ATE ST
Ricd

THUEERT | Uet & faog dare # smear fdan o e aga
At gHR IR F el B F oy va Fue aeshar sweia
fpar T on S fage ddre & wwe SRR R eml e urdt
fUe o< & SIAR godl T81 B) I8! & vd 31.03.2016 TH
%. 372 9@ B BIST ART &1 G fhar ¥ 1 us fvares anfaen
T S % U R i T 21 31.03.2016 & SR 9 Jallg,
2016 T %. 63 @G B Fol R B YA B &A1 21 T8
Sl @ S © fF S3d IR A gER & A J =l BRI
a B RARY F o S|

ufafsra @il @1 31.3.2016 &1 ©. 3959 oIRg FI gHRIT &

TG T. 2344 TG o1 I o § 1 g aiat vigadRi
& g A W & faeg oruifie ST % w9 # ufifsa § vd
FERR & Hed A s fRMe & Feid 39S IRy oo
q gafe & ams ©, o9 . 1615 @@ & iRk AR @@ A
SRR T & Wy # ST T g

MSTC had invoked Arbitration against the party pursuant to
which a settlement agreement was signed to clear all the
outstanding dues which was filed before the learned Arbi-
trator. Since the party is not making payment as per settle-
ment order and has paid a meager amount of ¥ 372 lacs till
31.03.2016, an execution petition has been filed to put pres-
sure. After 31.03.2016 they have paid a total amount of ¥ 63
lacs till July, 2016. It is expected with the improvement in
the steel market they will be in a position to make up the
shortfall.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 2344
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 3959 lacs as on 31.3.2016.
Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC only as
collateral security against the receivables and there is a
substantial reduction in the realizable value of the same
due to unexpected deep fall in commodity prices, differen-
tial amount of ¥ 1615 lacs has been shown as unsecured
debtors.

uet A BT B g P Y geaydsd el o9 fH S 8 €1
&M T 994 © 5 Siiiee fxf 9 2014-15 9@ fafia amar
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gy AR B S e v 1279 9 2
59 9 SR & SAETEAR § ST T Rl
HABTHAR FO] & AR a9 & o s @
AR AT ® S o e 81 &1 ot R
A HF IHRT S agen g Al o Qw78 aw
BN T Td HH BT GRMSYWIIR & YRV F A
TP IR AT BT 37T: %, 1279 o & yfafs
FIH & qOR Jed T4 10 G &l ST ST W)
AR & & SW G & JHA BT AT
$. 1750 oG & w9 ¥ fhar 1 e e 96
T @Il H RMawId WaH fhar 9 ¥ S R
TIaeT % URUTAREG®Y oY Mf¥d g9t fhar T §
U9 %, 1750 IRg &1 UG &9 o fbar Tr 2|

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3039 lacs due
from M/S Global Coke Ltd for procuring and sup-
ply of materials to the party upto Decemeber'14.
The present value of realizable materials are
% 1279 lacs. In the meantime, GCL has been
referred to BIFR, and for disposing of material
belongs to a BIFR Company, the Company has
to take permission from BIFR which is not an
easy process. Therefore, the Company can't sell
the material to recover at least a part of its dues
and had to wait till the outcome of BIFR is known
to the Company. Hence, considering the realiz-
able market value of pledged stock of ¥ 1279
lacs and security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, the loss of
the Company is assessed as ¥ 1750 lacs for
which necessary provision is to be make in their
books of account. Non-provision of the same
has resulted in overstatement of profit and un-
derstatement of provision for ¥ 1750 lacs.

IAUR U § 99Eg ol W) fewlt & feweft &,
15() % @ T IER 31032016 ¥ %. 24083
o A9d vadied & Afer fied for. 9 sregeR,
2012 q uret ®1 AMRRIT B WG B vd AR
TG T W16 A a¥ g3 B ¥ | 39 TRE 99T B
TORT A U H HH 1S 8 Ud difod oI W
TR &1 fhaT ST Fehal & | Teb SHRRATET A THIAE AT
q$ 2016 9§ M {9 ¥ # yEfed aoR &% A
iRl @ FEiRa Td g $x1 8 d8aa gs o,
AElEl ¥ 3 IR IBW OF A | 2 IR gadivd &l
FOR Jou & WY 20 wRe (vHgw feie), 25
AR (T wie) T 30 uierd (efie s/ dieie)

TR T fHar § Ud 9 dadt ki 9§ 2014-15 § 5. 2397 o
W 5 €1 Wy facfia 9§ 2015-16 & yRe A O b &
AT BN W, SHPI UREe yWifdd & g, IEH Bid dolR
Afge Afiper 8 & DR YA B S BIO! G 51 S |
ST &l dISSUGSIR § WS @1, THUESAT & U 3199 bR
@I Il 7Y TAIC | M HRA F Al T HiE ey TE
71| &1 & foaror geR ax e w21 SiRfiee 9 fage dare &
FHeT W yeqq foRan T 3 fores @ weafa @ ot o & weaa
PN | 37d; I§ W e Teaarsit eRil {6 agell B AHET R T |

3y, wfafsra |t @1 agearg ge 31.03.2016 &1 %. 3039
TG B gHR & fawg . 2568 g | dfd amEbRl gHuaeRy
F U AE U & 999 IuiRe S & w9 | afifsa € vd
AT & ed 7 AR fRae & geld S96 aqaliang o
# yaf o orE ¥, AN %, 471 o & iR R @i
SRIRIETT T & wU A qwiAT AT 7

There has been a vigorous follow up with the party for clear-
ing the dues. It may be noted that GCL has paid on regular
basis till FY 2014-15 and they have paid ¥ 2397 lacs in FY
2014-15 alone. But from the beginning of FY 2015-16 there
has been very slow rate of payment due to very adverse
coke market on account of cheaper import of coke affecting
their operations. GCL had since been referred to BIFR. MSTC
had no other alternative but to invoke arbitration for recov-
ery of its outstanding dues. Statement of claim has been
filed. GCL has submitted before the Hon'ble Arbitrator that
they would like to submit a consentterms of settlement shortly.
Hence it is too early to say that the chances of recovery is
remote.

Further, the pledged materials have a realizable value of
% 2568 lacs as on 31.03.2016 against the outstanding of
33039 lacs. Since the materials have been pledged to MSTC
only as collateral security and the realizable value of the
same has reduced substantially as a result of general slump
in commodity prices, the differential amount of ¥ 471 lacs
has been shown as unsecured debtors.

T T T FHRIT T IR Hed & 79 3R B IO SATeher
F A1 fHar & S IOIR Jod aanE W) 4 1 oafy § fRR 3=,
R IRT WHR §RT <R% 7d IR-2R% At ga Al oferk &
3T & 1Y IR Hed & S[HE ST TR & GIR & AT
FW B AR T 39 g1 9 B, 3141 @ F 3R H Agagul FHH
ST | o Wl PUAT S § b dRe d1$ b IrgHed 9
3T & IR TATESRN &l A F & forg urdh &1 a7
iR BR P Y b 11 Ud 9 Heu | 9ok /7 AR &
BT P b WM R Tid A IS T

3, i & | fueH & wat # wnfie 89 9 qd gaeadied
J farea aatel § e R o e on R sfeafad &
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Xi.

AT & MR W T4 T IR U=Ie ARMER
(08.052016) sifrd Hea & oMaR W SR fam
TAT| $9 SHIRAMT & AR TATHC T, 24083
ARG P ARH qHrT b foeg ©. 20942 ARG a_get
A H gEH TR QAU Uit % Wi STt @t
TRIE T T, 3141 &g &1 e IR agell 8
Tl SRR H WAt TE1 g8 & | SUIRIh SHRRATAT
¥ AR TRl a% §9d T dis ferfve e @
3TT: §9 SHIRATT A W Imenfd gy v. 3131 o
%, %. 10 oG &1 gg I ST o, ot facfia
a9 2016-16 2g w1 & aifie @i § wae el
fear @ g1 sa% uRUREawd %, 3131 og @
T BH T o AfF ol BT T B |

As stated in Note No 15 (e) of Notes on Account
relating to Trade Receivables amounting to
% 24083 lacs as at 31.03.2016 from M/S SPS
Steel Rolling Mills Ltd for procuring and supply
of materials to the party upto October, 2012, al-
most three and half years ago. Thus with the
passage of time, quality has been deteriorated
and it can't fetch the desirable price. In an agree-
ment MSTC agreed to fix and release material
at the prevailing market rate in three tranches
from May 2016 onwards, out of 3 time lifting, 2
time lifting of material will be issued to the SPS
at market price plus 20 percent (MS Billet), 25
percent (Sponge Iron) and 30 percent (Iron Ore/
Pellets) thereon as loading and one time on the
basis of book value as per Award of Arbitration
(08.05.2016). As per this arrangement, MSTC
will be able to recover ¥ 20942 lacs as against
their outstanding advance of ¥ 24083 lacs. No
agreement was entered into by MSTC with the
party to recover the balance amount of
% 3141 lacs till date. No lifting has been made
so far in accordance with the said agreement.
Hence the anticipated loss out of this agree-
ment is ¥ 3131 lacs, net of existing Security De-
posit of Rs 10 lacs, which has not been pro-
vided in the annual accounts of the Company
for the FY 2015-16. This has resulted in over-
statement of profit and understatement of provi-
sion for ¥ 3131 lacs.

IRy R sragER, 2012 9@ |l
P T UG YT =g A9E TS WA fo.
¥ %. 1917 o g e 81 dwE giél @t

5 afs amfal &0 e o™ B rgwiy & IRt & O TR v
1 frrere 7 srafe a9 @1 avgell &1 JIRBR a7 2.

I B gfte H 39 TR A BIE TEUH R S BIS AT Hal
TE 2

Ty, $. 3131 &g & 3R WIRT Wi # SRR 91 F w9 A
gerfar ¥

Audit has calculated difference between outstanding and
market price with the assumption that market price will re-
main static at current level throughout the tenure. But with
the adoption of different tariff and non-tariff measures and
policies by the Govt. of India, market price is showing up-
ward trend with improvement of steel market. In that event,
the difference of ¥ 3141 lacs will reduce significantly. Audit
may please note that the arrangement has been made with
approval of the Board after due deliberation only to encour-
age the party to pay to MSTC and lift from the stock instead
of buying the material from the market at a lower price.

Further, before entering into the terms of settlement with
SPS, MSTC has obtained legal opinion from a reputed Ad-
vocate in which it is inter alia mentioned that ".....even if the
materials are allowed to lift at lesser cost, MSTC would re-

tain rights to recover the balance claims in execution....".

In view of above, there is no need for making any provision
at this stage.

However, the differential amount of ¥ 3131 lacs has been
shown as unsecured debtors in the books.

wfrfsa wmfiEt &1 a¥gel I e $. 873 9 § wafd ghrn %
1918 &= £ 1 3. 1045 &g & R I & I19a . 1424 &G Tg
Gl A Usel W Uragr fhar WA g1 o, 39 &R W AN b
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ST g8 foxiia R & oreel are aifew off fir
ff Fe1 U Y A iy wera &t srgaf & S
f6 qd w=asic @ Al Sorg TE TS off
RIMSUHRIR § A T FF A IH B agent df
Iefle Ry efid BT § | aelt & v R faER a
W G BT AT T, 483 TG WEH FHRAT A1,
AN %. 1424 g & wiau™ & iR i oret
& FUl IHT UE S, 10 G BT g ST S
reBIfed 8 Wk | 39 IR UEUE & Thorawd v
31 &S fpar T & v B, 483 ARI WaET $H
goi foar w7 Bl

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1917 lacs due
from M/S Marmagoa Steel Ltd for procuring and
supply of materials to the party upto October,
2012. The Company was well aware of the dwin-
dling financial condition of the party yet it al-
lowed financial exposure to the party even at a
time when the commodities of earlier consign-
ments were not lifted. Therefore the chance of
recovery of dues from BIFR referred Company
seem remote. Considering the aspect of recov-
ery the Company should have made a further
provision ¥ 483 lacs, in addition to existing pro-
vision of ¥ 1424 lacs, covering the entire dues of
the party, net of Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs.
This non-provisioning has resulted in overstate-
ment of profit and understatement of provision
for¥ 483 lacs.

OR g R . 2637 o’g g a9 [ifed
RIew for. 9 sIgR gfe & fog W 2016 @@
gl a1 il @ @ vd gy &g Wil §1
3P a1 gIg AR U4 gfeqar 9 €1 A4 16 &
SR BIS HID AMHel hae! & FAloR BRI
TET T ST AT & | SUYTh SHbeT0T Hied B STTARATT
d &9 ufifea i & ageliarg aoR e Hl
JHfead o= 7 smel § 1 & g AR B agelt
# G &1 69 TR B ST ST W IR &= &
SR R R # a9 2015-16 & <R %. 2568
RGBT WG BT aART S 9% 2015-16 & <@
@I | E A T ¥l IR UEE $ honawy oty
31fere & foam 727 © vd 99 2015-16 2g %. 2568
RGBT WGL B Gl [haT T B

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 2637 lacs due
from M/S Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd for procuring and
supply of materials to the party upto March 2016
for Jajpur unit. Both its Bishnupur and Haldia
units are closed. No volumetric assessment

UG8 &1 IMaeIdhal el %|

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 873 lacs
against the outstanding of ¥ 1918 lacs. Against the differen-
tial amount of ¥ 1045 lacs, provision has already been made
in books for ¥ 1424 lacs. Hence no further provision is con-
sidered necessary at this stage.

afifsa wmBRl &1 aeiTT qou ©. 2263 g ¥ Siafe garn
%. 2637 TG g U il Uiel H $9 W & Te &1 71| I§
we el © & o/ wen § Syuw o Wed & ruiafa |
e PR F I HH Fel T T

31.03.2016 ST EHET 1 Fed AT 1388 1@ ISR Wi | 9gr o
Td e S 6 hEa 5. 1249 @ Sgane § e | efeean wE
IR THE H HIE AWGH 951 gE T oA | T qWBET 2 a6 | FW
T ¥ U1 TE €| TR T SR AR 31.03.2016 F AR T4 & FR
374 TG SERIAT THET F T H TR Iqh fRET T F garian w@n
R| 7 e o =nfey 5 ardf A sy feren @ wa fefim = 2016-17
H 3TEd, 2016 T %. 1025 A T AHET B 35T T

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 2263
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 2637 lacs but the same has
been ignored by Audit. It is not clear how the Audit has
asked for provisioning in the absence of appropriate au-
dit evidence.
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could have been undertaken during March '16
owing to closure of the factory.In absence of
appropriate audit evidence we are unable to
ascertain the realizable market value of the
pledged stock. We are doubtful of the recovery
of the outstanding amount. After considering
security deposit of ¥ 69 lacs, in our opinion pro-
vision should be made for ¥ 2568 lacs during
the year 2015-16, which has not provided by
the company in its books of accounts for the
year 2015-16..This non-provisioning has re-
sulted in overstatement of profitand understate-
ment of provision for the year 2015-16 by
% 2568 lacs.

R g R w9 Sfoge arstd e oped for. @
$-3ifaer @ et wfrar TS & SN TR
AR IHTT W AN & T AERRT B E@RIE
FRA Td MR TG % 589 ARE gl WA T
crugel urgwd wd oxed for. @t el wrnh e
gRT $-3ffdee & IRy fAye™ &x fear = & ud
IRAT | PIE WCIH T8l ¥ 39 IRE Ut B gIHH
@ H 9P % 579 A@ € O % 10 9@ &
ST ST & SHESH & S qUIdaT SERfdd ¢
Td 99 2015-16 & SR G o7 ®IS wraen =2t
foar Tar B 1 39 IR UuE $ Berawy 9§ 2015-
16 89 ©. 579 TG qP UG B9 Ud A4 3D

o o T B

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 589 lacs due from
M/S Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd for procuring
and supply of materials after adjusting the sale
proceeds of e-auction but including interest on
outstanding balance. The Entire material of
Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd. has been disposed
off through e-auction by the Company and virtu-
ally there is no stock. Thus the present book
dues of the party amounting ¥ 579 lacs, after
adjustment of Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacsis
fully unsecured and no provision has been
made for the same during the year 2015-16.
This non-provisioning has resulted in overstate-
ment of profit and understatement of provision
for 2015-16 by ¥ 579 lacs.

R I o 799 <fuge Wied gd uras for. 4
HRad, 2014 q% AR @ @de ud Smgfi 79 .
10876 &g gebraT WA &1 31.03.2016 @1 fHd
T ARG AFHe & TR T Al @ A
# ot o R fog uidt @) S v & faw war
T o1, R 3/ d RT TRl fham T §1 %, 4255
TG b U Wi $ aGAard aoR e ud
. 10 TG & SHMT ST R AR & & SR

As as on 31.03.2016 materials valuing only ¥ 1388 lacs
were lying at Bishnupur Plant and balance materials valu-
ing ¥ 1249 lacs were lying at ports. No material was lying at
Haldia and Jajpur units. Although the materials are less
than 2 years old, the differential amount of the outstanding
over market value as on 31.03.2016 amounting to ¥ 374
lacs has been shown as unsecured debtors without making
any provision for the same. It may be noted that the party
has paid and lifted materials materials worth ¥ 1025 lacs in
FY 2016-17 till August, 2016.

el J TR, 2016 TF . 122 g & AR gl & YT T
fe & vd 99 Iog e & 9He Sas, 2017 9@ Rl
BT BT e IR B YA I Raet fpar & Ry smawr
f&.14.07.16 & T8 <IRerd gRT WaR 5 T 31 98 3+ie
B S ® % af 2016-17 & SR wrqul gamr Ry & S
79 59 wWR A R g R AR e)e 3 snawasdr 6l g
T . 579 ARG (ST ST BT I[G SHB1T) SRR I &
w9 H geIr T

Party has already paid an amount of ¥ 122 lacs till August,
2016 and submitted a payment schedule before Bombay
High Court to clear the entire outstanding by Jan 2017 which
has been accepted by the Court vide order dated 14.07.16
It is expected the entire dues will be cleared during 2016-17
and hence no provision is considered necessary at this
stage. However ¥ 579 lacs (outstanding net of security de-
posit) has been shown as unsecured debtors.

UTet S TAUIERAT §RT SRR TSRS o A1y & g gwg Sea
RRTT F WM S fiFie 29.03.2016 & TR 3T @Y
IRIg T e far g | v \if¥e sfderd & SR R T
. 416 A & Pl Bl H T, 267 TG B AR 9ISt | o
YA & TG ggel 8 FERifod $x f&ar w2 gl

afifsr ARl @1 axgelara qeu 5178 @ ® SEfe g
%. 10876 g 2| Wy AWl UG YA & drad 7 A
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AR AR & 9§ & <RM %. 6611 &G &1 W@
FRT ARY | 596 Worawy 9§ 2015-16 TG 9.
6611 g & UIGem= &H U4 ov 31fdd gof fdar
TR

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 10876 lacs due
from M/S Topworth Steels & Powers Ltd for pro-
curing and supply of materials upto February
2014. There was a shortage in quantum of pro-
cured materials as per volumetric assessment
carried out w.r.t position as at 31.03.2016 for
which the party was asked to make good the
same which has not been carried out as yet.
After considering the realizable market value of
the pledged stock of ¥ 4255 lacs, and security
deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 6611 lacs during the year.
This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for 2015-16 by
¥ 6611 lacs.

IOR 9 R a9 51 dreloi s fo. @
g 2013 T& wmiEl @ wde vd amyfi 3g .

o # SR 1 7 & ® T 31.03. 2016 o SR AR & a¥gelairg
Toa # oHY 3 el Trae & o @) sawaear T8 B

Jonfy, df Al g & ad A= GIitas ST e H
wfifs @t 7 & v Il qou # Fw fRTae & hovawd 31.03.2016
P AR ST b aGAATT Hod H Ayl HA1 AT & iR A
5703 &g IAYRIENT STER b HU H ST 74T 8 |

The party has been paying till date as per the revised order
dated 29.03.2016 of the Mumbai High Court against the
winding up petition filed by MSTC. Out of the total shortage
of ¥ 416 lacs detected during last volumetric assessment,
an amount of ¥ 267 lacs has already been adjusted against
the payments received from the party.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 5173
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 10876 lacs. But the materi-
als are being issued at the book price only against the pay-
ments received and hence there is no need to make any
provision for the shortfall in realizable value of the materials
as on 31.03.2016.

However, since the materials have been pledged only as
collateral security against the outstanding and there is a
significant reduction in realizable value of the security as on
31.03.2016 as a result of huge dip in commodity prices, the
differential amount of ¥ 5703 lacs has been shown as unse-
cured debtors.

afifsa areft @1 ageiTT fou $. 5229 g § Sifdd garn
$.12193 g & | 9l THUad R &l 96RN & g deef

12193 IRg FH1T MAA 21 59 e I TP
P! 39 3 94 ¥ 31 R § gd o Ffead v
JA AN IHET Bl reSIad B v difed Al |

S b g A ufafsd g1 9 el qe d§ el fREe &
HeRIGY ST & agei g oI d Asaqul FHI o ©, iR
R ¥, 6964 TG WK H SR SIER & w9 A ST W F

FH O § Boawd BRI B agell Bl FrE
Y 2| av ff g9 U g9 $ 9ed 3.
6273 WRa & VAU BRI qerrs & off o
S GRT AU <Tel BT 1T Td b BT oIl
AT P B H AR ERT AR fhar r 81 g1 au
ff . 362 o uiet gRT g e T ¥
AT ¥ 1eT R & draele YA § IR-GR T8l
B & PR aGell B TE A gl v, 3922
g B AT TP & aGeidnd ek 4o AR
FRA b S g9R AR § 94 & <RE 9. 8271
ARG BT WGE FRAT AMBY | 50 IRVIREHT ay
2015-16 3g %. 8271 @ ®¥ WEY Td @4
a1 &<t fpar T Bl

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 12193 lacs due
from M/S Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. for procuring
and supply of materials upto July 2013. Thus
the age of entire stock is old over 3 years and

fRTae N T8} & U IR &l B3H $UR dF 3R 2| 31d; fiRmEe
% fTT yrgem &RAT 3Mavge el B |

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 5229
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 12193 lacs. The materials
have been pledged to MSTC has collateral security against
the outstanding. Since there is a significant fall in the realiz-
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quality has been certainly degraded to fetch the
desired amount to cover the present outstand-
ing resulting remote possibility of recovery of
dues. Previous year also we suggested for mak-
ing a provision of ¥ 6273 lacsagainst such loss
which was not adhered to by the Company and
same was considered by us as audit qualifica-
tion. This year too only ¥ 362 lacs has been
repaid by the party. Due to such recurring de-
faults in payment despite commitment in court,
the chances of recovery is doubtful. After con-
sidering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock amounting to ¥ 3922 lacs,in our
opinion provision should be made for ¥ 8271
lacs during the year.This has resulted in over-
statement of profit and understatement of provi-
sion for 2015-16 ¥ 8271 lacs.

R g e awe frgred s 3. @ wRed)
2014 J% MR @1 we vd Mgy &g %. 1870
ARG AT WM 8| 39 A8 TY0l Ll ol a9 A
Afer QRN & Ud Tl T AEA P aoR Hed |
Teqf fRTae & SR gemn I $. 685 @R
qH SRR B, ©. 40 g Yg ST S S ay
2015-16 &g a1 & AU WAl § HFT gRT e
=& o Ta1 €1 39 IR UG & IR0 AT ST
Tol foam T § U9 %, 685 G dF B WG GO
fopar T 2|

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1870 lacs due
from M/S Siddhartha Tubes Ltd. for procuring
and supply of materials upto February 2014.
Thus the entire stock is old over two years and
due to substantial fall in market price of the pro-
cured item,outstanding amount are unsecured
to the tune of ¥ 685 lacs, net of security deposit
amounting ¥ 40 lacs which has not been pro-
vided by the Company in its books of accounts
for the year 2015-16. This non-provisioning has
resulted in overstatement of profit and under-
statement of provision for 2015-16 by ¥ 685
lacs.

able value of the security as a result of huge dip in commod-
ity prices, the differential amount has been amount of
% 6964 lacs has been shown as unsecured debtors in the
books. The shortfall is not permanent and there is already
an upward trend in market price. Therefore, no provisioning
is necessary for the shortfall.

el R B BH AR F A GR-ER P w) @ T o9
2015-16 & SR 4 S=i ©. 464 TG YA b 2|

aiifsa Al @ ageiarg Ao 1313 o ® S/afds aamn %,
1870 &g &1 df Al vAvECrll 31 e ST & B A
wfcrfsra frar o & v Al ea 7 erpayd frrae & aRomeRy
HEaqel wHY oS B, . 557 WG F i IR SRR ITIR &
w9 # A T F | 97 R, 2016 H 3R IR H 557 o |
428 TG T@ PH gAT ¢ o, 39 WKl H B wEe @t
3faegHT el & |

The party has been paying to reduce the outstanding gradu-
ally. During the year 2015-16 also they have paid ¥ 464
lacs.

The pledged materials have a realizable value of ¥ 1313
lacs against the outstanding of ¥ 1870 lacs. Since the mate-
rials have been pledged to MSTC as collateral security and
the realizable price of the same has reduced significantly as
a result of unprecedented dip in commodity prices, the dif-
ferential amount of ¥ 557 lacs has been shown as unse-
cured debtors. However, the differential amount in August,
2016 has come down from ¥ 557 lacs to ¥ 428 lacs. Hence
no provisioning is necessary on this account.
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Pt1.

Pt 2g(a).

Pt 2g(a)

Pt 2g(b).

3 frames srafémar 91t 1 (srer® 1)

et TR BT TR axddS BT & A1 §
2 far ergRan & s@afRd 2 wered, e Sfar #
4 FolcH, AT H 4 Telcd, 8ol Hex # 2 wied
Td gigT, grIs § 1 Tl |

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 1
(Annexure A)

The title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the company except for 2 flats
situated at Dhakuria,4 flats at Finley Tower,4 flats

at Malad,2 flats at Raheja Centre and 1 flat at
Bandra, Mumbai.

3= s smférar idt 2

B b U ATED WP, hiSc Fedih Ud faemt
& o1 S HFl H Fefaa gRom @t sifom drE
D1 3o ATl B i fRY TR IoRG B
AT ST ST b | JifheR ATl § Br=1 qrféa
F FHW A B Jedidm § qHed TE

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 2

The Company did not have an appropriate inter-
nal control system for customer acceptance,
credit evaluation and establishing credit limits
for sales, which could potentially result in the
Company recognizing revenue without establish-
ing reasonable certainty of ultimate collection. In
most of the cases, the Company is not able to
evaluate the credit worthiness of the parties.

Pl b U ST Bl AR P gRT AT
HEE AMRRET P UiIEd & e § ged 8y
SYYH iR FRIF yomell €1 & | A13¥d e
gfeadn Ugibihed 1. gd Rifed ®RI <o fd1. 8g
Hnferd Tl febar T o |

ST G R R FoliaR esfed vad) & 39 odl & @il §
G AT | 984 AP YR PRI b DR TG BEISIA Feo
w9 § IuE TE B

T I BN G BT Bl ufpaAr H T

he company holds clear title over all the assets it hold in the
books of accounts. Due to very old in nature the relevant
papers are not readily available.

The company is in the process to retrieve the same.

Tedb & o, hiec Jedidd vd Al 2 e A @t drem
anfe & &3 # siaRe FEaw 3 Ygs v & forg Siaer uder
AT Rl TR 21 wE wHI-EET W A BT ¥ 1 2008 #
IRUAGT & YART F SR SU SERT ST fFan w1, v
R 04.11.2013 &1 vd Y 24.04.2015 & =7 <l & A &
qEdl & TI & AFes, ARG B R, SiRed FEr @1 iR
anfe W aa e o 1 ot A it HRel gIRT o <A
F IR TR WEd S AN SIRTHAY AES B GRT &R 81
F w0 ¥ It TE A Tl sEe s s A R e
Tuf 2g uIge aeR yEe vd @R | ffka SR & 9n
fET PRIGR # &R-4R 9 F F1 G o forar 21

There is a Risk Management policy in place for strengthen-
ing internal control in the area of customer selection, credit
evaluation and establishing credit limits for sales etc. It is
also reviewed from time to time. After introduction of RMP in
2008, the same has been revised twice, once on 04.11.2013
and again on 24.04.2015 thereby inter alia improving upon
the norms of selection of customers, judging of creditworthi-
ness, fixation of exposure limit etc. More over, no new cus-
tomer has been selected by the Company during last three
years as the prospective customers did not fulfill the revised
RMP criteria. More over, Company has taken a conscious
decision to gradually reduce exposure in trading business
on account of adverse market prevailing for last few years
and also inherent risk in the business.

Afed B <& . § 7S e haed d SN #fh®
ST=Ie & PR T8I a1 1 |1l JAMY BRI w9 FE
fafiics & wecifsad RUE wie o Suaed & gfe Frafia
31 X2 € | Ig A fIwRT g3 HIHA ® TRl WIS et fRafa
FRI=0T & ATER B & HRY T8I fBAr S Heh f - goredt
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The Company did not have an appropriate inter-
nal control system for inventory with regard to
pledged of raw materials imported by the Com-
pany on behalf of the party. Volumetric assess-
ment was not conducted for Haldia Petrochemi-
cals Ltd and Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd.

fawerdr & wu # el BET ST ARy |

sfegar UeThffieer & Amel & 31.03.2106 & 21305.209 &
9 Wb A1 1 22.03.2016 $I HARR 29547 533 #Aed &
HATGTHEC BT U 9T 1| I SARTE wid Tadivel R
04.04.2016 & IR 3fITd 59 Sed 8 MAA Toidl & A1
R § ARG Mdhed B IYd aRIg | BIh] g8
IoTAT T AT |

FUAT AT I W & < % wfifsra ai &1 /i sndherd
Frafid smaR W= fovar <11 @1 © ud RUIc oan e fofdt a1
STRaet o SIran § | A1 e af 2015-16 & SR 81
Dl & forg WY fpar |

SWRID & ITAR I8 Pel Ael Tel ¢ b ufsa e a1 qhe

AHeT & Fe A g sfifRe i gomel T8 2

Volumetric assessment could not be carried out at Rohit
Ferro Tech Ltd. due to labour agitation continuing at the
factory. However the custodian report of Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited is coming regularly confirming availability of stock. It
is only a stray case where volumetric assessment could not
be done for reasons beyond control which cannot be termed
as a system failure.

In case of Haldia Petrochemicals, there was a stock of
21305.209 MT as on 31.03.2106 which was a part of the
consignment of 29547.533 MT received on 22.03.2016.
The said balance stock was lifted by HPL within 04.04.2016
i.e. much earlier than the date scheduled for volumetric as-
sessment in consultation with the agency engaged for this
purpose.

It may please further be noted that Volumetric assessment
of pledged materials is being done on a regular basis and
the reports are submitted to the Audit Committee. Volumet-
ric assessment has also been done during 2015-16 for
other customers.

From above it may not be correct to infer that there is no
proper internal control system in regard to volumetric as-
sessment of pledged stock.

9T Hedl & folu qar et 3R 9
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FIARN

M v. &. 99, Fows (o)
A. K. Basu, Director (Finance)
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T gl TI&7epl T Tfcrde

e ferfies & wew & i,

et it fravur &1 ufdew

ARA $ Feei@T RIS Td ol WRIad GRT 3aclidd & MMUR W,
i 03/08/2016 &1 § Wit RUI # crRuRMthada 3Igfeal at
I IR gU AT i usiern Ruid s féparm /i &1

& TuEddt for. (‘e dot’) o Ssuale i famor @ sidseror
fbarr & o 31 AT, 2016 T FHTH Y faxT @ T Jeri-ua, oo —
&I & fdaR0T, g HaTg SR wgeayul eian =fifot g faorn @t
SRt ot anfier g1

s T faiia faarur & fore weer @1 qriiiea

BT B D Heet 39 WeeUa il fAeRT & IR 3=+ & Fee
7 duier arftrfae, 2013 (‘sftfad’) &t aRT 134(5) § 7 Mg
foval & fou RreR € S 9Rd § ATURueaT g okar Rigii
Afed proHT (oikaT) M, 2014 & 79 7 & T ufsd arfdifrm
H YRT 133 F Sieria I ket oFe & dey § foxfla RRufy, i
BRI Td Hehe YdTE Y el Ud TE g T 21 39 RieiRa
d enfier g1 PFaer P gRARIEl P FGRem Td URaTUS! U I
SAIfATS T AhAT Td Tl SHIHT,; SUGh oial el T - T
AT T, Fofa ST Td SFAM oI S adh | iR A &
g yafg ™t o P & feome, fharaaa & wavamE, i
g Reprs! 1 AT T qRT A I G A & forq FHmaemedt
w9 W gREfed & R 9, Fevad foxfia fesel @f IR = |
FEE W TR BT, S el GF Ah-gU B a1 © W@ N 79
ahed] 3 e 81, 918 g et A & AT UrarEs A

ol Wit H Reer)

FIRT T TCSTA iR faR0T WR 370 Sfheul & AR R
H FT B

9 SIRIFRM &b T, @kaT Ud 3icheru Al duT I el B oY
SRR B uRT 143(11) & Sichia o8 99 awl ue fam
TqT 3R & R & wau wd S fifgd frml & sl
3icheror R1E & anfiier = & g amifdra @t anfrer fopam R

BH ST SicheruT ST &t Rt 143(10) & sicnia FfSE sidseror
AT & AR 1ol T g1 S Al § 39 d1d Bl STovd ¢ P
7 e Soxal @ Wl BT A, T 3 [y H IR A
ITH B 9 [ faciar faxer o g8 awhedt | 4 2

3icherr wifsha gy & oty faro & j1fdr & SR F sicheror \ned vl
TehCIRUT UTH AT SMfier fpam S g1 forita famor g+t 78 wfehamd
oRgT w¥erep! b ol wR PR war g, o forfla femel @ 519
Tehedl & SIRGT T e off fiieT &1 IR a8 eRaTeEl & a1 foR
Tercht |1 I ARGHT BT 3o IR B kg1 Tiedh Hol o Leual
o feR0T TaR A ¥ 9 3TaRe g FEsr W AR axdr
g, S faxfl faeRol @1 o GRT JAR @RAT TAT AH-ART I
AT g1 BT &, NG S0P boT & AARD 0 B gt
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT

To the Members of MSTC LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

On the basis of the observations made by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India, the revised audit report has been
prepared in lieu of the earlier report dated 03/08/2016 to
comply with the typographical errors.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of MSTC LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are standalone free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order
under Section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
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the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i Reference is invited to Note No. 15 (a) of Notes on
Account, Gain / Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
on exports are not accounted for as per AS-11. Had the
Company complied with AS-11, exchange gain would
have been increased by ¥ 5163 lacs for the year
(cumulative ¥ 31236 lacs upto 31.03.2016).
Consequently Trade Receivables are understated by
% 31236 lacs. As per agreement, exchange gain / loss
relating to above is passed on to associate suppliers
upto the amount payable to them. Thus Trade Payables
are understated by ¥ 30768 lacs and net effect of the
above gain leads to understatement of profit of the
Company by ¥ 77 lacs for the year (cumulative ¥ 468
lacs upto 31.03.2016).

ii.  Reference is invited to Note no. 28 of Notes on Account
relating to pending confirmation / reconciliation of
balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payables
and its consequential adjustment that may arise on
reconciliation.

iii. As stated in Note no. 15(b) of Notes on Account, Trade
Receivables includes ¥ 59863 lacs for export trade
receivable of gold jewellery done in the year 2008-09
involving 46 parties and recovery of which are under
litigation at various levels. CBIl and ED have been
investigating the matter since 26.10.2010. Claims have
been lodged with ECGC for ¥ 45075 lacs but the claims
have been repudiated by the ECGC. The Company has
initiated the cases against ECGC for the dues against
buyers insured by them with National Consumer
Disputes Redressal Commission (NCDRC) who has
ordered the Company vide order on 16.04.2014 that it
has no jurisdiction to judge the matter. The Company
has taken up the matter at Ministry level and has filed
statutory appeal to Hon’ble Supreme Court against this
order. The matter is still pending before the Court.

The Company has filed 46 legal cases against the
foreign buyers in UAE, Singapore and Kuwait. All the
46 judgements have been awarded in favour of MSTC
and all the same are under execution. Till now no money
has been recovered against these awards.

One of the associates, namely, M/s Ushma Jewellery &
Packaging Exports (P) Ltd. has mortgaged landed
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property worth ¥ 12400 lacs (valuation done in 2014 by
Govt. Registered valuer). A writ petition for sale/transfer
of the said mortgaged property has been filed at the
Mumbai High Court. CBl and ED investigating the matter
have seized assets and properties worth ¥ 24040 lacs
(including land valued ¥ 12400 lacs and liquid assets
worth ¥ 3979 lacs). MSTC have approached CBI court
requesting for permission to transfer of an amount of
% 900 lacs which had been received during the year
2013-14. Applications are being made for transfer of
remaining amount seized by CBI/ED in the form of liquid
assets worth ¥ 3079 lacs.

However, a provision has been made for an amount of
% 22678 lacs as bad and doubtful debts during the
previous year in addition to ¥ 900 lacs provision made
during the earlier years. We are doubtful about the
recovery of the above Trade Receivable which are due
for more than 7 years and in our opinion, a further
provision should be made for ¥ 35385 lacs. This has
resulted in overstatement of profit and also
understatement of provision by ¥ 35385 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 14307lacs due from
M/S Concast Steel & Power Ltd (CSPL) as at 31.03.2016
for supply of materials. The Company decided to allow
an adhoc limit of ¥ 5000lacs for procuring LAM Coke, in
May'14 ignoring the several adverse features in the
account like huge quantity of unlifted stock procured
prior to May 2014, adverse credit information received
from State Bank of India, adverse capacity utilization
efc.

The Company had received only ¥ 95 lacs during the
period June 2014 to March 2016. Further the cheques
(PDC) of CSPL given as security were also dishonoured
by bank and a suit has been filed by the Company under
Section 138 of NI Act, 1881.

Due to substantial decrease in price of the material,
MSTC's attempt of risk sale in recent past didn't yield
any fruitful results and the chances of recovery of the
amount is doubtful. After considering the realizable
market value of the pledged stock of ¥ 8132 lacs and
security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 6165 lacs during the year
2015-16. This has resulted in overstatement of profit
and understatement of provision for the year 2015-16
by ¥ 6165 lacs.

As stated in Note No 15 (c) of Notes on Account relating
to Trade Receivables amounting to ¥ 6056 lacs as at
31.03.2016 from SESA International Ltd (SESA) for
supply of materials during the FY 2008-09 against which
arbitration proceedings has been initiated by the
Company and are in progress. The Company has also
filed a suit in Hon'ble Calcutta High Court against Indian
Overseas Bank (IOB) for their wrong debit in the account
of the Company for an amount of ¥ 3656 lacs. Stock of
entire material lying at port was sold at ¥ 102 lacs which
are kept with the receiver as per Court order pending
the final judgment on this score. The Company has
made a further provision of ¥ 1000 lacs this year in
addition to the provision of ¥ 3000 lacs already made
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during the FY 2014-15. Thus total provision made upto
the end of 2015-16 is ¥ 4000 lacs. We are doubtful about
the recovery of the above trade receivables and in our
opinion further provision should be made for the balance
amount of ¥ 2056 lacs. This has resulted overstatement
of profit and understatement of provision for the year
2015-16 by ¥ 2056 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3556 lacs as at
31.03.2016 due from M/S Concast Bengal Industries
Ltd for supply of materials two years back against which
no repayment is forthcoming in conformity with the terms
of sanction. M/s Concast Bengal Industries Ltd. had paid
only ¥ 1611 lacs during the period from June 2014 to
March 2016 out of which only ¥ 30 lacs has been paid
during 2015-16. Prospect of recovery of outstanding
dues is remote as bid for e-auction of steel billets on
26.05.2016 has failed to attract any buyer.

After considering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock of ¥ 2645 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should be made for
¥ 901 lacs during the year. This has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 901 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3328 lacs due from
M/S Dankuni Steel Ltd for supply of materials. Notice
for e-auction of LAM Coke measuring 23500.00 MT and
Coke fines to the tune of 3634.00 MT was published on
09.08.2015 which didn't attract any prospective buyer.
M/S Dankuni had paid only ¥ 250 lacs during June 2014
and the chances of recovery of the amount is doubtful.
After considering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock of ¥ 1603 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 1725 lacs during the year. This
has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2015-16 by
% 1725 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3959 lacs due from
M/S Crest Steel & Power Ltd for supply of materials
prior to May, 2013. Thus age of procured materials are
old over 3 years which obviously lost its quality with the
passing of time. Party has failed to honour the award of
Arbitration. Out of a total sum of ¥ 600 lacs to be paid
upto March'16, they have paid only ¥ 390 lacs upto May
2016. Out of ¥ 150 lacs to be paid during April and
May'16, nothing has been paid. Necessary execution
petition has been filed on 04.04.2016 and notice has
been issued to the Party. Tentative Date of first hearing
is 15.06.2016. Thus, the Debtor has become Stressed
Assets and the chances of recovery of the amount is
remote. After considering the realizable market value of
the pledged stock of ¥ 1750 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should be made for
% 2199 lacs during the year 2015-16. This has resulted
in overstatement of profit and understatement of
provision for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2199 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3039 lacs due from
M/S Global Coke Ltd for procuring and supply of
materials to the party upto Decemeber'14. The present
value of realizable materials are ¥ 1279 lacs. In the
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meantime, GCL has been referred to BIFR, and for
disposing of material belongs to a BIFR Company, the
Company has to take permission from BIFR which is
not an easy process. Therefore, the Company can't sell
the material to recover at least a part of its dues and had
to wait till the outcome of BIFR is known to the Company.
Hence, considering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock of ¥ 1279 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, the loss of the Company is assessed as
% 1750 lacs for which necessary provision is to be made
in their books of account. Non-provision of the same
has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for ¥ 1750 lacs.

As stated in Note No 15 (e) of Notes on Account relating
to Trade Receivables amounting to ¥ 24083 lacs as at
31.03.2016 from M/S SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd for
procuring and supply of materials to the party upto
October,2012, almost three and half years ago. Thus
with the passage of time, quality has been deteriorated
and it can't fetch the desirable price. In an agreement
MSTC agreed to fix and release material at the prevailing
market rate in three tranches from May 2016 onwards,
out of 3 time lifting, 2 time lifting of material will be issued
to the SPS at market price plus 20 percent (MS Billet),
25 percent (Sponge Iron) and 30 percent (Iron Ore/
Pellets) thereon as loading and one time on the basis of
book value as per Award of Arbitration (08.05.2016). As
per this arrangement, MSTC will be able to recover
X 20942 lacs as against their outstanding advance of
X 24083 lacs. No agreement was entered into by MSTC
with the party to recover the balance amount of
X 3141 lacs till date. No lifting has been made so far in
accordance with the said agreement. Hence the
anticipated loss out of this agreement is ¥ 3131 lacs,
net of existing Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, which has
not been provided in the annual accounts of the
Company for the FY 2015-16. This has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
forX 3131 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1917 lacs due from
M/S Marmagoa Steel Ltd. for procuring and supply of
materials to the party upto October,2012. The Company
was well aware of the dwindling financial condition of
the party yet it allowed financial exposure to the party
even at a time when the commodities of earlier
consignments were not lifted. Therefore the chance of
recovery of dues from BIFR referred Company seem
remote. Considering the aspect of recovery the
Company should have made a further provision
X 4883 lacs, in addition to existing provision of ¥ 1424
lacs, covering the entire dues of the party, net of Security
Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs. This non-provisioning has resulted
in overstatement of profit and understatement of
provision for ¥ 483 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 2637 lacs due from
M/S Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd. for procuring and supply of
materials to the party upto March 2016 for Jajpur unit.
Both its Bishnupur and Haldia units are closed. No
volumetric assessment could have been undertaken
during March '16 owing to closure of the factory. In
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F FR, aA! H qHEAT Gigy 2| FRet @ w@iE & ageana
AR o4 ©.3922 1@ &l T R foeR o & =g, earl T
a9 F IR %.8271 @@ & W@ e s arfen) @
FeEa®q 2015-16 & 1T ©.8271 A1 o1 ow | rferen 3R wraem
# 2

R g e A g oge fa. @ wRad), 2014 9%
|mBEl o AfiweT Td ey 7 . 1870 o i 51 39
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IR {ed § gedctad fikiee & &R, fRel @ €@ &t
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Ferga®q a9 2015-16 & fo1U ©.685 @@ w1 oo § sfer 3R
g # e R
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Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

absence of appropriate audit evidence, we are unable
to ascertain the raalizable market value of the pledged
stock. We are doubtful about the recovery of the
outstanding amount. After considering the security
deposit of ¥ 69 lacs in our opinion provision should be
made for ¥ 2568 lacs which has not been provided by
the Company in its books of accounts for the year 2015-
16. This non-provisioning has resulted in overstatement
of profit and understatement of provision for the year
2015-16 by ¥ 2568 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 589 lacs due from
M/S Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd. for procuring and
supply of materials after adjusting the sale proceeds of
e-auction but including interest on outstanding balance.
The Entire material of Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd. has
been disposed off through e-auction by the Company
and virtually there is no stock. Thus the present book
dues of the party amounting ¥ 579 lacs, after adjustment
of Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs is fully unsecured and
no provision has been made for the same during the
year 2015-16. This non-provisioning has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for 2015-16 by ¥ 579 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 10876 lacs due from
M/S Topworth Steels & Powers Ltd. for procuring and
supply of materials upto February 2014. There was a
shortage in quantum of procured materials as per
volumetric assessment carried out w.r.t position as at
31.03.2016 for which the party was asked to make good
the same which has not been carried out as yet. After
considering the realizable market value of the pledged
stock amounting to ¥ 4255 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should be made of
¥ 6611 lacs during the year. This has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for 2015-16 by ¥ 6611 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 12193 lacs due from
M/S Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. for procuring and supply of
materials upto July 2013. Thus the age of entire stock is
old over 3 years and quality has been certainly degraded
to fetch the desired amount to cover the present
outstanding resulting in remote possibility of recovery
of dues. Previous year also we suggested for making a
provision of ¥ 6273 lacs against such loss which was
not adhered to by the Company and same was
considered by us as audit qualification. This year only
% 362 lacs has been repaid by the party. Due to such
recurring defaults in payment despite commitment in
Court, the chances of recovery is doubtful. After
considering the realizable market value of pledged stock
amounting to ¥ 3922 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 8271 lacs during the year. This
has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for 2015-16 by ¥ 8271 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1870 lacs due from
M/S Siddhartha Tubes Ltd. for procuring and supply of
materials upto February 2014. Thus the entire stock is
old over two years and due to substantial fall in market
price of the procured item, the realizable market value
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of the pledged stock is ¥ 1145 lacs, outstanding amount
are unsecured to the tune of ¥ 685 lacs, net of security
deposit amounting ¥ 40 lacs which has not been
provided by the Company in its books of accounts for
the year 2015-16. This non-provisioning has resulted
in overstatement of profit and understatement of
provision for 2015-16 by ¥ 685 lacs.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in paragraph (i) to (xvi) of Basis for Qualified
Opinion, the overall effect of which is overstatement of profit
by ¥ 72432 lacs, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2016, and its profit
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. Had the
effect of above non provisions amounting to ¥ 72432 lacs
given in the accounts, then the net profit of ¥ 5988 lacs would
have been converted to net loss of ¥ 66444 lacs.

Emphasis of matters :-

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the
financial statements :

a) As stated in Note no. 15(d) of Notes on Account,
Unauthorized lift of pledged stock of materials by Haldia
Petrochemicals Ltd. indicates lacuna in supervision of
pledged stock mechanism of the company and the
uncertainty of recovery of debts as outstanding amount
is not backed by pledged stock and the agreed payment
schedule is very long.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’'s Report in terms of the directions of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) under
Section 143(5) of the Act, and on the basis of our
examination of the books and records of the company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
principles in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A,
statement on the matters specified in the directions of
CAG.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said order.

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit.

b. Except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by
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law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. TheBalance Sheet, the Statement of Profitand Loss,
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. Except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. The matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

f.  The qualification relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
control over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure C.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note no. 30 to
the financial statements

ii.  The Company did not have any such long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. Following are the instances of delay in
transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Nature Date of Due Date of Transferredon Amount
Declaration transfer R in lacs)
Unclaimed 15/09/2008 20/10/2015 22/11/2015 11.00
Dividend
For Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 313124E

CA. S P Basu
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date :29.08.2016 Mno. 050209




ITTD-T/ Annexure-A
POt AT 2013 & 9RT 143 (5) P e [dor

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013

SI. No.

Ader

Direction

3IhETh BT STR
Auditor’s Reply

T P B I HA: Wisles UG ioleles 8g
TR TRfed/dS &7 af 78 & @1 Fuar wigee
Tg SoTelcs & &3 B Jool® BN [oTdd foIy ersfest/
ST SRS SYel T8l 8 |

Whether the Company has clear title/lease
deeds for freehold and leasehold respectively?
If not please state the area of freehold and
leasehold land for which title/lease deeds are
not available.

T H/BS/ATST MG & BRgE B BN BIS
A &, IS 8 O SHBT SR UG MMt X7 bl
TJooi BN |

Whether there are any cases of waiver/write off
of debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons
there for and amount involved.

R IS UIEAT & I TS1 g8 $eRAT T4 WRPR AT
317 3pIiRfel & SusR/wHd & wd H U g
F1 3g W RS @ a1 g1

Whether proper records are maintained for
inventories lying with third parties & assets
received as gift/grant(s) from Government or
other authorities

I THORTIT BT TEfeed SxdEST B & AW F A 2 Riaw|
TGRAT # @R 2 woied, e <far # 4 weicw, A H 4
I, YRl W} H 2 wied U9 9T, §EE | 1w |

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name
of the company except for 2 flats situated at Dhakuria, 4 flats
at Finley Tower, 4 flats at Malad, 2 flats at Raheja Centre
and 1 flat at Bandra, Mumbai.

99 & SR AT DS AT T8 B

There is no such cases during the year.

PO T IS U] F U ISt Sl Bl A Rars @ g
PO 7 TR 7 ot o TRt | SUER & w9 § Prg qedf
e & o gl

The Company has maintained proper records for inventories

lying with third parties.The Company has not received any
assets as gift from Govt. or any other authorities.
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ANNEXURE-B to the INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 UNDER “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS”
SECTION OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Report on Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the
Order') issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') of
MSTC LIMITED (‘the Company')

. a. The company has generally maintained proper
records showing full particulars including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

b. The Company has physically verified its Fixed
Assets during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company except for the following
cases:

Balance Sheet Value
(Amount in lacs)

SINo Property Description

1 2 Flats at Dhakuria, T11.53
Kolkata

2 4 Flats at Finley Tower, 3 14.32
Mumbai

3 4 Flats at Malad, 36.96
Mumbai

4 2 Flats at Raheja Centre, 361.66
Mumbai

5 1 Flat at Bandra, Mumbai 34.82

Il. As explained to us, the inventories were physically
verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification.

lll.  The Company has neither granted nor taken any loan,
secured or unsecured to and from companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
provisions of clauses 3(a) & 3(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the
meaning of the Act. Hence, the directives issued by
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VL.

VIL.

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
rules framed there under are not applicable to the
Company.

As informed to us, the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act is not applicable
to the Company.

a.

According to the records of the Company, the
Company is regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, value added
tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty,
cess and any other statutory dues as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

The details of disputed dues of Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Excise Duty, Entry Tax, Income Tax and Custom
Duty, which have not been deposited, are given
below :




wifafd &1 9 I AT Bl THfT IR T H o1 wiRw 4 faare «fea
IR IS I TS S <o e ! B =T gIRT qTaT 2001-02 1.93 o AT ARG H Sfed
2008
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1998 - 99 22.53

1999 - 00 44 .42

2002 - 03 31.18

2004 - 05 9.08

2005 - 06 3.70

2006 - 07 0.76

2007 - 08 27 .46

2008 - 09 42 .66

2008 - 13 627 .91
SNfsem ! e s ! B =T gIRT qTaT 1986- 87 269.00 Iod R & AT cfed
ORI I USS <o Afdfem 2003 | fdspt &% mifdresoT gRT &Tar 2002 - 03 52.25 ot F= mfdeRoT & wwe dfea

2003 - 04 369 .45

2004 - 05 495.77
IIRES JT A ! B =T gIRT qTaT 2011-12 0.08 Aileh STRIEE & 919 difad
A e afdfrm 1962 A g T g1 ST 1995 - 96 240.00 ot F= mfdeRor & wwe dfa
A e afafrm 1962 A g T g1 ST 2001 - 02 203.81 I AT/ fawt B miERT

2012 - 13 1542 .49 & FHel

2013 - 14 83.55
RIER e, 1961 SRR B AT 2002 - 03 51.56 I R, FeAG H A
MIER sffEm, 1961 SRR B AT 2004 - 05 1.06 SATCT TRrARoT & e eifae
RIER e, 1961 SRR B AT 2006 - 07 11.64 STATCRT AR & Te eifde
AR ST, 1961 SATIBR BT AN 2008 - 09 67.62 AR fEegel & Fwet afaa
ISR srfAfaE,, 1961 SRR B AT 2011 - 12 21.34 SATCT TRrARoT & e eifae
RIaR srfAfaE,, 1961 SRR B AT 2012 - 13 275.73 STATCRT AR & T eifae
o arffre 1994 J@T FR DI AR 2003-05 22.02 STATCRT AR & T eifae

2002-05 83.563

2005-08 15.03

2005-07 1490.10

el 6740 00
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Period to which Amount Forum where dispute
the amount relates (X in Lacs) is pending
Financial Year

Uttar Pradesh Value Added Claim by Sales Tax 2001-02 1.93 Pending before HC
Tax Act, 2008 Authority Allahabad
Jammu & Kashmir General Sales | Claim by Sales Tax 2008-09 265 Pending before DC (Appeal),
Tax Act, 1962 Authority 2011-12 0.32 Jammu
West Bengal Value Added Claim by Sales 2009-10 426.33 Pending before Appellate
Tax Act, 2003 Tax Authority 2011-12 139.54 Revision Board, Kolkata
Andhra Pradesh Value Added Claim by Sales Tax 1982-83 9.33 Pending before ST Tribunal/
Tax Act 2005 Authority 1984-85 54.17 ST Authority/HC

1998-99 22,53

1999-00 44.42

2002-03 31.18

2004-05 9.08

2005-06 3.70

2006-07 0.76

2007-08 2746

2008-09 4266

2008-13 627.91
Odisha Sales Tax Act Claim by Sales Tax Authority 1986-87 269.00 Pending before High Court
Guijrat Value Added TaxAct 2003 | Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2002-03 52.25 Pending before ST Authority

2003 - 04 369.45

2004-05 495.77
Uttarkhand VAT Act Claim by Sales Tax Authority 2011-12 0.08 Pending with CTO, Uttarakhand
Customs Act 1962 Claim by Customs Department 1995-96 240.00 Pending before ST Authority
Customs Act 1962 Claim by Customs Department 2001-02 203.81 Pending before High Court ST

2012-13 1542.49 Tribunal

2013-14 83.55
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Demand 2002-03 51.56 Pending with HC Calcutta
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Demand 2004-05 1.06 Pending with Appellate Authority
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Demand 2006-07 11.64 Pending with Appellate Authority
Income TaxAct, 1961 Income Tax Demand 2008-09 67.62 Pending with T Tribunal
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Demand 2011-12 21.34 Pending with Appellate Authority
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Demand 2012-13 275.73 Pending with Appellate Authority
Finance Act 1994 Service Tax Demand 2003-05 22.02 Pending with Appellate Authority

2002-05 8353

2005-08 15.03

2005-07 1490.10

TOTAL 6740.00

120




T8 i3 < fRifeg & T graemEl vd Sadb Sl 997e

Qi & Hdy § Faee Ughee Ud WREn By bl
3R HR & oIy ouférd off &1 FHaTgaR U B |
3faxoT &1 fopar T & Ryarr enRa du=it & Al 3l B
%R, forg# ad 2007-08 & =1 rar orier & 9red 5. 11
g Bt IR 39 & faere & ofdRor 1 18 |
B bl &b IHTY F GAYTAE H Rhiecs el & fHarg <.
138 TG ST MRS 5§ & U9 ©.14362 g Tcs
d% ¥ HOT TG AW H ST ol W) fewnh & fewoft |.
5(7) vd 5(d) # fafdse 8 1 dut & ura fredt faciir dvem
I ARBR F BIS 0T T8 2 IR 1 & dIs fSJoxr o=y
a2
IX. ©F + ufeetd SHR AT ST fohedt ufeetas TR (Fe0T Uu=1
fed) AT STafere 0T & AT W & ST Tal fbar § vd
31 3MeW BT s 3(iX) & refie RuiféT urrsy =& 21
X. BIR IIfrdmdH S gd &6 < T8 SIMaRT a2 fagelyor %
TR ¥ & SR HH1 §RT BIg HIAIIS! el Bl T8 §
3R T B 3AP IHERT AT HHARTT §RT HFAT § fopy
GIRATErS) B I a1 Rl &t T 2
Xl W R ¥ gd g & T IHeR) vd fgeme & ogar
A T rfafEE @t orggEt V & wry ufed art 197 &
TaEHl §RT ST g SR & IR Yeedi
aiRsifTast Yerar/der fear 21
FHH e (A Hro T2 2 U ord: ey & @ 3(Xii) &
31 Rarfé urasg =€ 2
Xll. AR @R 4 vd &9 & T8 IFeRI Ud ey & R
HHHT 7 g ATl & A1 AHY o o ST @ ey
177 ©d 188, S8l o] &, BT SUTa 3T Ud |wig uret
F T F a0 AN oiE AT gRT S o srufard ®
werd faxiia fdavor § gadiea far g |
Y & SR BT = BIs JHT Tde IT IR BT fron
ERRITY 37raT Ui 7 i1 Heafcaet fSdar SR &
fopa & wd ora: onewr & W 3 (XIV) & e a1 Hvt
2 ISy T8 2 |
W R 4 vd &4 & T STEeR! & IJER ¥ & SRM
HFIT T ISR IToT A7 S1u SRR T | AHg
fth & dre fHel IR-TaHd! o et # 2fie 721 g8 © 3R
31 IR &Y aRT 192 % Wae IR gl B
HFET BT ARG Rord §a ififam, 1934 ot aRT 45-
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VIIL.

XI.

XIl.

XL,

XIV.

XVI.

Place : Kolkata
Date :29.08.2016

The amount which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder has not been transferred to such
fund within time, except in case of Holding Company,
there is a delay of transfer of 39 days amounting to
% 11.00 lacs towards unclaimed dividend for the year
2007-08.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to banks except for the
loan from Indian Overseas Bank ¥ 138 lacs and
Standard Chartered Bank ¥ 14362 lacs as mentioned
in Note No. 5(a) and 5(b) of the Notes on Account. The
Company did not have any loans or borrowings from
financial institutions or government and has not issued
any debentures.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of public
offer or further public offer (including debt instrument)
or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3(ix) of
the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company and no fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has paid/
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the standalone financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence
reporting under Clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected to its Directors and
hence provision of Section 192 of the Act is not
applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 313124E

CA. S P Basu
Partner
Mno. 050209
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ANNEXURE-C to the INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 3(g)under "Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements" section of our report of even
date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of MSTC LIMITED ("the Company") as at 31st March
2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act and Guidance Note, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
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internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that;

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information & explanations given to us and
based on our audit, the following material weakness have
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been identified as at 31stMarch 2016:-

a) The Company did not have an appropriate internal
control system for customer acceptance, credit
evaluation and establishing credit limits for sales, which
could potentially result in the Company recognizing
revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of
ultimate collection.

b) The Company did not have an appropriate internal
control system for inventory with regard to pledged stock
of raw materials procured by the Company on behalf of
the customers. Volumetric assessment was not
conducted for Haldia Petrochemicals Ltd andRohit Ferro
Tech Ltd.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the company's annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material
weaknesses described above on the achievements of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained,
in all material aspects, adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31st March 2016, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 313124E

CA. S P Basu
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date :29.08.2016 Mno. 050209
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND
AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
MSTC LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH, 2016

The preparation of Financial Statements of MSTC Limited for
the year ended 31 March, 2016 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
29 August 2016.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, have conducted a supplementary audit under Section
143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of MSTC
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2016. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor
and company personnel and a selective examination of some
of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing
significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise
to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’
report.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

N pr

(Praveer Kumar)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit
Place : Kolkata & Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-I
Date : 12.09.2016 Kolkata
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TquaeRyl feifles MSTC LIMITED
JoiF 9o : 31 W14 2016 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2016

(3. @@ #)/R in Lacs)

feoofy ¥, As at As at
fareor Particulars Note No.  31.03.2016 & 31.03.2015 &}
. SfRt vd Sgan I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. ¥RRuRG 1 it 1. Shareholders’ funds
(®) TR goft (a) Share Capital 2 880 880
(@) IR vd ity (b) Reserves and Surplus 3 72,368 68,543
2 gyEferd Igard 2. Non-current liabilities
(@) s Dufafdy Igamg (a) Other Long term liabilities 4 842 941
3 = I 3. Current Liabilities
(%) arcuTafer ot (a) Short-term Borrowings 5 62,808 1,08,589
(@) IR g (b) Trade Payables 6 2,111,594 3,00,604
(1) 31 =T TTTY (c) Other Current Liabilities 7 88,449 90,422
(1) Sreqrafdy wrgens (d) Short-term Provisions 8 3,749 4,064
o<l TOTAL 4,40,690 5,74,043
. wRefafmi Il. ASSETS
1. IR i aReEaRmE 1. Non-Current Assets
(®) 3raet aREuRmE (a) Fixed Assets 9
(i) #ifren gR=iafRTar (i) Tangible Assets 426 1,639
(ii) et aRafRy (ii) Intangible assets - -
(iif) ot B WY (iii) Capital Work-in-Progress - -
() srvrafera e (b) Non-Current Investments 10 1,581 1,581
(1) smvfie By aREuRmEl (g<) (c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 11 16,922 16,248
(=) <rafafr o1 g4 o (d) Long-term Loans and Advances 12 1,273 1,875
(¥) e IR it gReuRm (e) Other Non-Current Assets 13 17 44
2. =g uR<igkmEi 2. Current Assets
(?) ©i® (a) Inventories 14 1,529 14,683
(@) @RI = (b) Trade Receivables 15 3,15,463 4,05,691
(1) e T Th<t T (c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 94,505 1,23,698
(&) Sreqrafer o1 g 3R (d) Short-term Loans and Advances 17 8,725 7,815
($) g @] gRgfmT (e) Other Current Assets 249 769
S TOTAL 4,40,690 5,74,043
weqqul o sfiferat Significant Accounting Policies 1

Fer fewfrat 1 32 faciig favor & @1f¥ o1 €1 The accompanying notes numbering 1 to 32 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
I§ I U9 99 ARG $ gAR Ufaded & 9e¥ d 21 This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Fd TATECRY fafics For MSTC Limited

P X TS b For Ray & Co. (4t 4. Rre)
| @A Chartered Accountants I AE Ty fgwra
Yolienvor 9. 3131248 Regn. No. 313124E (B. B. Singh)
A & 6 g CA S P.Basu Chairman-cum-Managing Director
WEER Partner
AR F g
ARRg : 03.08.2016 Dated : 03.08.2016 (R. K. Chaudhuri)
R : BIAB Place : Kolkata General Manager (Finance & Accounts)
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(A. K. Basu)

Director (Finance)
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ERRINSICC]

(Subrata Kumar Ray)
Company Secretary




wAuaSRY fafics . MSTC LIMITED

31 A1 2016 &) FAT g9 & foIU o9 Tq gIf~ &1 faawor
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016

(5. @@ #)/R in Lacs)

fareor Particulars feupoft %. Note No.  2015-2016 2014-2015
. gRaEmeE | ora I.  Revenue from Operations 18 2,89,155 5,42,497
I 3= 3 Il. Other Income 19 7,603 8,151
i et RTORT (1+11) lll. Total Revenue (I + II) 2,96,758 5,50,648
V. IV. Expenses :
AR AT DI BREIGIR Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 20 2,55,384 5,26,120
e # g Changes in Inventories 14 13,154 (11,078)
P fedems w @ Employee Benefits Expense 21 4,273 3,889
T @ Finance Costs 22 9,642 8,649
AeIET Ud aRee Depreciation and Amortization 9 361 (128)
«d Expenses
I Y
Other Expenses 23 4,810 10,049
Pl I
Total Expenses 2,87,624 5,37,501
v. fifif¥re 75 vd @) |
i—c} oY (lI-1V) V. Profit before Exceptional ltems and 9,134 13,147
VI aRffre T Tax (Il - 1V)
VI. Exception Item
VI &R gd o (V-VI)
S VII. Profit before Tax (V - VI) 9,134 13,147
VIIl.Tax Expense :
(1) e 1) C tT 3,820 6,789
rrent Tax , ,
(2) smeafia ax (1) Cu
2) Deferred Tax 674 2,741
IX. @y & forg @ (') (VI-VII @ (674) ( )
IX. Profit (Loss) for the period (VII - VIiI) 5,988 9,099

X, wfa sfedt R s

X. Earnings per Equity Share :

(i) 9P
i N (1) Basic 68 103
- . (2) Diluted 68 103
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Fer fewfrat 1 32 faciig fdavor & @1f¥s &1 €1 The accompanying notes numbering 1 to 32 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
Tg 9 T EI foeao w9 aNig & g9R uRded & A # &1 This is the Profit & Loss Statement referred to in our report of even date.

Fd TATECRY fafics For MSTC Limited

F A TS . For Ray & Co. (4. Rre) (¢ & arg)
| g Chartered Accountants ey Ag vEy feerd e (fom)
oNdRT |, 3131248 Regn. No. 313124E (B. B. Singh) (A. K. Basu)
Ae T @ g CA S P. Basu Chairman-cum-Managing Director Director (Finance)
AEER Partner
IR & = ( PAR M)
TH 5. 050209 M no. 050209 z(mqaw (Rt )@ Sy ga: 2
ane : 03.08.2016 Dated : 03.08.2016 (R. K. Chaudhuri) (Subrata Kumar Ray)
R : BleTdTd Place : Kolkata General Manager (Finance & Accounts) Company Secretary
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 91, 2016 &I G 99 & ferv faxig

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016

1. Agaqol o e 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 NGl 3T SR 1.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
BT 7 STUAT T BT AfIH, 2013 % HEfAT g The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis
& A FtRT orar 9! g dudT Y, 2013 & fo.llowing the historical cost conyentign .in accordance
T %ﬁxﬂj,w 0] WY wig e it (“Shogd”) with generally accepted accounting principles [“GAAP”],
% N & % s T in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
STTHR ARARD Held @ SR 2013 and the Accounting Standards as specified under
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
1.2 3fipes BT IUANT
_ _ 1.2 USEOF ESTIMATES
@  for STo¥d § Sier T \Hj’:m? K The preparation of financial statements requires
~ . . —~ i i i ui
it STl WA qq“!‘“'r\éﬁ 6"’:'{9'_“ i r\ﬁ = N estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
dJavort @1 fafyr o drfa snfRrat ik i & |dfr reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of
IEmUTRLl B qUT IfedtRad M IR a0 @ Sfediaa the financial statements and the reported amount of
R B g9 Hear & | giTae IR T afdheT & revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The
ofR B ST orafer F whiga frar T ¥, R srafy f a7 difference between the actual results and estimates, if
= —_— ' any, are recognised in the period in which the results
sa/ g are known / materialised.
1.3 InfRmai vd geas™ 1.3 ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
g STt ® AT Asde/ATdT B Yg AT J died Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of eligible modvat /
B T iy, afe B &, P FeTe] RRaTaT T 2 | cenvat less accumulated depreciation and impairments,
' ' if any.
oot W oft 7 S @1 A erafer qe famarar T 7 . . .

. ) ) Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period.
SIEEERE ﬁ et 78 |aIfad © f& g8 wfas # sl o Software is capitalized where it is expected to provide
<, Yoft # gRoTe fHam 1 & 91 S SR STl & W future enduring economic benefits and same is shown
¥ fewrar @ gl under Intangible Assets.

TS ARAIT TR JIBIA BT Y98 B Afafas, 2013 Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on
) S‘Tﬁ I PR gy § DY R & anyR 1) Straight-line method in the manner prescribed in
I Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.
14 @9 1.4 INVESTMENTS
S e veb a9 ¥ arferep ferg €/fpy o €, 9 drEerete Investments held / intended to be held for a period
=T AT ST © | e @ T AT & SR @ St exceeding one year are classified as long term
2| V- B Faal fe & T M/Ed & wI H ST investments and the same are stated at cost. Gains /
ST & 1 g R @ I B aiwT ST & e SR losses on long term investments are considered as
T - - - income/expenditure at the time of sale only. Current
g @ F SR TR T investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value
15 wiF determined on an individual investment basis.
AR MM Afed ATIRIG ¥l Bl kSRR IqP 1.5 INVENTORIES
SR SRERL N SUMEI § KK <l it <t Stock in trade including Material-in-transit is valued at
&1, @ MR TR BT A T cost or estimated net realisable value whichever is less.
1.6 TSI TTorT 1.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION

IoRG @ AT gfg F MUR W fRar iar ® ud s
TSRS ERT SR TUH-9 & HTAEI b IR e SeetRad
Hal BI BISPHR [HaAT ST & R 701 aRafde aifey )
BT SR 8, Y ST a3l DI gl AT B
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Revenue is recognized on accrual basis except in the
following items which are accounted on actual realization
since realizability of such items is uncertain in
accordance with the provisions of AS-9 issued by ICAL.




iii)

frsqres & for <ifea snewn/faarfea gorar v 39 )
1, IS g B |

YIS AT OR TS, T8l UR agel! STH{gerd & |
JATYFTHIIRI 312raT ShaR] TR TREATIT &1fT |

AT/ fAhT HR/dT TAT SH W TS B a9 |

1 HU RT WIHR 6y S W a1 {6y 77 i1 ot
UM @I STl 2

AT UM & ISR wfid 89 IR ATl g &
UM B SR R

T AR B AeH-f3e o IRRg & SMYR W) 5
S /Y F oiRaT # A AT S € | STt a9 qed @
Hdg g, Dl T2 TRIT B IRANIS Y07 & MMYR TR U
STET 39 A8 ol U907 fa ad & of I T gal B, W
AT g {paT 1 81 981 gl ¥ I 39T fafmy xi
T YHSSIes Wic fafFg v R SRV uF 8
ferar T 81 a1 fad 9 & SRa’y & @1 amy aeprei
fafrr <=1 o, genfRafa, o # & g uw/lensuw
P AT ol fhaT a1 ® Ud Iagard S aHrie
ITel fa g # aRdfae I W T e ®
e AN & AT §, WRIGER] B URIET SR
Td fAhdT & TTAT B TRIG P AIR TR oGl § STell
ST 8 | T8l 9% god Bl ey 8, BT UR 3 g
Pl & WIT Jed AT ST 2 |

B-41 It &1 BE-<f fasme w1 fvfa B9 &t A &
YR W oI H g a1 S 8| S8l T&b T &1
Wdy 7, 3 Aret g famam 7o 81 4, TEel | 79 Il
fafrr &= o= a1 ofFfem a4 o fopan mam &1 a1 fom
Y & AT B ARG TR UHSSINSMTS Teferd Suete
fafrea < uR, Tel ST w3 el foran T ¥, qoF B
T ¥ TS U/HBMEUH & |1 B ST & 7o 3ifer
FHERIS 37Tt o a8 § I & T8 IR 1) B
[ERIRSIGIR

e Al & e H, B 78 Q) 61 aRage g
P ARG & MUR W qA T8l a5 oI B J99 T,
AT F oI F MIR TR oikdl # Wit fmam Siam 2
SR fSefiast smenRa fqwt & amel § fg &1 fdg &
A B IRIG & MR R ol § et fhar S
gl

frata & wmrer 7 fast @ Riddie o TR F Mg W
o1 €5 [T ST 8 | T8l d@ Hedl Bl Way &, fqwm
1 qagET A &_1 o) Ifs g& @ T8 8, A1 9 B
Rt SIS & TR RITHE 3 TRIE TR Ths geiTs
1 A T & aRaide a¥gell WR i FHIAISH & aTe
o9 # forr Smar 71
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ii)

iv)

Vi)

Decrees pending for execution/contested dues and
interest thereon, if any.

Interest on overdue recoverables where realizability
is uncertain.

Liquidated damages on suppliers or contractors.

Refund of Income-Tax/Sales Tax/VAT and interest
thereon.

Insurance claims are accounted for on being
accepted by the Insurance Company.

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive
dividend is established

PURCHASES

i)

i)

SALES

ii)

Imported materials are accounted for as purchase
on the basis of date of bill of lading. As regards
value, purchase are booked on the basis of actual
remittance and where such remittance are
outstanding at the close of the year, on the basis of
contracted forward exchange rates, if booked, or
FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on the last
date of the financial year, in case forward cover was
not taken, as the case may be, which includes C&F
/ CIF price and usance interest followed by final
adjustments on actual payment in subsequent
financial year.

In case of indigenous materials, purchases are
booked on the basis of transport documents and
as regards value, based on the value of invoices.

High sea sales are booked on the basis of date of
issuance of high sea sale letter. As regards value,
sales are booked either at contracted forward
exchange rates, if booked, or provisionally on the
basis of FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on
the last date of the financial year, where forward
cover was not taken, which includes C&F / CIF price,
usance interest followed by final adjustment on due
date of payment in subsequent financial year.

In case of indigenous material, sales are accounted
for on the basis of date of transport documents
and as regards value,based on the value of
invoices.In Case of sale on door delivery basis sales
are booked on sales invoice dates.

In case of export, sales are accounted for on the
basis of date of shipment. As regards value, sales
are booked either at contracted forward exchange
rates, if booked, or at the FEDAI rate on the date of
shipment as per custom clearance document,
followed by final adjustment on actual realization of
export proceeds.




A1 b
HRIfeTCeR Are & Aegd | g R # @9e & forg,
fiRroat o ok | amdt, ffder a1 s fafdral & famyy/
TIEER! B B & BRI & AR T qiRSfE @ AdT-
Yed & wY H ol 7 forar e 2

AT Yo DI TAYRT &)1 R A & wY H FrAfalRad wu 4

o § Sfier fpar S ®

(i) <ATaSID & P SUHHI, V&l Td 37T ARBRI fAuFT &t
AR A o T Frar-fm/ ARl & A |,
e e/ fEefiast amee & R BF WR|

(i) -Fpa @ dAaraoe FEe wR |

IR (i) U4 (i) & Hae F iR & diell oI TR Aal Yob o

# foram Sar ® wERie & |, oFR B, fiRie gRT aafae

YT & MR TR |

(iii) PRIFH Y TR, 3R BRIHA & YR UR AT e 8 |
(iv) MRS & FFel § JaT Yob 7 BT § T0ET 6
ST B
R HHRT |, BRIHH Yol 84 ), FRyae & dar
Yo TUBUIT § TAT Y WHROT | Flefiararati 3 qra
T W o 3 Yo dE@cy B

(@) SHH $ ThAAYdD FaTed R § WRIRAC e b
O B S E

IR & WU H I UG AT Yo Dl TIYRT &% IR AGH
I P/ Riig/aR) [T & IRIG & JYUR TR, IO
Ry, <ikan 4 feran man & | s |t & foy gea-
FrefRor a7 A eriwor smraRvTTs # sifed g7 ar faxfig ad &%
siftr g &1 yafod ywESivens wWie <X W fhar S
2| 3iferd FHTIIS aRAfd® YA & MER TR fHAT S
2| el ME $ A H, Jod FEiRr JUEr ) w6y
Y IS YA & R ) A S 2

-fomrht gottevor
ST ot & forg sharell & gSfiaRor Y[ foram Sirar 2|
IR USTTIT BT 98T Geb a¥ o fo7Q 8 A1 39 A1e 99 &1 377 b

H HET ST 8 1 3R YSHR0T 3fTofiae 3rafdy & forg @ & dofias
I® B AT IRT B FHE FY W g qui § gie fEar S g

()

1.7 IR B

i) omFeR I, 1961 & wraem™ & TR v {6y 7y
PR A AT F MIR TR AT B BT FafRor o sirar 21

i)y oA R @ Wiehy ik wxar 8, 999 & IR &
a9 A e &1 37afy & PR AN 377 3MR oW1 T & 9g
TR UG U AT fE <rafdy H vored # Hew ¥
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SERVICE CHARGES

Remuneration for transaction in Marketing Department
through facilitator mode and for conducting sales/
procurement on behalf of Principals, by way of auctions,
tenders, or any other means, are accounted for as service
charges.

(a)

Service charges are accounted for as income at
contracted rates on:

i)  Tender/Auction sale on behalf of Public Sector
Undertakings, Defence and other Government
Departments on issuance of sale orders / delivery
orders.

i)  On satisfactory completion of e-sales.

In respect of (i) & (ii), service charges are accounted for on
bid price of auction with adjustments, if any, on the basis of
actual delivery by the Principals.

iii) Onoccurrence of event, in case of service contract
on event basis.
iv) In case of E -Procurement Service charges are
booked :

In old version where service charges are collectable
from the Principal, on completion of event, and in
the new version, transaction fees are accountable
on receipt from the bidders.

E Procurement transaction fees are accounted on
successful conduct of event.

(b)

(c) Service charges accrued in respect of purchase as
facilitator are accounted for at the contracted rate on
the basis of date of bill of lading / railway receipt / lorry
receipt as the case may be. For imported materials, value
is ascertained either at forward cover rate or at FEDAI
spotrate prevailing on the last date of the Financial Year.
Final adjustment is made on actual payment. In case of
indigenous materials, value is ascertained on the basis

of actual payment at contracted rate.
E-AUCTION REGISTRATION

E-auction Registration fees collected from buyers is considered
as income of the current year if the validity of registration is
upto one year. In case of life long registration, the amount so
collected is distributed in five years equally.

1.7 TAXES ON INCOME

i) Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income
computed in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

ii)  Deferredtaxis recognised on timing differences between
taxable and accounting income/expenditure that
originates in one period and are capable of reversal in




AMFRATT FR AMRTAT BT AR o ST ATl BT BT AHeT
TG JoT T B TG B B Sl 2 |

1.8 vd s@fe TR

iii)
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SN € Ve AgaR A Jraer fhar S g |
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&g 3rafey
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i)

1.8

1.9

a)

(b)

one or more subsequent period(s).

The Carrying amount of Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance Sheet date.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Expenditure/Income relating to previous year is shown
in the accounts under the head “ Prior period adjustment
account” as per the provisions of AS-5 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in
measurement (are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent
liabilities,if material, are disclosed by way of notes.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
are adjusted to reflect the current estimate of
management.

PROVISIONS FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS/ADVANCES

In general, provision for doubtful debts/advances is
made where there is uncertainty of realization
irrespective of the period of its dues.

For Marketing customers where dues are generally
secured by pledged stock, outstanding balances are
reviewed annually towards the end of each financial
year with respect to their realisability and accordingly
adequate provisions are made in the books.

For e-Commerce customers which mainly comprise of
public sector undertakings and Govt. departments, the
realization normally takes more time, although bills are
raised on issuing delivery orders but payments are made
on completion of actual delivery. For such debtors
outstanding over three years full provision is made
unless the amount is considered recoverable.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short term benefits

Short term employee benefits are accounted for at their
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered.

Provident Fund :

Provident Fund is administered by a Trust recognized
by Income Tax Authorities and contribution to this Fund
is charged to revenue. Pensioners Benefits are secured
through Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995.

Service Gratuity :

Liability on account of service gratuity is covered under
Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme of Life
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(c)

(d)

Insurance Corporation of India and is administered
through a separate irrevocable trust created by the
Company for this purpose. Contribution to the scheme
is charged to revenue.

Post Retirement medical benefit : Hospitalistion is
covered by Insurance Policy administered by a trust
formed for the purpose. The trust is managed with the
corpus funded by the Company.

Medical expenses on account of post retirement
domiciliary treatment are reimbursed by the said trust
as per entitlement fixed from time to time. The deficit, if
any, it being reimbursed by the Company.

Leave Encashment on retirement are covered by Group
Leave Encashment Scheme Policy of Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Impairment of cash generating units / assets is
ascertained and considered where the carrying cost
exceeds the recoverable amount being the higher of
net realisable amount and value in use. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit & loss account in the year
in which an asset is identified as impaired.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Transaction in foreign currency are recorded either on
forward booking rate or on spot rate and where such
remittance are outstanding at the close of the year
(except for overdue recoverables where realisability is
uncertain), on the basis of contracted forward exchange
rates or spot exchange rates prevailing on the last date
of the financial year, as the case may be,with an
adjustment on actual remittance in subsequent year.
In case of export, transaction in foreign currency are
recorded either on forward booking rate or on spot rate
on shipment date as per custom clearance document
and where such remittance are outstanding at the close
of the year, it is adjusted in the subsequent year on
actual realization of export proceeds.

The spot rate is as per FEDAI rates. Wherever foreign
exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the customers
as per agreement with them, foreign exchange gain/
loss are not recognized in the books of the Company.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing Cost relating to (i) funds borrowed for
acquisition/construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized upto the dates the assets are put to use,
and (ii) funds borrowed for other purposes are charged
to Profit & Loss Account.

SEGMENT REPORTING

In terms of AS-17 the Company has identified Marketing
and E-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable
Business Segments. There is no Secondary Segment.




feuoft 2 : ¥RR o
Note 2 : Share Capital

R inLacs)/ (¥. @@ #)

31 9, 2016 &l 31 9, 2015 &l

IR Yorl As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

Share Capital = Number ¥ 4@ Number £4
ENBET] Authorised
7% %. 10/- & sfaadt IR Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 5,00,00,000 5,000 5,00,00,000 5,000
oY, sifYew wd guia: e« Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid up
76 5. 10/- & gfddt 3_RR Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880
Bl Total 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880

feugoft 2(v) : frafia s@fd & oM &R Ty W= g T @) dwen & e @ mfdga v
Note 2(a) : Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

31 HA[E, 2016 @I 31 H[E, 2015 @I
o As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
Particulars @& Number %I = Number £4
qY & IR H IHEl Shares outstanding at the
RN beginning of the year 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 220
Y P FANGT TR FH1 Shares outstanding at the end
IRN of the year 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880

et 2 () : Fot 7 Fae va € 2ol w1 = IR (EfFE TR) 2, et wma aiky IR . 10/- €1 ame IR (SR wR) &
TS TR U7 TR & oY T dIc & gHaR MR A9e & §HaR & 97 95 fhy o & Ry 7 ity 3 §, & 9riieR £

Note 2(b) : The Company has only one class of ordinary shares (‘Equity Shares’) having a par value of ¥10 each. Each holder of
ordinary shares (‘Equity Shareholders’) is entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus,
if any, in the event of winding up.

feugoft 2 (}{) : Foh & WRT B Fot AT @ 5 FRIET F SATET IR G FTel IWR GRS

Note 2(c) : Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

31 Hrd, 2016 &1 31 Hrd, 2015 &1
As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
gIRTIRRT R BT % qIRT IR URYT BT %
IRRYRS BT A P A= yfaera Calk:re yfera
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
YR & IR President of India 79,06,400 89.85% 79,06,400 89.85%

feugoft 2(<) : 9§ 2012-13 & IR 3:1 & U § 66,00,000 I+ ART B SR f5am M|
Note 2(d) : 66,00,000 bonus shares has been issued during Financial Year 2012-13 in the ratio of 3:1.
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feooft 3 @ Rfdd v afdely :
Note 3 : Reserves and Surplus :

(%. @ #)/ in Lacs)

31 9™ 31 9™
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
U, MR IIRfE a. General Reserve
SINEECRC Opening Balance 68,543 61,721
(+/-) I I BT HART (+/-) Current Year Transfer 3,817 6,906
(-) fe=ii 1.4 14 &1 ST A ST et (-) Balance depreciation on assets whose
FAT B arel FFRiEl 1R 9 Jeugrd useful life is over as on 1.4.14 - (84)
(+) R 9% S & forg iR wraem (+) Excess provision for DDT written back 8 -
3ifew 9w Closing Balance 72,368 68,543
. arfdem b. Surplus
IRFATEH ST Opening balance - -
e I & T (+) YE /IS B (+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the currentyear 5,988 9,099
QRssLESIEINING (-) Proposed Dividends 1,804 1,822
(-) e fadRor aw (-) Dividend Distribution Tax 367 371
(-) emeféra # sicwor (-) Transfer to Reserves 3,817 6,906
3ifc < Closing Balance - -
kR Total 72,368 68,543

Reaqoft 4: o=y Srefafy ST

31 9 31 Hrd

= Particulars 31 March 31 March

| 2016 2015
| (V) <R 2y (a) Trade Payable 2 2
| (@) SHard doierr & AR ue I (b) Income received in advance - E auction Registration 368 291
) e B9 & e g (c) Liability for staff benefit 187 198

(I wTEDR F S (d) Deposit from customers 259 424

E) o= (e) Others 26 26

Pt Total 842 941

faste 31.03.2016 H1 Few, oY Td Hegd Iell & $1g |t garan 76l € (Rroen a¥ 3o 7&) |

There are no outstanding with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31.03.16. (Perevious year Nil).
fRuof} 5 : arcuma Pl :

Note 5 : Short Term Borrowings :

31 #Ard 31 #rd

faaRor Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
LISE G Secured
HT 9¥ K0T gfaed Loans repayable on demand
CEZIR] From Banks 19,060 41,786

(Secured by lien on FDR % 55,200 Lacs,
Previous year ¥ 71,327 Lacs)
Working Capital loan (Secured against

(Frarel s/ <=ile R R gRT fsd . 55.200
g, T 99 %. 71.327 o)

BT a(q‘)i“ﬁ F1 (@ ST & 97 F 9OT)  oyrent Assets) Note(a) 9,386 42,441
- 28,446 84,227
I o Unsecured
HRT IR R Loans repayable on demand
Joi 9 feweft () From Bank Note(b) 34,362 24,362
34,362 24,362
kR Total 62,808  1,08,589
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SRIG § wiveT

P) SFeT7 NaRRIT I3 (smSenal) | ko1 1R %. 138 oy (fR=ie
19.9.2011 ¥ 9ST §am)

T R § 39 &9 BT ARReT F oIy SN SRIAE! Yob & w9
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T) Wss dcS 9% W ¥, 14362 oG BT HOT :

foig 9§ 2008-09 & SR WUl MWl & frafd &1 o1 W %
63821 oG # @ Wee Arss o (T 7 RiRaer west wive
% qEd 5. 18466 TRI BT IR WRIST AT| 30 @I H ghrm T
$. 16916 oG & d8d, UGNl 7 TAUEAE! & ST @ ¥ 9.
2500 &g U9 . 54 IRg &1 Tehidhd oI fhar gen fa=ie
31.3.2015 &r gmar A9 R ©. 14362 &g ¥ | vawd + faesh
Tedl ¥ 59 IR & sfe fhar vd uRfe wu § gde TEdl &
o & favg TATEC # wfee B & vd uEdl I uTa e
Sfde & favg 21 af 2009 # 7 @ W= @ < fAfy wA 8@
A 2| G 9 F TSP § WA L I T o1, A, 2012 F
i T Fol AV B FHRT Gois H SfRer fFar g1 @ |fgd
Pl $.19,158 ARg TATHET BT F@T KT § U4 TAUECRAT &
favg Semel, Jag # AMen ot frar ¥ vt 7 wdeRt gR
G BRA H ol B § AU sgilensiieng TS &«
W T IR & ded SIb R $ol TIal T8 R & Jgd
frar &1 wroife, vaiidt 3 agwRia i Fue smgfengRiiens
TS F foog IS STm e § Al R fhar §1 9\ e
T B IHR Py ST W Td A ST <raed § ofdd ®
TS ABMSHIBE TS P fA%g A 51 B P gl TadlEl 3
gl 319y Y H IHEAT B THHE b U TAHUEISRY $ For o
JfaRor fhar € 3R O b S # gdmar T & R o &
favg SRl # uftha fpar & | ARSI 7 9! SleTRel # aimufy
B U STAISSNATE TS Ud vadldl & favg ofeliqR dic H
R AFTAT gof fhar & o S50 ey o1 vo=iidt gRT %001  uRads
PR B AGAH H AAT TENEES BN SHIGAT A Sb &I DI YT
PR & T o & AR

HOA 7 59S & H TEEd F %, 31366 A & ol I F favg
o7 |fed v, 22251 Rg gl # I 21 %, 9115 TG A
ST P BB STA® H ST AT T, BIL A BT ORI
wifea 2
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Above includes :

a) Loan from Indian Overseas Bank (I0B) amounting to
¥ 138 lacs: (lying since 19.9.2011)

This amount represents legal fees paid by the bank in
defending their claims to which the Company has lodged its
protest with the Bank. MSTC has filed a case in Hon’ble High
Court of Calcutta against 0B for ¥ 3656 lacs (which includes
% 2798 lacs towards debit of LC value & ¥ 858 lacs as debit
towards legal expenses).

b) Loan from Standard Chartered Bank of ¥ 14362 lacs :

Out of the total export of ¥ 63821 lacs on account of export of
gold jewellery during FY 2008-09, Standard Chartered Bank
(SCB) had purchased receivables amounting to I 18466 lacs
under a Receivable Purchase Agreement. Against amount
outstanding ¥ 16916 lacs on this account, SCB has unilateraly
adjusted ¥ 2500 lacs and X 54 lacs from MSTC’s deposit with
thereon. Balance amount of ¥ 14362 lacs remains outstanding
as on 31.03.2016. SCB had debited this amount to the foreign
buyer and credited the amount to MSTC against each
individual buyer's account initially and set off the payments
received from the buyers against the debit. The due dates of
all these payments expired by 2009. As payments were not
forthcoming from the buyers since then, in March 2012, SCB
converted the total balance against the outstanding invoices
including interest aggregating to ¥ 19158 lacs into outstanding
debt of MSTC and filed a case against MSTC in DRT, Mumbai.
SCB had also insured the total amount purchased by them
against the Receivable Purchase Agreement with ICICI
Lombard for default in payment by the buyers. SCB has
subsequently filed a suit against ICICI Lombard, the Insurance
Co. in hon'ble Bombay. High Court for repudiation of their
claim which is pending. Instead of initiating a legal case
against ICICI Lombard, SCB first illegally converted the
outstanding as debt of MSTC to SCB and proceeded in DRT
against MSTC as stated above. MSTC challenged this in DRT
and also filed a seperate case against SCB and ICICI
Lombard in Alipore Court to stop giving effect of converting
their receivables into debt by SCB and also that SCB should
pursue its claim with the insurer and not against MSTC.

Against the total claim of ¥ 31366 lacs of SCB, the Company
has already shown as liability in its books for ¥ 22251 lacs
inclusive of interest. Balance claim of ¥ 9115 lacs has been
shown as contingent liability, pending the outcome of the
legal cases.




feuoft 6 : URIT SYAIT -
Note 6 : Trade Payables :

(. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

319, 2016 319w, 2015

faa=or 31 March 31 March

Particulars 2016 2015

YR < Trade Payables 211594 300604
Bl Total 211594 300604

famie 31.03.2016 @ (freen af g 72 Ta1 oIS H §5W, T9 Ud AR I & U9 Bl AT IS/ T8 T
There are no outstanding with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31.03.16 (Previous year Nil).

oot 7 : ey =Tq <A -
Note 7 : Other Current Liabilities :

31 @4 31 =4

faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March

2016 2015

(V) =T v oifdh SR W 3 T8 (a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7889 7889

(@) =T Fd v SER W g (b) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 0 101

(1) SN dofieor  Sfm amr wre (c) Income received in advance - E auction Registration 218 206

SIEEESEIIH] (d) Unpaid dividends 61 59
@) sy (e) Other payables

i) orar werdt 1w i) Auditor's Remuneration 5 5

i) < R ax i) Sales Tax Payable 697 1758

iii) 2 A1e iii) TDS Payable 320 630

iv)TIfEat & o1 iv) Advance from parties 470 434

V) SO RRET ST v) EMD/Security Deposit 75440 76070

vi) =T vi) Others* 3349 3270

Pel Total 88449 90422

* giféal & wrd @ T A, g W enfe wfde g1

* Includes amount received from Parties, Outstanding Expenses etc.
feuoft 8 : sreumafdr uraen -

Note 8 : Short Term Provisions :

31 #Hr, 2016 31 4=, 2015
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
(@) Rt f’a & forg wrae=™ (a) Provision for employee benefits* 1382 1871
CIERS (b) Others -
i) TTHIY W B $ Ty wraem i) Provision for Income Tax 196 -
(g€ aIfm o= wd SIE) (net of Advance Tax and TDS)
ii) RIS S ®1 Araer ii) Provision for Tax on Dividend 367 371
iii) TReTfaT e iii) Proposed Dividend 1804 1822
S Total 3749 4064
* % 1108 @@ (forsd @191 T 1014 @) wHATRAT & U9 @9 & fow wae™ oA 6 foun & w=rem Ry 36 AT & e & fog dfea
AT e R

* Includes 1108 lakhs (previous year 1014 lakhs) towards provision for pension benefit of employees, pending approval of the
scheme by the Ministry
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feuoft 9 : sl wwferi
Note 9 : Fixed Assets

(. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

S et Wehel WHRT Wi qeusTd I AR
Fixed Asset Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
1 379t 2015 e/ 31 WK 2016 1 319t 2015 ¥ & forw fAgem 31 WK 2016 31 WK 2016 31 W 2015
I (FweE)EeE & Pl 9 Tole TS Pl 9 Pl 9 Pl 9
Balanceas Additions/  Balanceas | Balanceas Depreciation Disposals Balanceas | Balanceas Balance as
at1April  (Disposals)/  at31 March at 1 April for Adjustments at31March | at31March at31March
2015  (Adjustments) 2016 2015 the year 2016 2016 2015
R +iifore Tt
Intangible Asset
T-PTIE Tl AFedIR
e-Commerce Application 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Software
Wfve vk
Tangible Assets
Tg arel yfi gd fafesT
Leasehold Land 1285 (1285) 0 232 174 (406) 0 0 1053
&Buildings
IR F wICH
Company Flats 171 171 66 2 68 103 105
TR HSRR T4
qeR Polk
Air Conditioner 77 77 40 12 52 25 37
& Water Cooler
HAR U9 fhaaer
Fumiture and Fixtures 326 326 207 47 254 72 119
P & IR
Office equipments 187 (3) 184 167 7 (5) 169 15 20
e v et
Partition & Cubicles 256 4 260 155 47 (1) 201 59 101
HIex ae
Motor vehicles 16 16 6 3 2) 7 9 10
EXjkt
EDP equipments 694 (5) 689 500 69 (23) 546 143 194
P
Total 3012 (1289) 1723 1373 361 (437) 1297 426 1639
e ag
Previous Year 3036 (24) 3012 1498 (114) (11) 1373 1639 1538
Ioit St
Capital WIP 0 0 0 0 0
e ag
Previous Year 84 (84) 0 0 84
(T) : 99 2015-16 & SR &leqd & HIFeldd Bl il Bles de FUa B [SAT T & | TEJAR FARIE Jod, Y& o aRE dl g

Gue Fd faciia 9 2015-16 & SR UHR b B a1 11 2

)

e el Bl ST debedl 8 |

(@):
(b) :

which cost couldnot be ascertained.
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During the year 2015-16 the lease hold land has been surrendered to Haldia Dock Complex. Accordingly the residual
value, net of surrender value as on the date of surrender has been charged off during F.Y. 2015-16.

e-Commerce application software shown under intangible assets represents software application developed in house for




fRuoft 10 : I-gRuRe e -
Note 10 : Non- Current Investment :

(. @@ #) /  in Lacs)

31 HArd 31 HArd
fara=or 31 March 31 March
Particulars 2016 2015
R e (Reifea bt ) Trade Investments (Refer below)
sfaact gxgic o faw Investment in Equity instruments 1581 1581
Bl Total 1581 1581
@R e &1 feRo
Details of Trade Investments
PRURC dSt BT AW IWRI BT W IBH (T g H) I AR IR T4 §

Name of the Body Corporate

No. of Shares

2016

2015 2016 2015

Amount (X in lacs) Whether stated at Cost

ol &, sFdIcs, Ul o Aerid buel & sfaac! IR A A
Investement in Equity Shares of Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company, Unquoted, Fully paid up

WY wpy fm fafics

(sifpa g %. 1000/- grd)
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
Face Value ¥ 1000/- each)

20000

20000 1581 1581

g Yes

%ol [ Total

1581 1581
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et 11 : nfRra &= aR<uRmE! (o) e €« (3. @@ #)

Note 11 : Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) are as under: (¥ in lacs) :

31.03.2015 9§ & forg  31.03.2016

P FUE B/ Gal

As on Tax effect As on

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2015 for the year  31.03.2016
ey @R ™ % frg e Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables 15039 631 15670
=1 =g 40(v), 4391 & dgd WA Provision against other expenses 40(a), 43B 1258 0 1281
qeug H 3] Difference in depreciation (72) 43 (29)
%ol [ Total 16248 674 16922

feuolt 12 : Efafdr o vd e -

Note 12 : Long Term Loans and Advances :

(5. @@ #) /  in Lacs)

31 9™ 31 9™
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
T. Sl ~ X a. Deposits
STARIET el P Unsecured, considered good * 713 671
&, 3= =ku1 vd Ifim b. Other loans and advances
IR, SRIQETS - HHart 1M Secured, considered good - Staff advances 550 508
PR e SIS &1 YA I Advance Payment of Income Tax & TDS - 690
(Tg raem) (net of provisions)
IR, IASEHD - ISt Bl 3 Unsecured, considered good - Advance to parties 10 6
Bl Total 1273 1875

* PuAR | gorEn AR . 1 o (o 9§ %, 1 <)

* A B WSRO & N 9T %, 520 A (T, 478 ARE) WA B | T ST 8% §RT $o1Y Y &9 & fa%g 21 olfd dueil -7 g faxiy

o 21

* Amount due from KMP % 1 lac (Previous year X 1 lac)

* Includes ¥ 520 lac (previous year X 478 lac) deposit with Sales Tax Authorities against demand raised by them which have been

contested by the Company.

feuoft 13 : = IR-gd9 aR<EuRm -
Note 13 : Other Non-Current Assets :

31 Wb 31 Wb
fore=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
GRI&, ST<BT A ST dTell - HHaRT Fol Secured, considered good — Interest due 5 7

W gHET S on employee loans
SRfATd, 37<eT A S arel - Unsecured, considered good — 12 37

gded @ prepaid expenses

Pl Total 17 44
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feuoft 14 : wie
Note 14 : Inventories :

(. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

31 = 31 #Ard
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
WSRIT-HT (AN Heo) Stock-in-trade (Valued at cost)
ARRY AT Goods-in transit
URfATE o Opening Balance 14683 3605
(=) siftey oy (-) Closing Balance 1529 14683
WTih | 95 Changes in Inventories 13154 (11078)
feoquft 15 : R e
Note 15 : Trade Receivables :
31 #\rd 31 Wb
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
TaE @ 37 [y 9§ vg 789 Trade receivables outstanding for a period
| SuTeT Irafy & forg gaTan exceeding six months from the date they
IR ATl are due for payment
aRn{d, SIRETHS Secured, considered good 68407 109982
RIS, RISETHD Unsecured, considered good 64088 76968
SR, SETHD Unsecured, considered doubtful 45279 43454
HeTY : AQETHSD 0T & oIy uraem Less: Provision for doubtful debts 45279 43454
132495 186950
TaE @ <7 [y 9§ vg 789 Trade receivables outstanding for a period
%H 37afy & fog g less than six months from the date they are
YR IT<d due for payment
gRn{d, SrIaETHS Secured, considered good 152322 216954
RIS, IRISETHD Unsecured, considered good 30646 1787
182968 218741
Bl Total 315463 405691
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15 (T) : 31.03.2016 &1 a¥ Wiy w smma frafa o gua
STk 137,498,823 73 (faxfrm a¥ 2008-09 & IRM %. 59863
TG P RER) oA, 3991 & 7 ad &) goera H ol fag af &
sifer fam w arwt g a1 (Juest 1 = %, 66.255) @1 o g9
FOT BT guid U¥ T, 31236 G 9% I} T. 91099 AR B WA
BT T o § %, 30768 g H1 SOMHI BTl 39 @i #
STFAIFG . 468 dRg &1 377 BRil e Wes d1cs 9% gRT 59
oy v At & @ # %, 132 A wmfhe g1 o Ay @ iR
113 & ded fEReEiT 89 & @ gern ART @1 agel H
JIffEEA &% BRI g o . 336 TG HI oiam T fmar
HERREEIRCiE R

15 (1) : fag af 2008-09 # o frafa R U sferk
146,971,624 00 (3. 63821 &g & &RER) § & 31.03.2015 &1
FeTIT ]I qUAST 137,498 82373 (T. 85937 @RI ¥ ARTER) o
g 59 9¥ & fog oigrde IR IF 31.03.2016 @1 gl 2
(feeies 31.03.2016 @1 @< fafa &% guae! 1 = ©. 66.255 4
. 91099 g & ISR 2) | SHISIA & g . 45075 g @
gl fpn T R s TeR Wed des §@ A ardiengwiens
AlFe SRS $TANY $U & U guds! 36762828.14 (foxy ad
¥ Siftm fae aw faffmr a% guEst 1 = 9. 66.255 § 3. 24357
g & )R B) | fAfese R dU gRT QN 9 §aR o) g
Mg E 1 TATESRet T sl & w1 & forg SIS gRT S
Hhaeli & oy SR & favg 36 ame I SyuihT faare
AR S, el (TSR & o R fpy €1 I
IuHRhT faare FarRer smaT, el (TR gRT f+i®
16.4.2014 &1 AU Y R & JFAR AFc B Ffda IS s
31 IUGTh BRH H S B BeT 17 & | TV 7 59 3% &
R Aatea =Tl § UH WA SRR @ B WEAE I=aw
T A g1 arféat fit uee i w s w frdy foam R1 qeaer
T &t U=t fofa & Tl wefieRy| R OAST T @ (e &l %
v=Te frofg ¥q TRt AfieRY) deme fofa wifa w R weadRe
gus, FEMYR vd Faa 3 faceh shameii & favg 46 S A SR—IR
fy &1 gHuae & wer # 46 folg Ry v &, Rrae Ry s
sreTerdl @ s & forg s faam = 21

TeRve s A gRT AT faeeh sharell & a@mn Jae @
&g & fog 9+ o8 geifige 9w & g darc sRae!
ST g1 91g § ST U9 srsiasHies e SRS SIINd
BT §RT AT & | T AFel 3, THTECT & UaT # 3fars fielm
g, ot frsare @t wfeear & 21

ToIRUeE A | o 99N W Sdert Uve YT veaies ()
fa. 7 9. 12400 a9 (WRSR USiigpd Jea-ad<l gR1 a9 2014 4
qTH) Jo &1 R Gufy ARG w@r 21 S Ardr Jufy &
o /geaiaver & forg Ja3 =g =mare # Re anfas arr & 18
g1 dieng vd $€1 fAww @ St $) @ € T B 24040 @G
(¥. 12400 &g o &I SHIF U4 %. 3979 @G Bl T GURT
afed) & aR<ferar qon wuRkert St o) form 81 g A
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15 (a) : Atthe year end 31.03.2016 unrealized export debtors
remains USD 137498823.73 (equivalent to ¥ 59863 lacs
during the FY 2008-09) which were the same as were at the
beginning of the financial year. Considering the exchange
rate (i.e. USD 1 = % 66.255) prevailing on the last day of the
financial year, the closing balance of debtors would have
been increased by ¥ 31236 lacs to ¥ 91099 lacs and the
creditors would have increased by ¥ 30768 lacs. There would
have been a notional gain of ¥ 468 lacs on this account which
includes an amount of ¥ 132 lacs on account of receivables
purchased by Standard Chartered Bank. The net gain of
% 336 lacs has not been accounted for due to uncertainty in
realisation of the dues in terms of para 1.13 of accounting
policy. This is also sub-judice.

15 (b) : Out of total export of USD 146971624.00 (equivalent
to ¥ 63821 lacs) during the financial year 2008-09, there was
an outstanding balance of USD 137498823.73 (equivalent
to ¥ 85937 lacs) as on 31.3.2015 and the same is continued
for this year on closing date i.e 31.3.2016 (equivalent to
¥ 91099 lacs at the exchange rate of USD 1 = ¥ 66.255
prevailing on 31.03.2016). Claims have been lodged with
ECGC for ¥ 45075 lacs. Similarly Standard Chartered Bank
has also lodged claims with ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Company for USD 36762828.14 (equivalent to ¥ 24357 lacs
considering the exchange rate as USD 1 =3 66.255 prevailing
on the last day of the financial year). Both the claims have
been repudiated by the respective Insurance Companies.
MSTC initiated 36 cases against ECGC for the dues against
buyers insured by them with National Consumer Disputes
Redressal Commission (NCDRC), Delhi. National Consumer
Disputes Redressal Commission (NCDRC) by an order dated
16.04.2014 has referred the matter to Civil Court or in other
appropriate forum. MSTC has filled an appeal to Hon’ble
Supreme Court against this order. The Hon’ble Supreme Court
directed both the parties to go for arbitration. Accordingly
matter has been referred to Permanent Machinery of Arbitration
(A Government machinery for arbitration for PSUs). Arbitration
is in progress. MSTC has filed 46 legal cases against the
foreign buyers in UAE, Singapore and Kuwait. All the 46
judgments have been awarded in favour of MSTC and all the
same are under execution.

Arbitration proceedings have also been initiated against all
the six associate suppliers for indemnifying against the failure
in payment by the foreign buyers nominated by them and
later on approved by ECGC and ICICI Lombard General
Insurance Co. Award has been received in favour of MSTC in
three cases,which is also in the process of execution.

One of the Associates, namely, M/s Ushma Jewellery &
Packaging Exports (P) Ltd has mortgaged landed property
worth ¥ 12400 lacs (valuation done in 2014 by Govt
Registered valuer). A writ petition for sale/transfer of the said
mortgaged property has been filed at the Mumbai High Court.
CBl and ED investigating the matter have seized assets and
properties worth ¥ 24040 lacs (including land valued ¥ 12400
lacs & liquid assets worth ¥ 3979 lacs). MSTC had approached




%. 900 T oI Bl AU UH H EWIRY B Al & g
Hidleg HIC H Ry b1, I8 @9 fag af 2013-14 & SRM

e 8 T |

gdere fagel hamel/STaRg dufal/vaiive IRk | JUYd
TS, FHIN @d AfRd ol agelt & oy 8% 99d Hed 9ol I8 §
Ty, g ART F g 9§ qRIN 8 ST B gole ¥ aRg w9 H
el & forg e srien vd dfe™ &1 & w9 4 ©. 23578 g
B % oIy wraeme foean w2

15 (M) : IR v F wfier ©. 6055 oRg, S /T SERATA &
I R § 1 Uet 7 Sxarae § e & eRT $69al TeR
TR A IHR fFar 2| e gRT daegwd 2R siaRdisT d@
(d%) @1 gfea foar w1 g1 98 wR AR oTedi & e IgaR
faftyr fafdedl R & 7 oMy & T v @i 9 Sfie aw
JAIE & 9% BT IBH A &1 § | I I8 Tl F9q B WAt &
IR ST & Q¥ & fI%g 8, 991 ge3edl TATACH &
afogfs & forg arex g1

TSR, TITACHT 7 AT ST & faog Aeved Rars 6
fpar &, i1 ufparedi= | 3ravd wdege YpH agen & Ui smenf=d
g1 o ¥ fRa amfial & frae & favg oK 7 3. 223 &g ura
oy €, AR ARa I F qEd FErafIT @) feEn a2 Hid
F I & ATAR . 102 &g &t Ay |qreft &) s wfean uvs
F U7 Tt S 6 w9 W I@T T 8| THTECAT | STRaiel &
fog TATEdR @ ¥ %, 3656 og TTord Sfie fhy oM &
Rgeme W Aen srRR e 8, o waeneRl @1 Rafa wrot
A9Igd ¥ 1 %. 4000 TG & TaTe/BILA Al & dAfdd FYerT gget
¥ IRMeT Td WIETUS A1 & w9 7 @l 7 Seord o) o T

15 (I)) : IR | = 7 gfegar Igisiamed fafies (vadiva) &
TP T, 34376 IRI WA 2| 39S g . 5997 org AR
widh Iuael ¥l Tadivel 3 fad a¥ 2013-14 & vAvHeRy & famn
B WPy ura fpy AR W Y b 74655 TS o @
o | Tadive vd S & 99 aRERe FEAf & SIaR, A
Tl Soa ATy fasie 05.05.2015 &1 srgHifed, vadd
FHRT AT AR BRI, 2021 qF gHM Bl GgEiT o@E 2
T AT F A P AFAR 3, 2015 F AT MR+
= faam 21

15 (3) : 99 wadivs et Afer i fafies @ @R & ure
%. 24083 RI FHMT g | ARG AR 7 F 2018 TF qo
IR PAE TR F ey § (e 19.07 2014 H1 U6 MM SRy
fpar & qen 99 W @S @ IR SEE IR 12 FEH F 3R
A FA BT 39 f&am 21 g 99 2015-16 & SR el 7 %,
2400 &Rg &1 e fpar Bl

15 (T®) : IR U< AEROGAT A1 A B & U ATEh gRT
ufcrfsra TCiess & A1esd | A1 SR gRT ST81 Weld SMgfiadial
P A1 H-¢-9% FaRN ¢ | I 7 MR & @ Jed & qrad QA
RIS ie & Hou @ agel § Aeayul HHT Al ¥ a1 SR iy
B SRR F S TR S 2
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CBI Court requesting for permission to transfer of an amount
of ¥ 900 lacs which had been received during FY 2013-14.

The Management is taking all possible steps to recover the
dues as much as possible along with interest, legal expenses,
etc. from the foreign buyers/Insurance Cos/Associate
suppliers.However,since the dues have become very old, a
provision has already been made for an amount of ¥ 23578
lacs as bad and doubtful debts pending actual realisation.

15 (c) : Trade Receivables includes ¥ 6055 lacs due from
Sesa International. The party had refused to accept the
documents due to discrepancy therein, which have been
intimated to Indian Overseas Bank (‘Bank’) accordingly by
MSTC. But pursuant to Foreign Court order on Bank, they
have remitted to supplier's Bank by debiting MSTC’s account
on various dates. As it is against Court order, as per MOA
terms Sesa International is bound to indemnify MSTC.

Accordingly, MSTC have invoked arbitration proceeding
against Sesa International which is under process and the
management is hopeful to recover the amount. Against
disposal of goods lying at port through Court receiver an
amount of ¥ 223 lacs has been received which has been
adjusted against Trade Receivables. Sale proceeds for
balance material amounting to ¥ 102 lacs is kept with the
receiver as fixed deposit as per Court order. MSTC has also
filed a suit against I0B for their wrong debit to MSTC account
for an amount of ¥ 3656 lacs in which MSTC is in a very
strong position. Pending disposal of arbitration/legal suit an
amount of ¥ 4000 lacs has already been provided in accounts
as bad & doubtful advance.

15 (d) : Trade Receivables includes ¥ 34376 lacs due from
Haldia Petrochemicals Ltd(HPL). Pledged stock of 5997 lacs
is available against this. HPL had lifted the pledged stock of
Naptha of 74655 MT without any authorisation from MSTC in
the F.Y 2013-14. As per mutual settlement between HPL and
the company, as approved by the Honb’le Calcutta Highcourt
on 05.05.2015, HPL have agreed to liquidate the outstanding
balance by February 2021. HPL has been making payment
from April 2015 as per court order.

15 (e) : Trade Receivable includes ¥ 24083 lacs due from
M/s SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd. Ld. Arbitrator passed an
award on 19.07.2014 for payment of principal amount within
June 2018 and accrued interest thereafter within 12 months.
During the F.Y 2015-16 the party have paid ¥ 2400 lac.

15 (f) : Trade Receivables are generally secured either by
way of stocks pledged by the customers with the Company or
by liability where there is back to back arrangement with the
associate suppliers. In case there is a significant depletion in
realizable valueof such pledged stock against the book value
of the corresponding receivables, the differential amount has
been shown under ‘Unsecured’.




feuoft 16 : Tae vd THs WA ¢
Note 16: Cash & Cash equivalents :

(. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

31 Hrd 31 Hrd
fore=or Particulars 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

%, 9% A9 a. Balances with banks
EIGREIN I In Current Accounts 25405 34586
T o | In Dividend Accounts 61 59
|afy S @ | In Term Deposit Accounts
Rt ST Fixed Deposit 69038 89052
GEIESEE This includes :
=0 & fog e Security against borrowings 55200 71327
TREY Guarantees 903 4706
T qifSH LC Margin 0 4986
12 789 3§ o1fdre srafy a0 Bank deposits with more than
e &g da J S 12 months maturity 4 504

Q. qHE AR BT H b. Cash and Stamps in hand 1 1
el Total 94505 123698

: feugolt 17 : sreumafd ko1 vd &1fim -
Note 17 : Short-term loans and advances :

31 99 31 99

fare=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015

IR, SRIQETAS - HHart Ifm™ Secured, considered good - Staff advances* 135 243
MR, IRISET S - 37 Unsecured, considered good - Others 996 1007
ot #= wd 9T W AR e Advance Payment of Sales Tax & VAT 22 24
STHFT ST Security Deposits 7569 6539
T |AT X Input Service Tax 3 2
e Total 8725 7815

* HUAN F BT X6 5. 2 o (v 9§ 5. 1 )|
*Amount due from KMP % 2 lac (previous year % 1 lac).
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feuoft 18 : aRarem & woRa -
Note 18 : Revenue from operations :

(5. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
At @ faen Sale of Goods 269480 518052
JqaT Yob Service Charges 15192 16627
= aRenferd Iora Other Operating Revenues 4483 7818
Bl Total 289155 542497

() a9 & SRM SN doiaxvr 3 %. 369 o (v 9 <. 264 oIvg) |Ug faar T o | =7e] 99 & |99 998 9 %, 296 o (fvra
9¥ %, 211 ) IR & U @7 AT, S IR 91 A fAaRd fear e, i ag goiexor snsiad d¢ 7 1 faaRa 9w @1 deae
31032016 #1 ©. 586 =@ (fAFd a¥ ©. 497 <r@) 21 2y R, Raes forg dofiaver o 9 & foy 99 & S9! o] 9 & oM & w9 H

foram sirar =1

() e gR=fera oreat ® wifeal & =T ©. 2493 og (g 9§ 5. 6453 ofra) i B
(M) AT Pob W IR P! Bkl Td 1T 31T T, 1756 @ (fvra o . 1597 o) 7

(a) During the year, an amount of ¥ 369 lacs (previous year ¥ 264 lacs) was collected towards E-auction Registration. Out of total
collection of current year, an amount of ¥ 296 lacs (previous year ¥ 211 lacs) has been kept in liabilities to be distributed in
subsequent four years, since related registration is valid for life long. Accumulated undistributed balance standing as on 31.03.2016
is ¥ 586 lacs (previous year X 497 lacs). Balance amount for which registration is valid upto one year is accounted for as income

during the current year.

(b) Other Operating Revenues includes Interest from parties ¥ 2493 lacs (previous yr. ¥ 6453 lacs).

(c) Tax deducted at source on Service Charge and Interest income amounts to ¥ 1756 lacs (previous year ¥ 1597 lacs).

it 19 : =g
Note 19 : Other Income :

fore=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
EIERUI Interest Income
) IR SHT TR TS i) Interest on fixed deposit 6210 7644
i) BHEN g forg g S oy et ii) Interest on Employee Advances 39 36
i) 3T AT iii) Interest others 1 1
AT 37T Dividend Income 642 468
g foredt 7€ <A Liability written back 710 -
Ry sma Miscellaneous Income 1 2
Bl Total 7603 8151

% T & HUR 9T F AT W B Bl . 574 g (g af <. 663 <) |
Tax deducted at source from interest on bank deposits amounted to ¥ 574 lacs (previous year I 663 lacs).
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fewuft 20 : YR AT BT HY
Note 20 : Purchase of Stock-in-Trade :

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
RILERCI IR Purchase of goods 255384 526120
Bl Total 255384 526120
feudht 21 @ R Raey = :
Note 21 : Employee Benefits Expense :
faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
(7) 9 vd geifed (a) Salaries and incentives 3302 3001
() e § FrirhT B SfereT (b) Employer Contribution to PF 231 211
(M) =gt e 7 sferar (c) Gratuity fund contributions 29 44
(S) BHAR Dear W @AY (d) Staff welfare expenses 411 442
(3) BT THLIHR (e) Leave encashment 300 191
Bl Total 4273 3889

%. 94 g (fma a¥ . ) $T ST A1 ¥ Afdd AT HHARAT $ UM oM & oRkgl @kl § Seeld R el T 2 |
ffde o SRl & ddg 7 “GHart aml WR o 3G - 15 (FIies 2005) & S Mavgd b ihRuTi-

aifert § 31.03.16 & Fxid & I Jed H aRac e 11 &

Pending approval from Ministry of Steel ¥ 94 lakhs (previous year ¥ NIL) has been provided for in the books of accounts on

| | account of pension benefit of employees.

Disclosure as required under Accounting Standard — 15 (Revised 2005) on “Employees Benefits” in respect of Defined Benefit

obligations:-

Table showing changes in present value of obligation as on 31.03.16
= Particulars SECIE] gel aa

Gratuity Leave Salary

i W qd Present value of obligations as at
T & g F beginning of the year 1213 1122
RISESIND Interest cost 97 90
ERRISE I Current service cost 25 77
GPIT T ATH Benefits paid (241) (164)
IR R it (efr/Ef) Acturial (Gain)/Loss on obligations 38 (79)
aufq & <l @ adarT feifa Present value of obligations as at end of the year 1132 1046

et 31.03.2016 & @ Ao |ull & ST qoo § gRacd= & dhe o) <& 2l

Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.16
faeo Particulars SECIE| el o

Gratuity Leave Salary

¥ & e | Ao wula @ SR e Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 1405 1079
Ao FURT W GHIfad e Expected return on plan assets 108 86
JereT Contributions 25 43
TFTg g R Benefits paid (241) (164)
AT |uRT W §HifRE (er/E) Acturial gain/(loss) on plan assets - -
aufd § Jre Wiy o1 S e Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1297 1044
e Rafa Funded status 165 2)
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31032016 & dwifea @rw/E & wu # vgam |
Acturial Gain/Loss recognized as on 31.03.16

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

fara=or Particulars JuSH gel I+
Gratuity Leave Salary
T W) dwifes (am)/zf Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (38) 79
Y B Ao AUy & fog Sifes (am)/E Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year — plan assets - -
T W) dwifees (amv)/zf Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 38 79
ay § diHifeen (<)/E1H & wu § gar Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 38 79
JAF-U5 T o9 B okl & faaRer § wiga
The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and statements of profit and loss.
fara=or Particulars JuSH gel I+
Gratuity Leave Salary
aufa # @R @1 adAE g Present value of obligations as at the
end of the year 1132 1046
gufa & Arem Sy &1 3fad e Fair value of plan assets as at the
end of the year 1297 1044
fifere Rf Funded status 165 (2)
] . . Net asset/(liability) recognized
-o3 ¥ Wi frae snfkwt (aard
ger ( ) in balance sheet 165 2
™ Td B o faeRer § Wied @ d
Expenses recognized in statement of Profit and loss.
fara=or Particulars JuSH gel aad
Gratuity Leave Salary
AT AT AT Current service cost 25 77
EINECIUG Interest cost 97 90
Ao FURMET W) G9Ifad 3 Expected return on plan assets (108) (86)
9§ 7 difee faa (@) Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 38 79
THd @d e-gI o Expenses recognized in statement
fa=or # of profit and loss 52 2
feapofy : 22 : fa @ -
Note 22 : Finance Costs :
faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
BN ECD Interest expense 9642 8649
Bl Total 9642 8649
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feapofy : 23 : s T
Note 23 : Other Expenses :

(5. @@ %) / ( in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
TRHT T4 IR Repairs and Maintenance 157 147
S g EDP Expenses 280 200
Ciel Insurance 1 1
for=man Rent 307 294
W UG X Rates and Taxes 31 54
% Yo Bank Charges 687 566
RIEIRCD Travelling Expenses 273 230
[EESIE Foreign Travelling 26 13
TSI fIRTAT TR Car Hire Charges 109 74
I5F |4 FHeT Meeting and Conference 73 19
Tfreror Training 16 8
[RENEICEEAN T Directors’ Sitting Fees 2 2
o7 o Y Audit Fees* 6 6
ST 3T didhe = (Wifafde orar wers) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Statutory Auditor) 4 3
Tih IIs g Stock Yard Expenses 55 27
Coldd, URCST Ud Coliam™ Telex, Postage and Telegram 47 48
golfae Rt Electricity 129 115
fifer vd e Printing and Stationery 42 40
LRINSE Entertainment 22 18
BN Yob Telephone Charges 41 38
[EEICET Advertisement 96 74
dffte aa™ Legal Expenses** 290 261
B! Podb Consultancy Charges 35 158
SRS il wieT Peb Internal Audit fees 2 2
ST 3T dihe & (ITTaR® o am uslerd®s) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Internal Auditor) 3 3
fafag e Miscellaneous Expenses 15 15
FHARI Frgfe @ Staff Recruitment Expenses 11 6
ARy, fhae wd aferd Newspaper, Books and Periodicals 5 4
e amie 1R Corporate Social Responsibility 147 128
e/ e Auction Tender Expenses 74 101
3N U ASETHS 0T & foIq WTgem Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 1824 7380
gd orafd Sre (Y vd wad @1 B) Prior Period ltem (Depreciation on land and building) - 14
Bl Total 4810 10049

*FR ol W Pod $. 1 og wifie ® (e ad 5. 1 o) |
et smywor frafa 9 | Ame & forg . 36 g (e wnfie B faera ad & forg 5. 53 @ () ©

* Includes Tax Audit fees of ¥ 1 lac (previous yr. ¥ 1 lac)
** Includes ¥ 36 lacs (approx.) prev.yr ¥ 53 lacs (approx.) pertains to cases relating to Gold Jewellary Export.

feaoft : 24 (T) : RAEh gz A =9

Note 24 (a) : Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency :

%. @@ #H) / (% in Lacs)

faaRor Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
AHEMT BT 3T Import of Goods 135936 160334
I @I TG A Travelling Expenses & other 17 14
Pl Total 135953 160348
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feooft : 24 () : faceh g1 § o

Note 24 (b) : Earnings in Foreign Currency : (v.em@ #) /  in Lacs)
fore=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
Bk SR N E-auction Registration fees 5 13
£yl Total 5 13

feagoft : 25 : yEydy TR ¢
Note 25 : (a) Managerial Remuneration :
(@) gderaia qRsIHe

(3. a9 ) / € in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015

AP F AT T Director's Salaries & Allowances 150 94
afas ffer # ot @ ArTe Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund 7 7
afean = @ wfagf Reimbursement of Medical expenses 2 2

")

d)

fp el 1 du g1 s wgels & forg &R & o 2aer @ gfaen yem #1188, 99 e o f&a am/srgeny & w9 d
=&t forar 7 2

u TIRE/YY It T @ AR diferdt & forg it @1 A forar e €, 5 fderet & fog ot s sar 7, ey & wu |
T foram T RfF Tw ffEEa T

SIRRD A RIS GIAM b AER TR BRIFEET A & qoae e g1

Since the facility of private use of car for limited mileage is provided by the Company to Directors, such facility has not been
considered as benefit / perquisite.

Premium paid for Master policy of Group Gratuity Scheme / Group Insurance which also covers Directors has not been
considered as perquisite since it is unascertainable.

The above includes Performance related pay on actual payment basis.

feoqoft : 26 : e Uit &1 gHSIEROT
Note 26 : Related party disclosure
1 1) 2 veeratg efifs -

sft v & Bardl, sremer vd wey fowre
5 v ¥ 9y, Fevs (faw)

it ft Y g, fewe (@)

sft TH.PH. 1T - S A

1.a) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) :

Shri S K Tripathi — Chairman-cum-Managing Director
Shri A.K.Basu — Director (Finance)

Shri B.B. Singh — Director (Commercial)

Shri S.K. Ray — Company Secretary

¥ & IR T wiEal | o ¢

Transaction with related party during the year :
e @ TPf ot
Nature of Transaction KMP
U< yeEd qRsiie T 197 o
Managerial Remuneration Paid % 197 lacs
(X 125 om™a)
(X 125 lacs)
QY g T3
Balance outstanding: % 3lac
R 2 ™)
2 lac)
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2. 5 wpy fom fafies (Gt o qot warfaea areft smefies doeh)
2. Bot B WeEEl & oy g o gk & w9 5 vweaeTed 9 5. 3 (e o %, 7 @) o gen B

239, Bl Pl THUATAYA A ST & Hal Yodb & w9 A4 ©. 1 g ([ av : . 4 ) o gan & |

231, SO A AT Mar & FdE b oy HRefor Harsii b q8d YHUhUd Bl 9. 256 drg (R av %, 341 &™) @ I b |
2. Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary company)

2.a. The company has received ¥ Nil (Previous Year : ¥ 7 lacs) as reimbursement of expenses for CMD from FSNL.

2.b. The company has received service charges for e-auction from FSNL ¥ 1 lacs (Previous Year : ¥ 4 lacs)

2.c. The company has paid ¥ 256 lacs (Previous Year : ¥ 341 lacs) towards custodian services for ware house management to
FSNL.

feooft : 27 : vgw-17 & srgaR fRwifv Rafér :
Note 27: Segmental Reporting as per AS — 17:
HIA T YUE-17 @ F@l & AR @ Ud fAuvE # oo ] et e uenT & w0 A fafRd fRer 21 gst e A e T8 2

In terms of AS-17 the Company has identified Marketing and E-Commece as its two Primary Reportable Business Segments.
There is no Secondary Segment

(. @@ %)/ R in Lacs) / (farra @) / (previous year)

= faqors S PIER 3 (STEfeT) P
Particulars Marketing E-Commerce Others (unallocated) Total
EISINNET) 281147 12775 2836 296758
Total Revenue (535637) (13694) (1317) (550648)
Dol I 278843 378 8403 287624
Total Expenses (524245) (313) (12943) (5637501)
o (F= gd e/ (-) 2304 12397 (5567) 9134
Result (Profit/Loss(-) before Tax) (11392) (13393) (-11638) (13147)
B A 3146
Tax expenses (4048)
ey & forg am/er (-) 5988
Profit/ Loss(-) for the period (9099)

IR Td <Farel & JFAEfed TP & dRoT o &t fFan s ||
Assets & liabilities could not be segmented due to their unallocable nature.

feoqult : 28 : @UR | U @7 AV, AR T TG AR H et I giea)oy/ e v uRmm sy gHree @ v 21 afE e
81, Fram @1 SR SR W o T | e, S8l R SR §, e w2

Note 28 : Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Advances include balances subject to confirmation/reconcilliation
and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions, wherever considered necessary,
have been made.
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feoquft : 29 : Uy AR Sy F AU FEETER fear &

Note 29 : Earning per share has been computed as under :-

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

fore=or Particulars 2015-2016  2014-2015
PRIRIT-ATH (T, oG H) Profit after Tax [ in lacs) 5988 9099
IRT B G (316T) No. of shares (Nos.) 8800000 8800000
PRI &9 W ART IR T (Ufy TR Earnings per share on profit after tax 68 103
3ifpd g ©.10/-) (face value % 10/- per share)
Rra/sEcE (3.)° — Basic/Diluted (% )*

oot : 30 : 3N RIE ITAN vd ufegar (W 9% ye™ = fhar )

AHIR¥D TR # WA St & foeg S0 B %01 & w9y § L forar WA -

Note 30 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Contingent Liabilities include claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt :-
(5. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 205-2016 2014 - 2015

fast PY Td AT o Sales Tax & Customs 4700 4531

MICERICIES Money Suits 15605 12875

qra- Arbitration 2655 4717

e @ Legal Expenses 325 325

‘ SURED Income Tax 429 677
| R4 R Service Tax 1611 1612
Pl Total 25325 24737

feugoft : 31 (u) : 31 A1 2016 & WANK 9§ & oY Yo Wi, w4, fama vd war wid &1 fJavor :
Note 31 (a) : Statement of Opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(forra @) / (previous year) / (A3 ‘000 2+7) / (Qty ‘000 Tonnes) / (3. @@ #)/ % in Lacs)

| &1 fRERor YRR Lh £ CED ¥ ©ib
Description Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
of material
13 T 13 T 13 T 13 T
Qty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Value
P 3iae 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Crude Ol 0 0 (155) (55066) (155) (55754) 0 0
BID/BTA 337 14683 5658 254935 5955 269023 40 1529
Coke / Coal (86) (3605) (11240) (470809) (10989) (461983) (337) (14683)
253406 269023
(525875) (517737)
EIE sifemr faer IS 449 457
Add : Final Bill Adj. (245) (315)
255384 269480
(526120 (518052)
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feugoft 31 () : SR & sremar FUH 7 BiIeley & w9 H =G F ATIR TR WA B

Note 31 (b) : In addition to above the Company have also purchased material as facilitator as per details below :

(fra @) / (previous year) / (AT ‘000 €71) / (Qty ‘000 Tonnes) / (3. @@ #) / % in Lacs)

el &1 faeRo | e & Jfo Jar TR
Description of material Qty Purchase Value Service Charges Earned
T 3N e 1 120 3
H R Coils (1) (394) (8)
DI/ DI 500 25840 741
Coke / Coal (629) (66748) (1378)
faercw 0 0 0
Billets (6) (2294) (43)
LD 382 91281 1134
Naptha (95) (65376) (1409)
MR 3R 525 24870 722
Iron Ore / Pellete (503) (27506) (514)
EHEICECIN 18 1246 50
Manganese Ore (44) (3872) (93)
T amRA 0 0 0
Pig Iron (7) (2212) (43)
EQL 4 359 16
Chrome 0 0 0
e SR 16119 298
Electrical Equipment 0 0
Pel / Total 1430 159835 2964

(1285) (168402) (3488)

fewquRt 32 : forra av & SnFS] BT STl SRRA § 81 Y FafRId Ud g fed fhar w7l

Note 32 : Figures for the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary to make it comparable.

| @A
YoNdRoT |, 3131248

A vy 4t &g
ATER
9 5. 050209

IRIg : 03.08 2016
R : BIABI

Fd TATECRY fafics  For MSTC Limited

For Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Regn. No. 313124E

CA S P.Basu
Partner
M no. 050209

Dated : 03.08.2016
Place : Kolkata

(Ft &, Rre)
areey W wey s

(B. B. Singh)

Chairman-cum-Managing Director

(IR & =)

TemEyd (i vd o)

(R. K. Chaudhuri)

General Manager (Finance & Accounts)
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(Subrata Kumar Ray)
Company Secretary




wAuaeRY fafics . MSTC LIMITED

31 9, 2016 &) JH 9§ & o Fde vare faaxor
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(5. @@ %) / (T in Lacs)

2015-16 2014-15
gR=rer Tfafafel | o yarE Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
IR g4 frael o gd srEraR qree Net Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary ltems 9134 13147
HUBT %ﬂ HHETATSTE Adjustment for Depreciation 361 (128)
yaterafd qeugr v amnit Adjustment for Prior period item - 14
AT § I —gg FEHRITSTT Adjustment for Dividend Income (642) (468)
FHTT aﬁ@@aﬁq} & foru wErST Adjustment for writing off CWIP - 84
ST ¥ M B FATITST Adjustment for Interest Income (6250) (7681)
FRGR! Yot gRadE | qd uRare= @ Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2603 4968
MR e # (gfe)/aH (Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors/Trade Receivables 90228 (22694)
o a1 AR e SRR ¥ (g (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current/Non Current Assets 547 214
Srgfafy/ereara w01 vd e (Increase)/Decrease in Long term/Short term Loans (998) (1458)
F (qf)/BH & Advances
wle/sTaed ¥ (gfy)/aH (Increase)/Decrease in Stock/Inventories 13154 (11078)
fafae SFERT /=R 3ERT /=T saam /smaer;  Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors/Trade Payables  (91571) 21019
# gqfg / () Current/Non Current Liabilities/Provisions
T A Adhe Wi Cash Generated from Operation 13963 (9029)
S SAPY T Advance Income Tax Paid (2934) (7326)
warer TffeRl & ¥ TS 94TE ¢ (T)  Net Cash Flow from Opertaing Activities : (A) 11029  (16355)
Frdrr wfdfafertt & e warE Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
3rgel gREFRE/ ey @ wdiq Purchase of Fixed Assets(Net) 852 (71)
EISASICIN Dividend Received 642 468
EISERI] Interest Received 6250 7681
e afofaffml @ faa @ i (@) Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B) 7744 8078
focita wfefafet & e e Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
SCICIRESEINE I Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (45781) 22371
EESESIRIN Dividend Paid (1822) -
SITHIY TR Y Tax on Dividend (363) -
facfta wifofaféral # om faet Be (M) Net Cash used in Financing Activites (C) (47966) 22371
THe T4 The wHS A et g (T+A+3)  Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) (29193) 14094
THE T THE AHMD-TRID Cash & Cash Equivalent — Opening 123698 109604
THS T4 ThS FAMD-3Hfer Cash & Cash Equivalent — Closing 94505 123698
fewoll 16 & IR FhT Td THT WA Cash & Cash Equivalent as per Note 16
He T WA gl A Cash and Stamp on hand 1 1
de] et Current Accounts 25405 34586
SUCIMCIEl Dividend Accounts 61 59
STHT "1l Deposit Accounts 69038 89052

94505 123698
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feoquRt @ oaf F ofd H TP Td THE! THES H W JTa1 e BT TY AT B, 61 RI Ud &1 & fIvg Arafy S 5. 903 oy gfifa
(TREY) WHY W Y E, S U & YIRT F Y Sueter e ¥

Note : Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period include Unclaimed Dividend of ¥ 61 lacs Term Deposit of ¥ 903 lacs
furnished as guarantee against claims which are not available for use to the Company.

T9 IRRG & IR ufddes & ded 7 ® 1

In terms of our report of even date.

| @A
ToldRT |, 3131248

g va dt a9
ATER
TH 5. 050209

IRIg : 03.08 2016
R BIABI

Fd THTECRY fafics  For MSTC Limited

For Ray & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Regn. No. 313124E

CASP.

Partner

Basu

M no. 050209

Dated : 03.08.2016

Place :

Kolkata

(F &, Rre)
Iegel g uey fevre

(B. B. Singh)

Chairman-cum-Managing Director

(IR & =)

TemEyd (i vd o)

(R. K. Chaudhuri)

General Manager (Finance & Accounts)
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A3 AT gRIeTh Bl Ufaded

TSR forfies & wewl & ufa

Fafeha facia fexor w aftaes

RT & HERATRID T& i@l W& GRT IaaldT $ AUR K,
i 03/08/2016 &1 § Wit RUI # crRuRMthada 3Igfeal H
U< IR gU AT i usien Ruid s fépam /i &1

&9 31 |19, 2016 ®I FAfHA o I3 Bl WA BR TagAC il
fafics (qguia st "FriE -’ & w9 § defi@) vd gaa!
AERI®H Bl (PRI SU Ud $HD! ABRID HU! Bl b A1
"THE" & WU A Hafia) & e faxiy faaRer & e o
TIevT fhaT & FRT S R B §ATE gY ¥ & o9 U4
BI, FHH e yaTg [qarvT vd Hecaqol oikam it qer s
IRATHD TAFBIRAT (AGURT Tl "FHfba faciy fJavor” &
w9 ¥ Hefa) Wi @t 18 21

TAfhd it favor 3 va=m &1 Swea

R S & e dea Sut srfafas, 2013 (‘sriefs &
U H Gefia) o srfdranei & wed # g wnfed faig faavor
BT IR B & [T SRR & 1 wfepd faciia Ry, wifea
< SRi@eY Ud YR H§ A=A Widhd okdl fgidl &
I W Y8 BT AH B be YaTs Aled I 3 grT 133
& el IR oa e &1 9 &R We TR I Bl
2| e H e Hull & TR e ded 31 ReER)
T wge @) uRewaRmal o) grem & g vd et ol e
T T S QAT 3 At & oy e rae & graumi &
e H qaTe oikat Repred T, Sugeh ol il &1 79+ vd
N HRA1, S Td fadeyul o gd /A &1, Ud 9w
3R iy FRIF Y [ESITe, R SR Yd §91¢ @1, S
< Rared &) dfewdr v quiar &1 gHfead &1 & forg
guTdl 3 9§ HaTferd o, JeaTS i faavor & daR vd wRga
AT ST F T T TR IR PRl 81 U HH IR % e
fa=oT, 92 a1 giEr A1 IS & BRI B, S qaih b Wy H FRE
Ut & e gRT FHfdd fRiRT f3avor &1 R &7 & St
2g FIER fhd T E |

@l gt 1 STReTRd

AR RTER 89R oI TRIeT & SMYR R 39 Jufhd i
faRor 4R ST AR IR BRAT © | S ol aRieT Herferd
B 8, &9 A & uraem=i, o vd ot uklen "l U
U fawg < S & wraemEl vd Sd i 9+ el &
31 orET uRier RUTE # anfiret R SMawIdh § BT & H X
gl

BT =1 iR @Y erRT 143(10) & arefie fiféee sidperor &
HADI & SR o] I_IeT Harferd f6an | 31 9+ # 9 a1d
B STRd Bl ® fF &9 I smawadar @ IS B gRT R
T i faRoT Tefd S & §<h 2 &b aR H IS sarad
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of MSTC LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

On the basis of the observations made by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India, the revised audit report has been
prepared in lieu of the earlier report dated 03/08/2016 to
comply with the typographical errors.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of MSTC LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "the
Holding Company") and its subsidiary (the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as " the Group"),
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
consolidated financial statements").

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Holding Company's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company
has an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and audit
evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report
referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i.  Reference is invited to Note No. 15 (a) of Notes on
Account, Gain / Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
on exports are not accounted for as per AS-11. Had the
Company complied with AS-11, exchange gain would
have been increased by ¥ 5163 lacs for the year
(cumulative ¥ 31236 lacs upto 31.03.2016).
Consequently Trade Receivables are understated by
% 31236 lacs. As per agreement, exchange gain / loss
relating to above is passed on to associate suppliers
upto the amount payable to them. Thus Trade Payables
are understated by ¥ 30768 lacs and net effect of the
above gain leads to understatement of profit of the
Company by X 77 lacs for the year (cumulative ¥ 468
lacs upto 31.03.2016).

ii. Reference is invited to Note no. 28 of Notes on Account
relating to pending confirmation / reconciliation of
balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payables and
its consequential adjustment that may arise on
reconciliation.

iii. As stated in Note no. 15(b) of Notes on Account, Trade
Receivables includes ¥ 9863 lacs for export trade
receivable of gold jewellery done in the year 2008-09
involving 46 parties and recovery of which are under
litigation at various levels. CBIl and ED have been
investigating the matter since 26.10.2010. Claims have
been lodged with ECGC for ¥ 45075 lacs but the claims
have been repudiated by the ECGC. The Company has
initiated the cases against ECGC for the dues against
buyers insured by them with National Consumer
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Disputes Redressal Commission (NCDRC) who has
ordered the Company vide order on 16.04.2014 that it
has no jurisdiction to judge the matter. The Company
has taken up the matter at Ministry level and has filed
statutory appeal to Hon'ble Supreme Court against this
order. The matter is still pending before the Court.

The Company has filed 46 legal cases against the foreign
buyers in UAE, Singapore and Kuwait. All the 46
judgements have been awarded in favour of MSTC and
all the same are under execution. Till now no money has
been recovered against these awards.

One of the associates, namely, M/s Ushma Jewellery &
Packaging Exports (P) Ltd. has mortgaged landed
property worth ¥ 12400 lacs (valuation done in 2014 by
Govt. Registered valuer). A writ petition for sale/transfer
of the said mortgaged property has been filed at the
Mumbai High Court. CBI and ED investigating the matter
have seized assets and properties worth ¥ 24040 lacs
(including land valued ¥ 12400 lacs and liquid assets
worth ¥ 3979 lacs). MSTC have approached CBI court
requesting for permission to transfer of an amount of
% 900 lacs which had been received during the year
2013-14. Applications are being made for transfer of
remaining amount seized by CBI/ED in the form of liquid
assets worth ¥ 3079 lacs.

However, a provision has been made for an amount of
% 22678 lacs as bad and doubtful debts during the
previous year in addition to ¥ 900 lacs provision made
during the earlier years. We are doubtful about the
recovery of the above Trade Receivable which are due
for more than 7 years and in our opinion, a further
provision should be made for ¥ 35385 lacs. This has
resulted in overstatement of profit and also
understatement of provision by ¥ 35385 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 14307 lacs due from
M/S Concast Steel & Power Ltd (CSPL) as at 31.03.2016
for supply of materials. The Company decided to allow
an adhoc limit of ¥ 5000 lacs for procuring LAM Coke, in
May'14 ignoring the several adverse features in the
account like huge quantity of unlifted stock procured
prior to May 2014, adverse credit information received
from State Bank of India, adverse capacity utilization
Etc.

The Company had received only ¥ 95 lacs during the
period June 2014 to March 2016. Further the cheques
(PDC) of CSPL given as security were also dishonored
by bank and a suit has been filed by the Company under
Section 138 of NI Act, 1881.

Due to substantial decrease in price of the material,
MSTC's attempt of risk sale in recent past didn't yield
any fruitful results and the chances of recovery of the
amount is doubtful. After considering the realizable
market value of the pledged stock of ¥ 8132 lacs and
security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 6165 lacs during the year
2015-16. This has resulted in overstatement of profit
and understatement of provision for the year 2015-16
by ¥ 6165 lacs.

As stated in Note No 15 (c) of Notes on Account relating
to Trade Receivables amounting to ¥ 6056 lacs as at
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31.03.2016 from SESA International Ltd (SESA) for
supply of materials during the FY 2008-09 against which
arbitration proceedings has been initiated by the
Company and are in progress. The Company has also
filed a suit in Hon'ble Calcutta High Court against Indian
Overseas Bank (IOB) for their wrong debit in the account
of the Company for an amount of ¥ 3656 lacs. Stock of
entire material lying at port was sold at ¥ 102 lacs which
are kept with the receiver as per Court order pending
the final judgment on this score. The Company has made
a further provision of ¥ 1000 lacs this year in addition to
the provision of ¥ 3000 lacs already made during the
FY 2014-15. Thus total provision made upto the end of
2015-16 is ¥ 4000 lacs. We are doubtful about the
recovery of the above trade receivables and in our
opinion further provision should be made for the balance
amount of ¥ 2056 lacs. This has resulted overstatement
of profit and understatement of provision for the year
2015-16 by ¥ 2056 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3556 lacs as at 31.03.2016
due from M/S Concast Bengal Industries Ltd. for supply
of materials two years back against which no repayment
is forthcoming in conformity with the terms of sanction.
M/s Concast Bengal Industries Ltd. had paid only ¥ 1611
lacs during the period from June 2014 to March 2016
out of which only ¥ 30 lacs has been paid during
2015-16. Prospect of recovery of outstanding dues is
remote as bid for e-auction of steel billets on 26.05.2016
has failed to attract any buyer.

After considering the realizable market value of the
pledged stock of ¥ 2645 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should be made for
¥ 901 lacs during the year. This has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 901 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3328 lacs due from
M/S Dankuni Steel Ltd for supply of materials. Notice for
e-auction of LAM Coke measuring 23500.00 MT and
Coke fines to the tune of 3634.00 MT was published on
09.08.2015 which didn't attract any prospective buyer.
M/s. Dankuni had paid only ¥ 250 lacs during June 2014
to March 2016. There was no business with Dankuni
since June 2014 and the chances of recovery of the
amount is doubtful. After considering the realizable
market value of the pledged stock of ¥ 1603 lacs, in our
opinion provision should be made for ¥ 1725 lacs during
the year. This has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for the year 2015-16 by
% 1725 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3959 lacs due from
M/S Crest Steel & Power Ltd for supply of materials prior
to May, 2013. Thus age of procured materials are old
over 3 years which obviously lost its quality with the
passing of time. Party has failed to honor the award of
Arbitration. Out of a total sum of ¥ 600 lacs to be paid
upto March'16, they have paid only ¥ 390 lacs upto May
2016. Outof¥ 150 lacs to be paid during Apriland May'16,
nothing has been paid. Necessary execution petition
has been filed on 04.04.2016 and notice has been
issued to the Party. Tentative Date of first hearing is
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15.06.2016. Thus, the Debtors has become Stressed
Assets and the chances of recovery of the amount is
remote. After considering the realizable market value of
the pledged stock of ¥ 1750 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should be made for
% 2199 lacs during the year 2015-16. This has resulted
in overstatement of profit and understatement of
provision for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2199 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 3039 lacs due from
M/S Global Coke Ltd for procuring and supply of materials
to the party upto Decemeber'14. The present value of
realizable materials are ¥ 1279 lacs. In the meantime,
GCL has been referred to BIFR, and for disposing of
material belongs to a BIFR Company, the Company has
to take permission from BIFR which is not an easy
process. Therefore, the Company can't sell the material
to recover at least a part of its dues and had to wait till
the outcome of BIFR is known to the Company. Hence,
considering the realizable market value of the pledged
stock of ¥ 1279 lacs and security deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, the
loss of the Company is assessed as ¥ 1750 lacs for
which necessary provision is to be made in their books
of account. Non-provision of the same has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for¥ 1750 lacs.

As stated in Note No 15 (e) of Notes on Account relating
to Trade Receivables amounting to ¥ 24083 lacs as at
31.03.2016 from M/S SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd for
procuring and supply of materials to the party upto
October, 2012, almost three and half years ago. Thus
with the passage of time, quality has been deteriorated
and it can't fetch the desirable price. In an agreement
MSTC agreed to fix and release material at the prevailing
market rate in three tranches from May 2016 onwards,
out of 3 time lifting, 2 time lifting of material will be issued
to the SPS at market price plus 20 percent (MS Billet),
25 percent (Sponge Iron) and 30 percent (lron Ore/
Pellets) thereon as loading and one time on the basis of
book value as per Award of Arbitration (08.05.2016). As
per this arrangement, MSTC will be able to recover
% 20942 lacs as against their outstanding advance of
% 24083 lacs. No agreement was entered into by MSTC
with the party to recover the balance amount of ¥ 3141
lacs till date. No lifting has been made so far in
accordance with the said agreement. Hence the
anticipated loss out of this agreement is ¥ 3131 lacs, net
of existing Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs, which has not
been provided in the annual accounts of the Company
for the FY 2015-16. This has resulted in overstatement
of profit and understatement of provision for ¥ 3131 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1917 lacs due from M/S
Marmagoa Steel Ltd for procuring and supply of
materials to the party upto October, 2012. The Company
was well aware of the dwindling financial condition of
the party yet it allowed financial exposure to the party
even at a time when the commodities of earlier
consignments were not lifted. Therefore the chance of
recovery of dues from BIFR referred Company seem
remote. Considering the aspect of recovery the Company
should have made a further provision ¥ 483 lacs, in
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Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

addition to existing provision of ¥ 1424 lacs, covering
the entire dues of the party, net of Security Deposit of
% 10 lacs. This non-provisioning has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for ¥ 483 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 2637 lacs due from
M/S Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd for procuring and supply of
materials to the party upto March 2016 for Jajpur unit.
Both its Bishnupur and Haldia units are closed. No
volumetric assessment could have been undertaken
during March '16 owing to closure of the factory. In
absence of appropriate audit evidence, we are unable
to ascertain the raalizable market value of the pledged
stock. We are doubtful about the recovery of the
outstanding amount. After considering the security
deposit of ¥ 69 lacs in our opinion provision should be
made for ¥ 2568 lacs which has not been provided by
the Company in its books of accounts for the year
2015-16. This non-provisioning has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for the year 2015-16 by ¥ 2568 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 589 lacs due from
M/S Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd for procuring and supply
of materials after adjusting the sale proceeds of e-auction
butincluding interest on outstanding balance. The Entire
material of Topworth Pipes & Tubes Ltd. has been
disposed off through e-auction by the Company and
virtually there is no stock. Thus the present book dues of
the party amounting ¥ 579 lacs, after adjustment of
Security Deposit of ¥ 10 lacs is fully unsecured and no
provision has been made for the same during the year
2015-16. This non-provisioning has resulted in
overstatement of profit and understatement of provision
for 2015-16 by ¥ 579 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 10876 lacs due from
M/S Topworth Steels & Powers Ltd for procuring and
supply of materials upto February 2014. There was a
shortage in quantum of procured materials as per
volumetric assessment carried out w.r.t position as at
31.03.2016 for which the party was asked to make good
the same which has not been carried out as yet. After
considering the realizable market value of the pledged
stock amounting to ¥ 4255 lacs and security deposit of
% 10 lacs, in our opinion provision should be made of
% 6611 lacs during the year. This non-provisioning has
resulted in overstatement of profit and understatement
of provision for 2015-16 by ¥ 6611 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 12193 lacs due from
M/S Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. for procuring and supply of
materials upto July 2013. Thus the age of entire stock is
old over 3 years and quality has been certainly degraded
to fetch the desired amount to cover the present
outstanding resulting in remote possibility of recovery of
dues. Previous year also we suggested for making a
provision of ¥ 6273 lacs against such loss which was
not adhered to by the Company and same was
considered by us as audit qualification. This year only
% 362 lacs has been repaid by the party. Due to such
recurring defaults in payment despite commitment in
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Court, the chances of recovery is doubtful. After
considering the realizable market value of pledged stock
amounting to ¥ 3922 lacs, in our opinion provision
should be made for ¥ 8271 lacs during the year. This
has resulted in overstatement of profit and
understatement of provision for 2015-16 by ¥ 8271 lacs.

Trade Receivables includes ¥ 1870 lacs due from
M/S Siddhartha Tubes Ltd. for procuring and supply of
materials upto February 2014. Thus the entire stock is
old over two years and due to substantial fall in market
price of the procured item, outstanding amounting are
unsecured to the tune of ¥ 685 lacs, net of security deposit
amounting ¥ 40 lacs which has not been provided by
the Company in its books of accounts for the year 2015-
16. This non-provisioning has resulted in overstatement
of profit and understatement of provision for 2015-16
% 685 lacs.

XVi.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in paragraph (i) to (vi) of Basis for Qualified
Opinion, the overall effect of which is overstatement of profit
by ¥ 72432 lacs, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its subsidiary as
at 31st March, 2016, and their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. Had
the effect of above non provisions amounting to ¥ 72432 lacs
given in the accounts, then the net profit of ¥ 7457 lacs would
have been converted to net loss of ¥ 64975 lacs.

Emphasis of matters :-

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements :

a) As stated in Note no. 15(d) of Notes on Account,
Unauthorized lift of pledged stock of materials by Haldia
Petrochemicals Ltd. indicates lacuna in supervision of
pledged stock mechanism of the company and the
uncertainty of recovery of debts as outstanding amount
is not backed by pledged stock and the agreed payment
schedule is very long.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements/ financial
information of one wholly owned subsidiary, whose
financial statements/ financial information reflect total
assets of ¥ 36837 lacs as at 31st March 2016, total
revenue of ¥ 34707 lacs and net cash flows amounting
to ¥ 11320 lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements also include the share
of profits of ¥ 2111 lacs for the year ended 31st March
2016 as considered in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of one subsidiary whose financial
statements/ financial information has not been audited
by us. This financial statements/ financial information
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has been audited by other auditor whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely
on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in terms of the directions of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) under
Section 143(5) of the Act, and on the basis of our
examination of the books and records of the Group
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
principles in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A,
statement on the matters specified in the directions and
sub-directions of CAG.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to
the extent applicable, that :

a. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b. In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, proper books of account as
required by law relating to the preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have
been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified opinion
paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act as
applicable.

e. The matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

f.  The qualification relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above.
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g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our report in
"Annexure B", which is based on the Auditors'
Reports of the Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India. Our report
expresses an adverse opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose
the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group -
Refer Note no. 30 to the consolidated financial
statements

ii. The Group did not have any material for
eseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. Following is the instance of delay in transferring
amount, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company.

Nature Date of Due Date of Transferredon Amount
Declaration transfer (in lacs)

Unclaimed 15/09/2008 15/10/2015  23/11/2015 11.00
Dividend

There has been a delay of 39 days in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding company.

For Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 313124E

CA. S P Basu
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date :29/08/2016 Mno. 050209
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Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013

SI. No.

fAder

Direction

3IheTh BT SR
Auditor’s Reply

R P B U HA: Wigles U4 cioleles 8g
e TrEfea/dNT swde 87 af T8 & 1 Fua
wiEles Td fiveies 4 @ & san s forg

cTsfedl/cloT SxdTdSl Sudte =8l |

Whether the Company has clear title/lease
deeds for freehold and leasehold respectively?
If not please state the area of freehold and
leasehold land for which title/lease deeds are
not available.

Py RAIS o & a1 =or/aol/ars ofe &1 @
qIR/]TZC IATH BT Bl THAT &, I & A S9H
AT IhH P qolg T D |

Please report whether there are any cases of
waiver/ write off of debts/loan/interest etc. If yes,
the reason there for and amount involved

R oS gifedl b U TS SeRA Td IRGR AT
3T WTTIHRUT § SUBR/E & w0 # ure uRewafky

¥q @ Rers <@ &

Whether proper records are maintained for
inventories lying with third parties & assets
received as gift/grant(s) from Government or
other authorities

o= et & " H -

el THRRN P CRfCd SIS HHEA b AW H 3 R
THRAT H rafRrd 2 weicd, et Sferk # 4 woiew, Jolrs # 4
Telcd, TSl WeR H 2 Teicd Ud dial, s A 1w |

HERI® HFT b HH | -

orEr qerd 7 33 guf & WRUgS ool IR Hel-dgedt & rfora
doETes g & eRfed @ wg @ 71

In case of Holding Company:-

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the
name of the company except for 2 flats situated at Dhakuria,
4 flats at Finley Tower, 4 flats at Malad, 2 flats at Raheja
Centre and 1 flat at Bandra, Mumbai.

In case of Subsidiary:-

The auditor has examined the title of leasehold land
acquired from SAIL-BSP on perpetual lease of 33 years.

o= et & " H -

¥ & IR AT BIS AT el 2

HERI® HF & HHA H -

FHHAT T IR UG Hegede ®OT B ol wral # faRf ay
2015-16 # 585 oRg Wraem= febar g1

In case of Holding Company:-
There is no such cases during the year.
In case of Subsidiary :-

The company has made a provision for Bad &
Doubtful Debt of ¥ 5.85 lacs in the books of account in the
FY 2015-16.

e B & AW # -

PRzt @l ¥ o wisl % et gieRal @1 i Rer
B IE 3 WHR A1 Rt o MR & SUER & w9 # Big
Ry o e @) 2

HERI® HF & HHA H ¢

FEAT P g US Ul TSI g8 el 8| HEA Py URAERT
e A8l fmar 2

In case of Holding Company:

The Holding Company has maintained proper records for
inventories lying with third parties. The Group has not
received any assets as gift from Govt. or any other
authorities.

In case of Subsidiary:

The inventory of the Company is not lying with third party.
The company has not received any assets.
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WERE - B B ITAFRET 2013 &Y oRT 143(5) & MEfH YR & fFRi=6 Td Tea@aR & Su-feer
Sub-Direction of Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
143(5) of the Companies Act 2013 of Subsidiary Company

9. Su-frear
SI. No. Sub-Directions

[T
Reply

ISl T o HHATRAT b AT b e G TR Bl
T B ST §RT STehferd I+ # fawmRa uforera sira ax
wd RIS X 5 71 7% 3 Sfud o vd fwifes qeaie 7g
famie & forg ot gRT ue & 18 i sfids |, gRyef
T ag o |

Examine the percentage escalation in salary assumed
by the management for compute of actuarial liability
against gratuity and other employee benefits and report
whether the same was reasonable , and source data
provided by the company to the Actuaries for actuarial
valuation were correct, complete and valid.

Il RAE Saq 99 gR1 e fean smar g1 f[fe @

famifhe qeates divies g1 iR fear mar 2|

SWRI & e, FH 1 Fr=ifeed gq fmie geaieT & forg

ST PHATRAT & &9 BT HedTh 6T &

i) el THaIbROT TSIl

i)  oEE U HHAR) Bq fafeear
i)  fuerT W
TAAE FHARAT TG <Y T AT

v) FHART TRAR T AT

iv)

vi)  IEPRI UK HRIUTED] 8g AARI fafde e

JER WA & SMER W, HF A IS 3 SWIh 9 A
(i) & (vi) & qeaiea B dWie 2] Hies S Fgfd vd v
31 weM 6l &1

The Gratuity is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of
India. The actuarial valuation of the fund is carried out by the
Actuary.

Apart from above, the company evaluate its employee benefit
through Actuarial valuation for the followings:

i) Leave encashment scheme
ii) Medical Insurance for retired employee
iii)

iv)

Settlement allowance

Long service award to the existing employees
v) Employee family benefit scheme

vi) Domiciliary medical benefit for retired executives
Based on the understanding, the company has provided

appropriate and adequate data to the actuaries for actuarial
valuation of all the above items in (i) to (vi) and for Gratuity.
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ANNEXURE-B to the INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2(g)under "Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements" section of our report of even
date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of MSTC LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "the
Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India as at 31st March 2016 in conjunction
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and its subsidiary
companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAl and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those
Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with
the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
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system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidenced obtained by other auditor of the subsidiary
company, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that;

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Qualified Opinion

According to the information & explanation given to us and
based on our audit, the following material weakness have
been identified as at 31stMarch 2016 :-

a) The Holding Company did not have an appropriate
internal control system for customer acceptance,
credit evaluation and establishing credit limits for
sales, which could potentially result in the Company
recognizing revenue without establishing
reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.

b) The Holding Company did not have an appropriate
internal control system for inventory with regard to
pledged stock of raw materials procured by the
Company on behalf of the customers. Volumetric
assessment was not conducted for Haldia
Petrochemicals Ltd andRohit Ferro Tech Ltd.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the company's annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material
weaknesses described above on the achievements of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained,
in all material aspects, adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31st March 2016, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates
to one subsidiary company, incorporated in India, is based
on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such company
incorporated in India.

For Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 313124E

CA. S P Basu
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date :29.08.2016 Mno. 050209
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND
AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION
129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF MSTC LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2016

The preparation of Consolidated financial statements of MSTC
Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2016 in accordance
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management
of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139(5) read with section 129(4) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section
143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29 August 2016.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
have conducted a supplementary audit under Section
143(6)(a) read with section 129(4) of the Act of the
consolidated financial statements of MSTC Limited for the
year ended 31st March, 2016. We have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of MSTC and
its subsidiary viz. Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited for the year
ended on that date. This supplementary audit has been carried
out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the
statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or
supplement to statutory auditors’ report.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India
W/J'/

(Praveer Kumar)

N

Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-I
Kolkata

Place : Kolkata
Date : 12.09.2016




wAuaeR fafics . MSTC LIMITED

wHfha st 97 : 31 919 2016

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2016

(3. @@ %)/ in Lacs)

feooft 4. As at As at
= Particulars Note No.  31.03.2016 &1 31.03.2015 &I
. sft vd Suand l. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. ¥RuRG Bt Al 1. Shareholders’ funds
(®) R Ioft (a) Share Capital 2 880 880
(@) IR v ity (b) Reserves and Surplus 3 88085 82920
2 gEferd Igard 2. Non-current liabilities
(@) o7 Dufafdy gamg (a) Other Long term liabilities 4 1217 1287
(@) <y wrguT (b) Long term provisions 4a 4580 4399
3 =g Uy 3. Current Liabilities
(F) reqmafa o (a) Short-term Borrowings 5 65332 110612
(@) URIE T (b) Trade Payables 6 214672 302949
(1) 31 A1 *IaAg (c) Other Current Liabilities 7 93418 92382
(&) Sreurafer wraen= (d) Short-term Provisions 8 7762 7212
Ll TOTAL 475946 602641
. aR=fafm Il. ASSETS
1. R dioger aRwaRm 1. Non-Current Assets
() oot o (a) Fixed Assets 9
(i) W gRgfrT (i) Tangible Assets 6154 7314
(ii) 3l aR=fafRr (ii) Intangible assets 11 5
(iif) ot BT} SR (iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 415 124
(iv) faeprT & Sfeia st iRl (iv) Intangible assets under development 0 67
() srvafera faer (b) Non-Current Investments 10 0 0
(M) SR #R aRFuRTT (FE) (c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 11 17673 16852
(=) <retafey kot vd 1w (d) Long-term Loans and Advances 12 2267 2549
(8) 3 AR Hiegar gRwaft (e) Other Non-Current Assets 13 201 258
2. =g aREuRMi 2. Current Assets
() i (a) Inventories 14 1827 15029
(@) AR e (b) Trade Receivables 15 330852 415366
(1) b Td Tbl AT (c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 105825 135031
(&) Sreamafer o1 vd aifie (d) Short-term Loans and Advances 17 8948 8040
() 3= =re] gRwuRTl (e) Other Current Assets 17a 1773 2006
Bl TOTAL 475946 502641
Aeeayqet o fcrat Significant Accounting Policies 1

Fer fewfrat 1 & 47 faciig favor & @1f¥s &1 €1 The accompanying notes numbering 1 to 47 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

I o A 99 ARG B AR ARided & ded 7 g1
Fd THTECRY fafics  For MSTC Limited

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

F A TS . For Ray & Co. (§ 4. Rre) (T % arg)
| @A Chartered Accountants eI |E wdy Fgwre e (fom)
YoNdRoT |, 3131248 Regn. No. 313124E (B. B. Singh) (A. K. Basu)
Ao v o g CA S P. Basu Chairman-cum-Managing Director Director (Finance)
WEER Partner
AR F g ( 1)
T 7. 050209 M no. 050209 ,gmm X )Q_q ) .Wf fﬁ M
ane : 03.08.2016 Dated : 03.08.2016 (R. K. Chaudhuri) (Subrata Kumar Ray)
R : BleTdTd Place : Kolkata General Manager (Finance & Accounts) Company Secretary
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wAuaSRY fafics . MSTC LIMITED

31 A1 2016 &) FHTT 99 & forw |@Afhd o vd gifv &1 faawo
CONSOLIDATED OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016

(5. @@ #)/R in Lacs)

= Particulars fewquf} . Note No. 2015-2016 2014-2015

. gRaEmeE | ora . Revenue from Operations 18 322570 568903
Il 3 Il. Other Income 19 8,252 8,943
. el IOTd (I+1) lll. Total Revenue (I + 1) 3,30,822 5,77,846
V. < V. Expenses :

IYART B TS ARRRT B AT Cost of Materials Consumed 34 3,714 3,364

YRIT HleT B WRIeeR! Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 20 2,55,384 5,26120

ik ¥ ggalid Changes in Inventories 14 13,154 (11,078)

HHART fRqem W =g Employee Benefits Expense 21 16,878 14,675

faciar e Finance Costs 22 9,731 8,771

AUs U4 R Depreciation and Amortization 9 1,335 839

g Expense

SORRSR Other Expenses 23 18,842 19,938

P T Total Expenses 3,19,038 5,62,629
V. sfafeRre 7w vd o7 | V. Profit before Exceptional ltems and 11,784 15,217

qd S (II-1V) Tax (Il - 1V)
Vi, sfafaRne wg VI. Exception ltem 40 2
VIl B 4 @ (V-VI) VII. Profit before Tax (V - VI) 11,744 15,215

R AT VIIL.Tax Expense :

(1) a1 % (1) Current Tax 5,108 7,793

(2) smeerfirg o (2) Deferred Tax (821) (2,919)
IX. 3@t & forg e (81F) (V- IX. Profit (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII) 7,457 10,341
X. 9 gfaadt TR srof: X. Earnings per Equity Share :

(i) 9 (1) Basic 85 118

(i) STAGCS (2) Diluted 85 118

FeTayel eran =fifrat Significant Accounting Policies 1

For fewfort 1 & 47 faxfrr fa=or & orf¥var o7 €1 The accompanying notes numbering 1 to 47 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
Tg A9 T B faeeo aNig & gAR uRded & @ed 7 ¥ This is the Profit & Loss Statement referred to in our report of even date.

P X TS b. For Ray & Co. (4t 4. Rre)

SEEIECICIEIC Chartered Accountants FeFE W8 yeY fawrd
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General Manager (Finance & Accounts)

(T & ar)
e (fom)

(A. K. Basu)

Director (Finance)

(Y FoR 1)

ERRINSICC]

(Subrata Kumar Ray)
Company Secretary
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1.1

1.2

1.2

1.3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON
CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS

A)These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), including
the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

B)The consolidated financial statements relate to MSTC
Limited (‘the Company') and Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
its wholly owned Subsidiary Company. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary company are combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like items
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard
(AS) 21 - "Consolidated Financial Statements"

b) The difference between the cost of investment in the
subsidiary, over the net assets at the time of acquisition
of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the
financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve,
as the case may be.

c) As far as possible, the consolidated financial
statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances and are presented in the same manner
as the Company's separate financial statements.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Group maintains its accounts on accrual basis
following the historical cost convention in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles ["GAAP"],
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act' 2013 and the Accounting Standards as specified
under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act'
2013.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of
the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
The difference between the actual results and estimates,
if any are recognised in the period in which the results
are known / materialised.

ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of eligible modvat /
cenvat less accumulated depreciation and impairments,
if any.
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Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period.

Software is capitalized where it is expected to provide future
enduring economic benefits and same is shown under
Intangible Assets.

Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Straight-
line method in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of
Companies Act 2013. However in case of subsidiary, for the
following class of assets depreciation has been determined
and charged on the basis of technically assessed estimated
useful life.

Plant and Machinery used for hot slag handling -5 Years

Dozer -7 Years
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum -7 Years
Cranes -15Years
Magnetic Separators -15Years

All assets under " Plant and Machinery " except assets
mentioned above - 9.19 Years

Assets with value less than Rs. 5 Thousand - Hundred percent.
Solar Plant - 10 Years

Computer Software classified as Intangible Asset - 6 Years
without any residual value.

In case of subsidiary :

(i)  Capital Work-in-Progress is valued at cost and includes
equipment in transit and the cost of fixed assets that are
not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting
date. The Scraped/redundant fixed assets are valued at
lower of the net book value and estimated net realizable
value.

(i) Fixed Assets Awaiting Disposal" is classified under
"Other non-current Assets" at their net written down
value since these assets have already been retired from
normal continuing operations and is held only for sale/
auction. Further, where the management expects that
any part of said asset is likely to be disposed off within
one year on the Balance Sheet date, the same are
classified as current assets.

1.4 INVESTMENTS

Investments held / intended to be held for a period
exceeding one year are classified as long term
investments and the same are stated at cost. Gains /
losses on long term investments are considered as
income/expenditure at the time of sale only. Current
investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value

determined on an individual investment basis.
1.5 INVENTORIES

Stock in trade including Material-in-transit is valued at
cost or estimated net realisable value whichever is less.
In case of subsidiary

(i) Theinventory items, which have not moved for more
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1.6

than three years, are considered as nonmoving
inventory. These are valued at cost reduced by ten
percent of cost every year from the year 2001-2002.

(ii) The scraped /redundant stores items are valued at
cost or estimated net realizable value whichever is
lower.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis except in the
following items which are accounted on actual
realization since realisibility of such items is uncertain
in accordance with the provisions of AS-9 issued by
ICAL.

i) Decrees pending for execution/contested dues and
interest thereon, if any.

i) Intereston overdue recoverables where realisability

is uncertain.

Liquidated damages on suppliers or contractors.

Refund of Income-Tax/Sales Tax/VAT and interest

thereon.

v) Insurance claims are accounted for on being
accepted by the Insurance Company.

vi) Dividend income is recognized when right to

receive dividend is established

PURCHASES

i) Imported materials are accounted for as purchase
on the basis of date of bill of lading. As regards
value, purchase are booked on the basis of actual
remittance and where such remittances are
outstanding at the close of the year, on the basis of
contracted forward exchange rates, if booked, or
FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on the last
date of the financial year, in case forward cover
was not taken, as the case may be, which includes
C&F / CIF price and usuance interest followed by
final adjustments on actual payment in subsequent
financial year.

i) In case of indigenous materials, purchases are
booked on the basis of transport documents and
as regards value, based on the value of invoices.

i) High sea sales are booked on the basis of date of
issuance of high sea sale letter. As regards value,
sales are booked either at contracted forward
exchange rates, if booked, or provisionally on the
basis of FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on
the last date of the financial year, where forward
cover was not taken, which includes C&F / CIF
price, usuance interest followed by final adjustment
on due date of payment in subsequent financial
year.
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i) Incase of indigenous material, sales are accounted
for on the basis of date of transport documents
and as regards value, based on the value of
invoices. In case of sale on door delivery basis
sales are booked on sales invoice dates.

iii) In case of export, sales are accounted for on the
basis of date of shipment. As regards value, sales
are booked either at contracted forward exchange
rates, if booked, or at the FEDAI rate on the date of
shipment as per custom clearance document,
followed by final adjustment on actual realization

of export proceeds.

SERVICE CHARGES

Remuneration for transaction in Marketing Department
through facilitator mode and for conducting sales/procurement
on behalf of Principals, by way of auctions, tenders, or any
other means, are accounted for as service charges.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Service charges are accounted for as income at
contracted rates on :

i) Tender/Auction sale on behalf of Public Sector
Undertakings, Defence and other Government
Departments on issuance of sale orders / delivery
orders.

ii) On satisfactory completion of e-sales.

In respect of (i) & (i), service charges are accounted
for on bid price of auction with adjustments, if any, on
the basis of actual delivery by the Principals.

iii) On occurrence of event, in case of service contract
on event basis.

iv) In case of E Procurement Service charges are
booked:

In old version where service charges are collectable
from the Principal, on completion of event, and in the
new version, transaction fees are accountable on
receipt from the bidders.

E Procurement transaction fees are accounted on
successful conduct of event.

Service charges accrued in respect of purchase as
facilitator are accounted for at the contracted rate on the
basis of date of bill of lading / railway receipt/lorry receipt
as the case may be. For imported materials, value is
ascertained either at forward cover rate or at FEDAI spot
rate prevailing on the last date of the Financial Year.
Final adjustment is made on actual payment. In case of
indigenous materials, value is ascertained on the basis
of actual payment at contracted rate.

In case of subsidiary service charges represent the
income earned for processing of scrap and
miscellaneous jobs done by the Company at the rates
agreed with / offered to the respective Steel Plants.

E-AUCTION REGISTRATION :

E-auction Registration fees collected from buyers is
considered as income of the current year if the validity of
registration is upto one year. In case of lifelong registration,
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the amount so collected is distributed in five years equally.

1.7
i)

i)

1.8

1.9

TAXES ON INCOME

Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income
computed in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences
between taxable and accounting income/expenditure
that originates in one period and are capable of reversal
in one or more subsequent period(s).

The Carrying amount of Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance Sheet date.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Expenditure/Income relating to previous year is shown
in the accounts underthe head " Prior period adjustment
account" as per the provisions of AS-5 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. In case of
subsidiary amount less than rupees ten thousand in
each case is kept out of this policy.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation
in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way
of notes. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current estimate of
management.

PROVISIONS FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS/ADVANCES

In general, provision for doubtful debts/advances is
made where there is uncertainty of realization
irrespective of the period of its dues.

For Marketing customers where dues are generally
secured by pledged stock, outstanding balances are
reviewed annually towards the end of each financial
year with respect to their realisability and accordingly
adequate provisions are made in the books.

For E-Commerce customers which mainly comprise of
public sector undertakings and Govt. departments, the
realization normally takes more time, although bills are
raised on issuing delivery orders but payments are
made on completion of actual delivery. For such debtors
outstanding over three years full provision is made
unless the amount is considered recoverable.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short term benefits

Short term employee benefits are accounted for at their
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered.
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a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Provident Fund :

Provident Fund is administered by a Trust recognized
by Income Tax Authorities and contribution to this Fund
is charged to revenue. Pensioners Benefits are secured
through Employees' Pension Scheme 1995.

Service Gratuity :

Liability on account of service gratuity is covered under
Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme of Life
Insurance Corporation of India and is administered
through a separate irrevocable trust created by the
Company for this purpose. Contribution to the scheme
is charged to revenue.

Post Retirement medical benefit :

Hospitalization is covered by Insurance Policy
administered by a trust formed for the purpose. The
trust is managed with the corpus funded once by the
Company.

Medical expenses on account of post retirement
domiciliary treatment are reimbursed by the said trust
as per entitlement fixed from time to time. The deficit if
any is being reimbursed by the Company.

In case of subsidiary the provision is made based on
actuarial valuation.

Leave Encashment on retirement are covered by Group
Leave Encashment Scheme Policy of Life Insurance
Corporation of India. In case of subsidiary the provision
is made based on actuarial valuation, as at the end of
the year and charged to the profit and loss account
along with actuarial gains/losses.

In case of subsidiary the provision towards, future
payments to the disabled employee/ legal heirs of
deceased employees under the Employees Family
Benefit Scheme, long term service award and other
post retirement settlement benefits, are made based
on the actuarial valuation as at the end of the year and
charged to the profit and loss account along with
actuarial gains/losses.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Impairment of cash generating units / assets is
ascertained and considered where the carrying cost
exceeds the recoverable amount being the higher of
net realisable amount and value in use. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit & loss account in the year
in which an asset is identified as impaired.

In case of subsidiary, impairment losses recognized in
prior years, if any,are reversed when there is an
indication that the recognized impairment losses for
the asset, no longer exist or have decreased. However,
the increase in carrying amount of an asset due to
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years.
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1.13

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Transaction in foreign currency are recorded either on
forward booking rate or on spot rate and where such
remittance are outstanding at the close of the year
(except for overdue recoverables where realisability is
uncertain), on the basis of contracted forward exchange
rates or spot exchange rates prevailing on the last date
of the financial year, as the case may be, with an
adjustment on actual remittance in subsequentyear. In
case of export, transaction in foreign currency are
recorded either on forward booking rate or on spot rate
on shipment date as per custom clearance document
and where such remittances are outstanding at the
close of the year, it is adjusted in the subsequent year
on actual realization of export proceeds.

The spot rate is as per FEDAI rates. Wherever foreign
exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the customers
as per agreement with them, foreign exchange gain/
loss are not recognized in the books of the Company.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing Cost relating to (i) funds borrowed for
acquisition/construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized upto the dates the assets are put to use,
and (ii) funds borrowed for other purposes are charged
to Profit & Loss Account.

SEGMENT REPORTING

In terms of AS-17 the Company has identified Marketing
and E-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable
Business Segments .In addition to this the business of
recovery of scrap and allied jobs handled by subsidiary
has been identified as third reportable business
segment. There is no Secondary Segment.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding for the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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unuae et fafude

31wt 2016 Y guTa a4 * fau gRfEa faxim afades av fewh

feuoft 2 : ¥RR o
Note 2 : Share Capital

R inLacs)/ (¥. @@ #)

e, 2016 &l e, 2015 @&l

NU | As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

Share Capital = Number ¥ @& Number 4
ENBET] Authorised
7% %. 10/- & sfaadt IR Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 5,00,00,000 5,000 5,00,00,000 5,000
oY, sifvew wd guia: e« Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid up
7% 5. 10/- & gfRdt I_R Equity Shares of T 10/- each 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880
Bl Total 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880

feugoft 2(1) : RS oraf & e ok wIfQT W @R WRT @) dwn & Hes @ g e
Note 2(a) : Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

e, 2016 &) e, 2015 &)
IGEEL| As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
Particulars e Number ¥ <= Number £4
qY & IR H IHl Shares outstanding at the
R beginning of the year 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880
99 @ et )R garn Shares outstanding at the end
IR of the year 88,00,000 880 88,00,000 880

et 2 () : Fo F Faer ve & 2ol @1 = TR (Ef R IRR) B 9AMH IR (e IRR) & e 9RG Ui TR & fow ua

qIc b FheR AR YT & ThaR & J7 d< fhy o9 & Ry & sty afe &, & arfier 2|

Note 2(b) : The Company has only one class of ordinary shares (‘Equity Shares’). Each holder of ordinary shares (‘Equity
Shareholders’) is entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus, if any, in the event of

winding up.

feupoft 2 () : FIH & WRT B F A B 5 TR F SET IR @A T IR GRS

Note 2(c) : Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

e, 2016 B #rE, 2015 &Y
As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
qIRT IR URYT BT % aIRT IR R BT %
IRRYRS BT A Calkcre| yfaera Pt = yfaera
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
VR & IR President of India 79,06,400 89.85% 79,06,400 89.85%

feugoft 2(<) : 9§ 2012-13 & IR 3:1 & U § 66,00,000 I+ AT B SR f5am M|
Note 2(d) : 66,00,000 bonus shares has been issued during Financial Year 2012-13 in the ratio of 3:1.
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feooft 3 @ Rfdd v afdely :
Note 3 : Reserves and Surplus :

(%. @ #)/ in Lacs)

31 #Ard 31 #Ard
= Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
U, MR IIRfEE a. Capital Reserve
RFAYH ST Opening Balance 3,416 3,416
3ifay 9y Closing Balance 3,416 3,416
&, W eRféa b. General Reserve
RFAYH 1 Opening Balance 79504 71518
(+) g o @1 sfaRo (+) Current Year Transfer 5157 8079
(-) anf&rl w9 gepr Rrd suanh (-) Balance depreciation on assets whose
Siig ®re e 1.4.14 B 9 8 TR useful life is over as on 1.4.14 0 93
(+) Re7 9 S & forg ifciRes waems (+) Excess provision for DDT written back 8 0
IR Oy Closing Balance 84669 79504
A, arfdew c. Surplus
RFAYH ST Opening balance 0 1
e 9 & U (+) g av/gE B (+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 7457 10341
(-) gaTfae emter (-) Proposed Dividends 1804 1822
(=) Srwrer fadRor AR (-) Dividend Distribution Tax 496 440
(-) SR # 3faRor (-) Transfer to Reserves 5157 8079
sifom 9y Closing Balance 0 0
P Total 88085 82920
feooft 4: sy efafr <z
Note 4 : Other Long Term Liabilities:
31 #Ard 31 #Ard
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
@) AuRTE <" (a) Trade Payable 2 2
(@)  SHem gofiexor I M U o (b) Income received in advance - E auction 368 291
() @R Ra & forg <gand (c) Liability for staff benefit 187 198
()  wEd | S (d) Deposit from customers 259 424
(3) e (e) Others 26 26
(T®) IUFSITE AT & ded ST (f) Deposits under EFBS Scheme 375 346
el Total 1217 1287
famies 31.03.2016 @1 e, oY T #ezm el F dis W gaorn 78 € (reen af oo 72 |
There are no outstanding with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31.03.16.(Perevious year Nil).
feoqolt 4(w): afafe
Note 4(a) : Long Term Provisions :
31 #Ard 31 #Ard
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
HHART T F fog wraem Provision for employee benefits
AR froer a9 R (arfiee) Employee Settlement Benefit fund (unfunded) 37 38
}g@ DT ThS P Leave Encashment 1937 1952
Jarfrgiy & Swia fafeear om Post Retirement Medical Benefit 2064 1883
<rEiy HaT REBR Long Service Award 3 4
HHART gRaR &1 Are Employee Family Benefit Scheme 281 275
3= Others
i <19 & T fashen @t g Srar Claim payable to vendor against escalation claim 258 247
ES Total 4580 4399
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e} 5 @ sreaafy @t :
Note 5 : Short Term Borrowings :

31 =4 31 =4
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
BRG] Secured
AT O ROT giyee Loans repayable on demand
SE From Banks 19060 41786
(Secured by lien on FDR ¥ 71326 Lacs,
(freme s =it R ford Previous year Z 76,354 Lacs)
&1 AR Iq T 71,326 <y, T ad v. 76,354 @) Working Capital loan (Secured against
riefier il 0T (are] snfer Current Assets) Note(a) 11910 44464
F g3t # siiega) feoreft () 30970 86250
s Unsecured
I R HK01 gfey Loans repayable on demand
St & Rl (&) From Bank Note(b) 34362 24362
34362 24362
Bl Total 65332 110612
SR § wide § Above includes :

F) I NRR o (emdendl) | o1 AR B, 138 @
(=i 19.9.2011 & TsT ga3m)

g IR §% 7 31 I B uken & o SN SRl ged &
w9 § A 5 g1 du T g9er S & e afoare fear g
9P IIfIR<h THTEEI) 3 g Bloiadl ST <RIl & U
3Te3lEl & favg ©. 3656 @@ (B ©. 2798 @@ ol Jeod
Sfdc g vd %. 858 @ FI wd & fog SR wmive 7) & fog
AW foar 1

) WS IS 9% W T. 14362 I’G BT K0T :

fo<ig 9§ 2008-09 & IR Wi My & frafd &1 o1 W %
63821 oG # ¥ Wes des 96 (TN 7 RRded wa
e & T80 ©. 18466 g &7 W WRIGT o7 | §9 @I § ghrm
AR . 16916 a”g & T&d, TIHE 7 %, 2500 9@ R T, 54
oM@, S8 R 91T TAUEAE! & SHT ¥| B, 14362 M@ 6 AW A
31032016 W & &I H FM@T &l 2| el 7 faceh wea & 36
IR &1 e fhar vd RS wY 9 TS TEDl & O $ oG
THUERT # e fhar € Ud Tedl | e g sfde & favg
21 99 2009 # =9 @ aE @ < Iy gHra 21 9 q9 @
ITEd! | I TS M IET A1, Ard, 2012 H O ¥ Fof A9 B
IHrET I H SfRuT fhar 21 @ aftd oo $.19168 @@
TIUHSRAT T 0T § U4 GAUEE & faeg SRR He8 # Ae
TSl frar &1 gl 7 WIERI gRT YA R H orwed BF b
Iy emSAeERAens IS & A1 U 3 BRI & T8d S9h GIRT
P W TS IR b Tea 9 a1 21 Ereife, 9 S gR
TR 3feaRad g@mar T & I S6 ST B SHR IRA & HROT
Tafidt = AguRid i HUE IERieSHeE diTe & fog aws
ST =gTATer # "l SRR fhar €, S oifdd 21 smsfiensiiens
TS & fa%g AT o R & 95l TANIE! 7 Ugel 1Y w9 A
IHRIT DI TG b U TATHSRA & 0T # IR0 fhar ¥ @R
S fF SUR # garan 11 ¥ % e’ & feg e # ufthar
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a) Loan from Indian Overseas Bank (I0B) amounting to
X 138 lacs: (lying since 19.9.2011)

This amount represents legal fees paid by the bank in
defending their claims to which the Company has lodged its
protest with the Bank. MSTC has filed a case in Hon’ble High
Court of Calcutta against 0B for ¥ 3656 lacs (which includes
% 2798 lacs towards debit of LC value & ¥ 858 lacs as debit
towards legal expenses).

b) Loan from Standard Chartered Bank of ¥ 14362 lacs :

Out of the total export of ¥ 63821 lacs on account of export of
gold jewellery during FY 2008-09, Standard Chartered Bank
(SCB) had purchased receivables amounting to ¥ 18466 lacs
under a Receivable Purchase Agreement. Against amount
outstanding ¥ 16916 lacs on this account, SCB has adjusted
% 2500 lacs and X 54 lacs, from MSTC’s deposit with thereon.
Balance amount of ¥ 14362 lacs remains outstanding as on
31.3.2016. SCB had debited this amount to the foreign buyer
and credited the amount to MSTC against each individual
buyer's account initially and set off the payments received
from the buyers against the debit. The due dates of all these
payments expired by 2009. As payments were not forthcoming
from the buyers since then, in March 2012, SCB converted
the total balance against the outstanding invoices including
interest aggregating to ¥ 19158 lacs into debt of MSTC and
filed a case against MSTC in DRT, Mumbai. SCB had also
insured the total amount purchased by them against the
Receivable Purchase Agreement with ICICI Lombard for
default in payment by the buyers. SCB has subsequently
filed a suit against ICICI Lombard, the Insurance Co. in hon'ble
Bombay High Court for repudiation of their claim which is
pending. Instead of initiating a legal case against ICICI
Lombard, SCB first illegally converted the outstanding as debt
of MSTC to SCB and proceeded in DRT against MSTC as




foram T & | THUEERD 7 g9 SIRTRET # IRy & Ud srsiesens
e vd g & g srefi® oId # Amen &t fovar ® f5
ST U B THAE gRT 0T H URAAT BRA B ABAM H F
T B SHGAT § Sh &9 B W BRA P Y o BT
gl

HIA T AP g A T B T, 31366 I & Pl 7 b faog
o7 AfRd %, 22251 ARG SIaisi # gier 1%, 9115 og Ay
ST B BB SIS H ST AT T, B A BT ORI
GIEcE

HETRId! Husl & At § : SURRH KON DI HUl B WS SH
3 R @ = e fFar w2, S §ox & 9 AR 2
e § & 1 sNaRge AT %, 1483 @Rg, 31y g4 & A1
. 496 @ vd fes # J& i q<IeT & 9 . 545 og B
feoqoft 6 : wURIT <T@ ¢

Note 6 : Trade Payables :

stated above. MSTC challenged this in DRT and also filed a
case against SCB and ICICI Lombard in Alipore Court to stop
giving effect of converting their receivables into debt by SCB
and also that SCB should pursue its claim with the insurer
and not against MSTC.

Against the total claim of ¥ 31366 lacs of SCB, the Company
has already shown as liability in its books for ¥ 22251 lacs
inclusive of interest. Balance claim of ¥ 9115 lacs has been
shown as contingent liability, pending the outcome of the
legal cases.

In case of Subsidiary : The above loans are secured by pledge
on fixed deposits of the company held with the banker.
Overdraft limit with Indian Bank ¥ 1483 lacs, Andhra Bank
% 496 lacs and Bank of Baroda % 545 lacs at Bhilai.

(. @@ %) /  in Lacs)

31 #r, 2016 314w, 2015

o 31 March 31 March
Particulars 2016 2015

YR gAgTRAT Trade Payables 214672 302949
Dol Total 214672 302949

famie 31.03.2016 & (o a¥ Fo 7&1) VA1 HIS W g&w, @Y U9 ALAH Ig9H $ UK BIg IR HAT TE
There are no outstanding with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31.03.16 (Previous year NIL).

oot 7 : ey @Tq <ga -
Note 7 : Other Current Liabilities :

31 =4 31 @4

faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March

2016 2015

(T) =TT FEd SIfPT SER TR 37 T8 (a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7889 7889

(&) =TT Yeud Td SR W 3 (b) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 0 101

() S doferor I S e wfw (c) Income received in advance - E auction Registration 218 206

SIEEESESIGIH] (d) Unpaid dividends 61 59
@) sy (e) Other payables

i) oET aReTdl BT RS i) Auditors Remuneration 5 5

i) < famt o= i) Sales Tax Payable 697 1758

iii) < SIS iii) TDS Payable 320 630

iv) Tiféar 3 arfim iv) Advance from parties 470 434

V) SURS/RET ST v) EMD/Security Deposit 75440 76070

vi) s vi) Others* 3349 3270

vil) FHERY 9 HEfa Igarg vii) Employees Related Liabilities 494 491

viii) dfafdre g viii) Statutory Dues 564 440

iX) =g <Idd ix) Other Liabilities 3911 1029

P Total 93418 92382

* giféat & ure @B v A, hrr W anfe wfier €

* Includes amount received from Parties, Outstanding Expenses etc.




feugoft 8 : sreurafdy wrgET -
Note 8 : Short Term Provisions :

31 HArd 31 HArd
fore=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
(v) @At fea & forg wmaem (a) Provision for employee benefits* 4246 4574
Jarfghit ST @™ Fo & T8 Towards Post Retirement Benefit Scheme
GEI THQIPROT (37Ierp) Leave Encashment (unfunded) 97 124
werfrghr & Swia fafeear omw Post Retirement Medical Benefit (unfunded) 60 49
(arferferes) Long Service Award (unfunded) 2 2
ety dar Reaer () Employee Family Benefit Scheme (unfunded) 84 76
HHART b IRAR <1H TISrT (SFfHerep) Superannuation (unfunded) 620 3
(&) mﬂ ) ( ) (b) .Others.-.
i) T P A A (g i) Provision for Income Tax (net of 196 0
o % T Erdie) Advance Tax and TDS)
if) ST TR STIHR BT T i) Provision for Income Tax on Dividend 374 380
i) SR @ ii) Proposed Dividends 1804 1822
iv) o1 e ii) Other Provisions 279 182
Pl Total 7762 7212

* HATTT §RT HHAIRAT & UL 14, AT & dfdd AgHET sg Wae™ & ged ©. 1108 &g (@ a¥ 4 . 1014 &=3) wfie g1
* Includes ¥ 1108 lakhs (previous year ¥ 1014 lakhs) towards provision for pension benefit of employees,pending approval of the

Scheme by the Ministry.
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feuoft 9 : sl wwferi
Note 9: Fixed Assets

(5. @ #) / % in Lacs)

S et whd FHfRl s JeusT 3[E wHf
Fixed Asset Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
1 3795t 2015 e/ 31 W 2016 | 1 31t 2015 ¥ & forw fAgem 31 W 2016 31 W 2016 31 W 2015
B o (fwem) P o Pl 9 Tele W Pl 9 P P o
Balance as  Addition/ Balance as | Balance as Depreciation Adjustment/  Balance as | Balance as Balance as
at1 April  (Disposals) at31 March | at1 Aprili  chargefor  (Disposal)/  at 31 March | at 31 March at 31 March
2015 2016 2015 the year  (Deductions) 2016 2016 2015
%, R Wifte wwfm
a. Intangible Asset
Intangible Asset 16 9 25 1 3 0 14 1 5
g . Wifts wwafmi
b.Tangible Assets
Tg aret 4 v fRfesT
Leasehold Land 1671 (1234) 437 389 192 (406) 175 262 1282
&Buildings
I F wICH
Company Flats 171 0 171 66 2 0 68 103 105
TR HSRR T4
qrer Pk
Air Conditioner 7 0 7 40 12 0 52 25 37
& Water Cooler
A Ud SYDRU
Plant & Equipment 16958 e 17037 1714 908 (826) 11796 5241 5244
BHER U9 R
Fumiture and Fixtures 399 20 419 269 50 0 319 100 130
BRI & SUBRT
Office equipment 467 6 473 368 0 @8) 390 83 N
e v yfiwe
Partition & Cubicles 256 4 260 155 47 0] 201 59 101
HIex ae
Motor vehicles 407 1 418 285 2 (27) 280 138 122
ESI)
EDP 694 (5) 689 500 69 (23) 546 143 194
X
Total 21116 (1110) 20006 13797 1335 (1291) 13841 6165 7319
fma oy
Previous Year 21662 (546) 21116 14839 853 (1895) 13797 7319 6823
it Seegansdt
c. Capital WIP 191 224 415
fma o
Previous Year 235 (43) 191
Yot ot B
Capital Work in Progress
RT Particulars 31 #Ard 2016 @ 31 #Ard 2016 @
Balance as at Balance as at
31stMarch, 2016 31stMarch, 2015
Yoft STt @Rt Capital Workin Progress 45 124
@ & T oFd WufT  Intangible Assets under Development 0 67
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@) :

(<)

a9 20156-16 % SRM ol Bles YA Bfcad ©F Piciad I o R QAT 71 2 | IEgER ORI a9 2016-16 & SR Uil o IRRT BT JUa oo
BT YE T I ARG fpar T |

P UfeThe AedTR Ffd Rl & w9 F g9l T § R g-sed el fFar wn e o ghfeaa 78 #t s w21
THUAUAYE b AT

(=) IRFel, TR, s, BRI, AT, SR T gas H a4 T W F b wic vd Wad § 9 7 A1 Wieles © iR 7 8 i gles |

B FAT TR & Th I F T H qHEARH & FYed ST B IBR wrad far 8 1w 7 qenfy, 29 fiwew, 1988 & 33 a¥ & FRWR el W
Ja-di g . | oreies 4 o e @ 5 R doiiga sritad &1 Ff e §, dories g ofist safd &) aRefaa o 78 7, 9ol i gics
g W fmtor s war deiiga srater was e siifem, 2013 @t Ryl | & 31 SR SefiTa offSl SISl & @S 6 & asd 33 aY @ o
P A7 B AN TG fHam M7 § B AR F=a gY iR &= F Jeugr o w2

During the year 2015-16 the lease hold land has been surrendered to Haldia Dock Complex. Accordingly the residual value net of surrender
value as on the date of surrender has been charged off during F.Y 2015-16

e-Commerce application software shown under intangible assets represents software application developed in house for which cost could not
be ascertained.

In case of FSNL

(c)

The land on which the plant and building of the company are situated at Rourkela, Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro, Vizag, Durgapur and Duburi are
neither freehold nor leasehold.

The company has acquired right of free use from landholders as a part of service agreement. The company has however, acquired leasehold
land from SAIL - B.S.P., on perpetual lease of 33 years w.e.f. 29th December 1988 on which the Registered Office Building has been
constructed, the lease hold land has been amortised over the lease period, however Registered office building constructed on the lease hold
land has been depreciated at rate prescribed under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 considering that perpetual lease agreement shall be
renewed for a further period of 33 years pursuant to clause 6 of lease deed referred above.
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feoquit 10 : iR-aTq PR - wElEt § e

A BRI why M fafics & $a 15000 ores sfaadl IRRT & 9 gAgEedl o fad a9 1979-80 & SR 9000 31T sfadc! eRRi &1
siferrEYT fopan, e ST I8 vavadiRy fafics & deilial ol o+ | aguRia #4999 BRI hy M fafics & 20000 aree sfaac 2R
A TuEdRe 7 fad @ 1984-85 & AR (el enRa 2R - 12000 3reg it 9rR) 3000 sfaad 2 arftrrgor fasan | 9w 8000 sreg gfddt
¥RY @7 MR vAUEERet gRT faw a¥ 2002-03 # faar wm, S AW W1 why M fafiics @1 100 wfrer @RIt du e

Note 10 : Non- Current Investments — Investments in Subsidiary

MSTC had acquired 9000 no. of equity shares during F.Y. 1979-80 out of the total 15000 no. of equity shares of M/s Ferro Scrap
Nigam Limited, making it subsidiary Company of MSTC Limited. Subsequently MSTC acquired 3000 no. of equity shares during
F.Y. 1984-85 (Total holding - 12000 no. of equity shares) out of the 20000 no. of equity shares of M/s Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited.
Balance 8000 no. of equity shares were acquired by MSTC in the F.Y. 2002-03, making M/s Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited 100%
Subsidiary Company.

(. @@ #) / § in Lacs)

Safdy ged sfRdt wAgEdR  ufoera e @t ama
IR DI 4. ;R TACHERT g%
Period Paid up no.of MSTC % Age Cost of Investment
Equity Share Shares MSTC books
31 #rd, 1980 @I As on 31st March, 1980 15000 9000 60% 90
31 Ad, 1985 @I As on 31st March, 1985 20000 12000 60% 120
31 #rd, 2003 BI As on 31st March, 2003 2000 20000 100% 1581
(. @@ #) / § in Lacs)
31 91, Bl 31 7\, 31 7\, Pl
1980 1985 2003 Bi
= Particulars Ason 31st Ason31st Ason31st Total
March, 1980 March, 1985 March, 2003
THUATATA B @ YRRt o In FSNL books of account
SRt 2R Equity Share 150 200 200 200
IR Td 2rferery Reserves & Surplus 45 631 11596 11596
e q{a Net Worth 195 831 11796 11795
TATHERTt 31 st v MSTC Portion of equity 117 125 4718 4960
e[ : e @ an Less : Cost of Investment 90 30 1461 1581
Iféra gont Capital Reserve (27) (95) (3257) (3379)
aTRfRrT gont fewft &, 3 # omRferd vd sty # wnfiet 7
Capital Reserve is included in ‘Reserves and Surplus’ in Note No.3
feuoft 11 : anfRrTg ) uiEutat (Faamsi) fre € -
Note 11 : Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) are as under : (¥. @@ #) /  in Lacs)
31.03.2015 9§ & forg  31.03.2016
GO G i Gal
As on Tax effect As on
faa=or Particulars 31.03.2015 for the year  31.03.2016
ey R W & frg e Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables 15039 631 15670
=1 =g 40(v), 4391 & dgd WA Provision against other expenses 40(a), 43B 1281 0 1281
g H 3] Difference in depreciation (72) 43 (29)
MRATT BR afcEdfaat Deferred Tax-Assets 604 147 751
Dl Total 16852 821 17673
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feuolt 12 : Efafdr o vd e -
Note 12 : Long Term Loans and Advances :

(. @@ #) /  in Lacs)

31 9™ 31 9™
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
T. Sl ~ X a. Deposits
STRIET eI P Unsecured, considered good * 801 759
. o= ko1 vd Ifim b. Other loans and advances
WD ASETHD - HHaART IR Secured, considered good - Staff advances 550 508
AP e SIS T YA I Advance Payment of Income Tax & TDS 906 1276
ERIERIR) (net of provisions)
JRIA, IR - ISt @Y AW Unsecured, considered good - Advance to parties 10 6
Bl Total 2267 2549

* puAdt | geHrn IR 5. 1 g (g 9 5. 2 @)
* faet TR WfdERe & U SR %, 520 oG (3. 478 ofRd) WS B | U8 ST S gRT SO Y T F fvg 1 AfT S 7 g R

fopam 21

* Amount due from KMP X 1 lac (Previous year X 2 lac)
* Includes X 520 lac (X 478 lac) deposit with Sales Tax Authorities against demand raised by them which is contested by the

Company.
feuoft 13 @ o= IR-gd9 aR<EuRm -
Note 13 : Other Non-Current Assets :

(¢. @@ #H) / R in Lacs)

31 9 31 \rd
foreRoT Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
SECECIS G CIICIIIED Stock of non-moving inventory 230 265
(8 aut & a1frew srafyr & forw enRa) (held for period more than 3 years)
HeHd, 3rdd avggdl b qed | Less, Provision for Diminution in the value of
& forg raem Non-Moving Inventory 124 132
106 133
TRIT GG BT Tl Stock of Obsolete Inventory 23 23
TR TGl b fog we™, gaus Less, Provision for Obsolete Inventory 15 15
8 8
fyem & forg e g vt Fixed Assets Awaiting Disposal 56 56
T a1 Qd 31 313 Claim Recoverable & Other Advances 14 17
(12 78 & 31 &t g1 gRuaaar & @r21)  (with Original Maturity of more than 12 months)
AT IAIBTHD - FHART 0T T Secured, considered good — Interest due 5 7
IHIAT ToT on employee loans
SERIA, JTATETHS - Unsecured, considered good —
gded wd prepaid expenses 12 37
Bl Total 201 258
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feuoft 14 : wie -
Note 14 : Inventories :

(. @@ #) /  in Lacs)

31 9 31 9
faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015

WSRIT-HTeT (AN He) Stock-in-trade (Valued at cost)
URfAE o Opening Balance 14683 3605
(-) siftey oy (-) Closing Balance 1529 14683
HeR g SrfaReh q=if & ey 7 gavr I Stores & Spare parts including loose tools 269 269
SIS, URTEE H§ ATA Add, Goods in transit 1 49
Sirs, ifdd FARISH @ ol FH Add, Net shortage pending adjustments* 13 13
283 331
q50T T oies it Printing & Stationery items 11 11
& (Froem & forg <ifda) Scrap (pending for disposal) 4 4
Wi ¥ ded Changes in Inventories 13154 (11078)
sifem 9w Closing Balance 1827 15029

* TR HUt b A H @ ¥l BHI dfed FHRS & d8d Waue b feweft |, 8§ ey wau # wnfaer fear wam g

* In case of Subsidiary : Provision against inventory shortage pending adjustment is included ‘in Other Provision’ in Note No.8.

feuoft 15 : IR =
Note 15 : Trade Receivables :

31 9 31 9
fore=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015
TaE @ 37 [y 9§ vg 78m Trade receivables outstanding for a period
| et Srafy & fory gara exceeding six months from the date they
IR ATl are due for payment
gRn{d, SrIaETHS Secured, considered good 68407 109982
RIS, NISETHD Unsecured, considered good 65580 77040
TR, HIBTHD Unsecured, considered doubtful 45318 43488
eIV : HSETHS HT & foy wraem Less: Provision for doubtful debts 45318 43488
133987 187022
TaE @ <7 [y 9§ vg 789 Trade receivables outstanding for a period
B ARy & forg ger less than six months from the date they are
IUR YT due for payment
T, TAIETHD Secured, considered good 152322 216954
SERIAT, TAIBTHD Unsecured, considered good 44543 11390
196865 228344
Bl Total 330852 415366
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15 (T) : 31.03.2016 & a¥ Wiy w smr< frafa = gua
SfeR 13749882373 (fa<fir o 2008-09 & SR %. 59863
TG P RER) oA, 3991 & 7 ad @) goera H ol fag af &
sifom fa R = faffa &R (FUasl 1 = 3. 66.255) @I o §¢
FOT BT q9id AN %. 31236 &g 98 B . 91099 og & T
BT dorl oiFe) # %. 30768 g &I SoTBl BTl 39 Wi #
T %. 468 g HY I 37T B o wWes ace da
ERT Y 6y 10wl & @i § %, 132 o wiier 81 ferareis
B & Ford ol iy @ IR1 1,18 & T8 gHrn Wl @ agelt |
AT &% BRI g M . 336 TG HT oiam Tl fmar
=

15 () : fa o 2008-09 # o frafa w1 gua Ster
146971624 00 (%. 63821 & & &xM@R) # & 31.03.2014 &1
g IR JuEel 13749882373 (¥. 85937 Tg & ISR AT
T 39 A & fou o d8 arig A 31.03.2016 @1 € g1
(feeies 31.03.2015 @1 @< fafa &% guas! 1 = ©. 66.255 4
. 91099 g & IR ¥) | SHISIA & g . 45075 @ @
arar fbar T &1 S geR W A db A andiiangiens
AlFe SRS $¥ANY $U b U guds! 36762828.14 (foxy ad
¥ siftm fa7 amw faffmr a% guEst 1 = 9. 66.255 § 3. 24357
TRg & SRR 7) | e SWRE $ut gRT g1 819 R &R U
Ty ¥ TATEeRY A sharell & FoT & g AR gRT Erea
Hhaeli & fau SR & faeg 36 ama I SyuihT faare
AR S, el (TSR & o oRe fhy €1 I
Iy faarg Frarer s, feeel (TR gr1 f&Ai®
16.4.2014 &1 AU Y R & JFAR A B Ada IS s
31 IUGTh BRH H S B BeT 17 & | TIUHER 7 59 3% &
freg A Hatea <ImTera § e aRR fhar ¥ 1 A wate
| T &l iedl @ dare § o @1 & A g1 degeR
A dare (Neayg &g dae & folg wRer) o) @1 defia
T & | dEre Wy A gl

THUHERT o Jug, REMR v paa o fao=fl spameil & fIog 46
BTN A SRR 6T § | TAEERR & ua ¥ 9 46 oty fig g
g 7d Sth 9l e & ol B | el B werde syfaedisi &
fog 1 o & foy 996 g1 waifTa fRdel warsit gRT e
T INIhel B U9 SNSRI ToIT SMSHIREAIeNs afrere Svvel S3aRd
. gRT AT U9 & I9d gare # HRIaE! H uRe @ TS T
AT ATt | e TATHERS & uet # feum w8, S e &
ufsear & €1

ToIRUeE H | o 99N W Sdert UUe YT vedies (o)
f1. 7 5. 12400 < (AR Uofiga Jeaiaal gRT a9 2014 &
AiE) qed B WIR Huil ARdr @1 g1 9 ARdr dufy &
g /geaiaver & forg Ja3 =g =mare # Re anfas arr & 18
&1 Mdfied vd <) v B g o) ¥ & 91 B, 24040 o (3.
12400 g &g & S Td ©. 3979 TG &l 9 HuRT |ieq)
P gRferat qor dufEl St #) forn 81 TigeEER T %, 900
TG g P AU U&7 ¥ SRIROT B AR & forg didlerg ®ic 4
3R foan, @i v i af 2013-14 & SR I &1 T8 oY |

e faeel shdtel/SRING Huf~al/TaRite IRl I IRy
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15 (a) : Atthe year end 31.03.2016 unrealized export debtors
remains USD 137498823.73 (equivalent to ¥ 59863 lacs
during the FY 2008-09) which were the same as were at the
beginning of the financial year. Considering the exchange
rate (i.e. USD 1 =¥ 66.255) prevailing on the last day of the
financial year, the closing balance of debtors would have
been increased by ¥ 31236 lacs to ¥ 91099 lacs and the
creditors would have increased by ¥ 30768 lacs. There would
have been a notional gain of ¥ 468 lacs on this account which
includes an amount of ¥ 132 lacs on account of receivables
purchased by Standard Chartered Bank. The net gain of
% 336 lacs has not been accounted for due to uncertainity in
realisation of the dues in terms of para 1.13 of accounting
policy. This is also subjudice.

15 (b) : Out of total export of USD 146971624.00 (equivalent
to ¥ 63821 lacs) during the financial year 2008-09, there was
an outstanding balance of USD 137498823.73 (equivalent
to ¥ 85937lacs) as on 31.3.2015 and the same is continued
for this year on closing date i.e 31.3.2016 (equivalent to
¥ 91099 lacs at the exchange rate of USD 1= ¥ 66.255
prevailing on 31.03.2016). Claims had been lodged with
ECGC for ¥ 45075 lacs. Similarly Standard Chartered Bank
had also lodged claims with ICICI Lombard General
Insurance Company for USD 36762828.14 (equivalent to
% 24357 lacs considering the exchange rate as USD 1 =
% 66.255 prevailing on the last day of the financial year). Both
the claims were repudiated by the respective Insurance
Companies. MSTC initiated 36 cases against ECGC for the
dues against buyers insured by them with National Consumer
Disputes Redressal Commission (NCDRC), Delhi. National
Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission (NCDRC) by an
order dated 16.04.2014 referred the matter to Civil Court or
in other appropriate forum. MSTC filed an appeal to Hon'ble
Supreme Court against this order.The Honb'le Supreme Court
directed both theparties to go for arbitration. Accordingly matter
has been referred to Permanent Machinery of Arbitration (A
Government machinery for arbitration for PSUs).Arbitration
is in progress.

MSTC had filed 46 legal cases against the foreign buyers in
UAE, Singapore and Kuwait. All the 46 judgments have been
awarded in favour of MSTC and all the same are under
execution. “Arbitration proceedings have also been initiated
against all the six associate suppliers forindemnifying against
the failure in payment by the foreign buyers nominated by
them and later on approved by ECGC and ICICI Lombard
General Insurance Co. Award has been received in favour of
MSTC in three cases,which is also in the process of execution.

One of the Associates, namely, M/s Ushma Jewellery &
Packaging Exports (P) Ltd has mortgaged landed property
worth ¥ 12400 lacs (valuation done in 2014 by Govt
Registered valuer). A writ petition for sale/transfer of the said
mortgaged property has been filed at the Mumbai High Court.
CBl and ED investigating the matter have seized assets and
properties worth ¥ 24040 lacs (including land valued ¥ 12400
lacs & liquid assets worth ¥ 3979 lacs). MSTC had approached
CBI Court requesting for permission to transfer of an amount




&1 2| T, JHT ART & BIBT QR 81 S @I gole I aR<d
w9 H agel & oy @feq owie vd Ay &1 & w9 d ©. 23578
g YHH & o wmaem e e g

15 (M) : IR 9 F wfier ©. 6055 oRg, S /T SERATM &
U g/ &1 Uiel 3 Sxaras § il & eRe s9a! WeR
B ¥ SHR Har & S gAvad™e gRT ST e 9@ ()
BI G fbar w1 21 o W faceh sErerdl & sy agaR faftE
fIforll 4= §a 7 aew & Jed AU @M 4 Sfie R awera™
F db BI IHF WS < | AP Tg AHSI A9 BT I P SFAR
ST F AT & Iog B, TH H AT XA TAUASRI Bl
afgfd & fog Ty 21 J8g9R, THTECRT o 99 SexvEd &
frog Aervem oRaE P& fhar 2, S ufardi= 21 erdud wefer
IHH agelt F Ui smenfRd 21 O 7 ut g8 wmfRi & froed &
faeg @Id 7 %. 223 &g W 6y &, R AR ureg & ded
FERIT B &7 1 81 DIE & AR b AFAR T, 102 ARG B
I AN B A ufthar wae b U BT ST 6w #§ @
T & | THUEERT 7 osenat & fIog vATEERe @ § %, 3656
TR B IBH TTerd Sfae f6y 5 & Raerrs o Arfen R fhar 21
S TATESRT @l fRIRT @t Aoiga 21 Wfde dere/ar A
¥ fge™ & g . 4000 &g BT Wae= ey iR Afewer s
& wT H @ H uraE fhar i gl

15 (S)) : IR | = 7 gfegar Igibiamed fafes (vadiva) &
T T, 34376 g WA B b [vg dig A Rdl ®ib
Iueel el 21 vEdd 3 fad a¥ 2013-14 F gHgad @ famm
B Wefd o frg AR w3 T wfF 74655 THET e Sa1
for | gadive vd St & i aRERe WAl & SER, A
derdl Soa ATy famie 05.05.2015 &1 srgHifed, vadd
FHRT AT AR BRI, 2021 qF gHM Bl GgEiT o@E 2
TS & MY F AFAR e, 2015 | A MR a
gl

15 (3) : 79 wadive et Afer i fafies @ @R & ura
%. 24083 TG IHMET & | AT R 7 7 2018 T% q
R YA FRA S Feg # fRAE 19.07 2014 B SR TH MY
fpar & qen 99 W @S @Y IR SEE IWIA 12 FEH F 3SR
A FA BT 379 faam 21 g 99 2015-16 & SR el 7 %,
2400 &Rg ST e fpar Bl

15 (%) : SN & 99 AR W TY/ERI §RT Yamd i, St
] 8, & fog | wicat o) garn 9w IfY F muR W) @R
J e @ Rt ) fer famar war 2

RIS Ul & A : 15(S) : Bu Aaftie w9 &GI8 & foy
HUN b giT T ATEDT F IHra IR BT Fedidd = & | FafiRa
FHRT AR & WUV, WES T T A I IR & IH
SIREA & W, ARV e 3aga, ST ATead! & Fuer e
BT YA BR Tl ©, AR A Teai & MaR W rae @
SRR BT ATHe fbdT ST & | BT g1 1R B agelt 37k
TET I IRE | U IR BT TN B B | HUH AERY AR W
o oF B AR srerar dieie [y | A9 ant srerar ofte |wg
¥ o SIERT & g@rn A & forg wrae el B
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of ¥ 900 lacs which was received during FY 2013-14.

The Management is taking all possible steps to recover the
dues as much as possible along with interest, legal expenses,
etc. from the foreign buyers/Insurance Cos/Associate
suppliers.However,since the dues have become very old, a
provision has already been made for an amount of ¥ 23578
lacs as bad and doubtful debts pending actual realisation.

15 (c): Trade Receivables includes ¥ 6055 lacs due from Sesa
International. The party had refused to accept the documents
due to discrepancy therein, which were intimated to Indian
Overseas Bank ('‘Bank') accordingly by MSTC. But pursuant
to Foreign Court order on Bank, they have remitted to
supplier's Bank by debiting MSTC’s account on various dates.
As it is against Court order, as per MOA terms Sesa
International is bound to indemnify MSTC. “Accordingly, MSTC
have invoked arbitration proceeding against Sesa
International which is under process and the management is
hopeful to recover the amount. Against disposal of goods
lying at port through Court receiver an amount of ¥ 223 lacs
has been received which has been adjusted against Trade
Receivables. Sale proceeds for balance material amounting
to ¥ 102 lacs is kept with the receiver as fixed deposit as per
Court order. MSTC has also filed a suit against 0B for their
wrong debit to MSTC account for an amount of ¥ 3656 lacs in
which MSTC is in a very strong position. Pending disposal of
arbitration/legal suit an amount of ¥ 4000 lacs has already
been provided in accounts as bad & doubtful advance.

15(d) Trade Receivables includes ¥ 34376 lacs due from
Haldia Petrochemicals Ltd(HPL).No pledged stock is available
against this.HPL had lifted the pledged stock of Naptha of
74655 MT without any authorisation from MSTC in the F.Y
2013-14. As per mutual settlement between HPL and the
company, as approved by the Honb'le Calcutta Highcourt on
05.05.2015, HPL have agreed to liquidate the outstanding
balance by February 2021. HPL has been making payment
from April 2015 as per court order.

15(e)Trade Receivable includes ¥ 24083 lacs due from
M/s SPS Steel Rolling Mills Ltd.Ld.Arbitrator passed an award
on 19.07.2014 for payment of principal amount within June
2018 and accrued interest thereafter within 12 months.During
the F.Y 2015-16 the party have paid ¥ 2400 lac.

15(f): Security of Trade Receivables has been considered
based on the balance outstanding of respective parties for
the stock pledged with the company/secured by creditors
wherever applicable.

In case of Subsidiary : 15(g): Periodically the company
evaluates all customer dues to the company for collectibility.
The need for provision is assessed based on various factors
including collectibility of specific dues, risk perception of the
industry in which the customer operates, general economic
factors which could affect the customers ability to settle. The
company pursues the recovery of the dues, in part or full. The
Company normally provides for debtors dues outstanding for
three years or longer from the invoice date, as at the Balance
Sheet date.




feuoft 16 : Tae vd THs WA ¢
Note 16: Cash & Cash equivalents :

(. @@ %) /  in Lacs)
31 Hrd 31 Hrd
o Particulars 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
T, §% 99 a. Balances with banks
are] T # In Current Accounts 25707 0 35192
TS T H In Dividend Accounts 61 0 59
Arafy ST @ | In Term Deposit Accounts 0 0
T ST Fixed Deposit 80052 0 99775
e This includes :
T & dEd R Security against borrowings 55200 71327
TREY Guarantees 903 4706
IR IR LC Margin 0 4986
12 7€ Q a1ferd 3rafdy o Bank deposits with more than
gRYFEr gg g% § ST 12 months maturity* 5062 504
3 7 9 o @ Deposits with Original maturity of
aRrega e Wﬂﬂ less than 3 months 200 0
o R . Deposits with Original maturity of
3 il WY 12 7T more than 3 months but less than
jﬂ? BN qe1 IRYFT & WA 12 months# 5756 10723
q. =) TP b. Cheques in hand 0 0
.l Th c. Cash in hand 5 5
E Total 105825 135031

# THUATATE b HMel H- SURRD M1 A . 3,467.05 &g (v 9y . 3,715.16 &) da HoArd d sileRgie gfaer & ared $i$a7 @

Td §e Sift geiaT & wrer ufkifed e 2

UHUAUATE & AT §- SURIh SF H %, 2,340.00 (Fd 99 <. 31) 6 ym{d vd shieRgre gfaen & Ied & it gsiaT ud oy 9%

CARIDIISIECIMIEC I

# In case of FSNL- The above deposits includes ¥ 3,467.05 Lacs (PY ¥ 3,715.16 Lacs) pledged with Indian Bank and Bank of
Baroda against Bank Guarantee & Overdraft facility

* In case of FSNL- The above deposits includes ¥ 2,340.00 Lacs (PY % NIL) pledged with Bank of Baroda and Andhra Bank
against Bank Guarantee & Overdraft facility

feugolt 17 : sreumafd ko1 vd &1fim -

Note 17 : Short-term loans and advances :

31 #Ard 31 #Ard

fore=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015

Whaa srEd - et Ifm* Secured, considered good - Staff advances* 261 362
I, SQETH® - 3T Unsecured, considered good - Others 1093 1113
et B g 9 W) AfRH UGS Advance Payment of Sales Tax & VAT 22 24
ST STET Security Deposits 7569 6539
T QT B Input Service Tax 3 2
Bl Total 8948 8040

* HUAN F BT X6 5. 2 o (v 9§ 5. 1 o) |
*Amount due from KMP % 2 lac (previous year % 1 lac).
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feuoft 17(x) : e =1 Wl -
Note 17(a) : Other Current Assets :

31 #Ard 31 #Ard

faa=or Particulars 31 March 31 March
2016 2015

fye™ & forg ucfierRa sraer wwdfrat Fixed Assets awaiting Disposall 212 217
AT ITaT T 3 M Claim Recoverable & Other Advance
SERfAT, SNIQETHS AT Unsecured, Considered Good 107 81
sreRfera, dfewy Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 25 25
T, ey Less, Considered Doubtful 25 25

107 81
Tt o W SIS =Tt Interest Accured on Term Deposit 512 1101
|1 IR AT ATH Service Tax Set Off 324 236
T @Al wd o uifeal & Security Deposit with Steel plants
T ST STHT & Other Parties 556 293
HHART AR TR gHTAT =T Interest due on staff advances 2 3
gded & Prepaid Expenses 60 75
Bl Total 1773 2006

fewht 18 : aRarem ¥ orT ¢
Note 18 : Revenue from operations :
(. @@ #) / § in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
e @t faet Sale of Goods 269480 518052
JdT Yed Service Charges 15191 16623
3= gRETferd o Other Operating Revenues 4483 7818
T 1 o Ry st & dmeE Service Charges from processing of
I AT Yob Scrap & other miscellaneous jobs 33160 26097
Me™ y&ee a1 & forg Income from Custodian Services for
fRETs AaRl  3m Warehouse Management Service 256 313
Bl Total 322570 568903

(©) o & IR - Nemd ot 2 . 369 od (forra 9 ©. 264 <irg) wug fawan 721 o | 1] 9y & 99 Fol 68 9 T, 296 o (fvma
¥ $. 211 @) IRl & UM @ T 7, S IR 9ut § aRa fear sem, w6ifs ag doffeven seiad dg 21 orfaaRa At @1 dead
31032016 #1 . 586 <@ (A7 a¥ ©. 497 <r@) 21 2y AR, e forg dofiaver o 9 & foy 99 & S9! 3] 9 & oM & w9 H

foram sirar =1

() s gR=nfera <roral § wiféat Q =t %, 2493 org (v 9§ . 6453 ofkg) A onfiet 1
() |G Yo W FIT W B B Hekd U9 19 M B, 1756 oeg (v a8 $. 1597 <) 7|

(a) During the year, an amount of ¥ 369 lacs (previous year ¥ 264 lacs) was collected towards E-auction Registration. Out of total
collection of current year, an amount of ¥ 296 lacs (previous year ¥ 211 lacs) has been kept in liabilities to be distributed in
subsequent four years, since that registration is valid for life long. Accumulated undistributed balance standing as on 31.03.2016
is ¥ 586 lacs (previous year X 497 lacs). Balance amount for which registration is valid upto one year is accounted for as income

during the current year.

(b) Other Operating Revenues also includes Interest from parties ¥ 2493 lacs (previous yr. ¥ 6453 lacs).

(c) Tax deducted at source on Service Charge and Interest income amounts to ¥ 1756 lacs (previous year ¥ 1597 lacs).
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feaoft 19 : a7
Note 19 : Other Income :

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
RIERCCIE] Interest Income

) R SR @ i) Interest on fixed deposit 7139 8615
i) SR g forg T e W st ii) Interest on Employee Advances 39 36
iii) 31~ =TT iii) Interest others 2 2
fafaer smar Miscellaneous Income 13 36
fafaa & gaan Liability written back 710 0
AR AT U 3= a=elt Liquidated damages & other recoveries 9 19
9 s@iaferat hi fershr Sale of Sub-assemblies 2 61
s qafaat & fesht (A) Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 23 28
Hf Y arog =TT ford ST arel wraens Provision no longer required written back 315 146
P Total 8252 8943

% T § HUR 19T F AT W B Bl . 574 g (g af . 663 <) |
Tax deducted at source from interest on bank deposits amounted to ¥ 574 lacs (previous year ¥ 663 lacs).

oot 20 : YeRE AT BT B -

Note 20 : Purchase of Stock-in-Trade :

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
RILEARCI IR Purchase of goods 255384 526120
Bl Total 255384 526120
feudht 21 : R Raey = :
Note 21 : Employee Benefits Expense :
faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
(T) a9 ud sRifea (a) Salaries and incentives 10224 10368
(&) Guw F fRE @7 3fEEE (b) Employer Contribution to PF 938 814
() IS iy F sierem (c) Gratuity fund contributions 3073 544
(I TR Feawr R Jg (d) Staff welfare expenses 1871 2030
() STEPRI THAIHRT (e) Leave encashment 772 919
Bl Total 16878 14675
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RIS =19 1l & ey § FHART oY W ol AFE - 15 ([ 2005) & i aifod YamciaRor -

aifera f&ie 31.03.16 &1 TREl & Iod™ Jod § uRac™ yade o) <& 2|

Disclosure as required under Accounting Standard — 15 (Revised 2005) on “Employees Benefits” in respect of Defined Benefit

obligations :-

Table showing changes in present value of obligation as on 31.03.16

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

fara=or Particulars JuSH gel aad
Gratuity Leave Salary
quRY # Il @ Present value of obligations as at
goae fRAfy beginning of the year 1213 1122
TST IRTd Interest cost 97 90
A AT AT Current service cost 25 77
g1y Y & Benefits paid (241) (164)
TR ) fEifhe (Trv/E) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations 38 (79)
guid # 1 &t gdae fRafy Present value of obligations as at end of the year 1132 1046
aiferst 31.03.2016 & @ Ao |ulkl & ST qoa § gRacd & gdhe w7 <& 2l
Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.16
fara=or Particulars JuSH gel I+
Gratuity Leave Salary
9§ F e # Ao Wuli &1 SR ged Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 1405 1079
Ao FURT W gHIfad e Expected return on plan assets 108 86
KNG Contributions 25 43
FH1Y MY f2d Benefits paid (241) (164)
AT HaRT W SHifRE (<m/ET) Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets - -
aufd & Ao WuiT &1 S e Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1297 1044
e Rafa Funded status 165 2
31032016 &1 dWifsa ar/E & w0 § vgam |
Acturial Gain/Loss recognized as on 31.03.16
= Particulars S9EH gel
Gratuity Leave Salary
SR o) diHifRd (@) /e Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (38) 79
ay B A WURT b Y dHifhes (@) /et Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year — plan assets - -
<Iied OR it (emw)/er Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 38 79
a¥ H diifdd (omw)/EH & U § ggar Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 38 79
JAT-95 T 14 B ol & fJaRer § wiga |
The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and statements of profit and loss.
Az Particulars SUEH gel I
Gratuity Leave Salary
aufa # ST &1 oA e Present value of obligations as at the
end of the year 1132 1046
aufa # o duky &1 Sfa qe Fair value of plan assets as at the
end of the year 1297 1044
e Rafa Funded status 165 2
qer-u= § wiiga Fraet skl (Saard) Net asset/(liability) recognized
in balance sheet 165 2
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™ Td B o faeRer § Wied @ d

Expenses recognized in statement of Profit and loss.

(. g #) / § in Lacs)

o Particulars SUYSH gel a1
Gratuity Leave Salary
TARE HaT AT Current service cost 25 77
EASESING Interest cost 97 90
I Ul R AW s Expected return on plan assets (108) (86)
9§ § difee faa (@) Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 38 (79)
ipd Td AH-EI o Expenses recognized in statement
qaRoT A of profit and loss 52 2

wEIR@t du & AFe A
g e SRl & wdy A AR aml W) o A - 15 (WRfia 2005) & siafd @ifsd gediaR (IS @ Breax e fog
THSIaHRoT T fHar T B) -
) AFAIIT 9 IR & I Jed Bl A -

In case of Subsidiary

Disclosure as required under Accounting Standard — 15 (Revised 2005) on “Employees Benefits” in respect of Defined
Benefit obligations.

a) Reconciliation of present value of projected benefit obligations :-

o ST &1 g e
(1) (i) (iii)+(iv)+(v)+(vi)+(vii)
Present Value of projected
benefit obligation as on

31st March, 2016

(1) (i) (iii)+(iv)+(v)+(vi)+(vii)

HHi® favo HABTIA Jaftgfn . dafafn defwera FHARl  SueW dTeata gy
THIHT IRia fFroem s JWRiT W WRar A FafEm gl g
fufbem wmw WRIGR M A1 RiEa R
Sr.  Particulars Leave Post Post Long Employees Gratuity Contributory  Total
Encash- retirement  retirement Term Family Scheme Post Retirement
ment Medical  Settlement Service Benefit Medical Benefit
Benefit Benefit Award Scheme Scheme
[ 1 3, 2016 @1 rgEIfT
v FRRE BT e g
Present Value of projected 2076 1932 42 6 351 2071 0 6478
benefit obligation as at
1st April, 2015
i GEIRCING
Service Cost 262 78 2 0 0 61 0 403
i EIEECING]
Interest Cost 144 149 3 1 24 134 0 455
iv  dwifea (emw)E
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 7 (187) 2 (1) 76 3021 198 3116
v  frE g ara
Past Service Cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
vi - A eI gam e
Benefit Paid (456) (46) 9) (1) (85)  (701) 0 (1298)
Vi JIREY |rTd/(39R)
Acquisition Cost/(credit) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
vii 31 A=, 2016 &1 s 2033 1926 40 366 4586 198 9154
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@) 31 4, 2015 @I GAT< ¥ & forg @9 vd &1 o & f[aRor § wiga @™
b) Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

b faaRor B g Jafg S FEAR  SWEW AW v
BB JRE fAver JRE JNRIR ~ wwn  faferen gfwen
foifebea TR T A TS | 39
Sr.  Particulars Leave Post Post Long Employees Gratuity Contributory
Encashment retirement retirement Term Family SchemePost Retirement
Medical Settlement Service Benefit Medical Benefit
Benefit Benefit Award Scheme Scheme
i AT AT
Service Cost 262 79 2 1 0 61 0
i EINESIUG
Interest Cost 144 149 3 1 24 134 0
i difea (emw)/E
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 7 (187) 2 (1) 76 3029 198
iv  fd @ ara
Past Service Cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
v O | il ) oEifad ema
Expected return on plan asset 0 0 0 0 0 (181) 0
vii  BHIR @ ai & forg uwiRa vaH
Amount charged to Employee 413 41 7 1 100 3044 198
Benefit Expenses

M) dHifdre gRT gEaRTT & UR W fiHie 31.03.2016 @1 5.00 gfoRrd & <) & fafdear qeraifs wed fear @ 2, e et
fferer o o Afeaem diferdy g1 e

SENGRE)
7) diHifed g Wefa & w2

¢) The medical inflation assumed @ 5.00% as on 31.03.2016 as confirmed by actuary since the post retirement medical benefit
scheme is covered by Mediclaim Policy.

d) Assumption considered by Actuary

FHHIG  faaRo 31 wrd 2016 &1

Sr. Description As at 31st March 2016

i Rara &=
Discount Rate 7.80%

ii 909 gd uIRSfE 7 gfg @ ) IR-wrfuTerd - v a¥ & fog 10.00 wftera vd aguRia 6.00 wfcrerd
Rate of Escalation in Salaries & Wages Non-Executive - 10.00% for first year & 6.00% thereafter

FHrfuTerd - v a¥ & forg 10.00 wftrerd v aguRia 5.00 wfrerd
Executive - 10.00% for first year & 5.00% thereafter

iii g &R AR ot WRAT STgd Sitas Jgax (2006-08) (weiferd) ddsrs
Mortality and withdrawal Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) (Modified) ultimate
iv eI, IR TR T 3 e SUGTH] 1 &I 4 W gY AT 1 & gieg bl SJAT arifchat Hedl R fabarl T &

The estimate of future salary increase is considered in actuarial valuation taking account of inflation, seniority
promotion and other relevant factors

feaeft : 22 : fog o
Note 22 : Finance Costs :

fore=oT Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
BN ECD Interest expense 9731 8771
Bl Total 9731 8771
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feapoft : 23 : s T
Note 23 : Other Expenses :

(5. @@ #) / (T in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
TRHT Td R Repairs and Maintenance 237 201
Tt e EDP Expenses 280 200
TERY &1 AR Repairs to Machinery 474 274
Cil Insurance 49 39
o Rent 307 294
U1 faRT Equipment Rent 10195 6476
9TET UOIRTAT & SIRT Hamsi &t nTd Cost of Services through outside agency 2077 1994
GRETT HaTg Security Services 292 362
v wd ) Rates and Taxes 56 154
& g Bank Charges 690 568
RIEIRCE Travelling Expenses 400 338
e aman Foreign Travelling 26 13
TS fIRTAT TR Car Hire Charges 109 74
I5F |4 AT Meeting and Conference 73 19
Tfreror Training 16 8
[RENEICEEAN T Directors' Sitting Fees 2 2
o7 o Yo Audit Fees* 8 7
TS A Uidhe =y (WifAfde oiar gdietd) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Statutory Auditor) 5 4
Tih IIs g Stock Yard Expenses 55 27
Colad, URCST Ud Coliam™ Telex, Postage and Telegram 47 48
golfae Rt Electricity 129 115
fifer vd ey Printing and Stationery 42 40
EEINSET Entertainment 22 18
THABIT eH Telephone Charges 59 55
[EEIEE] Advertisement 119 90
wdfftre aa™ Legal Expenses ** 290 261
B! Pod Consultancy Charges 58 175
AR il wieT Peb Internal Audit fees 2 2
ST 3T didhe & (3TTaR® o uRleTds) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Internal Auditor) 3 3
fafae e Miscellaneous Expenses 591 390
FHARI e @ Staff Recruitment Expenses 11 6
ARy, fhae vd afrerd Newspaper, Books and Periodicals 5 4
e amie 1R Corporate Social Responsibility 169 133
e/ e e Auction/Tender Expenses 74 101
ASETHAS T & Ty Iraem Provision for Doubtful Debts 1830 7414
ST T & forg e Provision for Claim Payable 11 13
TP ARA A9 Swachha Bharat Cess 29 0
qd 3rafd I Prior period items 0 16
Bl Total 18842 19938

*FR ol e Pod $. 1 og e ® (e ad 5. 1 o) |
**zqof smyueT PR | ERT AW & d8d ©. 36 g (TR el € S faRid 9§ . 53 g (SRT) Tl
* Includes Tax Audit fees of ¥ 1 lac (previous yr. ¥ 1 lac)

** Includes ¥ 36 lacs (approx.) prev.yr ¥ 53 lacs (approx.) pertains to cases relating to Gold Jewellary Export.
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fewqoft : 24 (T) : faceh ¥or # =
Note 24 (a) : Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency :

(3. @@ #) / (T in Lacs)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
AT BT AT Import of Goods 135936 160334
AT @E T 1 Travelling Expenses & Others 17 14
Pl Total 135953 160348

feooft : 24 () : faceh g1 o o
Note 24 (b) : Earnings in Foreign Currency :

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015

EnlSRENIE R E-auction Registration fees 13 1
Total 13 1

feweft : 25 : yEuH TR -

Note 25 : Managerial Remuneration :

() (@)

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015

freerel % 999 Td W Director's Salaries & Allowances 174 130

wisr Y 7 Foelt @1 AT Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund 7 6

b = a1 Al Reimbursement of Medical expenses 2 2

) Ifd Fel o1 du gR1 fafics Asas & fog R & fFroft @rasr #1 gfaen yem fog 7 8, 39 Jfen o1 f’a amv/ergeas & w9 J
=&t forar w7 2

A1) 9 swIRE/gU =gl W B ARkex difedl & o M &1 gae fF g, S el & fag o fean St R, sgev & w9 | T8
forar T € w=ifs @E ffead 21

Sl) SWIKh H I[P IO & AER R FRIFEERT ddefl Ia- M ©

b) Since the facility of private use of car for limited mileage is provided by the Company to Directors, such facility has not
been considered as benefit / perquisite.

c) Premium paid for Master policy of Group Gratuity Scheme / Group Insurance which also covers Directors has not been
considered as perquisite since it is unascertainable.

d) The above includes Performance related pay on actual payment basis

feuolt : 26 : Weftra Uit @1 UBHSTBROT
Note 26 : Related party disclosure

13)

1.a)

i yea FfiE (HeHd) -

it v & Pardl, sreer vd ey Feers

5N v ¥ oy, Fevs (faw)

it ft Y g, fewe (@)

st ol e, vey feee, yweayEve (Reid 09/02/2015 &7 dRIMR TgvT fbar)
ot T, vl s 9k, TeTHUHTS

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) :

Shri S K Tripathi — Chairman-cum-Managing Director
Shri A.K.Basu — Director (Finance)

Shri B.B. Singh — Director (Commercial)

Shri S.K. Ray — Company Secretary
Shri Rajib Bhattacharya — Managing Director, FSNL (Taken over change on 09/02/2015)
Shri A.P. Sharma — Company Secretary, FSNL
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) o % IR R W o

b) Transaction with related party during the year :

e @ TPf ot
Nature of Transaction RIEIN KMP drarg
CcY PY
TEDHT IRHMD A T 243 o™ T 144 o9
Managerial Remuneration Paid % 243 lacs % 144 lacs
) S Ay ¥ SR R 3 =) R 2 or9)
¢) Advance Balance outstanding : % 3lac 2 lac)

) HA T THUATTS ¥ HeEE! g g 3g ugid & wu A g ft ww T8 e (e o 5. 7em)

d) The company has received NIL (previous year X 7 lacs) as reimbursement of exprenses for CMD from FSNL.

feoqoft : 27 : vuw-17 & Srgar A Rafér

Note 27: Segmental Reporting as per AS — 17:

E;gq‘rﬂ%gj—ﬂ Egr?myfﬁ?\ﬂgﬁm $-oad, fauor sk T aEelt @ Geg w1 B 10 T wiifie srear wu & w9 # fafea e g1 gt
BRI

In terms of AS-17 the Company has identified Marketing, E-Commece and Scrap Recovery & Allied Jobs as its three Primary
Reportable Business Segments. There is no Secondary Segment.

(. @@ #)/ R in Lacs) / (fara @) / (previous year)

fa=or o $pA Y (SEfeT) TR TEE @ Helg o
Particulars Marketing E-Commerce Others (unallocated) Scrap Recovery Total
& Allied Jobs
el IO 281147 12774 3529 34707 332157
Total Revenue (535637) (13690) (849) (27670)  (577846)
P I 278843 377 9738 31455 320413
Total Expenses (524245) (309) (12943) (25134)  (562631)
AR (F% qd e/ (-) 2304 12397 (6209) 3252 11744
Result (Profit/Loss(-) before Tax) (11392) (13381) (-12094) (2536) (15215)
DY g 3146 1141 4287
Tax expenses (4048) (826) (4874)
arafy & ferg emw/EIT (-) 5346 2111 7457
Profit/ Loss(-) for the period (8631) (1710) (10341)

TR vd <gareli @1 MEfed Hefa & dRoT fawiira &1 feean s wer |
Assets & liabilities could not be segmented due to their unallocable nature.

feoqult : 28 : FUR | U BT AW, AR YT T ARHT F e A9 giedRor/Fer vd gk wawy aErre o v g1 afe w1
81, Fram @1 SIRY SR W o T | e, S8l R SR §, e w2

Note 28 : Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Advances include balances subject to confirmation/reconcilliation
and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions, wherever considered necessary,
have been made.
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feoqolt : 29 : ufy IR Sy @Y U FrEER fear &

Note 29 : Earning per share has been computed as under :-

(3. @@ #) / & in Lacs)

fore=oT Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
PRIWIT-ATH (T, ARG H) Profit after Tax [ in lacs) 7457 10341
IRT B G (316T) No. of shares (Nos.) 8800000 8800000
PRI o9 W ART IR T (Ufy AR Earnings per share on profit after tax 85 118
3ifpa gea ©.10/-) (face value % 10/- per share)

Rra/sEcE (3.)° — Basic/Diluted (% )*

oo} : 30 1 3N RIE ARl vd ufega (39 fow W 9% waue wE fan )
MHFEH Tamal  wifiret Hu-it & feg 19 &1 01 & 4§ a1 o a7 -
Note 30 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent Liabilities include claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt :-

(i) 3BT aamell / Contingent Liabilities

faa=or Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
el FR wd A g Sales Tax & Customs 4750 4581
o et arg Money Suits 15605 12875
rag arg Admiralty Suits 73 91
| foarert Arbitration 2655 4717
fafer <2 Legal Expenses 325 325
ST Income Tax 429 677
EEARIKIEIACEI] Outstanding BG/LC 64 59
| IR Service Tax 8350 7841
kRl Total 32251 31166
(ii) wfcrarg / Commitments
Yoft et o) frares 89 arel Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 557 90
AY T B AT IHH T Iad executed on capital account and not provided
=& T e (Faer afim) for (net of advance)
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feugoft : 31 (u) : 31 A1 2016 & WA 9§ & oY Yo Wi, w4, fama vd wara wid &1 3w :
Note 31 (a) : Statement of Opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock for the year ended 31st March, 2016

(fovrer @) / (previous year) / (A= ‘000 29) / (Qty ‘000 Tonnes) / (3. &g #) / (% in Lacs)

AR @1 feERor

YB3 Tl £ CED ¥ ©ib
Description Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
of material
el T i b i b i T
Qty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Value
ESECINE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Crude Ol 0 0 (155) (55066) (155) (55754) 0 0
BID/BTA 337 14683 5658 254935 5955 269023 40 1529
Coke / Coal (86) (3605) (11240) (470809) (10989) (461983) (337) (14683)
253406 269023
(525875) (517737)
sifew foor o= 449 457
Final Bill Adj. (245) (315)
255384 269480
(526120) (518052)
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feugoft 31 () : SR & sremar FUH 7 BiIeley & w9 H =G F ATIR TR WA B

Note 31 (b) : In addition to above the Company have also purchased material as facilitator as per details below :

(fra @) / (previous year) / (AT ‘000 €71) / (Qty ‘000 Tonnes) / (3. @@ #) / % in Lacs)

| &1 R BN wie g JAfT A& g9
Description of material Qty Purchase Value Service Charges Earned
TF IR A-—IK 1 120 3
H R Coils (1) (394) (8)
B/ PIcT 500 25840 741
Coke / Coal (629) (66748) (1378)
faerca 0 0 0
Billets (6) (2294) (43)
LD 382 91281 1134
Naptha (95) (65376) (1409)
MR 3R 525 24870 722
Iron Ore / Pellete (503) (27506) (514)
CHEIC N 18 1246 50
Manganese Ore (44) (3872) (93)
fRT amRA 0 0 0
Pig Iron (7) (2212) (43)
EaL 4 359 16
Chrome 0 0 0
forgga Suem 0 16119 298
Electrical Equipment 0 0 0
Pl / Total 1430 159835 2964

(1285) (168402) (3488)

fewquRt 32 : JoaTEId g & U favd a¥ & Mpsi Pl el SRRd © g8l YA vd g9 ddfed fhar T g |
Note 32 : Figures for the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary to make it comparable.

feoquRt 33 : fewuRt 33 : Fu A, 2013 B G Il & efiT FeTa! & wu § IeH FHfda & g smawad iRk gal
Note 33 : Additional Information, as required under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 of enterprises consolidated as
Subsidiary.

JEH &I AW e Rt art go gt Gk B S R
Name of the Enterprise Net Assets i.e. Share in Profit
Total Assets or Loss
wAfha fFaer awfma IHT  Rfhd oy @
P yfoed & ©9 A TN & ufea & IBH
w9
As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated (X in Lacs) Consolidated (X in Lacs)
net assets profit or loss
= Parent
THuEe I fafics MSTC Limited 80.78 71867 71.69 5346
et Subsidiary
BRI wpy o fafics Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited 19.22 17098 28.31 2111
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feuoft 34 W feweht 51 : Wer”®d Ul F 7HA H
Note 34 to Note 51 : In case of Subsidiary
feao 34 : wgw wElEY @ AT

Note 34 : Cost of Material consumed

(¢. @@ %) / R inLacs)

2015-2016 2014-2015

Tih Tih
KINUESSC] 12 0 0 59 48
fferio ud fafeeis 0 0 0 455 330
fsrehe 24 0 0 164 200
Tel g e 35 0 0 1729 1903
i vd ¥R arcd 463 0 0 1220 812
T, =@ 0 0 0 87 71
Bl 534 0 0 3714 3364
Particulars Opening Purchase Closing Consumption Consumption

Stock Stock
Lancing Tubes 12 0 0 59 48
Oxygen & Acetylene 0 0 0 455 330
Lubricants 24 0 0 164 200
Diesel & Gasolene 35 0 0 1729 1903
Stores & Spare parts 463 0 0 1220 812
Water, Power 0 0 0 87 71
Total 534 0 0 3714 3364

feugoft 35 : acmm aRewmaRml, %07 d 1M om0 T aRgellay § 91 AN & N9 2, I R & 9y oAy # a¥gelt Sl ® iR STe
% ol 7 Sfeaifad B | @R <uar @t 9y ¥y, @R ure, #or gd AW e ud gfeave & o

Note 35 : The current assets, loans and advances are good and recoverable and are approximately of the values, if realized in
the ordinary course of business unless and to the extent stated otherwise in the accounts. Banances of trade payables, trade
receivable, loans and advances are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.

feoquit 36 : oI 9F Td oW g B WraT 99 W & S fewoft & A1 ue, R AR, 2013 F 37l Mavdd SMHBINAT b AT Bl
3R LAMGNT A & T & g9 F 3 § bl AFel & fdaxor qoN1 el a¥ & AT HUN B gROTE B AH-GART TR IR PRal
gl

Note 36 : Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account read together with the notes thereon, are drawn up so as to disclose the
information required under the Companies Act, 2013 as well as give a true and fair view of the statement of affairs of the Company
as at the end of the year and results of the Company for the year under review.

feugoft 37 (T) : oMy, Iy SeuTe, PR 7 ardier, 08 | RaweR, 08 @it orafdy 7 firens g § whu ot aelt Ud IR0 & F g “HTl
FSforT Jareli” R ¥ R F 999 T. 152,05 I F oI HROT Farsl Nfew SR fFr 71 Sk FROT Farsl e B IgaR - gRT
Tge <RI B e T §, Al H aRRhd geaTE |arferd &1 X&) ¥ gTelifh e onft d@ ure B @ g

) AIRH, F=d IR Yoo, IR 7 IR, 2009 | A1, 2010 @} 3@y 7 s Ifie & wpy o agelt Td IR0 F S g “FEI
SSfeTT Hamil” IR HaT PR & q1ad T, 181.68 ARI BT HRYT Gl A SIRT {1 8 | SROT qaq1ail FfeH BT IR AYh, Fs1d SIS Yob
B RIS I A 7 7, wrenifes afha gAar dfd 2

AT) STgh, T SWE Yo, AR 7 IagaR, 2008 | fyawr, 2009 @ orafy =g Frems gfie # EhY @ afell Td IR F B R
BT TSR FaRIT” WX WAl HR B aad $.245.72 ARG BT SR AR A SR AT F 1 SURRH SR GART A BT UGTR FHA
ugel € aIRget o) far B, wel | i gears |arferd 81 T8 2, et meer onft 9% Wi B @ 2|
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2N) IAIRTH, BT G Yoo, AT 7 HRAR), 2008 | A, 2010 @F 3@y 7 SRy e § why o agel U8 THRRRT & i 7Y IR

R HTRAT TR HT BR P 9GO, 146.96 ARI BT HRYT IA161] AfSH SRI BT 8| IIRKH BROT Fiall AfeH $T IR $F 1 U8l 8
TRaet o~ fam 2, eTerifes et gaars fed 2

3) AR 3Mgeh, F=1d IS Yoo, AR 1 Jfagar, 2008 I RyqwR, 2009 Td &1 @l g YR G § BpU Bl aYell Td IRIWHROT &
F B "ATUR R HARN " W [ TR S 6 $. 22 20 ARG B HROT AN ANfeH SR} {51 B | SIS SROT I1a ANSH ol Ig7R Hu
ERT U8l &1 aTRgel B) A1 1 8, BTefifh ARhira gars «fad 2 |

) AR MY, F1d IS Yoob Y T o, AT ARehlerd 1 ¥ 2009-10, 2010-11 wd 2012-13 7Y Sredt YT # hY &t agenl
Td YRR F BRI B AR T VAT TR A IR B 969 B, 44 40 TG BT BROT Fareh ASH SR {FAT T 1 SWRH BROT s AifeH
FT YGTR B gRT U8l 8 aIRael o 337 7 ®, BIeifs At gaarg difed g1,

<) foremd & Surgeh, Fer Sre, f$diem-1 5 5. 1.08 o &1 SRYT gael e 39 MR W SR fhan & % g oefy o wate =
TR HaT & TS | IUWRKh BROT FATRM AT BT TR 7 RIS fpar ST arast

Note 37 : (a) The Commissioner, Central Excise of Raipur has issued show cause notice for ¥ 152.05 lakhs towards service tax
on “Cargo Handling Services” for the jobs of recovery and processing of scrap at Bhilai unit for the period April'08 to September’08.
The reply of above show cause notice is already submitted by the company, personal hearing in the matter is being conducted
however order is yet to be received.

(b) The Commissioner, Central Excise of Raipur has issued show cause notice of ¥ 181.68 lakhs towards ervice tax on “Cargo
Handling Services” for the job of recovery and processing of scrap at Bhilai unit for the period Oct’2009 to March’2010. The reply
to the show cause notice has been submitted to Commissioner, Central Excise, Raipur, however personal hearing is pending.

(c) The Commissioner, Central Excise of Raipur has issued show cause notice of ¥ 245.72 lakhs towards service tax on “Cargo
Handling Services” for the job of recovery and processing of scrap at Bhilai unit for the period Oct’2008 to September2009. The
reply of above show cause notice is already submitted by the company, personal hearing in the matter is being conducted however
order is yet to be received.

(d) The Commissioner, Central Excise of Ranchi has issued show cause notice of ¥ 146.96 lakhs towards service tax on “Business
Auxiliary Services” for the job of recovery and processing of scrap at Bokaro unit for the period February’2008 to March’2010. The
reply of above show cause notice is already submitted by the compnay, however personal hearing is pending.

(e) The Addl. Commissioner, Central Excise of Bolpur has issued show cause notice of ¥ 22.20 lakhs towards service tax on
“Business Auxiliary Services” for the job of recovery and processing of scrap at Durgapur unit for the period October2008 to
September'2009. The reply of above show cause notice is already submitted by the company, however personal hearing is pending.

(f) The Addl. Commissioner, Central Excise & Service Tax, Raigad Commissionerate issued show cause notice of ¥ 44.40 lakhs
towards service tax on “Business Support Service” for the job of recovery and processing of scrap at Dolvi unit for the year 2009-
10,2010-11 and 2012-13. The reply of the above show cause notice already submitted by the company, however personal hearing
is pending.

g) The Deputy Commissioner, Central Excise, Division-1 of Bhilai issued show cause notice of ¥ 1.08 lakhs towards interest on the
ground that the service rendered at the relevant period was at a higher rate. The reply of above show cause notice is yet to be
submitted.

feoqult 38 : T @ e Swe Wl gRewfEt B AR B e HR TRl dUR B B SRS gie (I5TY) ¥ w9 # @ SRl
31 B (A & w9 #) F 9fd & o JaTe T gaa Hed b A I R B e IR B g A g iR R 318
JHaH el fear gl

Note 38 : The company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets treating the entire company as a Cash Generating Unit
(CGU). Hence, the company (being a CGU) has compared the carrying amount of its fixed assets with present value of future cash
flows and it does not show any impairment.
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feuyoft 39 : vHTETHE @t g@rn AR (fewft 7 F yediea ST) 989 &9 9% 39 AMS B TSN AT B | HFA A AHERITAT TIUHTAS

soredl @l FeiRa w9 § A 6 gd uiféal & &are1 a1 Sifdd i qUd &g $Is ara el © | S Ged Td oy SeMi (THURS) STa
2012 &g wrdsife wiger ifa & fRen-frdel o1 sreRe R B

Note 39 : The amount due to MSME (as disclosed in Note 7) is to the extent such undertakings have been identified. The
company has normally made payment to MSME units in due time and there are no claim from the parties for interest or overdue
payment. The Company is following the guidelines of Public Procurement Policy for Micro & Small Enterprises (MSEs) Order
2012.

fewquit 40 : IR PRGN FHARST $ Ia9 e e FHsiar 31 faqwR, 2011 B 9 81 1 2 | TA1 FEsian Bl S| Hare 1 Sa,
2012 of <ifSq 2, 99 Heies & ad a9y 39 ©. 423.07 o (v ad %. 96951 o™a) &1 wiaen= SrHId vd wa fBar mar 2|

Note 40 : The Agreement for Wage revision of Non executive employees expired on 31st December 2011. Pending finalization
of the fresh agreement w.e.f. 1st January 2012, a provision of ¥ 423.07lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 969.51 lakhs) for the year towards
wage revision has been estimated and provided.

feuoft 41 : el 7 ST F fen Hdel & smuR W FRieRY dee Y & 919 $. 616.93 &Rg AN Td ye fhe 21 yRarfad Ao
F JFIAR FRGRI S 01.10.2014 B FF & Al W I WH & fou Fifepd 871 vd S9d forg 01.01.2007 4 FRUIARE o1, <ifad

3rgAEA fobar B |

Note 41 : The company has estimated and provided ¥ 616.93 lakhs towards executive pension fund in line with DPE's guideline.

As per proposed scheme executives who were on roll of the company on 01.10.2014 will be entitled for pension and for them
provision has been made w.e.f. 01.01.2007 towards superannuation benefit, pending approval.

feoquit 42 : Fuft wRa # Rfdy swa WHF 7 ThU ael Td THg 1 AR H ol §E 2, IRSTUH-IIw U Hel-8RER, S BT @
T AR I 2 1 WPy agell vd IR Bl & A & BUl JIRErS Yared &1 dard ff <<t € | qenfy, vew 17 srfa dmie Raiféar”
¥ W1 27 (V) F ER, U@ AR &3 R Seohe &9 & w0 § ggar a1 s @ity afk saet Iora areg ursal of Q@ vd o &
F AT o | At 8F & Pl Iorg, I Ud 1R, @1 10 wRrerd a1 if¥e ¥ JIRESY YdEE | $ol A4l YHR M IoRa & &
ARG & &9 2, 3AYd @1 Ud Scold i & e T8l ¢

3T 1T RN &7 1 T4 8, oijdl AFd] § IfealRad AR mfie AFes W AR & o1 81 & e v e wu 4 &

* 3Mep qd RTSrife Rl @t e

* faftm drlifere &3l 4 aReres & 4 deg

* g |Afddedn

* faRy & W uRare 9 g Ry SiRew

* facefht a1 FrEr Fremreen

* sfafifed a1 SIiRew

s Bt gfew BT AaW T W& E 1 U oRA AMIE vd o AR & ot € gd safey aRarad Sikew aen, faweh gat i

e, sfafifed ga1 Siew, aReme dfFeedr fe @ IR @Ral 8 | aegar fAfe Hifers &3 § aRere o 969 Ud gar 9 SR
TE B § SR 31T du A1 yeve & fow w8 g

Note 42 : Company is engaged in the business of Scrap Recovery and Allied Jobs in various Steel Plants in India, RWF —
Bengaluru and BHEL — Haridwar, whichis the principal business activity of the company. Beside scrap recovery and allied jobs,
company has rendered services of warehouse management. However, as per Para 27(a) of AS 17 i.e. “Segmental Reporting”, a
business segment shoud be identified as a reportable segment if it's revenue from sales to external customers and from transactions
with other segments is 10 percent or more of the total revenue, external and internal, of all segments. Total service charges
received against warehouse management is less than ten percent of the revenue earned; hence the former does not constitute
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a reportable segment.

Further as regards to geographical segment, the primary criteria as envisaged in the accounting standard are being considered
of which details are as follows :

*  Similarity of economic and political conditions

* Relationship between operations in different geographical areas

* Proximity of operations

* Special risks associated with operations in particular area

* Exchange control regulations

* Underlying currency risks

Since the company is rendering services to units that are subject to same economical and political conditions and are therefore
exposed to same operational risks viz, exchange control regulations, underlying currency risks, proximity of operations etc.
Accordingly relationship between operations in different geographical areas does not differ from each other and therefore is not
relevant for the company or the management.

feugoft 43 : sEfera s AERRT & TgaH wdue gRT faftraa wfeT efaRe deiet aHen s gRT @ TS ' A 3 fxig oy
2013-14 # &+t gfred =g Rue IRaa @ faar g1 ST 7 FF 3 $d gded 9 9. 2342 dRg & 3yafed s<edl 3 ggam &
T MY B 7 37 snrafed <eRAl & %, 8.08 WG & Yg IGAANT HI HT el fhar 2

Note 43 : Obsolete inventory items are identified by internal technical review committee duly constituted by the management. The
committee submitted the report in the FY 2013-14 for all the units. The committee has identified obsolete inventory amount to
% 23.42 lacs out of the total inventory of the company. Further committee has estimated net realizable value of ¥ 8.08 lacs against
these obsolete inventories.

feugoft 44 : <rar Ay A IRac HR TR AHITR (3R FHERT) R H Fafie Jou Y AR &R & R F aRvAweasy 0.17 o
BT AIRTH goil BT goT 2 ofR I a1e] a9 & Yol g1 4 A fobam 1 2

Note 44 : The impact for considering zero residual value in case of Computer Software (intangible assets) by change in accounting
policy has resulted in additional depreciation of ¥ 0.17 lacs and the same is included in current year depreciation.

feugoft 45 : HHARY 9 : IRWINT oy AT BT It faavor ¢

(F) ATHIY P THSIHIV - IF FHARAT F AT W <7 300 &1 (31T raerer vd ofg-3a S/aameT ) da Hifid @l 718 7, v
TIEE @t o 300 AT @ W & o 2 S Renfrde & AR e fan sire | e i s @1 FadiaRor ff ge wele]
¥ 3§ ve qR § 30 faAl 9% & Wiefa arftl

(W) IMABIT U B & SR RIPAT Y - AT T HHATRAT Bl fhedl RTdTed § AfSrard SRR Uifery & 3= Syt g |
(1) GBI WS B b SR NUSH Y - JTHIY U HHATRAT B < A BT 9P ST B9 <re+ | fFues fear S|
(=) SYepTeN= qaT AT gaH 25 quT @ FaT I T FaArEia IR W avg B w9 § 3|

(%) Hart IRaR arv Ao - o1 i sarl/ga et & dartaf @f ok 96 FeiRa s $ e § 996 SRt & S
ITRIRGRT B 7RI 71 |

(=) ufesg PRy : 9 ©d deg wxm @1 12 e dut grT wiawr By gxe @1 e e ¥

(®) =& ; uF FHARE! 8 gFaw 5 auf vd 30 a¥ qe faRd dal &A1 § Pl 9a1 F IAS 99 b g7 2 9R 15 A Y &R F I
fafio o= < grm | 3=get @ o 30 9N @ HaT H WAl F IAF a9 P R B R FHARI §RT IMERT i TP A8 F 997 @ ) A
o ST | SHEr) @ ifddaH IS &1 A 10 g 2

Tt AR SitaT 1 & g R fBar siar 71 w1 2015 9@ @ 3 A § 7@ ad Ofem & wu A AR Sttes S e
gRT AR f5ar S &, & MR 9= AWTe fFan = 8 o Mffsd & e & omuR R 3=Et & w9 H oarga fear war anl 9 ki
¥ § HHOl 9 T, 8.08 I HIffm & wu A AreM fhar g1 596 SR e 7 =gl MY & fwifee qeaie gua-15(FRNfed) &
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AR 31.03.2016 # fifYr & PeT ad @1 YT dx1 & U a1 8 vd qogaR . 22.36 RIS &I AR B HH &1 a9 T 81 &
fqavor & Seora fpan 2 ST IR B JoId 97 F g9 R F i fpfse favar w7

SIRRH @l T & IR $ HRY T 1 IRIT 3. 8.08 FRIs & el b T HfHd & IR <. 22.36 axTs wise fBar 2l

(V) SEHRHE & IR fafhear Jfen (maria) 3 AFREHE Ao : o g RIGINAGT 31 ffec giumn (smaria) &1
FRIEIRET 3 e SW ffdedr Gem (smariia) & forg sra™ A & o areeifid B I8 Ao 98 & rHIeT & Wi 39
facfr a¥ & yRet g w2

I 9§ H HIGIRAT T SIS U F IR FAfpean GRem Aom (Smariy) AREE & IR 89 F SR G T UeE-15 (Fenfaa) &
3IER 31.03.2016 PI AT & Pl SN Bl JHAIRad 1 &b oy fowie qedie fbar vd JegaR a9 gd 81 @ § %, 198 21 o
yeT f5ar T € wd %, 3.00 ofRg ot f¥ wfdre srafdy mraeme & ori+ wise faar war qen %, 195 21 wirg e orafy wau & ot ot
o ¥ Bfde fFar m g

Note 45 : Employee Benefits : Brief Description of Defined Benefit Scheme :

(a) Leave Encashment - Payable on separation to eligible employees, shall be limited to 300 days (Earned leave and Half-Pay
leave combined), and HPL shall not be commuted as per DPE guidelines for calculation of 300 days limit. Encashment of
accumulated earned leave is also allowed upto 30 days once in a calendar year.

(b) Post Retirement Medical benefit : Available to retired employees at any hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy
(c) Post retirement settlement benefit : Payable to retiring employees for settlement at their declared home town.
(d) Long Term Service Award : Payable in kind for rendering minimum 25 years of service and also on Superannuation.

(e) Employees Family Benefit Scheme : Monthly payment to disabled separated employees/legal heirs of deceased employees
in lieu of prescribed deposit till the date of superannuation of deceased employees.

(f) Provident Fund : 12% of Basic pay and Dearness allowance contributed to the Provident Fund Trust by the company.

(g) Gratuity : Payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who
render continuous service for a minimum period of 5 years and upto 30 years. The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one month's
wages last drawn by the employee for every completed year of service in excess of 30 years. The maximum amount of Gratuity
payable to employee is ¥ 10 lakhs.

The Gratuity is funded with LIC of India. Till March' 2015 the company contributed in the fund every year as premium on the basis
of demand raised by LIC of India which was accounted as Gratuity on the basis of payment of premium. In this financial year
company contributed ¥ 8.08 crores as premium. In addition, the company has done actuarial valuation of Gratuity fund in
accordance with AS-15 (Revised) to ascertain the total liability of the fund as at 31.03.2016 and accordingly cognized the shortfall
of fund amounting to ¥ 22.36 crores in the statement of Profit & Loss and liability for the same amount is created under current
liability in the Balance Sheet.

Due to change of above accounting policy liability for gratuity of ¥ 22.36 crores created in addition to premium paid of ¥ 8.08
crores.

(h) Contributory Scheme for Post-retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary) : The payment of medical facilities (Domiciliary) to
the separated executives as covered under Contributory Scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary) for executives.
The scheme introduced in this financial year with the approval of board.

Due to introduction of the Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme (Domiciliary) - for Executive in the current year,
the company has done actuarial valuation in accordance with AS-15(Revised) to ascertain the total liability of the scheme as at
31.03.2016 and accordingly provided ¥ 198.21 lacs in the statement of Profit & Loss and amounting to ¥ 3.00 lacs is created under
short-term provision and ¥ 195.21 lacs is created under long-term provision in the Balance Sheet.
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Note 46 : The company has paid service charges for e-auction to MSTC Ltd in the FY 2015-16 ¥ 0.97 lakhs (PY ¥ 4.22 lakhs) and
the company has earned ¥ 255.54 lakhs (PY ¥ 341.13 lakhs) towards custodian services for the warehouse management of

MSTC Ltd.

feoquRt 47 : fRTrr a9 2015-16 & SR FF 7 IR URBI P FARH e $.600 FRg 37Afd Te-3719 sadie! TR Yol &1 300.00 wfrerad
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Note 47 : During the FY 2015-16, the company has declared and paid Interim Dividend of ¥ 600.00 lakhs i.e. 300.00% of paid-
up equity share capital to the shareholders. The Dividend Distribution Tax amounting to ¥ 122.15 lakhs has been deposited.

Fd THTECRY fafics  For MSTC Limited

P X TS b. For Ray & Co. (4. Rre)
KECIICTCIRIc] Chartered Accountants eI AE wdy gwre
YR OT . 3131248 Regn. No. 313124E (B. B. Singh)
e T o g CA S P. Basu Chairman-cum-Managing Director
|EER Partner
AR & g
TH 9. 050209 M no. 050209 ngmasms (R )Q—q o)
ARRg : 03.08.2016 Dated : 03.08.2016 (R. K. Chaudhuri)
A Pl Place : Kolkata General Manager (Finance & Accounts)
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wAuaeRY fafics . MSTC LIMITED

31 9, 2016 &) JHW 9§ & oW Fde vare foaxor
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(5. @@ %) / (T in Lacs)

2015-16 2014-15
gRarer Tfafafel | o yarE Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
HRIUF Ud FATERYT 78 qd Faer @ Net Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary items 11744 15215
eI 8Y HHIAIST Adjustment for Depreciation 1335 839
yaterafel eusrd v AT Adjustment for Prior period depreciation 0 14
Hreseq AT 6 HHIO ] HHRTT Adjustment for writing off CWIP 0 84
wuikral o fasel & 81 ¥ @i Adjustment for loss on sale of Assets 0 0
ST W 3T 8 FHRAISH Adjustment for Interest Income (7178) (8652)
SRIGRY golt uRac § gd aReeld @™ Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 5901 7500
faferyr S/ emare s 4 (gf)/@ (Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors/Trade Receivables 84514 (27674)
3 Tl AR re] anf&rar # (?{f?&')/ﬁ (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current/Non Current Assets 290 686
Sratgfiy/erearalyy kT gd W (Increase)/Decrease in Long term/Short term Loans (996) (1145)
7 (&)@ & Advances
wiw/gTde # (gfg)/a (Increase)/Decrease in Stock/Inventories 13202 (11078)
fafder SFeR/@mR Sa/ae/iR Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors/Trade Payables/ (86752) 24994
1] FTar/mmaeT § (3fg)/m Current/Non Current Liabilities/Provisions
AT | The wifQ Cash Generated from Operation 16159 (6717)
S ST AT Advance Income Tax Paid (4542) (8330)
e Tl W g Twe warE () Net Cash Flow from Opertaing Activities : (A) 11617 (15047)
Forrer wfefaferdl & e srare Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
el aRTHRR/ATsegamed &1 garsm Additions of Fixed Assets/CWIP-Net (405) (1482)
IS Interest Received 7178 8652
e nRifaftmt & fae T@e wfa (&) Net Cash generated from Investing Activities : (B) 6773 7170
factia nfofaftrt & e vae Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
AU SR Tifey Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (45280) 23340
. Dividend Paid (1822) 0
ST W) BT Tax on Dividend (494) (88)
forfra wfefafEl § e e J6e () Net Cash used in Financing Activites : (C) (47596) 23252
THe Td Adbe e A Faa gy (T+d+) Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) (29206) 15375
T Td AHE THNE-URMEG Cash & Cash Equivalent — Opening 135031 119656
e Ud Fdhe GHHG-3iH Cash & Cash Equivalent — Closing 105825 135031
feuft 16 & R A6e wd wHe wAH®s Cash & Cash Equivalent as per Note 16
The T W B H Cash and Stamp on hand 5 5
EIGWEEIN] Current Accounts 25707 35192
RIGINEECIGI Dividend Accounts 61 59
SHET T Deposit Accounts 80052 99775

105825 135031
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Note : Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period include Unclaimed Dividend of ¥ 61 lakh Term Deposit of ¥ 903 lakh

furnished as guarantee against claims which are not available for use to the Company.

TH ING & IR wfddes & Ty 7 B

In terms of our report of even date.
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A : Pl Place : Kolkata General Manager (Finance & Accounts)
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